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Welcome to Mitie
Annual Report and Accounts 2019

We are the UK’ leading
facilities management and
professional services company,
providing a range of services
to a large, diverse, blue-chip
client base. Our expertise, care,
technology and insight create
amazing work environments,
helping our customers be
exceptional, every day.
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Exceptional,
every day
for our

customers

Our customers range
from banks and retailers,
to hospitals, schools and
government entities.

We have an order book
of £4.1bn and a pipeline
of opportunities of
£10.2bn.

@® Read more on PG 12

Exceptional,
every day
for our

environment

In 2010, we committed
to reduce our emissions
intensity by 35% by
2020. We are proud to
have achieved this target
a year early. We did so by
rationalising our estate,
restricting business
travel and improving
fleet efficiency.

(® Read more on PG 32-33

Exceptional,
every day
for our

employees

Our 52,500 employees

go the extra mile for our
colleagues and clients

to deliver basics brilliantly.
We are driven by our vision
of "'The Exceptional,

Every Day' and our values.

We are One Mitie.
@ Read more on PG 34-37
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Financial highlights

F Inancial hlghllghts (for the year ended 3! March 2019)

' 2 2 8 8 2 * Revenue up 94% to £2.2bn (FY 17/18: £2.0bn)
with organic growth at 5,5% reflecting strong
£ [ ) bn £ - m performance from top strategic accounts

Revenue! Operating profit before other items'? ¢ Qperating profit before other lems up
(FY 17/18; £2.0bny) (FY 17/i8: €83.2m) 6.0% to £88.2m (FY 17/18: £83.2m)
* Qperating profit up to £50.2m
(FY 17018 £1.)m)
I 6 8 4 0 * Final drvidend recommendation of 2.67p,
P NP making the total fullyear dvidend of
Basic earnings before other Dividends per share 4.0p per share (FY 17118: 4.0p)
items per share'? (FY 17n8: 4.0p) ¢+ Leverage multiple reduced 10 |.33x net debt/
(FY 12N8: 15.2p) EBITDA (FY 17/1B: 1.98x, covenant <3x) with
period end net debt further improved to
£140.7m {FY 1788 £193.5m)
I 7 02 0 *+ Core businesses performing strongly
£ oI M £ WM « Project Helix iargely complete with exit
Net debt (at period end)? Net debt (daily average) Z;",;Ztﬁ f,?vp'-q"’,fef‘fﬂ?;m:;l Forte
(FY 17/18: £193.5m) (FY 1718: £286.)m) now launched with primary focus on

Engineering Services

Qrder book from cortinuing operations
£ bn £ bn stable at £4.1bn with pipeline growing to

* . £10:2bn on the back of inclusion onto the

Secured order boolk!' : Pipeline of opportunities Crown Commerdal Services Framework
{FY 17/18: £4.2bn) (FY i7/18: NiA) Net Promater Score up 22 points to
+12 (FY |748:-10)
Employee engagement up 12 ppts to 45%
Paying our suppliers faster {50 supplier
payment days down from 58 days in FY 7/18)

.

Financial summary
FY 18/19 FY 17/18
Before Before
£ unless otherwise spacined other itams? Total  otherijtems? Total
Revenue' 2,2214 2,221.4 20306 20306
Cperating profit 282 502 832 ]
Operating peofit morgin' 4.0% 2.3% 4.1% 0.1%
Profi/(loss) before tax' 744 364 667 {I54)
Profit/Qoss) for the year 6.7 30.9 612 {260 R ian of the Group's performance
Basic earnings/{loss) per share 16.0p' 8.8p 152p' [7.6)p measures 10 its statuiory results is provided in the
Full-year total dividend per share 4.0p 40p Appendix - Alernative Performance Measures.
Fy 119 Fr 78 1. From continuing operatiors.
Cash generated fromv(used i) operations 47.5 79 2. Other itemns are as describad in Note 4 to the
Period end net debt? 140.7 1935 consoidated finandial sacements.
Drder book' 41473 41860 B e e e corsmed fnancl

Delivering the exceptional through a range of services

Revenue' FY 18/19

Cleaning &
Engineering Professional Environmental Care &
Services Security Services Services Custody Catering

£905.7m £536.5m £131.4m £404.4m £107.3m £136.1m

(FY 17/18: £886.3m} {FY 17/18: £432.0m) (FY 17/18: £131.2m) (FY 17718, £384.Im) (FY 17/18: £599m) (FY 17/18: £137.1m}

02 Mitie Group plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2019
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We are investing in Connected Workspace
technology to enable us to offer added value
to our custorners, improve operational
efficiency and reduce reliance on manual
labour. Qur open source platfarm allows

us 1o integrate multiple systems and data
sources, perform advanced data analytics
and deliver solutions through easy-to-use
customer interfaces.

Owr nationwide flexible offering combined
with the smart use of technology remains
attractive. With a focus on key drivers -
customer, people, cost and technology —
we are helping 1o shape next generation
facilities management.

() Read more on PG 13

5 6m

Integrated facilities daily data readings

‘management

contracts with
Connected Workspace
component won in

FY 1819
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At a glance

Group
information

Our vision

Our purpose

What we do

The Exceptional, Every Day.

Our expertise, care, technology and insight create amazing work
environments, helping our custormers be exceptional, every day.

We are the UK's leading facilities managerment (FM) and professional services
company employing 52,500 people. We manage and maintain some of the
nation'’s most recognised landmarks and work with a wide range of blue-chip
private and public sector dliertts. Ve have scale and nationwide reach as well
as breadth and depth of fadilities management services, which we deliver in
a flexible, tailored proposition through self-delivery or strategic partnerships.

We work in partnership with our dients to grow customer lifetirre value
by offering technology-backed solutions where our Connected Workspace
technology is a true differentiator. We are ambitious for the future of the
FM industry, our custorners and our employees.

We deliver the exceptional through a range of services

Engineering
Services (ES)

Mitie Engineering Services
delivers technical and building
maintenance sérvices and
specialist services in heating,
cooling, lighting, water
{reatment, and building
controls. The division carries
out project works, including
roofing and painting works.

@ Read more on PG 16-17

Security

‘The Security division comprises
Security Management, Front of
House, Document Management,
and the employee vetting
business, Procius.

(P Read more onPG 17-18

04 Mitie Group plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2019

Professional
Services (PS)

Professiona! Services is Mitie’s
consultancy services division,
which includes Connected
Workspace soluticns,
International, Sustainability.
‘Waste Management,

Risk Management and
Ocoupier Services.

@ Read more on PG 1819

Cleaning &
Environmental
Services (CES)

The Cleaning & Environmental
Services division offers
commercial and technical
deaning, 2s well as specialist
services such as landscaping
and heatthcare services.

@ Readmore onPG 19



Customer type Forward order book
im FY 18119 £m FY 181y
@ Government 700.3 @ Lessthan | year 1,251.9
EY 18119 @ Non-government 1,521.1 FY 1819 @ More than | year 2,895.4
Revenue Total secured
continuing ccng::i:::
operations operations
£m FY 17/18 £m FY 17/18
@ Government 6204 @ Lessthan | year 11216
Fy 1708 @ Non-government 14102 £Y 1718 @ More than | year 30644
Revenye Total secured
from continuing poasiruel
operations
R
Em FY 18/19
@ Engineering Services 905.7
FY 18/19 @ Security . 5368
Revenue @ Professional Services 1314
H from continuing
Care & Catering oparations @ Css 4044
Custody by division @ Care & Custody 107.3
The Care & Custody division The Catering division @ Catering 136.1
provides a range of services comprises: Gather & Gather,
to vulnerable adults in secure our workplace catering
environments, induding brand; and Creativevenis,
managing immigration remowval our specialist indoor
centres and detention and and outdoor event
escorting services on behalf catering buysiness, £m FY 17718
of the Home Office, as well as — -
forensic medical examiner and @ Engineering Services 8863
custody support services for FY 17/18 @ Security 1320
police forces across Engiand Revenue @ Professional Services 1312
and Wales. from continuing ® e 3041
() Read more on PG 20 @® Read more on PG 2021 by division @ Care & Custody 599
@ Catering 137.0
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Chairman’s statement

Shaping Mitie
for the future

£2.26r

Revenue from continuing
operations
(FY 17/18: £20br)

882,

Operating profit before other
items from continuing operations’
(FY 17/18: £83.2m)

4.0,

Dividends per share
(FY 17/18: 40p)

t. Reconciliation of operating profit
before other items to dxenatutog
accounts is provided in the Appendix —
Ahernative Performante Measures on
pages 163 10 165,
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We want to drive a

change from today’s mostly
reactive approach to a
preventive approach using
data and technology.

Derek Mapp
Chairman

Dear Mitie shareholder,

| am pleased to report on the progress of Mitie's second year

of transformation. It has been a year of delivery and change -
operational, financial ard cultural — in a competitive facilities management
market with a thalienging industry backdrop.

FM industry overview and changing customer demands
Last year | referenced the demise of Carillion, one of our major
competitors. The outsourcing sector has remained in the spotlight

with Interserve — another major competitor — going into pra-pack
agministration, following which Interserve’s lenders acquired its
operating subsidiaries. Despite the angoing challenges for the industry,

| still believe that the medium-term outlook for your company is
positive, On the one hand, there is significant opportunity for increased
outsourging penetration of the facilities management industry. On the
other hand, we expect consolidation in the market to continue over the
next couple of years, as the industry addresses some of its fundamental
strategic and financial challenges.

Outsourcing remains a kow-margin industry. In this environment,
technology and scale remain two of Mitie’s most significant differentiators.
Creating a technology-enabled business can fundamentally change the
economics of the industry. YWe will continue to focus our technology
programrme on three key areas: transforming our internal technology
infrastructure to build a more cost-efficient organisation; investing in
service delivery technologies to improve the customer experience and
cost-to-serve; ang finally. creating new services and products which add
significant new value for our customers.

5

As a consequence, we believe that the economics of faciltties
managerment is shifting from a low-margin, labour-based model to a
maore sustainable technology-driven approach. Customer priorities

are beginning to evolve as a result of the challenges facing the industry,
the impact of technology and new employee workplace expectations.
While cost efficiency and the quality of service delivery remain front
and centre for our customers, they are increasingly also focusing on
employee wellbeing, sustainability and better use of their buildings,
These softer benefits are becoming important in attracting and retaining



the best people and enabling them 1o be as productive as possible.
At Mitie, we therefore continue to drive adoption of our Connected
Workspace offering, which is focused on products and services that
improve the performance of buildings, and the wellbeing of their
occupants, for the benefit of our customers.

Strategy

Owr strategy is based on four pillars — customer, people, cost and
technology — and is designed to grow customer lifetime value through
technology-based solutions. We are focusing on those business lines
where we can secure market-leading positions to ensure long-term
sustainable growth. Our vision is to deliver The Exceptional, Every Day.
1t is clear to me that by the end of year twa in our transformation
journey, we have made progress.

During FY 18/19 we simplified and strengthened the Mitie portfolio

by sefling our Pest Cortrol and Social Housing businesses and acquiring
a security business, Vision Security Group (VSG). The acquisition of
V5G boosts our already strong position in the UK security market.

We have embedded technology into the heart of our offering, Examples
indude our Connected Workspace technology, our MiTec centre in
Belfast, our global security operations centre {GSOC) in Northampton
and our service operations centre (SOC) in Bracknell. We are
showcasing our technology solutions in our Shard headquarters.

‘We want to drive a change in the faciliies management industry from
today's mostly reactive approach 1o a preventive approach using data
and technology to aptirmise the performance of a custorner’s estate

and enhance the wellbeing of their people.

During the year, we continued to prioritise customer service, which

is reflected in a very encouraging 22-point increase in Net Promoter
Score {NPS) to +12 points. This is testament to all the hard work from
the teams on the ground and at account management level However,
we will not be complacent about the result: we have more to do. so
we will continue to listen 1o our customers and act on their feedback.

COur people are our most critical asset. Without their commitment
and hard work, the Group would not have progressed as farin its
transformation journey during the first two challenging years.

We are committed to creating a ‘Great Place to Work'. During the
year, employee engagement improved to 43% from 33% last year —
aremarkable achievernent given the ongoing transformation and scale
of change within the Group. Along with my fellow Board members,

| personally participated in our "back to the floor” initiative to meet
more of our colleagues, listen to their experiences and celebrate
exceptional performance.

We have continued to focus on rigorous cost contro! under our

Project Helix programme, By the end of March 2019, we had reached
our target exit run-rate savings — annualised reductions to the cost

base ~ of ¢.£45m per annum, through various cost saving initiatives across
HR, Procurement, Praperty, Finance, IT and Engineering Services. We
now expect to faunch a new cost saving initiative programme in FY 19/20.

Stakeholder engagement

The Board has reviewed governance in readiness for the UK Corporate
Governance Code 2018, which applies to accounting periods beginning
on or after | January 2019. Given the extent of change at Mitie over
1he last two years, we as a Board wish to engage proactively with our
stakeholders. In FY 18/19, the Board established a format for regular
engagement with shareholders and for supporting Mitie's workforce
during transformation. Through regular updates from the Executive
Leadership Team. the Board also rermains abreast of developments
with customers, suppliers. banks, noteholders and other stakeholders.

We will continue to develop dialogue between the Board and

all stakeholders to ensure a mutual understanding of views on
governance and to promote discussion of the Group's performance.
Along with a number of Non-Executive Directors, | have directly
engaged with institutional shareholders with a cumulative holding

of 63% of Mitie's issued share capital. Discussion covered a range

of governance matters including Mrtie’s cutture and cultural
transformation, as well as Board support for the executive team.

In line with the UK Corporate Governance Code 2018 and the Financial
Reporting Council’s guidance on board eflectiveness, Mitie appointed
fennifer Duvalier as the Group's designated Non-Executive Director 1o
oversee Board engagement with our workiorce. Jennifer champions the
wvoice of Mitie employees at Board discussions and participates directly in
our employee engagement initiatives,

Board composition

The Nomination Committee regularty reviews Board composition
and considers matters such as skills and diversity. During the year,
the Board adopted an inclusion policy, setting objectives in terms of
diversity and inclusion.

In July 2018, Larry Hirst retired from the Board and Roger Yates
succeeded him as Senior Independent Director. Mark Reckitt also
stood down from the Board. with Mary Reilly assuming the role of
Chair of the Audit Committee.

Jack Boyer stood down from the Board with effect from 31 August
2018. Jennifer Duvalier succeeded him as Chair of the Remuneration
Committee.

| would like to thank Larry, Mark and Jack for their service to Mitie.

Results and dividends

I am pleased to report that revenue from continuing operations
during the year was strong at 24% to £2.2bn (FY 17/18: £2.0bn),
boosted by the acquisition of the security firm VSG. Operating profit
from continuing operations before other items also grew by 6.0% to
£88.2m (FY 17/18: £83.2m) with Engineering Services, Security and
Care & Custody all delivering good growth.

The Board has recommended a final dividend of 2.67p, taking total
dividends for the year to 4.0p. We expect to hold the dividend flat
at least until transformation is complete. when we will review the
dividend policy.

Outlook

While change can be unsettiing, it can also be rewarding, and these

are exciting times for your Company. The strength of our strategy,
management, scale, technology offering and, of course, the dedication of
our people. realy set us apart. We will continue to build upon the progress
achieved over the first two years of transformation, strengthening our
position as the UK's leading facilities management organisation.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank cur many stakehalders. and
alt Mitie employees, including the VSG colleagues who joined us recently,
for their dedication and commitment 1o the Company, and for going the
extra mile. And fimally, 1 would also like to thank you, our shareholders,
for your continued support.

Derek Mapp
Chairman

Mitie Group plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2019 07
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Business model

Creating value
for all our stakeholders

Our vision
The Exceptional, Every Day.

@ Read more on PG 1|

Our purpose

Our expertise, care,
technology and insight create
amazing work environments,
helping our customers be
exceptional, every day.

® Read more on PG I

Our values
* We are One Mitie.

* We are built on
integrity and trust.

* We go the extra mile.

* Our diversity makes
us stronger.

* QOur customers’ business,
is our business.

(P Read mare on PG 35

‘What we do

Diligence
and design

@
Mobilisation

and running
operations

We start by engaging with a new

or existing client to understand
its needs or ahy changes to

requiremnents. We design a bespoke

solution using our expertise,
knowledge and Connected
Workspate technology.

>

We lock to mobilise our
contracts in the most
efficient way. Once in
operation, we are continually
looking for opportunities

t& remove cost, expand

our offering where it would
be of benefit to customers
and become a valued
strategic partner,

The Mitie
approach

Delivered
through our
business

Guided by
our strategy

08 Mitie Group ple | Annual Report and Accounts 2019
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Ve have created a One Mitie
approach in everything we da to

deliver a seamless, unrivalled service.

Scale

The scale of our operations
allows us to self-deliver
oSt services, including
some spedialist services.
We ako pariner with

third parties to deliver
additional specialist services.

We offer a breadth of services

underpinned by broad expertise,

aflexible bespoke approach
and proprietary market-leading
technelogy.

Engineering Security
Services

Qur four strategic pitars — qustomer,

people, cost and technology ~

underpin our strategy of focusing on

our larger businesses and strategic

accounts where our technology offer

&2 true differentiator to enaure

long-term sustainable growth, dekvery
of our vision of ‘The Exceptional,
Every Day’ and creation of value for

all our stakeholders,

Customer; putting
tustomers at the
heart of what we do
Building market-leading
positions in highar growth
segments and increasing
custorner NPS,



Insights to
drive value

—

Using our proprietary technology, data analysis and open source data
lake, as well as tradicional methods, we collace information on customers’
buildings and assets and the wellbeing of their employees. YWe converc
data and feedback into actionable recommendations for our clients.

Recognising that every customer is different, our approach is tailored
to customers’ unique needs and is designed to deliver continual

improvements throughout the life of the contract.

>

>

Nationwide Expertise Technology
reach ‘WWe are a partner Our technology suite
Qur nationwide reach trusted for cur includes Connected
allows us to service expertise and Workplace, MiTec,
large clients with for putting our service operations
presence all over customers at the centre (SOC) and
the UK. heart of our business. global security
operations centre
({GSOC),
Professional  Cleaning & Care & Catering
Services Environmental Custody
Services
People: our Cost: strong Technology:
single most balance sheet technology
important and cost control solutions and
resource Strengthening Connected
Creating a 'Great our balancing sheet Woaorkspace
Place 1o Work' for and maintaining Embedding technology
our employees. cost discipline to into the heart of
remain competitive. our offering .

—
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Creating value for
all our stakeholders

Customers

We aim to mowve from being just another service provider
to being a trusted partner for our customers, helping
them create high-performance work environments by
optimising utiksation of their buildings and improving the
wellbeing and performance of their people.

+12

Net Promoter Score (an improvement
of 22 points from -[Qin FY 17/18)

Govemance

Shareholders

We are a business in turnaround with strong
management, an excellent customer base and a
dlear strategy. We are cammitted to strong financial
management and the creation of shareholder value.

8.6p

Basic earnings per share
({improved from loss of 26p in FY 17/18)

Financial statements

Employees

We are creating a great working environment and
learning and development opportunities for our
employees, We empower our people and recognise
great work.

52,500

employees

Social value: communities, environment,
people, innovation and regional business
Through the Mitie Foundation we provide apportunities
for learning and employment: Ready2work scheme;
employer engagement days: Think Differently
programme; and school, acaderny and college events.

I51 Mitie colleagues

volunteered to assist in a range of
educational and community events

Suppliers

‘We are commitied to ensuring a responsibie supply
chain. We work with all suppliers 1o ensure adherence
to our Code of Conduct, including Modern Slavery and
Human Trafficking, Safety and Sustainability objectives,
and our Mitie vetting standards.

We procured from

7,500

suppliers in FY 18/19

Mitie Group ple | Annual Report and Accounts 2019 o9



Market review

A world of
opportunity

Key market drivers

Facilities
management
industry

B
®®

The UK has a large and estabiished outsourced
facikties management (FM) market. Overall it is
forecast to grow at moderate levek (c.2%) as the
market continues to move slowly from insourcing to
outsourcing. Despite recent industry turbulence, we
are not sasing any markad trends for insourding, FM
outsourcing penetration ranges from ¢.55% for
catering to c.90% for cleaning. The relative share of
contract types (single service ¢.55%, Lundle/irtegrated
FM ¢.45%) has remained relatively stable. Customers'
primary focus continues to be on cost, effidency and
service quality. but with aningreasing focus on
technology and employee wellbeing. Turbulence in the
sector has highlighted the need for a more informed
approach to pricing and risk transfer, Scrutiny into
public sector outsourcing has remained high.

[TRTTS

We are focused on improving our customers
experience and embedding technology-driven
solutions in our offering.

How we are responding

‘We are the UK's largest F™ company and we are
transforming the industry by continuing to fogus on
delivering an outstanding senice and customer
experience, generating cost effidency, creating an
environment where our people can thrive and investing

in technology. Cur Connected Workspace technology
differentiates us from our competition. We are generating
data-driven insights and enabling dedisions that improve
efficiency and our cast-to-serve. as well as create new
services and products for our customers.

Read move inthe CEG's stratagic review an pages 110 13
Read abowut principal risks and uncertainties on pages 38 to 46

UK
economy

®O

Agcording to the Office for National Statestics (ONS),
in 2018 UK GDFP grew | 4% slower than 1.8% in 2017,
QNS reported that the Consumer Prices Index (CPi)
12-month rate was 2.1% in December 2018, ONS
revised down real GOP growth in 2019 from 1.6% to
$.2%, against the backdrop of considerable uncertainty
over the next steps in the Brexit process. As Brexit
uncertainty subsides, and productivity growth
gradually improves, ONS expects GDP growth to pick
up to 1.4% in 2020 and to 1.6% a year thereafier as the
small margin of spare capacity is absorbed. The
unemployment rate is expected 1o rise marginally to
4.1% in 2019 as output falls below potential.

Qutsourcing is typically shielded from econormc cycles,
benefiting from an increased customer cost-cutting
focus during economic slowdowns, and (rom eontract
expansion in economic upturns. Qur national footprin,
scale of operations and flexible proposition remain
compelling, while our Connected Workspace technology
serves as a clear differentiator.

We have assessed potential Brexit impacts under a range of
scenarios, We expect the main impacts in wage and food
price inflation and labour and parts shortages, all of which
we are addressing through contingency planning and
working closely with cur supply chain.

Reat about pringipat risks and uncertaintes on pages 38 10 46

Customer
expectations

®©®

Alihough cost, efficiency and service quality continue
10 be priorities for customers, ernployee wellbeing and
technology are gaining further traction. Customers
are increasingly looking to improve the warking
emvironment, employee satisfaction and wellbeing of
their empioyees. Flexible workspace solutians, efficent
use of their estate and operational insights supported
by real-time data provide an opportunity for
customers to improve the performance and wellbeing
of their people and functioning of their bulldings,

We are investing in Connected Workspace technology
1o reduce our cosl-1o-serve and treate new products
and services that add significant value for our cuslomers,
Qur open source technology platform aliows us to
integrate multiple systems and data sources, perform
advanced data analytics and deliver better services for
our customers. We will continue reshaping our business
to be the leader in next generation FM.

Read more in the CEO's strategjc review on pages | to 13
Read about princpal risks and uncertainties on pages 38 to 46

Legislation

®HO
®®

UK employers rust comply with legal and regulatory
requirements in areas such as taxation, the National
Minimum Wage (NMW) and the National Living
‘Wage (NLW). the Appreriticesnip Levy, workplace
pensions and the Modern Slavery Act.

The rmajority of Mitie frontine employees are within
the NLW category. The NLW for workers aged

25 and over increased by 4.5% from £7.83 to £8.21
fram April 2019,

The Apprenticeship Levy is required from UK
employers 1o fund new apprenticeships and is
charged at a rate of 0.5% of an employer’s payroll,

By taw all employers must offer a workplace pension
scheme to eligible employees.

10 Mitie Group plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2019

The majorfty of our existing contracts already contain

a change-of-law clause which aliows us to pass on related
cost increases, helping us to protect our margins. We
are utilising the Apprenticeship Levy for fromdine stafi
training and deveiopment. We are also maoving beyond a
labour-phus’ model towards more value-zdded services
and embedding more technology in our operations.

Pressure on margins is Fkely to continue as labour costs
increase driven by legislation and CPl inflation.

We paid £4.7m into the Apprenticeship Levy scheme in FY
18/Y9 and wiilised £4.2m.

Read about principal risks and uncertainties on pages 38 0 46



Chief Executive's strategic review

Strengthening the business,
In a challenging market

Our vision

“The Exceptional, Every Day’ s a combination of expertise, care and
insights, backed by the latest technology and data, to create an offering
that goes beyond traditional FM. To our pecple we promise a place to
work where they can thrive and be the best every day. To our customers
we promise 1o be a trusted partner, creating exceptional environments for
clients and colleagues, as well as adding value. Everything we do is backed
by cur core values, which oversee how we behave as a responsible
corporate citizen. and as individuals.

Qur purpose

Achieving The Exceptional, Every Day’ doesn't happen by chance.
And we want our custamers to be exceptional too, We start by doing the
basics brilliantly, tailoring somonsthatantnpate and meet our custormers’

we provide
data-driven solutions, embedding technology seamlessly into everything we
do. The insights gained allow us to offer custamers a new level of Nexdbility
and control, helping them become exceplional at what they do best.

Our strategic pillars

Customer: build ﬁarkzt-leading positions in higher
growth segrents and increase customer NPS

People: create a "Great Place to Work' for
our employees

Cost: strengthen cur balance sheet and malntain
con discipline to remain compettive

Technology: embed technology into the heart of
our offering
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Our vision is to deliver

‘The Exceptional, Every Day’ g
for our customers, people §
and other stakeholders. o
Phil Bentley
Chief Executive Officer
g
;
8
k.
Dear Mitie shareholder, §
1 2m pleasad to report on our progress in my second full year as £

CEO of Mitie Group plc, Two years into our transformation journey

we are already seeing the benefits of our strategy to focus on our larger
businesses and strategic accounts where our technology offer is a true
differentiator to ensure long-term sustainable growth, delivery of our
vision of The Exceptional, Every Day and creation of value for all our
stakeholders through our four strategic pillars of customer, people, cost
and technology.

Cver FY 18/|9 we sharpened the focus by continuing to invest in
customer service and technology and by changes to our porifolic
of businesses. This has enabled us to grow revenue and profits.

We see our larger businesses and strategic clients as offering the best
opportunities for growth and margin expansion as we deepen our
capabilities and relationships. These are also areas where we are best
able 1o deploy technology. '

Project Helix has provided solid foundations for Mitie’s future

growth, enabling irvestments in our people, customer and technology.
With the foundations now built, we are now moving to Project Forte,
which is focused primarily on driving simplicity and efficiency in
Engineering Services. Together with our focus on strategic accounts

and larger businesses, we should see improvement in the Group's profits,
At the same time, we are making good progress in strengthening our
balance sheet.
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Chief Executive's strategic review continued

Business performance

It has been angther challenging year with the FM sector remaining firmly
in the spotlight. Despite this, we grew our revenues and top strategic
accounts, reduced our period end net debt and qualified for Phases | and
Il of the Crown Commercial Services (CCS) FM Marketplace Framework
thereby positioning ourselves tc win mare government work.

Revenue from continuing operations was 94% up on the previous year,
at £2.2bn. with organic growth at 5.5%. Operating profit before other
iterns from continuing operations increased to £88.2m from £83.2m in
FY 17118, Operating profit for FY 18/19 was up to £50.2m from £l.ima
year earlier and basic earnings per share were 8.6p, from a loss of 76p in
FY 17/18. Basic earnings per share before other items from continuing
operations were 16.8p (FY 17/18: 15.2p).

The fixed-term order book from continuing operations was broadly flat
at £4.1bn, benefiting from VSG's order book and significant contract wins
towards the end of the year. Fellowing the successful reorganisation of
our sales team and the introduction of strategic account managers, we
have seen a steady flow of wins and retentions. The pipeline of £10.2bn
includes significant opportunities on the CCS Framework.

Chr balance sheet heatth remains a key focus. We are commitied to
further reducing customer invoice discounting, normalising creditor days,
asking clients for fairer payment terms, streamlining cur billing processes
and delivering faster cash collection. Our eflorts have seen a decline in
average daily net debt in H2 18/19 10 £286.5m from £3{74m in HI 18/19
as we resolved working capital impacts following the outsourcing of
transactional processing to India in early FY 18/19, Overal, average daily
net debt for £Y 18/19 was £15.9m higher than prior year at £302.0m.
Our medium-term objective is to continue to reduce the average daily
net debt. The period end net debt was £140.7m versus £193.5m a year
earlier as we make continuing improvements to the cash collection
cycle; the net debt position also indudes proceeds from two disposal
transactions eflected during FY 18/19. We are operating comfortably
within debt covenants with period end net debt to EBITDA of 1.33x.

Focusing our business

In FY (8/19, we also focused our business by selling our Pest Controf and
Social Housing businesses and acquiring the Vision Security Group (VSG).
The first two transactions simplified our operations: they also provided
funds to strengthen the balance sheet and accelerate partial repayment
of the deficit under the Group’s defined benefit pension scheme, The
V5G acquisition strengthens our position as one of the UK's largest
providers of security services 1o businesses,

Our strategy

Customer focus

Listening 1o dlients is essential as we focus on delivering services that our
customers need. By taking on board feedback from last year's customer
survey and continuing to invest in customer service, we have secured

an impressive improvement in our NPS score, which increased from
-1010 +12in FY 18/19. A follow-up programme for account directors
will ensure we improve our score further still, helping us to win and
retain more business.

Mitie’s success rests on growing our largest strategic accounts and
deepening our relationship with them. it was pleasing to see that
these accounts grew revenues by 8% in FY 18/19, which demonstrates
that our biggest clients are trusting us with more of their business,

We have recently secured a place on several key government
frameworks, giving us an opportunity to become a strategic partner for
the UK government in outsourced FM, defence, security and custody.

©)

A great place to work

Supporting our people to be the best they can be is one of our core
objectives. We do more than just provide the tools required for the job;
we are making Mitie a great place to work through various intiatives.

Cur oniine Peopte Hub, supported by SAP SuccessFactors, is a single
point of access for anything HR-related. The recently lzunched Learning
Hub offers a doud-based poal of 2,500 instructor-led courses.

Mitie Exceptionals is a diverse employee consulting group which laises
with our Non-Executive Director, Jennifer Duvalier, on the interests
of the wider workforce. In April 2018, we launched Upload, a people
survey providing the opportunity to feedback on working with Mitie.
We launched a “You 5aid, We Did’ campaign to address employees’
feedback throughout the year. It was tharefore very encouraging to
see that the employee engagement score went up to 45% from 33%
in the prior year.

In addition. we were the only FIM comparny to be recognised by two
prestigious awarding bodies. Ve were certified a 2019 Top Employer
by the Top Employer Institute Certification Programme. And we came
{7th on the inclusive Top S0 UK Employers list for promoting diversity
and inclusion. .

)

in action

Our strategy is to focus on
our larger businesses and
strategic accounts where our
technology offer is a true
differentiator to ensure
long-term sustainable growth,
delivery of our vision of

The Exceptional, Every Day'
and creation of value for

all our stakeholders,

Customer: build market-leading

positions in higher growth segments

and increase customer NPS

Achievements
* NPS increased 22 poirds to +12

* Top strategic accounts grew revenues by 8%

* Mitie qualified as a supplier on Crown
Commerdal Services Framework for FM,
defence and security services

KPis: Organic revenue growth, operating profit

margin before other iterns, order book, NPS

£|0.2bn

pipeline of opportunities
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People: create a ‘Great Place
to Work’ for our employees

Achievements

* We launched People Hub and Learning
Hub platforms

+ Employee engagement increased to 45%

* jennifer Duvalier oversees Board
engagement with the worldorce

KPIs: Staff urnover, employee engagement,

all injury frequency rate

455

employee engagement



Cost discipline

In June 2017 our cost programme, Project Helix, was launched to
kickstart Mitie’s transformation. Two years on, we have largely
achieved our aims, exiting FY 189 with run-rate cost savings of
¢.£45m, We started by delayering and remaving central management
heads both at Group level and within the divisions. We standardised
and centralised our IT, HR and Finance functions. For IT and Finance
we also offshored the majority of back-office processes. In HR, we
introduced SAP SuccessFactors 1o manage all people-related matters,
as well as temporary and permanent hiring solutions.

The final elements of this project will continue throughout FY 19720,
with expected run-rate cost benefits — these are annual cost savings 1o
the cost base following the finalisation of currently running programmes
at the end of Project Helix~ of c.£50m by March 2020,

The nexdt phase of transformation is Project Forte, aimed at changing
the processes and technology underpinning our largest division,
Engineering Services.

Project Forte will include a full roll-out of the "Click’ dynamic
scheduling and deployment system and implementing a new case
management and billing application. it will result in improved engineer
praductivity and back-office efficiencies. Project Forte will also include
further Group-wide orgarsational consolidation and additional cost
reductions by automating manual and paper-based processes and
migration of our accounting system to a Mitie-wide SAP solution.

It s a two-year programme with estimated gross run-rate cost
benefits of ¢ £30m by March 2021 and associated one-off cost of
change of . £30m.

Technology at our core
Mitie's use of technology sets us apart from the competition and is at
the core of customner satisfaction and retention success. Qur clients
need and expect high-performance faciliies that not only provide

- the right work environment but operate efficiently and support their
sustainability agenda. Our skilled resources, nationwide reach and
experience of managing different types of facilities give us unparalieled
capabilities to help clients achieve these objectives.

For example. our Connected Workspace solutions include a
sophisticated service operations centre {(SOC) that provides remote
monitoring of buildings and facilities. SOC uses advanced algorithms
to detect anomaiies and trigger corrective actions prior to an asset
faiting. We are ako able to reduce energy consumption for buildings.
plart and equipment. We call this 'Monitoring as a Service' and it is the
core of our predictive maintenance offering,

Other fast-growing technology applications include our MiTec centre,
Fire & Security systems and our global security operations centre.
Qur approach isn't just transforming clients’ organisations, it i
transforming Mitie and consolidating our position as the UK's leader
in FM.

Outlook

We expact to continue 1o grow revenue organically at 3%-4% in the
medium term. For FY 19720 we expect operating profit to grow at
mic-single digits — with revenue growth and cost savings partially offset
by the dilutive effect of the FY 18/19 contract renewals and contmued
reinvestment in our business. Project Forte and focus on strategic
accounts and larger businesses should drive operating profit margin

in the rmedium term to our target of 4.5%-5.5%.

Looking ahead

Mitie's transformation continues at pace. Our strength is supported

by great customers and loyal staff. Through our use of technokogy and
expertise, we are leading the field, transforming our operations and
how we interact with our clients. Change has been challenging at times,
but our progress and performance to date are encouraging Revenue
is growing, Project Helix has allowed us to lay solid foundations for the

business angd in addition to wins across the business, the CCS Framework

presents a considerable opportunity, Mitie is in a strong position for
future growth and we lock forward to the year ahead,
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Cost: strengthen our balance
sheet and maintain cost discipline
to remain competitive

Achievements

* Project Helix largely complete in HR, [T,
Finarice, Procurement and other (CES and
property estate)

* FY 18719 inyear benefits of c.£38m, with exit
run-rate benefits of c.£45m

KPla: operating profit margin before other fems,

net debt/EBITDA ratio and average daily net debt

£45m

gross FY 18/19 exit run-rate benefits

Technology: embed technology
into the heart of our offering

Achievements

» Growing revenue stream in Security

* Technology solutions through MiTec, GSOC,
Fire & Security systems in Security

* Connected Workspace embedded in five
new large IFM contracts

* Mi dashboards live n Heatthaare clents {CES)

KPls: Organic revenue growth, order book, NPS

|2

new CVY projects in FY 18/19

Focusing our business

Achievements

* Pest Control business' sold to leverage
subcontractor expertise

* Social Housing business’ sokd 1o exit
a low-growth low-margin sector

* V5G! acquired to boost our position in
the security marfet

*+ Disposals simplify Mitie Group and
strengthen the balance sheet

I Note 5 1o the consolidated finandial on
discontinued operations and disposal of subsidiaries.

2 Note 3010 the consolidated financial s
on acquisitions.

3

successful transactions
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Key performance indicators

Monitoring
our progress

Our KPis are measures we use
to assess the Group's progress
against our strategy of focusing on
our larger businesses and strategic
accounts where our technology
offer is a true differentiator to
ensure long-term sustainable
growth, delivery of our vision

of The Exceptional, Every Day’
and creation of value for all

our stakeholders.

The health and safety of our people is the highest priority
for us as a business. YWe are constantly striving to develop
a zero-harm workplace. Coordinated by Mitie's Quality,
Health, Safety and Environment (QHSE) teamn, our
LiveSafe programme was launched in December 2018.
This highlights the importance of workplace safety and
was developed out of the need to constantly improve
QHSE performance across the business. This year we are
introducing a non-financial QHSE XP to our reporting—
all injury frequency rate.

Our strategic pillars

Customer: build market-leading positions in higher
growth segments and increase customer NPS
People: create 2 ‘Great Place to Worlk’ for

our employees

Cost: screngthen our balance sheet and maintain
cost discipline to remain competitive

Technology: embed technology into the heart of
our offering

@ D@
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Organic revenue growth (%)

D Ipti

Revenue growth reflects the health of cur order book. our abifity to upseil and
cross-sefl, the pipeline of potential opportunities, our win and retention rates and
our broader reputation in the sector. Organic revenue growth is growthon a
comparable basis before any impact from acquisitions and excluding discontinued
operations. Reconciliation of revenue excluding the impact from the VSG
acquisition to the statutory accounts is provided in Appendix — Ahternative
Performance Measures on pages (63 to 165,

FY 18/19 £L12m 5 5

FY 1819 (excudng vSG) £2.142m . *

FY 17118 £203tm m"' ganic growth
previous year

How we did it Outlook

Organic revenue grew by 5.5% despite  Our plan is 1o achieve 3%-1%
a challenging market environment. due to organic revenue growth in the
new wins and focusing on adding more medium term.

value and services 1o our TOp CustOMErs,

We continue 1o invest in customer service

andd technology to drive customer retention

and win rates. Revenue growth of 94% from

continuing operatiens induded the impact

from the acquisition of V5G,

Operating profit margin
before other items (%)

®©

The UK FM industry is a mature and highly competitive market. Profitability on
contracts improves as we enhance the eflidency of our operations throughout
the life of the contract. Reconciliation of operating profit before other items
from continuing operations to statutory accounts is provided in Appendix —
Alternative Perforrmance Measures on pages 163 to 165.

FY 1819 40%

FY 7118 4% |0"P‘-‘
decrease from
pravious pear

How wa did it Outlook

The operating profit margin before other For FY 19720 we expect operating
items redoced slightly to 1.0% over the year  profit to grow at mid-single digits
as the dilutive impact from the acquisition - with revenue growth and cost
of VSG was mitigaied through continued savings partially offset by the
strong performance within our larger dilutive effect of the FY 18/4%
comracts and realised cost savings from our  contract renewals and continued
transforenation programme. We invested reinvestment in our business.
back into customer service, our technotogy  Project Forte and focus on
capability and staff incentive schemes. strategic accounts and larger
businesses should drive operating
profit margin in the medium term

to our target of 4.5%-5.5%.
Order book ({m)

The reported order book inchudes only secured (ised-term cantracted work
and excludes variable work, such as catering point-of-sale, See Note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements for analysis of the forward order book.

FY 1819 £4,147m I
FY 1718 £4,)86m
decrease from
previous year
How we did it Cutlook

Qur order book for continuing operations  In FY IB/I9, we were successhul in

dedlined by 1%. Contract wins and the qualifying as a supplier on Phases !
benefit [rom the acquisition of VSG offset and I of the Crown Commercial
the delivery of revenue under long-term Services Facilities Management
contracts. Marketplace Framework. We
will be focusing on this area as
significant wins wourld materially
improve our order position.




Net debt/EBITDA ratio ()

Description

®

Period end net debt/EBITDA ratio or keverage ratio is one of the two debt

covenants used 10 assess our financial position. For the leverage covenant the
ratio of net debt to EBITDA should be no more than 3x The other coverant
ratio is imerest cover (ratio of EBITDA tq net finance costs to be no less than 4.

Average daily net debt (fm)

Description

Qur balance sheet health is of paramount importance to the long-term
sustainability of our business. Average daily net debt reflects working capial
and bifl-to-collect management.

FY 1819 133x FY 1819 £302m

FY s : L98x 065 x FY {18 £286m £| 6"1
improvement from deterioration from
previous year previous year

How we did it Outlook How we did it Outlook

Our period end net debt decreased by We expect to continue 1o reduce Our average daily het debt increased Proactive management will be an

£52.8rm to £140.7m as we benefited from  our period end net debt/EBITDA compared to the prior year's level The onpoing therne. Over the medium

nel proceeds from disposals and focused ratic whilst also reducing increase in HI to £3174m was due to term, we aim to continue to

on accelerating our order to cash cycle, off-balance sheet financing, tempaorary working capital issues related reduce average daity net debt.

‘We continue to operate comfortably

10 outsourcing of transactional processing,

within our debt covenants. This was reversed in H2 resulting in lower
. average daily net debt in the H2 period at
See Note 26 to the consobidated financial £286.5m. Overall, average daily net debt
statements for analysis of net debt for FY 18/19 was £159m higher than prior
, year at £302.0m.
Staff turnover (%) @ Employee engagement (%) @
Description Dascription

We measure the number of employees leaving us voluntarily over a 12-month

period against our overalt headeount.

The survey asks colleagues at Mitie how they feel about working with the
organisation, and what improvements could be made. This is followed by
the “You Said, Wi Did’ campaign to demonstrate actions undertaken in
response to feedback.

FY 1ang 97% 2 9 FY ®A9 45% |2
FY 718 16.8% 4 Pps FY 17118 n% PPLs
increaze from increase from
previous year previous year
How we did it Outlock How we did it Outlook
In FY 18/19, we launched People Hub, a We will continue to utilise 28% of employees (exchuding VSG The annual survey is a vital tool
one-stop-shop for everything related to techrology to support cur colleagues) completed the Upload survey in raising employee engagement,
the employee ifecycie, and Learning Hub, peaple processes. In FY 18/19, and the engagement score was 45%, up but it is not the onty one. Senior
an online portal through which employees  we appointed a head of resourcing from 33% the year before. managermert meet employees
€2n access courses related to their career, 0 create an industry-leading talent throughowt the year at roadshow

as well as health and wellbeing, We have
been embedding new behaviours following
the roll-out of new values in FY |7/18.

and resourdng function to attract,
recruit, develop and retain the
best people at al levels.

conferences across the UK and
members of the Group Leadership
Team go ‘back to the floor' to
engage with front-line colleagues.

Net Promoter Score (index)

Description

NP5 is a measure for gauging the customer’s overall satisfaction with a company’s
product or service and the customer’s loyalty to the brand.

Al injury frequency rate .
{per milion manhours worked)

Description

Safety of our employees is of paramount importance, We have established
systerms and governance processes to measure our performance. Our injury rate
is 3 key measune 1o Monior our progress towards zero harm and includes all
injury severities from first aid to Tatakity.

®

FY 1819 +12 Fy 1BA% 08
FY 8 -1 22P°""—‘ Fr 118 358 I35"
increase from reduction from
previous year previous year
How wae did it Qutlook Heow we did it Outlook
In FY 18/19 we reached a wider and deeper  This is a core foous for us Over the past year we have changed Contirwed efforts to further
section of our customer base, capturing and we will be enhanding our reporting system (Q3) and categorisation  reduce injurics is at the forefront
0%+ of our revenue, in a more extensive  CRM programme, customer of incidents allowing for increased foous of the LiveSafe programme,

CRM programme. OQur NPS improved asa
result of continued investment in customer
service and our One Mitie approach.

eommunications and engagement.

striving towards a zero-harm
workplace. Additionally we
will continue to develop our
Occupational Health strutegy.

and analysis of accidents and incidents.
Through the promation of our LiveSafe
programme and ign promoting the
proactive reporting of hazard observations
and near misyes we are seeing a shift from
reactive to proactive safety performance.
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Operating review

Our divisional
performance

Engineering

Services

£m FY 189  FY (718 Change %
Revenue 905.7 8863 22
Operating profit before

other items 58.7 54, 85
Operating margin before

other itams, % &5 6.} 04 ppt
Order book 1,802.7 20392 {116}
Performance highlights

* Good growth of operating profit before other items driven by
a strong performance in the major accounts

« Encouraging improvements in engineer productivity

+ Phase | of Engineening Services transformation under
Project Relix completed

* Engineering Services transformation is moving into Project Forte

Operational performance

Engineering Services had ancther year of good aperating profit

growth driven by a strong performance in the major accounts.

The business focused an reducing layers and increasing spans of
control, whilst continuing to invest in customer service and technology
to enhance the quality and efficiency of the service we provide. We
have also fistened to and acted upon customer feedback We are dearly
seeing the impact of our investment into tervice with our divisional
NPS up 30 points year-on-year,

Another area of focus was the productivity of our engineers where we
have seen encouraging improvements in utilisation with a 7% increase in
productivity, a 3% (c.£3m) reduction in core subcontractor spend and a
subsequent increase in profitability. This increased productivity has been
partly driven by a 20% reduction in travel time which has in turn allowed
us 1o reduce the backlog in jobs by 20% and therefore provide a better
service to our customers. Additional year-on.year indirect cost reductions
induded a 12% (c.£2m) decrease in vehicle costs and a 4% (¢.£0.1rm)
drop in staff travel expenses. We have created a data hub which

allows benchmarking, best practice and standardisation to enable

these improvements.

We also took steps to reduce complexity in our business, On the
customer front we activety focused on revenue quality by serving our top
clients better, We made a decision 10 no longer pursue smaller and less
profitable opportunities and to proactively exit low-margin contracts.
With regard 1o the supply chain, we reduced our supphier base by 25%
by migrating to fewer strategic partners, énabling meaningful economies
of scale. There is further opportunity in these areas.
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Under Project Helix, we have now completed Phase | of the Engineering
Services transformation. This included the roll-out of PDAs to our
engineers and related training the introduction of a dashboard enabling
better performance management of all organisational levels including
engineers; and launching our Ciick pilot (autornated engneer scheduting
and depioyment too!), We also introduced incentive schemes for engineers
1o aim for first-time-fix and greater efficiencies.

The next phase of transformation for Engineering Services is grouped
under Project Forte and will include changes to the culture, processes and
technology underpinning the business. This will include the scheduling and
deployment system roll-out and a new case management and billing
application. The objective is to drive further improvements for our
customers and our staff by using technology to improve productivity

and service delivery.

The programme will also inchrde Group-wide inftatives aimed at
organisational corsolidation and further cost reductions by automating
manual and paper-based processes, Project Forte is expected to run
for approximatety two years with associated cost of implementation
of ¢.£30m and estimated exit gross run-rate benefits of c£30m by
March 2021, - '

In FY 18/19 Mitie Property Management's roofing and painting businesses
were integrated into Engineering Services following the sale of the Social
Housing business in November 2018. Incorporating these two business
units into the ES projects business broadened the overall offering under
the projects umbrella and boosted cross-selling opportunities across Mitie.
It also allowed the sales teams to share Jeads and be proactive in capturing
opportunities with customers. Overall, this combination is starting to gain
traction in the market and is helping to make Mitie known as a one-stop
projects business.

From the start of FY 19720 several business units of the current
Professional Services division will be incorporated into an enlarged
Engineering Services division. These indude Connected Workspace,
Iternational Services, Occupier Services and Sustainability. The logic
behind the move is that these services are closely aligned to our Jargest
integrated accounts where engineering services are central to our offer.
We will therefore be able 1o improve and broaden our custormer product
offering in a manner that more closely aligns with our customers’ needs,
To facilitate these changes we have strengthened the Engineering Services
leadership team with senior appointments in mebile engineering, strategic
accounts and critical infrastructure.

Engineering Services revenue comprises fixed contract work and variable
work. During the year we broadened the capability of our commaercial
team by setting up a new dedicated sales team focused on winning more
variable and project-based work with our existing and potential clients.
The order book dedlined 11.6% 1o £1,802.7m in the year as the unwinding
of existing contracts exceeded new wins and renewals underpinned by
more discipiined bidding.

We extended a number of contracts, including a five-year contract
worth £17m with Gatwick Airport and a two-year extension with
Vodafone. We worn new business as part of integrated FM contracts with
a major UK retailer, a major infrastructure company, Connect Group and
Yorkshire Buitding Sodiety We also won several single service contracts,
including a contract with construction firm Willmott Dixon to provide
mechanical and electrical services for Boumemouth University.

We also enhanced our focus on the povernment sector enabling us to
quakfy as a supplier of M&E services on the CCS Framework which offers
UK-wide facilities management opportunities across numerous public
sector entities.



Financial performance

Reverwe from continuing ions in the Engineering Services division
was up 2.2% to £905.7m (FY 17/18: £886.3rm), with growth in top accounts
and related project work offsetting the impact of contracts lost during
the prior year and a stower year in terms of contract wins. The top 50
Engineering Services contracts continued to deliver good growth in
both volumes and profitability on the back of project and variable work
volumes with reverwe growth of 8% and 70 basis points improvement
in gross profit margin. Our projects business, which includes fire
protection, painting and roofing, as well as project work within top
accounts, grew its revenue by 4% and saw operating profit margin
expansion of 80 basis points.

Operating profit for continuing operations before other items increased
B.5% 10 £58.7m (FY 17/18: €54.1m). This was due to a combination of
strong performance in our fargest accounts, exit from low-margin
contracts and cost savings from the transformation programme, partly
offset by the impact of contracts lost in the prior year and incremental
investrents irto improving service levels.

Qutlook

As we deepen our relationships with our largest customers we are
increasingly seeing the demand for a broader service offering which
includes the use of predictive maintenante technology, improved faciliies
performance management information and more energy efficiency from
assets and buildings. By combining several existing Mitie businesses from
the Professional Services division into one enlarged Engineering Services
division, we will be able to meet these demands better. The market for
Engineering Services remains fragmented but is still showing modest
growth. We are oplimistic about our future performance as we broaden
our offering. particularly focusing on technology. and as we embark ona
transformation of the business through Project Forte that wil improve
the custorner experience whilst reducing our cost-1o-serve.

Security

&m FY 18/19  FY 1718 Charnge, %
Revenue 534.5 4320 24.2
Qperating profit before

other iterms 0.7 275 11.6
Operating margin before

other items, % 57 64 (0.7} pot
Order book 718 6408 56

Performance highlights

* Strong year with a good performance across all business
units together with a positive contribution from the acquisition
of V5G

Significant progress made in integrating V5G folowing its
acquisttion in October 2018

Technology solutions playing a greater role in contributing to
the overall profit growth

Operational performance

Security enjoyed ancther strong year with a good performance across

all its major business units, together with a positive contribution from

the acquisition of VSG in October 2018. The largest part of our security
business is manned guarding where we saw good growth across all regions
as we continue to develop cur presence in the retal, logistics and critical
security environment sectors.

The V5G acquisition strengthened the position of Mitie's Security business
as one of the leading providers of integrated and risk-based security
services in the UK. The combination offers opporturities to accelerate
the growth of Mitie's premium systems and technalogy-enabled and
inteligence-led security solutions.

Significant progress has already been made in integrating VSG, aligning both
operations and technology capabilities. We have consolidated operations
into cur new global security operations centre (GSQOC), a single hub,
located in Northampton. bt will serve as a centre for intelligence and
security industry experts with artting-edge software tools to capture,
translate, geolocate and alert to any major global incidents. This wil
become 2 hub for development of our intelligence cell and house cur
imteractive customer control centre where we undertake live CCTV
monitoring In addition, we are employing innovative and unique methods
of collating actual incidents and crime reports overlaid with national arime
statistics to dynamically risk-rate individua! locations to drive the efficient
deployment of security resources for our customer sites.

Our industry-eading 24/7 communications and technalogy ceritre MiTec will
be retained as our primary alarm receiving centre (ARC) responsible for
delivering a wide range of remote services induding CCTV, imtruder, fire,
access control and lone worker monitoring and dedicaled dient helpdesks.
We are also creating a secondary ARC location at our Nol

GSOC to provide MiTec with added resiience, We will continue to locus

on the growth of our Fire & Security Systerns business as one of the leading
providers of He safety solutions and innovative security systems in the UK.

" Through the integration of V5G's systems team, we have expanded our

geographical footprint, increased our technical expertise fevels and
strengthened our operational model which is enabling us to deliver
larger-scale projects and contracts for clients.

Mitie is a significant Front of House service provider through our
Signature business. There are opportunities for growth, especially in

rajor city conurbations and in particular the premium and London-centric
corporate market,
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Operating review continued

Mitie's employee vetting business, Procius, continues to hold a strong
position in the aviation industry whilst we are also seeing traction
within commercial sectors. The focus here is on developing further
technology-led solitions 1o automate, facilitate and speed up

vetting processes.

In Docurnent Management we continue to grow our customer

base, attracting high-end law firms and corporate dients by offering
technology-enabled document management and document processing
outsourcing ameng other services. Through recent wins, we are
expanding to include the delivery of our services to dients' regional offices,

The divisional NPS score improved by 15 points as we expand and
enhance our offer and embed more technology solutions in our
services. The secured order book before the impact from the VSG
acquisition was up by 9%, with the unwinding of contracts more than
offset by significant contract wins and successful retenders. We won a
three-year contract with a muttinationa! retall group and extended a
contract with Springfields for a further thrae years. We also had a strong
year for retaining dients, including two contract extensions for travel
clients, Strathdyde Partnership for Transport (@ further five years) and
Eurostar (for two years), We successfully excended a contract with Belfast
City Airport and won a high-profile conlract from the CCS framework,
The total secured order boak benefited from the acquisition of VSG and
grew overall by 51.6% 1o £971.5m.

Financial performance

The Security division delivered a strong financial performance, with
good organic growth together with a positive contribution from the
VSG acquisition. Organic revenue grew by 5,.8%, and overall revenue,
including VSG, grew 24.2% 1o £536.5m {FY [7/18: £432.0m). Manned
guarding, technology solutions inchuding vetting services, and Document
Management all delivered good growth foliowing new sales wins

and higher volumes of project and variable work. Front of House
perforrance was impacted by loss of key contracts in the prior year.

Operating profit before other ftems increased | 1L6% to £30.7m
(FY 17/18: £27.5m) driven by contract wins and operational efficiency
initiatives as well as a positive contribution from VSG's performance.

VSG enjoyed a very encouraging start under Mitie's ownership. After taking
over a business which was trading at dose o break-even, we are seeing a
faster improvement in margins than originally planned at the initial integration
stage. VS('s gross margin mareased from 53 pre-takeover to B% over its
first trading period under Mitie's ownership,

Technology-sokions are increasingly contributing 1o the overall revenue
growth of the division and now account for 13% (FY 17/18: 12%) of the
revenye {excluding VSG), driven by growth in Fire & Security systems,
MiTec and vetting, MiTec is benefiting from the Detention & Escorting
Services contract, won by the Care & Custody division in December 2017,
while vetting is moving into the corporate space on top of its strong
position in aviation,

The division finished the year with good momentum following successful
cortract wins towards the end of FY 18/19.

Outlook

The overall security market remains fragmented and manned guarding
remains competitive and highly commoditised. in this cortesxd, Mitie's
ability to provide a broader range of services gives a competitive
advantage when bidding for and winning business, Retention is then
enhanced through application of technology. We will continue to derive
benefits from the VSG acquisition where the performance of major
contracts will continue to benefit from ongoing price renegotiations,
reducing revenue leakage, walking away from substandard arrangements
and re-aligning the cost base.
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Professional

Services

n FY (819 FY 718 Change, %
Revenue 1314 1312 02
Operating profit before

other items 546 56 00
Operating margin befbre

other items, % 43 43 00ppt
Order book 86.9 1449 (40.0)
Performance highlights

« Divisional revenue performance was impacted by the exit
from two loss-making international contracts and renewed
focus on internal projects to support Mitie key accounts

« The Waste Management business retained two significant
contracts and won the first phase of a significant contract
with NHS Improvement

Sustainability delivered a stable performance for the year

* The International business focused on re-balancing its
portfolio towards higher-margin work

Operational performance

Whilst the Professional Services division showed a flat trading performance
year-or-year, it recorded a high-profile win with NHS Improvement for
Waste Management and it repositioned several of the other operating
units to focus on driving overall Mitie performance by supporting key
accounts. The benefits of these activities fall outside the division,

The Waste Managemnent business retained two sighificart contracts during
the year with a pharmaceuticals company and the LUK branch of a global
consumer goods company, both for a further two years. Contract wins
during FY 18/19 induded Bidfood, a commercial real estate services
company and the first phase of a significant contract with NHS
Improvement, won from the CCS Frarmework, which was mobiised

in October 2018,

The Sustainability business, induding Energy. had a slow start to the

year but gained momentum on the back of project work. The Water
business was fully integrated during the year into the Sustainability business,
which now encompasses all key utilities, enabling it to build a broader
proposition for our customers.

The International business focused on re-balarking its portfolio towards
higher-margin work and, as a consequence, we proactively exited two
loss-making imternational contracts. At the same time, Mitie secured a
fadiiities management and property services contract with Ahlsell —a
hardware retailer ~ to ranage and maintain afl its stores in Norway.
The order book declined 40% as contract wins and renewals only partly
offset the delivery of contracts.

Financial performance

Professional Services, exduding the International business. delivered
revenue growth in FY 18/19. However, the overall divisional performance
was impacted by the reduction in revenue as we exited loss-making
contracts in the Internationat business. Overall revenue lor the dhision
was flat at £131.4m (FY 17/18: £131.2m). Waste grew strongly by 14%,
including the new NHS Improvement contract. Sustainability delivered

a stable performance for the year.

At the operating profit level, we benefited from exiting the toss-making
international contracts, good cost discipline across the division and
re-balandng our activities to target higher-margin work. Profitability
was partly heki back by a renewed focus on projects 1o support key
Mitie strategic accounts and investments into Connected Warkspace,
Operating profit before other items was £5.6m (FY [7/18: £5.6m).



Qutlook

Our Connected Workspace solutions are increasingly being focused

on monitoring the oritical environments of our largest clients, where

we provide maintenance and engineering solutions. Given the close link
between the dient solutions required within our Engineering business,
and several elements of the Professional Services division, we are
embedding Connected Workspace, Occupier Services, International

and Sustainabikty under Engineering Services from April 2019. We see
this as an opportunity to enhance and iMprove our Core engineering
offering by using technology to monitor critical assets, thereby allowing

us to deliver a proactive serice. We also see the opportunity to improve
the quality of information that customers receive to manage their facilities
and their assets.

As part of these changes, Waste Management &5 moving to Cleaning &
Environmertal Services, and Risk Advisory Services is transferring into
the Security division.

Cleaning &

Environmental

Services

im FYI8/19  FY I8 Charge %
Revenue 404.4 384.1 53
Operating profit before

other items 175 194 (107)
Operating mergin before

other items, % 43 5.1 (0:8) ppt
Order book 663.1 6563 10
Performance highlights

The division delivered good revenue growth ina
highly-competitive market environment; however, profits
were negatively impacted by the dilutive effect of contracts
won in prior years

On 30 September 2018, we sold the Mitie Pest Control
business unit to Rentokil Initial pic and entered into a
preferred supplier partnership covering a range of services

Operational performance

On 30 Septernber 2018, we sold the Mitie Pest Control business unit
to Rentokil Initial pic and ertered into a preferred supplier partnership
tavering a range of services, These services will be provided as part

of an integrated facilities management offering to Mitie's wide range of
custorners. The transaction enables us 16 continue to provide specialist
services to gur dients whilst focusing on our core competencies.

Cleaning & Erwironmenttal Services (CES) delivered goed revenue growth
from continuing operations in a highly-competitive market erwironment .
where outsourcing remains a compeliing option for dients. Margins still,
rermain low. However, the division was negatively impacted by historical
contracts with low margin. Offsetting this were cost savings arising from
various delayering exercises 1o remove managerial roles.

In addition to our core Cleaning business, there are two significant
stand-alone business units within the CES division. Owr Landscape

business is a specialist service where we enjoy a balanced mix of fixed

and pay-as-you-go work throughout the year. This ensures 2 broadly stable
performance with further upside during harsh winters. Mitie Healthcare
provides a multi-service offering locking after a broad portfolio of INHS
dients and has recently introduced a range of technology features to its
offer, irchuding dynamic performance dashboards, electronic meal ordering
and the trialling of an intelligent automated portering systern.

The division was successful in retaining a number of large dients as well
as winning new cliersts partly as a consequence of a much improved NPS
score, up 26 points year-on-year. The CES order book for continuing
operations was up 1% 10 £663.Im. We extended our services with
Epsom & St Helier University Hospital NHS Trust for cleaning and with
Whitbread for landscaping. We also won a five-year landscaping cortract
with NHS/South Western Ambulance. Towards the end of FY 18/19, the
division was successful in securing an extension to its 10-year partnership
with 51 George's University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust until 2030,
which is worth £150m and covers a range of services including clearing.
patient catering and facilities helpdesk services: the extension will also
include waste managemerit duties at one of the sites. At the same time,
we have alsc taken steps to reduce the margin drag of new cortracts by
introducing tighter bidding discipline. As a consequence, growth in the near
term will be slower.

Financial performance

CES revenues for continuing operations grew by 5.3% to £4044m
{FY |7/18: £384.1m) driven by the impact of prior year contract wins.
However. operating profit for cortinuing operations before other terns
was down [0.7% 10 £17.5m (FY [7/18: £19.6rm) due to unfavourable
contract mix versus last year, only partly offset by savings from Project
Helix. Within the division, Healthcare grew strongly on the back of
the prior year wins, however, first-year mobilisation factors impacted
profitability. this has now been addressed. Eandscapes delivered a
strong performance despite a particularty mild wirtter, with operating
profit protected by a well-balanced portfolio of wark. which hedges
pay-as-you-go with fied-price contracts.

Outlook

Owver the next couple of years we expect steady growth in our Healthcare
and Landscapes businesses, Cleaning is not expected te grow as we work
on improving margins through disciplined bidding and re-balancing of the
contract base.
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Operating review continued

Care &
Custody

£m FY 18/19 FY 1718 Change. %

Revenue 107.3 599 79.1

Operating profit before )

other items kR 19 1053

Operating margin before

other items, %6 3.6 32 0.4 ppt
Order book 596.6 £70.1 (o

Performance highlights

+ Excellent year following the successful mobilisation and
commencement of operations for the Detention & Escorting
Services (D&E) Horme Office contract and a strong delivery
from existing contracts

* The division cortinues 10 expand its offering as #t diversifies
ino adjacent areas 1o complement its core capabilities

Operational performance

The Care & Custody division had an exceflent year, having almost
doubled in size on the back of the successful mobilisation and
commencement of operations for the sizeable D&E contract won in
Decermber 2017, In addition, the division benefited from strong delivery
of existing contracts with police forces. custody support and forensic
Medical Examiner {(FME) services. The D&E contract, the largest ever
comract for the division, reinforces our role as the largest supplier of
immigration detention services 10 the UK Government.

R i also allowing us to expand and gain expertise in areas adjacent to

the core immigration detention and movement services. During the year,
we won an electronic tagging of offenders contract in Northern Irefand,
This opportunity is an entry point into electronic monitoring within the
criminal justice system in other parts of the UK, where we are able to
leverage Mitie Security's MiTec facility. Cther wins included the
Mottinghamshire FME services contract.

The order book declined 11% to £596.6m as the unwinding of long-term
contracts was only partially offset by contract wins and renewals.

Foliowing an announcerment in November 2018 the Home Office
unexpectedly closed Campsfieks IRC, which was managed by Mitie.
The contract expired in earty 2019,

Financial performance

Care & Custody's revenues grew by 79.1% to £1073m (FY 17/18: £599m)
following the win and successful mobilisation of the D&E contract and
good growth from existing contracts. Operating profit before other items
increased by 105.3% to £39m (FY 17/18: £1.9m) driven by performance of
the D&E contract and other contracts won in the prior year and includes
the expensing of a net £3.3m of mobilisation costs for the D&E contract.
Amounts related to these mabilisation activities were paid by the customer
and will be released from deferred income over the term of the contract.

Outlook

As the division grows its core competendies and expands into adjacertt
services, the pipeline has expanded to include large opportunities such as
the lates1 cyde of Prisoner Escort and Court Services contracts (PEC54).
These are long-term cyclical opportunities with lengthy bidding lead times.
Our clients are UK Government departments which are increasingly
evaluating bids against, surety of delivery, sustainability and quality of
outcomes, all of which play wel to Care & Custody's proposition. In a
competitive market place, Care & Custody is well positioned to win
contracts because we are growing in scale. enjoy a solid reputation with
our public sector commissioners and clients, and continue to expand our
offering as we diversify imto adjacent areas (such as custodial movements)
16 complement our core capabiities.

20 Mitie Group ple | Annual Report and Accounts 2019

Catering

£m FY 1/19  FY 1718 Change.%
Revenue 138.1 1371 on
Operating profit before

other items 52 56 a.n
Operating maorgin before

other iterns, % 3 49 (0.3) ppt
Order baok 765 347 (738)
Performance highlights

= The division delivered broadly flat performance at the
revenue level and a decline at the operating profit level

Growth in Gather & Gather was offset by weaker resutts
in exlernal events and venues through Creativevents

Gather & Gather's differentiated wellbeing and sustainability-
focused offer continues to gain traction in the market

Operational performance

QOur Gather & Gather brand is a niche player in the catering sector

with 2 well-articulated and differentiated offer which continues to gain
traction. During FY 18/19, we saw further increases in the adoption of
our wellbeing-led food concepts and consurmer technology solutions,
We also launched The Gathered Table — a unique collaboration between
aulinary, technology and sustainability experts to help fuel the continued
development of Gather & Gather's innovative offer. The Gathered Table
delfivers pop-ups, menu content, training and client appearances to amplify
Gather & Gather's influence on the health, productivity and engagemem
of the customers we serve every day.

Buring the year. Gather & Gather ako quafified onto the London
University Purchasing Consortium {LUPC), the largest higher education
purchasing consortiurn in the UK. As a consequence, we won a significant
£10m 3+2-year contract with Edinburgh College — our first on the
framework and owr first in the further and higher education sector.

This provides an opportunity 1o transform the catering experience

for students and staff by bringing a contemporary approach to food,
service and consumer technology.



Gather & Gather also secured other significant new wins in the year,
incuding Dropbax. We were alsc successiul in securing the opportunity to
roll out a new café concept across some of Primark’s UK and Ireland retail
estate. The division also won work for Yorkshire Building Society and a
major UK retailer as part of new or expanded integrated FM contracts.

The secured order book for the division declined 23.6% to £26.5m.
The secured order baok only inchudes fixed contract work, while C96%
of the divisional revenue in FY |8/19 came from point-of-sale comracts
and variable work,

Financial performance

In FY 1819, the Catering division delivered broadly flat revenue at

£i36.1m (FY 17/18: £137.1m) with improved momentum in H2 largely
offsetting the contraction in HY. The core Gather & Gather workplace
offering grew revenue and aperating profit whilst the overall divisional
performance was held back by weaker results in external events and
venues through Creativevents. Against an inflationary badkdrop, gross
profit was stable as we partially mitigated food price inflation, reduced

the use of consumables and disposables — reducing the overall cost to

the business and improving owr erwvironmental footprint — and improved
labour managermert discipline. Overall. operating profit bafore other items
dedined by 7.1% to €5.2m (FY 17/18: £5.6m) due to weaker performance
in Creativevents.

Qutlook

Whilst the catering sector remains under pressure from food price

and labour inflation, the market offers opportunity for a well-respected
brand such as Gather & Gather. Clients increasingly seek to enhance their
catering facikities as key contributors to their talent attraction and retention
strategies, by improving the customer experience, improving wellbeing and
increasing sustainability, Gather & Gather has continued to demonstrate its
ability to anticipate and satrsfy these dermands as the industry changes.

In this cortext, we expect a good year from Catering in FY 19/20 on the
back of the annualisation of significant recent wins with 90% of reverue
already secured. The Gather & Gather brand continues to offer a
distinctive quality alternative to the large corporate caterers who
dominate the mass market.

Corporate overheads

Corporate overheads represent the costs of running the Group function
and include costs for the commercial, financial, marketing, legal and HR
teams. Corporate overheads have increased as we continue to nvest

in the foundations to deliver: 'The Exceptional, Every Day', leadership

in the Connected Workspace; and accelerated growth. We also
reinstated certain staff incentive schemes in FY 18/19 after suspending
them for two years during the early stages of the Mitie turnaround.

The main investrnents were into our commercial capability. upweighting
our marketing, and strengthening our technology underpin. Corporate
overheads increased by 74% to £33.4m (FY |7/18: £31.1m}.

Public sector

Given the significant opportunities available in the public sector, we
have recently set up a new public sector centre of excellence. This tearn
will be responsible for assisting in any public sector work across Mitie
as well as owning the overall relationship with the UK Government.
During the year, we qualified as a supplier on Phase | of the Crown
Commercial Service (CCS) FM Marketplace Framework, which will
allow departments. as well as Phase If, which will allow us to bid for
defence facilities management as well as for security services and
technical security contracts. Qualification as a suppher on the CCS
Framework has added large opportunities to our pipeline. We have
established a new public sector sales team who will coordinate bids
from across the divisions into these key public sector accounts.

Discontinued operations

Below are the resulis of discontinued operations up to the date of disposal.

Pest Control

£m FY 1B/NY FY 17/18  Change, %
Revenue 119 223 nm
Operating profit before

ather items 2.4 26 nm
Operating morgin before

other iterns, % 202 7 85 ppt

On 30 September 2018, Mitie completed the sale of the entire issued
share capital of Mitie Pest Control Limited to Rertokil Inftial plc.

Mitie separately entered into 2 preferred supplier partnership with
Rentckil initial plc. covering a range of services (including pest services)
to be provided as part of integrated facilities management offerings to
Mitie’s wide range of customers.

Pest Control reported revenues of £11.9m (FY 17/18: £22.3m) and
its operating profit before other items was £24m (FY 17/18: £2.6m).
Pest Control was previously part of the Cleaning & Environmental
Services division.

Social Housing

£m FY 18/4% FY 17/18  Change. %
Revenue 89.1 1508 nm
Operating profit bafore

other items 1.6 s nrm
Openoting margin before

other items, % LE 25 (07 ppt

In Novernber 2018, the Group soki the Social Housing business to
Mears Group pk. The Social Housing business was previously part

of the Property Management division, together with the roofing and
painting business units, which have been integrated into the Engineering
Services division.

The consideration comprised an initial payment of £22.5m, which was
paid in cash at completion. No fair vaiue was recognised on the further
contingent consideration of up to £12.5m, payable in cash after two
years post completion which is subject to the achievement of certain
performance milestones, The Group has retained liabilities for a number
of legacy contracts in the Social Housing business.

InFY 18/19 the Social Housing business reported revenves of £8%.Im
{FY 17/18: £150.8m) and operating profit before other items of £1.6m
(FY 17/18: £3.8m).
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Finance review

Finance review

Whilst we have accomplished a great deal during this second year of
our transformation. there remains more to do as we continue our
journey towards a One Mitie way of delivering our products and
services. Following the centralisation of our core support functions last
year, the majority of the transactional activity for IT and Finance is now
being undertaken offshcre by global process experts and we have
introduced new systems across the business, mcluding recruitmert
platforms for temporary and permanent staff.

Qur revenues and profits are growing, both at a headline leve!, and
alsa on an organic basis excduding the impact of M&A. We have started
te focus our business through the acquisition of VSG by our Security
division and the sale of cur Pest Conrol and Sodial Housing Dusinesses.

We have again made progress in reducing our leverage and
strengthening our balance sheet with further reductions in off-balance
sheet finance, improved supplier payment performance and proceeds
from our disposals programme, Going forward, we expect 1o continue
to reduce leverage.

Following the transfer of our finance transactional processing to Genpact
{a business process outsourcing provider, operating out of Kolkata, india)
in April 2018 we have now initiated a broader finance modernisation
programme. The initial Genpact move entailed a ift-and-shift approach
which caused issues in the first few months due to the muttiplicity of
processes used across Mitie. These issues have now been largely
resolved and we have turned opur attention t¢ ongoing Mprovement

in the function through our finance modernisation programme. This is
focused on finance process simplification and standardisation, cleansing
our master data and upgrading finance systems and tools across the
business with a view o paying our suppliers quicker, reducing our
processing costs through automation and further accelerating our
order-to-gash cycle.
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G

We are continuing to
simplify our business and
de-lever our balance sheet.

Paul Woolf
Chief Financial Officer

Reported financial performance
Reported revenue and reported operating profit from continying
operations are set out below:

£m FY 18/19 FY 17/18  Change, %
Revenue 2,221.4 20306 94
Operating profit before cther items 88.2 832 60
Other items (38.0) (82.1) nm
Operating profit 50.2 I.I e

Reported revenue from continuing operations was £2,22).4m compared
with £2,030.6m in FY17/18. The Group reporied an operating profit
before other items from continuing operations of £88.2m (FY 17/18:
£83.2m).

Reported balance sheet

m FY |8/l% FY {718 Change, {m
Goodwill and intangible assets 3445 3479 (34)
Praperty. plant and equipment 290 118 44)
Working capital balances 216.9) (198.2) (187)
Met debt tan (195 528
Retirement benefit liabilities (63.9) (56.8} 7.0}
Deferredtax 358 359 0.1)
Other net (labilities)/assets (0.3) 71 74
Fotal net Habilities (‘19 a0y 6

The Group is reporting net liabilities at 3t March 2019 of £12.4m
(FY 17/18: £24.0m), with an improvement in net debt, offset by a
larger negative working capital balance and an increase m retirement
penefit kabifities.



New accounting standards

The Group adopted IFRS 15, ‘Revenue from Contracts with
Customers' in FY i7/18, as previously described in the Annual
Report and Accounts 2018,

IFRS %

IFRS 9 ‘Financial instruments’ became effective for the Group

starting | April 2018 and replaced the requirements of LAS 39

‘Finandial instruments: recognition and measurement’. The main changes
introduced by the new standard are new dassification and measurement
requirements for certain financial assets. a new Expected Credit Loss
{ECL) model for the impairment of financial assets, revisions to the
hedge accounting model, and amendments to disclosures. The Group
elected, from | April 2018, to continue to apply the hedge accounting
guidance in |AS 39,

With respect to loss allowances for trade receivables, IFRS 9 replaced
the ‘incurred loss’ model in 1A% 3% with an ECL model. The Group,
from | April 2018, measures loss allowances for trade recesvables and
accrued income at an amount equal 1o fetime expected credit losses
using both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based
on the Growp's historical experience and forward-looking information,
The Group has determined that the transition 1o IFRS  resutted in an
additional loss allowance for trade recevables and accrued income as
at | April 2018 of £2.5m and gave rise to a tax credit of £04m. The
addtional foss allowance has been applied as an adjustment 1o opening
retained earnings at | April 2018 and therefore, the prior year
comparative information s not restated.

Future accounting standards ~ IFRS 16

{FRS 16 ‘Leases’ became effective for the Group from | April 2019

and replaces the requirement of IAS |7 ‘Leases. An asset representing
the Group's right as a lessee to use a leased itemn, and a liabifity for
future lease payments, will be recognised for all leases. subject to limited
exemptions for short-term leases and low-value lease assets. The costs
of leases will be recognised in the conscolidated income statement split
between depredaticn of the lease asset and a finance charge on the
lease liability. This is similar to the accounting for finance leases under -
1AS 17, but substantively different to the accounting for operating leases
(under which no lease asset or lease hability was recognised, and rentals
payable were charged to the consolidated income statement on a
straight-line basis).

As a result of adopting the new rules, for the year ending 31 March
2020, the Group expects net profit before tax to increase by between
£nil and £3m, Operating profit is expected to increase by between
£24m and £29m as the operating lease rentals payable which were
previously induded in operating profit are excluded, with this increase
being offset by additional depreciation of between £22m and £24m as the
right-of-use assets are depreciated. In addition, operating cash flows are
expecied 1o increase by between £24m and £29m as repayment of the
lease liabilities is redlassified as cash used in financing activities and net
debt will increase by between £8Im and £86m.

Alternative Performance Measures (APM)

The Group presents its key financial analysis as the results of continuing
operations before other iterns as the Directors believe this is most
useful for users of the finandial statements in helping 10 provide a
balanced view of, and relevant information on, the Group's financial
performance. Accordingly, the Group separately reports the
impairment of goodwill, the cost of restructuring programmes,
acquisition and disposal costs (including the write-off and amortisation
of acquisition related intangible assets) as ‘other items. Read more on
pages 163 1o 165.

Divisional breakdown of financial performance

Reverue, {m FYI8/19  FY 1718 Charge.%
Engineering Services 905.7 8863 22
Security 536.5 4320 242
Professional Services 1314 312 02
Cleaning & Environmemal Services 404.4 384.1 53
Care & Custody 1073 599 79.1
Catering 136.1 137.1 7
Total 22214 20306 9.4

The Group's revenue increased in the year. from £2,030.6mto
£2.221.4m. This was principally due to a significant contract win in

Care & Custody, the acquisition of VSG in Security and good underlying
growth in our Engineering Services strategic accounts and in Security
and Cleaning Organic revenue growth was 5.5%.

Operating profit before other items, £m FY 18/19 FY 1718 Change %

Engineering Services 58.7 54.1 85
Security 30.7 275 1.6
Professional Services 546 56 0.0
Cleaning & Environmental Services 17.5 196 LX)
Care & Custody 19 19 105.3
Catering 5.2 56 (7.1)
Corporate centre (33.4) G1.5) 74
Total 88.2 832 6.0

Operating profit before other items increased by 6.0% in the year from
£83.2Zm to L88.2m, reflecting good growth in strategic accounts and
projects in Engineering, the significant contract win in Care & Custody.
strong underiying growth in Security in addition to the impact of the
acquisition of VSG. partly offset by ongoing investment in custormer
service and the reinstatement of staff incentives.

Other items

£m FY 18/19 FY 1718
Restructure costs (15.1) (47.0)
Acquisition and disposal related costs 8.7 &4
Gain on bargain purchase of VSG aa -
Pansion scheme Section 75 debt 20.0) -
Impairment of goodwll - (217}
Other a0 0
Total other items before tax (38.0) (811}
Tax credit on other items 7.4 t00
Other items after tax (30.8) 721

Disappointingly, other items before tax remain high at a charge of
£38.0m, albeit significantly lower than last year (FY 17/18: £82.1m).
The main components are restructure costs and a provision for the
Section 75 debt on the Plumbing & Mechanical Services (UK)
Industry Pensicn Scheme {the Plumbing Scheme). The tax credit on
these other iterns was £74m (FY 17/18: £10.0m).

Tax contribution

The Group manages both direct and indirect taxes to ensure that it
pays the appropriate amount of tax in each country whilst respecting
the applicable tax legislation, where appropriate utilising any legislative
reliefs available. The strategy is reviewed regularly and is endorsed by
the Board.
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Finance review continued

itie is a significamt conmributor of revenues 10 the UK Exchequer,
paying £529.3m in the year ended 31 March 2019 (FY 17/18: £481.2m),
This comprised £534.3m (FY 17/18: £492.8m} of indirect taxes including
business rates, VAT and payroll taxes paid and collected less a £4.7m

{FY 17/18: £11 6m) refund of LK corporation tax. The tax refund was
due 1o the utilisation of losses resulting from the accounting adjustments
in earfier years' accounts. As Mitie's business is primarily based in the UK,
the effective tax rate should track the UK statutory tax rate.

There was 2 tax charge of £64m (FY {7/18: £1.lm) on the profit before
tax of £364m (FY 17/18: loss before tax £15.4m).

Discontinued operations

During the year, Mitie sold its Socal Housing business to Mears Group plc,
with the sale compieting on 30 November 201B. As a result, the business
is dassified as a discontinued operation as at 31 March 2019. This
business formed part of the Property Management division. Following
this safe, the roofing and painting businesses of the former Property
Management division were integrated inta the projects business of
Engineering Services,

In addition, Mitie disposed of its Pest Control business {previously
inciuded in the Cleaning & Environmermal Services division) to Rentokil
Initial plc, with the sale completing on 30 September 2018. This is also
consequently classified as a discontinued operation as at 3| March 2019,

Discontinued operations contributed a profit after tax before other
items of £3.Im (FY (7/18: £5.6m). Other items before tax were a charge
of £6.0m (FY 17/18: £15.8m) and included a gain on disposal of Pest
Control of £27.6m, a loss on disposat of the Sodial Housing business of
£11.7m and a £20.5m charge for various remediation and rectification
liabilities associated with the Social Housing business. The tax credit on
other items was £3.8m (FY 17/18: £0.7m).

Dividends

The full-year dividend is 4.0p per share (FY 17/18: 40p per share),
comprising an interim dividend of 1.33p per share and a final dividend
recommended by the Board of 2.67p per share.

Goodwill and intangible assets

Goodwill and intangible assets of £344.5m (FY 17/18: £347.9m) were
held on the balance sheet at 31 March 2019, The small reduction can
be explained by a reduction in goodwill due to disposals of the Social
Housing and Pest Control businesses during the year, largely ofiset by
an increase in intangible assets from the recognition of a customer
relationships intangible asset on the acquisition of V3G and additional
internaity generated intangible assets from software development to
enhance customer experience.

Cash flow

The Group continued to strengthen its balance sheet during the year,
assisted by two business disposals. Utifisation of non-recourse invoice
discounting was reduced slightly during the year, while supplier payment
performance was improved. '

Overall operating cash inflow, before movements in working capital
was £395m (FY 17/18: £67.2m). This includes defined benefit pension
contributions of £11.6m (FY 17/18: £4.7m). Cash generated from
operations during the year was £47.5m (FY 17/18: £79m used in
aperations) including a working capital inflow of £8.0m (FY 17/i8:
outflow of £75.lm). The warking capital movement is explained in
more detail below.
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After paying interest of £12.4m {FY 17/18: £13.5m) and receiving
corporation tax refunds of £4.7m (FY 17/18: £11.6m), net cash inflow
from operating activities was £39.8m (FY 17/18: outflow of £9.8m),
Capital expenditure raduced by £1.5m compared 1o the prior year to
£23.3m (FY (7/18: £24.8m), while the business generated £43.5m from
the proceeds of disposals net of acquasitions. Dividends of £14.4m were
paid in the year (FYY 17/18: £4. 8m).

Overall this resulted in a reduction of the Group's net debt of £52.8m
{FY 17418: £46.3m increase) 1o £140.7m (FY V7/18: £193.5m).

Working capital

Working capital movements resulted in an inflow for the year of £8.0m.
The complex process of cutsourcing transactional processing activities
in April 2018 caused trade and other receivable balances to increase.
resulting in a working capital outflow of £34.0m in the first half. The
situation has now been addressed. Working capital reduced by £42.0m
in the second half of the year.

Whilst the Group has been focused on improving its working capita
eycle it has also considered its responsibilities to the supply chain by being
fair in respect of payment performance. Supplier paymedl terms were
reduced by eight days over the lull year. with the improvement taking
place skewed 1o the second hali. This was partialty achieved by unitateraily
reducing payment terms for a number of our suppliers meaning that they
have now reduced their need for supply chain finance. Consequently, the
use of the supply chain finance facility reduced by £25.1m. The working
capital outflow associated with this reduction in payment terms was
offset by an increase in provisions of £25.5m. These provisions
predominantly relate to the now disposed Social Housing business.

Along with ather M&A related working capital balances, they are
expected to result in a cash outfllow of ¢. £40m over the next two years.

The Group also marginally reduced its utlisation of non-recourse
custorner invoice discouming by €3.1m to £73.2m (FY I7/18: £763m).
The invoice discounting facilities are non-recourse and are theréfore
netted off against trade and other receivables within the balance sheet,

Net debt

Net debt is the aggregation of the Group's borrowings net of cash

in hand. The Group's net debt reduced by £32.8m to £140.7m as at

3| March 2019 {FY 17/18: £193.5m). After a poor start to the year
following the outsourcing of finance transactional processing,

Q4 showed positive progress on our journey 1o reduce the volatility

of working capital Average daily net debt in Q4 was £31m lower than
the same pericd last year with average daily borrowings of £278m

(Q4 172118: £305m). This improved position was largely achieved through
a combination of business disposal praceeds and improved customer
cash collection performance, at the same time as paying our suppliers
more quickly. The net debt position benefited from disposal proceeds,
net of acquisitions and acquisition and disposal related costs, of £409m,

Liquidity and covenants

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had £466.5m of committed funding
arrangemnents (FY 17/18: £466.5m). The £275m muli-currency Revolving
Credit Facifty (RCF) matures in july 2021, The £191.5m of US Private
Placernent notes are spread over three maturities: December 2019
£40.0m; December 2022 £121.5m; and December 2024 £30.0m.

Mitie's two key covenant ratios are leverage {ratio of net debt to
covenant EBITDA to be no more than 3 times) and wterest cover
{ratio of covenant EBITDA to net finance casts 1o be no less than

4 times). As at 3| March 2019, we were operating comfortably within
these ratios at 1.33x for leverage and 8.8x for interest cover.



The principal financial covenant ratios (leverage and interest cover)

for our committed funding arrangements are tested every six months.
Following an amendment agreed on 29 March 2C19, all future covenant
calculations will be on an IFRS {5 basis. The covenants continue to
exclude the future impact of IFRS 16,

As is usual for corporate fadllities, the definition of key metrics in Mitie’s
finance agreements is somewhat different to its reported numbers and
this is outlined in the 1able below. This table shows that Mitie remains
comiortably within its covenant requirements. In this instance, the prior
year comparatives are not provided, as while Mitie had adopted IFRS 15
in FY 17/18, its covenant reporting at that time remained on a pre-IFRS
15 basis, making comparison unhelpfisl, -

&m FY 18/19
Operating profit before other items

= cortinuing operations 882

— discontinued cperations 40
TFotal 7.2
Add: depreciation & amortisation 08
Headline EBITDA 1n3.e
Deduct: covenant adjustments . [(2)]
Consolidated EBITDA {a) 105.9
Full-year effect of acquisitions & disposals (23)
Adjusted consolidated EBITDA ) 103.¢
Net finance costs 138
Less: covenant adjustments (I.7)
Consolidated net finance costs (<) 12.1
Interest cover (ratio of (a) to (c)
must exceed 4.0x) 8.8x
Net debt 1407
Impact of hedge accounting & upfront fees (£10)]
Consolidated total net barrowings [C)) 131.7
Leverage (ratic of (d) to (b) must
not exceed 3.0x) 1.33x

Mitie’s intention is to consistently maintain adequate headroom
within its committed facilities. In addition to its committed funding,
the Group utilises ancillary facilities, including invoice discounting of
£73.2m (FY |7N8: £76.3m). The Group's trade creditors include
amounts due to UK suppliers which make use of supply chain finance
arranged by Mitie of £20.0m (FY 17/18: £45.1m),

Retirement benefit schemes

The net defined benefit pension liability at 31 March 2019 for the Mitie
Group scheme was £61.4m (FY 17/18: £54.8m). The increase in the
deficit is principatly due to a 20bps decrease in the discount rate driven
by reductions in corporate bond rates since 31 March 2018. The latest
valuation of the Mitie Group scheme as at 31 March 2017, indicated an
actuarial deficit of £74.0m (31 March 2014: £6.0m), largely due to a fallin
discount rates since 2014, The Group has agreed a deficit recovery plan
with the Trustee for further payments totaling £64.8m in instalments.
unti! 31 March 2025,

The Group also makes contributions to customers’ defined benefit
pension schemes under Admitted Body arrangements as well as to other
arrangements in respect of certain employees who have transferred

1o the Group under TUPE. As at 31 March 2019, Mitie's net defined
pension liability in respect of these schemes, which it is committed to
funding, amounted to £24m (FY 17/18: £2.0m).

in addition. the Group also participates in four industry multi-employer
defined benefit pension schemes, inchuding the Plumbing Scheme.
These schemes are accounted for as defined contribution schemes,
either because the assets and liabilities cannot be apportioned among
employers or the amounts involved are not significant. Contributions to
these schemes for FY 19/20 are expected to be approximately £0.tm.
The Group is exposed to Section 75 employer debts in respect of two
of these schemes. These liabilities crystaliise when the Group ceases

to have any active employees in the schemes, In the last few months,
the Group received a Section 75 demand in respect of the Plumbing
Scheme for £20.0m. This has been provided for in full.

Paul Woolf
Chief Financial Officer
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Stakeholder engagement

Building constructive
relationships

Building constructive relationships
with our key stakeholders is
critical to our business. We are
facused on long-term success
and creating sustainabie value

in the broadest sense.

Links to policies

Business areas considered to have the highest
risk of bribery and corruption are public
procurement, gifts and hospitality, overseas
operations and oversight of subcontractors.
The risk is managed by several policies and
training courses which are available to
employses through the process repository
(BMS) and our new HR online Learning Hub.

The policies include:

* One code (code of conduct);
+ Ethical business practice policy;

* Business expenses &
entertaining procedure; -

* Modern slavery,
* Whistleblowing process; and
* Anti-bribery and
anti-corruption
e-learning module.
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Customers

Mitie works with private and public sector (the UK
Gavernment) clients. Through understanding our
customers’ needs we can offer value-added,
innovative and cost effective solutions and

bulld enduring relationships.

HOO®

Shareholders, banks,
noteholders and media

We proactively engage with shareholders, banks,
noteholders and journafists on an ongoing basis.

HOO@

Employees

Mitie currently employs 52,500 employees.
Our success is underpinned by the way
we lead and engage with our people.

©O®

Communities
and environment

Our employees touch the lives
of others every day.

®
Suppliers

We work closely with our suppliers
10 ensure a responsible supply chain.

©®




* Ongoing management of customer redationships
by senior ieadership;

+ Government is a regulator and often a customer
for Mitie, 50 engagernent ensures Mitie can help

Our strategic pillars

Customer: build market-Jeading positions in higher
growth segments and increase customer NPS

People: create 3 ‘Great Place wo Work'
for our emplayess

Cost: strengthen our balance sheet and
maintain cost discipline to remain competitive

®®®

+ Performance and eflicency.

Technology: embed technology into the heart
of our offering

« §% revenue growth from top accounts
inFY IB/19;

« Customer retention improved to 64%;

250 customers surveyed in the NPS

in shaping new polices, regulations and standards: « Quality and value for money; survey;
* INPS programme; + Technology, research and innovation; = NPS improved 22 pointsto +12: and
« Customer experience programmes; + Sustainability performance; + Feedback from unsuccessiul contract bids
* Participation in indusiry forums and events; + Govemnance and transparency; is analysed to improve our win rates.
= Customer communications; « Vision and values;
* Website and social media platforms; and + Social values: and
= Meetings and briefings. * Peopie and cutture.
+ Annual Report and Accounts; * Finandal performance; * Bi-anmual roadshows;
+ Anrwal General Meeting ¢ Transformation and Project Helng + Corporate governance and Environment,
+ Investor and News & Insights sections of the corporate * Governance and transparency. Secial and Governance (ESG)-focused
website Mitie.com; » Sustairability performance; meetings with institutional imvestors;
* Results presentations and post-results roadshows: + Peopie and cutture: « CEO and divisional Managing
* Stock exchange announcements and press releases; « Contracts, new products. Directors regularly give miterviews to
+ Wihsite and sodiat media platforms: and technology, innovation; and anumbsfofp';b{imzn;dr "
. and ad hoc Uil"iﬁ. , {1 H i - 3 i - it imy| rom am
Regular eng cafls, meetings and imerviews. Reputtational impact. iOPe'n o E'U‘W'Sléﬁg fj{)gm i FY 1819; and
* Total dvidend of 4.0p for FY 18719,
* HR core standards set the framework for « Health, safety and erwvironrment * Allinjury frequency rate
employee engagement; performance; decreased 13.5%;
* Onboarding and induction training and Learming Hub; *+ Reputation; * Employee engagement increased to
+ Anrual employee engagement survey, + Employee development: 45% from 33%in FY |7/18;
* “You Said, We Did' campaign; + Talent pipefine and retertion; * Supporting women in STEM roles;
* MiNet, intermal communications and social media platforms: + Career opportunities: + Mitie Exceprionak is a group of volumeers
* Townhall meetings and annual roadshow by * Diversity and inclusion; and across the Group who act as ambassadors
senior Management; » Remuneration and reward, for our values and behaviours: and
* ‘Grill Phil' channel to engage directly with the CEQ: * Jennifer Duvalier, Non-Executive Director,
» "Back to the fioor sessions for Group Leadership Tearn: has been designated to oversee Board
* Recognition and reward programmes; and engagement with the warkforce.
*+ Annual individual performance reviews.
» Employee volunteering * Future talent pipeline; * Ready2Work:
*» The Mitie Foundation; * Local operational impact; and * Employer engagement days;
* Mitie.com and social media platforms; *+ Health, safety and * Think Differently programme:
* Local community evertts: and environment performance. « Schoo), acaderny and collage everts;
* Blectric fleet vision. * Reduction in fuel and energy
consumption;
* Reduction in arbon emissions; and
+ Focus on key sodial value areas where
we can make a real contribution,
* Supplier conferences and workshops; * Responsible procurement; * Mitie encourages suppliers to work
+ Global supplier portal and notices to supphers, + Trust and ethics; colaboratively to ensure continuat
« Mitie.com; * Prompt payment code; and improvement in operations and to
+ Annual Report and Acoounts; and + Operational improvement. deliver mutual benefi:
+ The Mitie Foundation. « The trade creditor payment days

decreased from 58 daysin FY 17/18

1o 50 days in FY [8/19: and

We reduced the use of the supply
chain finance facility by £25m compared
to FY 17/18.
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Non-financial information statement

Non-financial

iInformation statement

In accordance with Sections 4/14CA and
414CB of the Companies Act 2006, which
outline requirements for non-financial
reporting, the table below is intended to
provide our stakeholders with the content
they need to understand ocur development,
performance, position and the impact of
our activities with regards to specified
non-financial matters.

Relevant policies?

Reporting requirement

We continually look for ways to make Mitie a responsible business and
we actively engage with our stakeholders to improve our impact. In FY
18/19. we commissioned a comprehensive summary of our social value
activity and how Mitie afigns with all 17 of the United Nations Sustainable
Development Goals. We also became the first major UK FM provider

to launch an electric vehicle fleet, We introduced a range of initiatives to
further benefit our employees and made commitments in areas where
we can contribute real benefit to improve social value and environmental
impact within the communities we work in.

We use a variety of tools to track and measure our performance
against strategic objectives. Our business model encompasses the
non-financial value created for our stakéholkders from our resources,
human capital, expertise and relationships. Through our business
model we deliver vatue for our employess, suppliers, communities,
shareholders and customers.

Annual Report page reference

Environmental Sustainabiity policy Stakehotder engagement pages 26 1o 27
matters Procurement palicy Social value pages 29 to 33
Emp!oyees One code: our code of conduct Chief Executive’s strategic review pages || to 13
lPeople policy Stakeholder engagemert pages 2610 27
Inclusion policy Qur people pages 34 to 37
Health and safety policy Social value pages 29 to 33
Ethical business practice policy
Sustainability policy
Quality policy
Social matters Sustainability poficy Chief Executive's strategic review pages || to I3

Social value pages 29 to 33
Stakehaolder engagement pages 26to 27

One code: our code of conduct

Human rights
"Ethical business practice policy

Social value pages 29 to 33

One code: our code of conduct
Ethical business practice policy

Anti-bribery
and anti-corruption

and Learning Hub .

E-learning module available for employees
through the process repository (BMS)

Social value pages 29 10 33

Cur people pages 34 to 37
Stakeholder engagement pages 2610 27

Business model

Business rodel pages 08 to 03

Non-financial KPls

KPis pages 14 to 15

Principal risks

Principat risks and uncertainties pages 38 to 46
Viability statement pages 47 to 48

Audit Committee report pages 61 to 67

The Board pages 59 to 60

1 Policies. statements and codes are available at www.mitie.com

~
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Social value

Delivering
social value

People, products and services are integral to
the delivery of long-term sustainable solutions
both within Mitie and for our customers.

We have been reflecting on our sustainability performance over
the past decade, as well as looking forward to further reducing
our environmental impact and enhancing socual value activity

in the decade to come.

Key to this is our Sustainability Working Group and internal
governance structure, which was realigned to better drive our strategy
and represent our diverse business in FY 16/17. The Sustainability
Working Group is headed by Jo Davis, Greup HR Director and
executive sponsor for Sustainability. Two years on, the group now
includes a cross-functional cohort of subject matter experts, who
specialise in a wide range of areas, including environmental impact,
supply chain and people management.

In FY 19720 the remit for the Sustainability Working Group wil

be broadened to encompass the Group's social value agenda.

The Sustainability Working Group will report directly to the 8oard
to ensure that Mitie's social value and sustainability commitments
for 2030 have the appropriate resource and focus.

Social value in action

As a responsible corporate citizen caring for both people and planet,
we commissicned a comprehensive summary of our social value activity
and how Mitie aligns with all 17 of the United Nations {(LUN) Sustainable
Development Goals (SDGs).

In FY 19/20 we will set our 2030 targets and focus on some key themes
where we feel Mitie can contribute real benefit to improve social value
and ervironmental impact within the communities it works in.

Senior members of the Executive
Leadership Team have individual
responsibility in five significant areas:

Promoting skills
* and employment;

Suppaorting the growth of
* responsible regional businesses;

3 Creating healthier, safer and
* more resilient communities;

4 Protecting and improving
* our environment; and

5 Promoting
* social innovation.

By FY 19/20, we pledge to...

Increase apprenticeships by over

1002

Reduce our emissions intensity by

35%

(from FY 09/10 base)

Increase the number of women
entering STEM roles by

20%

People through our
Ready2Work programme

450

Mitie’s spend under our supplier
management framework to be

20+

Electric vehicles within cur small
vans and car fleet should be at least

20%

Become a Living Wage Foundation
Recognised Service Provider

Remove all consumer single use plastic
from our Gather & Gather business

Launch 'Mitie Girls Can', a female-only
technical apprenticeship programme

to assist with encouraging more women
into STEM roles

Mitie Group plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2019
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Social value continued

Promoting skills
« and employment

How we afign to SDGs: Aligning to our strategic piltars:

Apprenticeships

We paid £4.7m into the Apprenticeship Levy scheme inFY 18/19

and currently have 660 apprentices working across our portfolio of
contracts. They are engaged on a range of tedhrical apprenticeships

in engineering and catering, as well as professional apprenticeships in [T,
HR and management development. All Mitie apprentices benefit from
permanent employment contracts and are fully embedded in business
activities to maximise learning.

Learning Hub

Our Cloud-based Learning Hub & an online portal through which
employees can access online development material relevant to their role,
mandatory training, induction, a wealth of self-selected development
material, as well as health and wellbeing modules. it means that all our
people have access 1o quality education at a time and place that suits
them.

Springboard

Gather & Gather Managing Director, Allister Richards, sits on the board
of Springboard UK, a subsidiary of the Springboard Charity, which seeks
to relieve poverty and unemployment by developing the potential of
disadvantaged young people. At our Springboard Takeover Days we give
cookery demonstrations and talks about the benefits of working in the
hospitality industry, we also mentor those showing particular promise.

704

of candidates receive a job offer
following Ready2Work pragramme

Mitie Foundation

The Mitie Foundation has worked on a numnber of inftiatives during
FY 18/19, designed to create work experience opportunities to those
with barriers to employment.

The Ready2wWork programme consists of 3 pre-placement week,
followed by seven weeks’ work experience. The programme provides
valuable work experience 1o the long-term unemployed. On average,
over 70% of candidates receive a job offer at the end, In the past year
our six Ready2Work programmes helped around 60 iong-term
unemployed people into work.

We also supported 12 employer engagement days; these workshops
benefited around 360 disadvantaged people with low self-confidence,
a disability, refugee status, a criminal record or mental health issues.
As arule, these events are attended on average by 16 employers and
30 candidates, who face a Dragon's Den/Apprentice-style challenge.

COur ‘Think Differently’ programme was developed to support
candidates with |earning disabilities/neurodiversity and those who have
experienced mental illness. In FY 18/19 we held six disability awareness
workshops which resulted in 24 candidates being offered four weeks'
waork placements with Mitie, our cients or suppliers.
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Supporting the growth of
« responsible regional businesses

How we align to SDGs: Aligning to our strategic pillars:

o
HO
Resource efficiency

We understand our business impacts the planet and its finite resources.
Improving our efficiency is therefore essential to creating a more
sustainable business.

Qur transformation strategy was designed to improve efficiency. with
an associated reduction in resources, through better technology and
innovation, and smarter processes. In FY 18/19 we achieved large paper
savings as we digitised recards. The saving continues to increase due

o our investment in [T,

The move to regicnal office hubs and improving our pecple's ability
to work remotely also support waste reduction. Our use of Skype
for Business and Microsoft Teams has helped improve processes
and reduce business travel and associated emissions.

58.1%

reduction in total waste
generation since FY 09/10
(Mitie estate)

Reducing supply chain impact

It 15 vital to understand our supply chain impact in order to ensure

a responsible supply chain. In FY 18/19 we undertook a resource use
assessment by supplier category and spend. We will continue to work
10 ensure all supplers adhere to our Code of Conduct. including our
Modern Stavery and Human Trafficking statement. We also vet all
suppliers to ensure that our Safety and Sustainability objectives and
our veiting standards are met.

120 suppliers were invited to take part in our sodial auditing exercise
in FY 18/19. The programme induded collaborating with other

. organisations, training some of our preferred suppliers, and writing

a joint case study with the Home Office to demonstrate best practice.

We will continue to work with preferred suppliers to measure impacts
and undersiand our Stope 3 (indirect) carbon emissions.

Some achievements on our sustainability journey...
» We completed a Consumer Single Use Plastic {CSUP) plan and
will continue to work to eliminate our plastic footprint,

Gather & Gather was one of the first major contract caterers in the
UK to announce the removal of plastic straws. In May 2018, we signed
up to Hthelaststraw campaign and banned single-use plastic straws in
all 276 outiets, We have efiminated plastic water bottles at our Shard
offices and continue to run 'keep cup’ promotions. as well as providing
ceramic cups and piates and metal antlery.

Where applicable, our Government contracts support the 25-year
ervironment plan target of eliminating ali CSUP on their estate by
2020. Care & Custody completed a CSUP elimination plan and has
stopped procurement of plastic products which could be easily
eliminated or substituted with non-plastic materials.

We achieved Gokd Medal recognition from Ecovadis, putting our
organisation in the top 5% of these evaluated.

Gather & Gather has retained the maximum three-star award from
the Sustainable Restaurant Assodation in recognition of achievements
in Sodciety, Environment and Sourcing,



Creating healthier, safer
« and more resilient communities

How we afign to SDGs: Aligning to our strategic pillars:

B

Mitie's people are our strength, which is why welfoeing is a vital
component of our employee value proposition. in FY 18/19, we launched
a new wellbeing working group 1o utilise the expertise of our in-house
welibeing and occupational health specialists.

As part of the annual Mental Heahth Awareness Week, in May 2018
we focused on stress in the workplace and how best to deal with it.
We have also concucted awareness initiatives on workplace
mindfulness and psychological wellbeing, nutrition and physical activity.
Thirteen mental health first aid workshops were also held across the
UK. As part of our learning and development transformation, we are
in the process of launching e-learning packages on wellbeing and career
development to ensure our people are equipped with the knowledge
and tools to support their future ambitions.

Through Gather & Gather, we support Public Heatth England's

nutrition initiatives, inchuding chidhood obesity and calorie, sugar and saht
reduction programmes. We also back Government recommendations
that free sugars should make up no more than 5% of energy intake each
day. and limiting daily salt intake to no more than 6g. We strive 10 assist
guests in achieving these healthy targets through recipe reformulation,
product sourcing and menu developrment.

Gather & Gather also runs the Live Well scheme, designed to help
“our customers employees and our colleagues make infarmed food
choites to support wellbeing. Using specialised Saffron software,
detailed nutritional labels can be produced for each recipe. Live
Well-branded leaflets. cards and posters on topics such as portion
control, snacking and eating five-a-day ensure people are updated
with relevant nutrition information.

Protecting and improving
« our environment

How we afign to SDGs: Aligning to our strategic pillars:

o~
B<
Reducing carbon emissions

In 2010, we committed to reducing our carbon intensity by 35% by 2020,
We are proud 1o have achieved this target a year early. We did so by
rationalising our estate, reducing business travel and building occupancy
supported by remote working technology. and improving fleet efliciency.

We continue to procure |00% renewable energy and are working
towards the implemenitation of 150 50001 Energy Management System.
InFY 1819 the Carbon Trust scored Mitie 81% for carbon management,
the highest mark within the UK FM sector.

Mitie also completed a climate change rick assessment based on
guidance from Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures
{TCFD). We are working to establish future carbon reduction plans
and objectives. This includes setting a science-based target for carbon
reduction and working with key supply partners on innovations

and reduction technology.
=)
3 7%

Q,
52%
reduction in emissions intensicy

reduction in energy consumption
across Mitie estate since FY 09/I0  since FY 09/10
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Social value continued

Managing fleet impact

13.9% 35«

reduction in fuel reduction in fuel
consumption since consumption intensity
FY 09/10 since FY 09410

Mitie’s vehide operations account for over 0% of our total carbon
emissions. Through our fleet committee’s low carbon fleet strategy
we have reduced our total emissions footprint year-on-year.

Low carbon solutions

In FY 18/19, we signed up to the Clean Van Commitment and were
accredited as a Go Uttra Low company. Following successful trials
of hydrogen and electric vehicles. we committed to 20% of our
small vans and cars being fully electric by 2020.

Sometimes an EV is not the best commercial or operational

decision, in which case we will source the most efficient diesel vehicle.
Through our great supplier relationships we are kept informed of market
progress, meaning we can take advantage of new technology when it
becomes available. An example of this is the new model of the Vauxhall
Vivaro, which brings 15% CO; and fuel savings over the previous model.
Over a seven-year period. tne Vivarg's efficiency has improved by 26%.
creating significant ervironmental and financial savings.

Restricting vehicle selection

Mitie vehicles typically operate on a rolling four-year contract

hire agreement from our strategic fleet partner, Lex Auvtolease.

By outsourcing fleet managerent. Mitie aims to take advantage

of the most efficient technology when it becormes available. All of
our non-commercial vehicles are restricted by a self-imposed vehicies
emissions cap of 130g/km CCx. In 2018, our commercial vehicle models
were on average 10.5% more efficient in terms of carbon emissions
compared to 2014, and the phasing out process continues to yield
carbon and fuel savings, Our Vauxhail Astra estate models generate
10% tess emissions, and by changing Vauxhall Vivaro vans from 2.0L
to |.6L engines, plus Adblue, stopfstart technology to cut idling,

we have restricted carbon emissions by 1% and NOx emissions

by 72% on average. ensuring compliance with EUROS emissicn
standards and significantly reducing fuel costs.
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Telematics

All our commercial vehicles are frited with telernatics. Non-conformance
10 our driver expectations. such as speeding, idling or substandard
driving, is escalated accordingly. During 2019 we will continue to work

on better telematic information and data for faster real-time reporting.

Permit to Drive

We launched Permit 1o Drive in August 2018 as part of our
commitment to road safety, driver wellbeing and environmenta
protection. Our annual e-learning awareness training and assessment
scheme has seen 3,505 drivers complete Permit to Drive so far.

We believe our driver awareness campaign and fleet risk reduction
plan will bring down the number of road traffic incidents and improve
fue! efficiency. The combined impact of our measures, induding
technology. has seen a 13% reduction in vehide accidents from

the previcus year,

Mitie electric vehicle project

In the face of rising fuel costs, stricter emissions targets and a need

to address dimate change, fleet electrification marks a dramatic step
towards reducing the financial and environmental cost of doing business.
In Decermber 2018, Mitie became the first major UK FM provider to
launch an electric vehicle (EV) fleet. By 2020, 20% (717) of our compact
vans ang cars will be fully electric.

With a total fleet of 5,107 vehicles, Mitie's diesel cars, vans and trucks are
a familiar sight on UK roads. Due to significant developments in battery
technology and driving range, electric vehicles represent an exciting and
viable akernative to traditional cars and vans.

Mitie has ordered vehides with a long range and fast charging Capabilities.
The Volkswagen e-Golf, Hyundai Kona, Renault Zoe and Kia e-Niro will
join the Mitie fleet in coming months. alongside fully electric vans like

the Nissan eNV-200.

Charging infrastructure

Mitie is investing in appropriate charging infrastructure to ensure
operational success of our electric vehicles. We are partnering with
arenowned charging supplier to install over 800 charging points
across the Mitie estate and at employee homes. We will aiso build
on relationships with cients who have EVs in their fleet to offer
Mitie colleagues the opportunity to use their charging sites.

We look forward to supporting current and future customers

who share our passion for innovative and sustainable maobility,

Key benefits

Electric vehicles produce no CO, when they are being driven.
This is good for the planet and pood for the pocket = electric
vehides attract a fraction of the company car tax of their fossil
fuel counterparts, Electric vehicles are also less expensive to run
due to significantly reduced fuel costs, which means we can keep
operational costs to a minimum,

Training and telematics

Mitie has developed a suite of training courses for drivers of its eleciric
wvehicles 1o ensure that they are used safely and with maximum efficency.
By partnering with the manufacturer. we can guarantee training is
relevant to the vehicle model at hand.

Tapping into clean water

Gather & Gather’s supplier is LifeWater, a British brand that partners
with the charity Drop4Drop to fund clean water projects around the
globe. So far 14 pumnps and wells have been buift in needy communities
across India and Africa thanks to LifeWater purchases at Gather &
Gather. The most recent was in the village of Bejiman, Mzimba District,
Malawi. Water sources funded through Gather & Gather currently
benefit over 18,000 people and all feature a plaque bearing our catering
arm's distinctive logo.



Promoting social
« innovation

How we align to SDGs: Aligning to our strategic pillars:

Supporting women

The Mitie Foundation has supported the build of a mini-retail park
inside HMP Foston Hall. a women's prison in Derbyshire. Mitie
employees have worked in partnership with female prisoners, teaching
the skills of landscaping, groundworks, building, electrical, solar panels.
rainwater harvesting and work ethics. When the park is complete,
female prisoners will be trained to run their own micro-retail business,

supporting them with new skills and experience to build upon on release.

Partnership with Well Grounded

Gather & Gather has been working with social enterprise Well
Grounded 1o hefp a bread m of young Londoners into work

as baristas. In FY 17/18. this induded a cobort of nine trainees. who
atiended a full-time, four-week course at Well Grounded's East London
academy. Upon training completion, they completed four weeks' work
experience with Gather & Gather and successfully took up positions

as baristas post graduation,

Mitie continues to work with Well Grounded to assist those who
have struggled to find employment. The second cohort of 10 Well
Grounded baristas began training in FY 18/19.

Volunteering days
in FY §8/19, 151 Mitie colleagues volunteered to assist in a range
of education and community events.

We coordinated 41 careers and World of Work days beld in schools
and colleges. Mitie colleagues volunteer to assist, providing positive
business role models and giving students the skills and knowledge to
raise their aspirations and broaden their career horizons. In addition to
this, Mitie Landscapes teams supported the anrual Marine Conservation
Society Great British Beach Clean, volunteering to remove litter and
plastic from the UK shoreling; and working with Keep Britain Tidy,

Mitie volurteers attended Saturday morning litter picks to remove
rubbish from the countryside.
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Cur people

Our promise
to our people

Mitie’s people are our strength. As a major
UK employer with 52,500 colleagues, we
take our responsibility towards our people
seriously. Improving our Employee Value
Proposition has been a key focus in FY 18/19
as we look to consolidate our position as
one of the UK's most dynamic, forward-
thinking and sustainable FM companies.

We have been busy developing a range
of initiatives to make Mitie a ‘Great Place
to Work’ and an employer of choice.

Upload survey

Listening to our people is as important as listening to our customers.
We launched the Upload survey in April 2018 to ask our people
how they feel about working at Mitie, and what improvements could
be made. This was followed by the "You Said, We Did' campaign

to demonstrate actions undertaken in response o feedback.

There were five key priority areas for improvement:

+ Reward and recognition;

* Enabling infrastructure;

+ Senior leadership;

+ Employee brand; and

« Autonomy and empowerment.

Cur 2018 Upload survey proved a vital tool in benchmarking employse
engagement. We relaunched the survey in March 2019 to measure
progress. Following our improvemnents and our “You Said, We Did'
campaign, we have seen employee engagement rise by 12%. In
addition to overall engagement increasing. we have seen perceptions
of leadership improve by +17% and employee brand improve by +12%.

Although we have made significant progress, the results show
that there are still areas where we can improve. The results will
be followed by another You Said, We Did' campaign in 2019,
We plan to continue to measure engagement annually.

28% 45% +12%

Upload Engagement Improvemen in
response rate score engagement score
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‘You Said, We Did’ campaign
Listening 10 our people led to the intraduction of the fallowing initiatives
in 2018:

Mitie Stars

The Mitie Stars scheme is our way to reward and recognise those
who have gone above and beyond for our customers and colleagues.
By engaping and thanking our people, we are helping to make Mitie

a great place to work. Our colleagues up and down the country
proudly display their badges on their lanyards.

Feel Good Fridays

Feel Good Fridays is a new recognition scheme that gives Mitie people
the opportunity to thank and recognise colleagues for defivering ‘the
excepticnal. every day’. Nominations are made via MiNet and thank yous
are published online each Friday.

Long-service awards
We launched the tong-service award scheme to celebrate and mark
one, five, 10, 20, 30, 40 and 50 year service milestones with Mitie.

Enhanced maternity policy

In October 2018, we introduced an enhanced maternity package for all
eligible salaried employees, with an additional ‘return to work bonus’
to encaurage mothers back after maternity leave. it demonstrates

our commitment tc gender equality, our efforts 1o raise the number
of wornen in the workforce and our intention to become an employer
of choice for women in FM, The package is detailed below.

* 10 weeks' pay at full pay inclusive of Statutory Maternity Fay (SMF) =
increasing from the previous allowance of statutory payments only
(six weeks at 90% of average earnings);

* A further 29 weeks at the applicable SMP rate; and

* A ‘return 1o work bonus’ equivalent 1o two weeks' full pay.

We are also introducing enhanced adoption pay arrangements for
those taking adoption leave. An adjustment to paternity provision
& due to be reviewed.

IT improvements

We have irwested £1.5m in new laptops for our people, replaced

a significant number of mobile phones, and rolied out a company-wide
upgrade to Windows (0. This has enhanced our cyber security as well
as increased connactivity and collaboration.

The Mitie Roadshow

Mitie's Executive Leadership Team held nine Roadshows across five
locations in the UK, engaging over 2,000 managers to update on our
transformation journey and listen to our people’s views.

Back to the floor

To increase visibility of our senior lsadership team, we have refreshed
the popular ‘back to the floor’ initiative. This is an opportunity for
mermnbers of the Group Leadership Team (GLT) to get to grips with
what our front-tine people experience every day. Each GLT member
is required to complete two back to the floor visits each year. Besides
assisting with the work, they provide our colleagues with support,
listering events, and recognise and celebrate teams delivering

The Exceptional, Every Day',

These initiztives represent a huge step forward as we seek to engage,
reward, recognise and retain our people.



Vision and values

Embedding our values into our DINA is enabling a successful
cuttural transformation.

During 2018, we articulated a new set of behaviours that

bring our values 1o life with help from our Mitie Exceptionals.

a group of values champions from every corner of our business.
They were nominated because they Tive’ gur new vision 50 we
asked them to help us articulate how you delrver our new vision
of The Exceptional, Every Day, every day.

These behaviours now form the basis of all our people policies
and processes, from recruftrnent and onboarding, through 10
performance reviews. The Upload survey 2019 shows that 9%
of our respondents have 2 good understanding of our values.

Gender pay gap report

Mitie Group is required tc publish data on two legal entities,

Mitie Limited and Mitie Property Services (UK) Limited, compared
tothe |5 legal entities reported in 2017,

As at 5 April 2018, Mitie Group had a mean average pender pay gap of
13.8%, which was lower than the 16.0% gap reported as at 5 April 2017,
The mean bonus gap was 47.3%, which was considerably lower than the
71.0% reported in 2017,

We have made a number of significant changes 1o reduce the gap,
which include intreducing a new people system to enable better
gender and job level reporting, enhancing our maternity pay offering
and setting the strategic objective to increase the number of womnen

entering stience, technology, engineering and mathematics (STEM) roles.

While our gap has improved, we still have work to de in FY 19/20.

V22% 12374

pay gap bonus gap

Since June 2017, we have welcomed four women 1o cur Board of
Directors fwomen: 4; men: 4). Wormen accaunt for 11% of our
Executive Leadership Team {worman: I; men: 8) and 24% of our
Group Leadership Team (women: |18 men: 57) as at 31 March 20I9.
Across Mitie Group female employees account for ¢.32% of our
workforce (women: 16,800; men: 35,700),

We are One Mitie

We are built on integrity and trust

We go the extra mile

Our diversity makes us stronger

Qur customer’s business, is our business

Living Wage Foundation

We want our people to feel valued and engaged and recognise

that wages play an important part in this. Our goal is to become a
Recognised Service Provider with the Living Wage Foundation by 2020,
and we are already paying employees working in Mitie offices the real
Living Wage.

Diversity and inclusion

At Mitie, we are very proud of our rich and diverse culture and
backgrounds - it creates ideas and insights. We believe everyone
should have opportunities to progress, whether that is through working
with amazing customers or individual learning and development.

This year, we were immensely proud to be recognised as |7 on the
Inclusive Top 50 UK Employers list.

OQur employee networks help support our agenda by allowing
members to discuss issues affecting them with key decision makers.
assist in formulating new and reviewing existing policies and procedures,
provide a safe space for members to raise their concerns in a
confidential enviranment, and provide an apportunity for members

to update each other on local and national policy and developments.
Each network is sponsored by a member of the Executive Leadership
Team who is a rote model for diversity and inclusion and champions

the agenda across the Group.
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Our people continued

Diversity networks
Mitie's emplayee diversity networks are designed 1o support and
champion the following minority groups:

Enable network. disability awareness and support - sponsored by
Simon Venn, Chief Government & Strategy Officer.

Engender network, gender equality - sponsored by Carlo Alloni,
Managing Director, Engineering Services.

Generations network, age awareness — sponsored by Peter Dickinson,
General Counse! & Company Secretary.

Kaleidoscope network, ethnic minorities, particularly BAME
{Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic) — sponsored by Matthew Thompson,
Managing Director, Cleaning & Environmental Services.

Proud To Be network, LGBTQ awareness — sponsored by
Allister Richards, Managing Director, Gather & Gather.

A new start for our new starters

First impressions last, and in FY 18/19 we overhauied the onboarding
process. The purpose is not only to provide an exciting introduction
to their new role at Mitig, but to highlight the opportunilies cpen to
colleagues in the UK's leading FM organisation, For the first time, we
have a ‘One Mitie’ approach to induction, providing clear and easily
accessibie information on our company structure, what we do, our
values, leadership, benefits, took and systems. All new starters are
required to complete a series of (earning modules via our e-learning
platform, the Learning Hub,

Temporary resourcing

Every year, Mitie engages with: a significant number of suppliers to find
people required on a temporary basis. The opportunity to reduce cost
and complexity was dear, and to this end in October 2018 we faunched
atemnporary resourcing team in collaboration with our recruitment
partner, Retinue. Working together, both teams manage the recruitment
of temporary staff aoross Mitie. The benefits are dear and nomerous:

= Simple and fast process via 2 new technology platform — it takes
52 seconds to raise a job, 64 seronds to book a fully-compliant
candidate and 18 seconds to approve a timesheet;

Mobile app to use on-the-go, providing quick access to manage
requests and approve timesheets;

Ensures all suppliers are compliant with right to work and
pre-employment screening checks, providing a clear audit trail
for each worker;

Consolidated invoicing reduces the time spent on administration,
taking us from 37,000 invoices to one per week per business unit; and
Reduced costs and consistency of terms.

*

Permanent resourcing

The next step in our HR 1ransformation is our permanent resourcing
solution, the Tatent Hub, launched in early 2019, We are creating an
industry-leading talent and resourcing function to attract. recruit,
develop and retain the best people at all levels.

We will use the best technology in the market to mine new talent and
fill opportunities quickly. Qur new Talent Hub platform also allows us to
grow our employer brand and raise awareness of internal career paths.

Apprenticeships

As a major UK employer, Mitie provides a wealth of apprenticeships
taking an ‘apprentice first’ approach to training. We paid £4.7m into
the Apprenticeship Levy scheme in FY 18/13.

660 apprentices are working across our portfolio of contracts.

Qur apprenticeship strategy continues to evolve, and we are partnering
with a number of specialist providers to ensure we deliver learing that
meets the needs of the individual as well as the business. We have
ambitious plans to increase apprenticeships by over 100% by 2020,

We recognise the Government's target of 2.3% apprentices across

the workforce: a target we are set to exceed.
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Learning Hub

At the core of our Learning arvd Developrment transformation
is our Learning Hub, an online portal through which employees
can access onfine developmemt material relevant to their role,
mandatory materia, our induction, a wealth of self-selected
development material, as well as health and wellbeing modules.
The Learning Hub is Cloud-based and can be accessed on any
device connected to the internet. allowing colleagues to access
courses and content at a time and place that suits them. Inthe
five months since faunch in October 2018, Mitie collzagues
completed 40.000 Learning Hub courses. There are 2,500
instructerded courses as well as 900 Learning Hub activities
available, which range from informative documents and

infographics to eight-hour seminars.
40,000 2,500 900
Learning Hub instructor-ted Learning Hub

courses completed  courses activities available

Sales Academy

January 2019 marked the beginning of an exciting new era for Mitie's
Sales community: the launch of the Mitie Sales Academy. The first
cohort of 12 tolleagues began a year-long apprenticeship that culminates
in Level Four sales certification from the Assodiation of Professional Sales
(APS). Apprenticeship Levy funding has enabled us to create our first
professional Academy which creates an Academy blueprint for other
professional apprenticeship programmes to be launched in 2019

LiveSafe

We are constartly striving to develop a zero-harm workplace.

Coordinated by Mitie’s Quality, Health, Safety and Environment (QHSE) '
team, our LiveSafe programme launched in December 2018 in order to

constantly improve Quality and HSE performance across the business.

LiveSafe is underpinned by a set of principles and rules that will help us
keep ourselves, our colleagues and those affected by our operations safe.

Extensive supporting material is available on the designated LiveSafe
intranet page, and a series of workshops has been rolled cut across
the country.



People Hub

Launched in October 2018, the People Hub is a
one-stop-shop for all things related to the emplayee lifecycle,
It provides colleagues with 24/7 access to their parsonal
employee profies, allowing them to manage everything from
viewing payslips. to requesting and approving leave requests.
The People Hub is paperless and ail new employees are
onboarded electronically with DocuSign. For the first

time at Mitie. our organisational hierarchies are visible.

24/7

People Hub provides colleagues with
24/7 access to cheir personal profile

GG

Qur promise to our people
is to create a place where
they can thrive and be their
best every day.

Jo Davis,
Group HR Director

Awards

Mitie’s far-reaching efforts to improve our employee value
proposition have not pone unnoticed and we were the
only FM provider to be recognised by two prestigious
awarding bodies:

« |7th place on the Inclusive Top 50 UK Employers list,
the definitive round-up of UK organisations promoting
diversity and inclusion across disability, gender, age.
LGBT and race.

Certified a 2019 Top Employer by the Top Employer
Institute Certification Programme. The award is made
to employers who lead the way in forward-thinking,
people-first HR practices.  *

Employee involvement in Company performance

Mite encourages the involvement of employees in the Company's
performance through the annwal bonus scheme and various share
schemnes, During the year, invitations to join the Company’s Save As
You Earn share option plan were distributed to all eligible employees.
Employees can also participate in a Share Incentive Plan.

Engaging with our people

As part of our ongoing commitment to improving employee
engagement, we have implemented a new employee communication
channel strategy which includes additional channels promoting direct
engagement between managers and their teams and encouraging regular
employee feedback. These include the monthty Mitie Download, our
tearn briefing document for managers, and weekly Recap news email,
These are supported by digital engagement channels including Yammer,

Qur aim is to ensure our employees are fully aware of and feel
supported through our transformation journey. We provide regular
updates on financial and economic factors affecting our company's
performance. and the important role each employee plays in Mitie’s
future success. Our speific focus is on our front-line workforce,
and we will be implementing several new digital channels as we
continue to improve how we engage with our peaple.
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Effective risk
Management

Our risk management approach

QOur approach to risk management is Our risk management framewark
regularly reviewed by the Board and

Executive Leadership Team and continues Top down

to evolve in line with our business structure Strategic risk management

and risk profile. We recognise that to have

an effective risk management framework, « Review external environment

we need to develop appropriate risk . . R

management culture, controls and supporting olprincassipalssri s.:k;m t

processes. Our "One Milwe' Vision and Values . i BoardiAudit
and Enterprise Risk Management policy have * Set risk appetite Committee
an important role to play in this regard. and parameters

Further information can be found in the * Determine stratagic

Board report on pages 56 10 61. action points

Risk management structure

Our risk management structure is designed o

to ensure a consistent approach to the
identification, assessment, monitoring and * Identify pringipal risks
management of risks across the business. . ) !
This is set out in more detail below and Dicect delivery of strategic Executive
in the Board report on pages 59 and 60. ppetite
PO pag * Monitor key risk indi Leadership

Areas of focus Team
Qur focus during the year has been on

standardising and simplifying processes,

procedures and associated IT systems

in the Group, including: o

» Simplification of the
organisational struciure: .
Clarity of reporting lines for » Report on key risk indicators

central functions; : Divisions
IT. financial and operational systems

improvements across the business;

* Improvements to cyber security controls

across all systems and infrastructure:

Deployment of an improved

incident recording, monitoring and

reporting system;

Deployment of a new MR resourcing

systen across the Group;

Launch of eniine training and

development huby

Simplified approach and consistent

process to both temporary and

perrmanent recruitment;

QOutsourcing of back-office finance

transactional processes to Genpact; and

Qutsourcing of application maintenance

IT processes to Wipro.

+ Execute strategic actions

.

-
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Bottom up
Operational risk management

* Assess effectiveness of
risk management systermn

* Report on principal risks
and uncertainties

» Conrsider completeness of
identified risks and adequacy
of mitigating actions

* Consider aggregation of risk
exposure across the business

o

* Report current
and emerging risks

+ |dentify, evaluate and mitigate
operational risks recorded
in risk register



New and emerging risks

We continuously monitor our internal and external environment to
ensure that any new or emerging risk is identified in a timely manner
and responded 10 appropriately. As a resutt of the Principal Risks
assessment, new risks relating to structural complexity. market share
and incident at dient site have been identified,

Risk management structure

Board and Audit Cormmmuttec
Exccutive Leadership Team [ 2 lnternal Audit
mitie

@ e @

Responsibility Process

g
§

Financial statements

* Vision and Values statement and Code of Conduct approved by the Board and communicated
10 employees — setting tone at the top.

* Review of the Group's strategy by the Board and the setting of risk appetite for the Company.

* The Board through the Audit Committee reviews the effectiveness of the internal control and
risk management framework on a yearty basis.

* The Board set the frequency and scope of its discussion on strategy. business model and risk.

* The Board reviews principal risks on a yearly basis.

* The Audit Committee, which comprises independent Non-Executive Directors, reviews
internal audit reports on a regular basis

Mitie’s focus is 1o operate a ‘three lines of defence’ model for effective risk management

and monitoring:

First line of defence

* Core set of business policies available on the Company’s intranet — setting out
management’s expectations,

* Maintenance of risk registers at business unit and function level, Risk registers are also
maintained for major comracts.

Second line of defence

* Enterprise Risk Management policy is in place and available to employees.

* Enterprise Risk function is in place.

* QHSE compliance function operates to ensure adherence with the Company’s QHSE policies.

* Formation of audit and risk committees operating at business unit levels.

Third line of defence
Internal Audit acts as a third line of defence,
* The Head of Internal audit reparts functionally to the Chair of the Audit Committee.

* The Internal Audit function targets its work at areas of the business where risk management
and internal controls are suspected of requiring improvement. In addition, the Internal Audit
plan is linked with the Principal Risks to ensure adequate coverage of the risk areas.

* The in-house Internal Audit team uses Grant Thornton to support its work, where appropriate.
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Principal risks and uncertainties continued

_ h“p“LLS

(D) Paliticat A

Political and economic uncertainty in the UK

ray adversely affect our customers’ approach to
outsourcing decisions and our ability to plan and
irvest. The lack of clarity of the timing ang impact
of Brexit adds further uncertainty.

E

(@) Heakh, safety and environment <4 >
Failure to maintain appropriately high standards

in health, safety and environmental management

may result in harm to employees, client staff or

mermnbers of the public, and consequertial fines

and reputational damage.

A loss of market share through competitors
improving their offering and price, and potentially
targeting some of our key contracts, or from new
entrarms deploying new business modals, could have
2 significant impact on our revenue and profit

(@) Structural complexity New risk (® Incident at client site New risk
Mitie has historicalty operated using complex manual A high-profile indgent or accident occurring at
processes and an organisational model with a high an FM dient site, or a location aperated by our
and misafigned cost base, rather than leveraging its Care & Custody business, as a result of negligent
technology. If we do not address these issues we stafl actions, inconsistent vetting or ineflective
will be unable to execute dient contracts efficiently, training and communications for staff, could
resulting in sub-optimal customer experiences and have a significant impact on our reputation and
erosion of sustained profitable growth. curremt and future contracts.
@ Cyber v @ Data management 4 »r
Failure of critical infrastructure, including through a Ineflective processes and controk to manage our
cyber-attack, could affect client delivery operations data and customers’ data may result in a major
" and cause critical delays in internal processes. data breach leading to fines. remediation costs
. : and reputational damage.
@ Funding 4 > Employees v
{nability to maintain access to and renew suitable Inability to recruit. retain and reward suitably
sources of funding due to a perceived risk in both our talented employees, as well as failure to implement
business and the sector as a whole, may impact cur appropriate development plans, simple corsistem
ability to maintain profitable business performance. processes across the business and a One Mitie
approach, could negatively impart our operational
and financial performance.
@ Legal 4 »r @ Market sentiment A
Failure to compty with applicable laws and MNegative sentiment towards the outsaurdng
regulations may lead to fines, prosecution sector could kead to fewer opportunities, including
and damage to our reputation. reduced IFM volumes, and challenges to cur
business model and profit growth.
(&) Market share New risk (12) Contract losses 4 >

If we do not ensure that we produce bids for
contracts which are competitive, financially viabte
and have a balanced approach 1o risk, andfor fail

to deliver on owr contract obligations, we may
darnage our dient relationships, which may lead to
cancellation of contracts resulting in financial losses.
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Our strategic pillars Change n year

Customer: build market-leading positions in higher ¥ Decreased
growth segments and Increase customer NPS
People: create 2 ‘Great Place to Work' 4 P Stayed N
for our employees the same B

g

Cost: strengthen our balance sheet and maintain A  Increased i
cost distipline to remain competitive 5
Technology: embed technelogy into the heart Viability I

of our offering statement b

Principal risks and uncertainties Contrals and mitigating actions Future plans

@ Ppolitical

Political and economic uncertainty in the UK may adversely affect our
customers' approach to outsourcing decisions and our ability to plan
and invest. The lack of clarity of the uming and impact of Brexit adds
further uncertainty.

Impacts on: Change in year:

HODO 4

As the vast majority of Mitie's client base is within the UK, we are
particularty exposed to uncertainties in the UK's poktical and economic
landscape. A major aspect of this uncertainty continues to be the ongoing
negotiations for the LK to leave the European Union (Brexit). This may
result in changes to the regulatory framework, as well as restrictions in the
supply of labour and materials.

Poftical and economic factors also influence the decisions taken by both public
and private sector cients on which activities should be outsourced and the
amount of discretionary spend available for cutsourcing activities. This may
result in fewer opportunities for Miie and have a consequential negative
impact on our financial perforrmance.

It is important that we are able to offer competitive, innovative and high-quakty
solutions to dlients, and demenstrate the vatue we bring to them. We also need
to ensure that we carefully monitor and identify the most appropriste
opportunities in both the public and private sectors.

* Maintain blend of public and

* Ensure the focus on strategic

@ Structural complexity

Mitie has histerically operated using complex manual processes and an
organisational model with a high and misaligned cost base, racher than
leveraging its technology. if we do not address these Issues we will be

unable to execute client contracts efficiently, resulting in sub-optimal .
customer experiences and erosion of sustained profitable growth,

Impacts on: Change in year:

PO rewra

Mitie's business and organisational model has evolved with a large number
of unnecessary complexities, induding multiple and inconsistent processes,
isolated IT systems, and unclear organisational and reporting structures.
These complexities have required a dispropartionately high cost base in
order to maintain them.

The business transformation project (Project Helod), and a number of other
improvement initiatives over the past two years. have made substantial
progress, but further work is required to simplify and standardise these
underlying processes and to ensure that we are able to deliver acceptable
margins and growth from our business.

We are continuing to address internal costs by leveraging the opportunities
from outsourding back-office functions, including in Finance and 1T, In addition,
we are investing in [T systems improvements across the business, notably

in Engineering Services, HR and Finance, We will ako continue to simphify
end-to-end processes and the structure of the organisation.

Mitie is now embracing technology to deliver a digital experience to both
internal and external users. If we fail to do this we could be unable to deliver
profitable growth, our opportunities to invest in new technology and offerings
could be lirnited and our bids could be uncompetitive.

and responsitikties, particularly
for strategic accounts

* Focus on sourcing and

procurement processes to
simphfy supplier base and
leverage cost opportunities

+ Use of digital technologies for
customers and employees

private sector diemts accounts generates growth
* Appointment to the Crown opportunities
Commercial Services Framework * Maintain dialogue with key public o
. Awantrnentgfchef andprwalesectcrdaentsto §
Government & Strategy demonstrate the value we offer £
Officer and team * Leverage the most appropriate g
* Regular reviews of sales upporhm'rfies ﬂvpugh the Crown 3
opportunities by all business Commerdal Services Framewoark
sales leaders 1o increase public sector contracts
* Dedicated account managers
to focus on integrated
strategic accounts
* Foous on high-margin opportunities
* Drive for greater customer
retemion through improvements
in the value we deiiver ’
* Development of new and a
innovative service offerings g
[T
et
&
3
&
[T
* Successful delivery of Project * Successfully complete
Helix and other improverment improvement projects for IT
and simplification initiatives systems in Engineering Services
+ IT. financial and operational systems ~ * A comprehensive review of
improvements across the business end-to-end processes across the
* Outsouraing of badk-office business to improve effidency
functions in T and Finance :::;:nﬂ:':éd remove um;egg;y
* Simplification of the business uce Costs.
suu?:tum mo?:lwis'ons Transformation Officer has already
. I e been zppoimed who is resporsible
Clarification of accountabilties for this intiative

* Legal entity rationalisation
* Finance modernisation programme
« Commence a further
transformational review
to simpfify the business
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Principal risks and uncertainties continued

Principal risks and uncertainties Controls and mitigating actrans Future plans

@ Cyber

Fallure of critical infrastrucrure, including through a cyber-attack.
could affect client delivery operations and cause cricical delays

in internal processes.

Impacts on: Change in year:

BODH© v

‘Fhe reliabifity and effectiveness of our technology is witally important to
ensure that we can meet our contract obligations, deliver improvements
in operational processes, generate meaningful management information
and help deliver value for our dients. In many cases dients rely upon us
to kook after their critical data and infrastructure.

We are gontinuing to invest in technology to smplify our business. as well

as improving resifience and security to protect against systems failure or a
cyber-attack. During the year we have commenced an upgrade programme
to ensure we meet the Government’s Cyber Essentials Plus requirements,
This has irvolved a substantial programme to upgrade and replace computers
within the organisation. We have also delivered a number ¢f system
improvements inthe year including People Hub, 8 standardised snd
integrated HR sokstion.

We have also outsourced our routing IT operations 1o & partner which will
help improve effidency and eflectiveness and build in greater resilience to
failures. This also allows us to focus on higher value technology developments
for clients. We will continue to invest in systemns and technology to replace
the legacy estate, automate processes and ensure the smooth and efficent
operation of our business, It is also important to have effective business
continuity and disaster recovery plans, and this is another key focus.

* Clear strategy to invest in * Upgrade to the Engineering

technalogy improvements, both in Services operationai and financial
internal systems and diert offering systems to improve security
* Outsourcing of routine [T and efficiency

ons to . - - Look for ties 1o

to improve resilience and controls levirage the outsource partner’s
* Upgrades to legacy systems to development capabilities
recluce complexity and improve
i "

* Rationalisation of ERP systers
and infrastructure

* Leveraging new technologies
such as Al and big data

* Maintenance and testing of
effective disaster recovery plans

* improvemnents to cyber security
controls across all systems
and infrastructure

* Dedicated IS PMO to ensure
all projects with an IS element
are managed efectively and
risks are rrinimisad

@ Funding

Inability to maintain access to and renew sultable sources of funding
due to a perceived risk in both our business and the sector as a whale,
may impact our ability to maintain profitable business performance.

Impacts on: Change in year:

HODO

In order 1o be able ta meet our financial commitments, we need to have access
to 3 number of affordable sources of finance. Our core debt fagkties indude

3 revolving credit facifity and private placement loan notes, We need to have
sufficient liquidity to be able 10 pay suppliers and staff, whilst also investing in
the business and ensuring that we have enough options for profitable growth.

In the past few years there has been significant concern about the financial
strength and viability of companies operating in our sector. This has continued
during the year with a aumber of high-profile incidents occurding relating ta
our competitors. Any actual or perceived weaknesses in our financial position
could restrict our access to finance or attract high interest rates.

We have been focused on maintaining strong financial disciphine in the
management of cur working capital and investrnent decisions and on
minimising our levels of debt. This has included working with cur back-office
process outsource partner to improve processes and efficiency.

= Regular forecasting of cash » Continue to work with a

flow and net debt range of finandal institutions to
¢ Thorough focus on working capital ensure we can access aflordabla
cydes wath a dear set of KPls finance sources
* Maintenance of strong banking, * Focus on working capital
debt and aquity relationships procemsto reduce cyCle
» Strong focus on and monitoring tirnes and average tet dein
of cash collection * Improve accrued income and
* Regular reviews of payment terms billing processes
with customers and supply chain
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Our strategic pliars Change in year

Customer: build marker-leading positions in higher ¥  Detreased
growth segments and increase customer NPS
Peaple: create a ‘Great Place to Work' 4 P Staysd
for our employees the same
Cost: strengthen our balance sheet and maintain A Increased
cost discipline to remain competitive
Technology: embed technology into the heart Viabllity

of our offeringour offering statement

Principal risks and uncertainties Controls and mitipating actions

® Legat

Failure to comply with applicable laws and regulations may lead to fines,
prosecution and damage to our reputation.

Irpacts on: Change in year:

WIOIO) >

Qur business is subject to a wide range of laws and regulations. Given
the nature of our business. these include, amongst others, health & safety,
employment, anti-bribery and corruption and statutory wage requirements.

Failure 1o comply with applicable laws and regutations could resultin
prosecution andfor significant fines, and., from a reputational perspective,
could damage our relationships with dients and our ability to win work.
‘We may also face debarment from public sector contracts.

We continue to ensure that we have effective governance and oversight

of our campliance with applicable laws and regulations and continuously
assess the impact of changes in retevant legislation, H is also important that
we provide appropriate communications ang training for our people to
ensure that they are aware of their obligations. and that regular monitoring
of compliance is undertaken.

* Regular monitoring of legat
and regulatory changes by
Group Functions induding

Secretariat,

Company Legal
and CQuality, Health, Safety
and Environment (QHSE)

* Code of Conduct communicated
to all employees ’

* Group-wide policies updated for
changes to lzws and reguiations and
maintained in the onfine Business
Management System (BMS)

* Regular and thorough extermal
regulatory audits

* Training and awareness material
communicated to employees
and monitoring of completion
performed

* Externally hosted whistieblowing
service available .

training courses to relevant

employees via our Learning Hub
*'Ongoing review of 8M5 to update

policies and procedures

* Irtroduction of further mandatory

@ Market share

A loss of market share through competitors improving their offering and
price, and potentially targeting some of our key contracts, or from new
entrants deploying new business models, could have a significant impact
on our revenue and profit.

Impacts on:

BHSO

Inthe Fetent past. many companies in cur seclor have experienced financial
and operational difficulties, and as 2 result there has been a strong focus on
strategy, costs, investments and business structure. For those organisations
that have successiully addressed their issues there may be opportunities
toincrease market share through more competitive or innavative offerings,
which may impact our ability to retain current dlients and win future business.

Change in year:

New risk

Additionally, there is also the possibifity of a new entrant disrupting the market
by deploying a new low-cost business model for FM, potentially through

a technology platform, which would challenge the structure and approach
of the existing organisations, including Mitie, This could ako potentially
significantly erode our market share and decrease new opportunities.

It is important that we continue to pricritise the transformation of our
business, particylarty through improving processes and simplifying business
structure, focusing on minimising costs and developing innovative solutions
for cients, such as the Connected Workspace, In this way, we will be able
to defiver genuine value for current and future clients.

+ Continved focus on simplifying
business processes and structure

* investment in new and innovative
technologies — induding
Connected Workspace

* Focus on client relatiorships
and Net Promoter Score

* Regular reviews of sales
oppartunities arising

* Replacing and upgrading
operational and financial systems

* Standard processes and tools
for sales and CRM tearns

* Deployment of strategic account
managers for key conracts

+ Complete Project Forte
launched to improve IT
systems in Engineering Services
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Principal risks and uncertainties continued

Principal risks and uncertaintics Controls and mitigating actions Future plans

@ Health, safety and environment

Fallure to malntaln appropriately high standards in heaith, safety and
environmental management may result in harm to employees, client staff

or members of the public, and consequential fines and reputational damage.

Impacts on: Change in year:

@) <4 >

As a company we are committed to maintaining the highest levels of health,
safety and environmentaf (HSE) standards. The services we deliver could
potentially present an increased risk of a health and safety incident involving
our employees, dient stafl or even members of the pubkc. Qur actwvities also
carry a risk of darmage to the ervironment. i is esserrial that we manage these
risks in a highly dikgent and effective manner. '

At alk levals in the organisation, safety is our number one priority and we
ensure that all risks are properly assessed and managed, our employees
are trained, our expectations of haw they perform their work are dearty

explined, and adherence to health and safety standards is regularly monitored.

If we do nat manage these risks appropriately. it could lead to harm to
individuals and damage to the enviranment, and consequently prosecution,
fines and significant damage to our reputation.

A comprehensive QHSE
strategy has been developed
Major cuttural HSE programme,

LiveSafe. launched in the year, with

dear rules and training for stafl
Regular training and
communication dekvered
throughout the company, in

accordance with LiveSafe princples

Certified HBS management
systerns to OHSAS 18001

and environmental systern

1o 15014001

Deployment of an improved
incident recording. monitoring
and reporting system

Regular HSE reviews conducted
at divisional and Group level
Clear and standardised KPis
introduced to monitor progress
and improvements

Targeted QHSE procedural audit
programme introduced

* Build on the principles of LiveSafe
and ensure regular comnaunication
and engagement with stafl

* Transition from OHSAS heatth
and safety management system
1o 1504500+

Incident at client site

A high-profile incident or accident occurring at an FM client site,
or a location operated by our Care & Custody business, as a result
of negligent seaff actions, inconsistent vetting or ineffective training
and communications for staf, could have a significant impact on
our reputation and current and future contracus,

Change in year:
New risk

Impacts on:

BOOO

We deliver services to chents at a number of important and high-profile sites
across the country. These include locations with substantial historical and
cuftural significance and high level of scrutiny by governmental bodies, media
organisations and the general public. If a major incident occurred at one

of these sites, whether through the negligent or deliberate act of Mitie
employees, it could attract a large amount of publicity and have a highly
negative impact on our reputation. it woutd also be likely 1o kmit our
chances of winning future contracts and potentially retaining current clients.

In order 10 make sure we manage this rigk, it is important that we have
appropriate polices and processes in place, which clearty set out the
expectations of our employees. We akso need to communicate these
effectively and deliver regular and relevant training to employees. In addition,
it is important that we ensure our employees have been appropriately
vetted to determine wha is eligible to work on particular contracts and sites,
50 that we are able to meet the specific requirements of our dients.

It s akso necessary to have effective business continuity plans in place for
our operations, 5o that we can continue to defiver a high-quality service

to chients in the event of a disruptive incidendt, Should an incident occun 2
comprehensive and tested crisis response plan is essential to ensure that
we would be able to minimise the impact on our employees and chents,

the public and the environment.

.

Custodial operations working
within Standard Operations
Procedures {SOP), bespoke
1o each site for Care &
Custody business
Contingency plans are regularly
tested and compliance to
SOPs reguiarly audited for
Care & Custody sites

Health and safety strategy —
LiveSafe programme launched
this year as part of the strategy
Certified H&S management
systems to OHSAS 18001
and environmental system

1o 15014001

Comprehensive training plans
on safety, security and risks
Regular updates to employees
on nesw safety and operational
requirements

Imternal and external
compliance audits

Eflective vetting programme:
tatored 1o the indrvidual risks
of each chent and site

Tested business continuity and
crisis response plans

* Review and further testing of
business continuity and ciisis
response plans

* Transition from OHSAS health
and safety management systemn
to 5045001
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Our strategic pillars Change in year

Customer: bulld market-leading positions in higher ¥ Decreased
growth segments and increase customer NPS
People: create a ‘Great Place to Work® 4 ¥ Swayed 9
for our employees the same 5

o

Cost: strengthen our bakance sheet and maintain A Increased 2
cost discipline to remain competitive g
Technology: embed technology into the heart Viabilicy &

of our offering statemnent A

Principal risks and uncertainties Controls and mitigating actions Future plans

@ Data management

Ineffective processes and controls vo manage our data and customers’
data may result in a2 major data breach leading to fines, remediation costs
and reputational damage. .

impacts on: Change in year:

®HDO «»

One of the most important assets we have is the data we hold, which includes
information concerning our business operations, employees, clients, suppliers
and others. This information is vital to enable us to run our business efficiently
and profitably. We need 1o maintain adequate controlks to mitigate risks
assodiated with loss or theft of data which would damage our reputation

with dients and potentially expose us to significant fines from regulators.

In arder 1o ensure confidential and sensitive data is processed, transmitted
and stored securely, we have implemented formal technical and procedural
controts. These controls are deployed across our [T systems and are subject
to regular review and testing. Eflective information security procedures help
o prevent or minimise the impact of any breaches of security.

We have an ongoing programme of work to ensure we are compliant with
the requirements of the General Data Protection Regulation (GDFR).

¢ Centralised information security
team in place

* Information Security Management
System {(I5M5) in place and
certified to ISONEC27001:2013
for key information assets

* Regular reviews of information
management to ensure
compfiance with GDPR

* Expansion of dedicated data
privacy team

* Ersure seamiess transition to

* [T sequrity controks in place to IT outsource partrer with data
proartivedy test, monitor, identify standards maintained
and respond to cyber threats * Working towards achieving

* Information security cyber essential plus accreditation
requirements established on
all new projects, inChuding
outsourcing of routine operations

* Cyber essential accreditation

* Cyber insurance policy

Employees

Inability to recruit, retain and reward suitably talented employees, as
well as failure to implement appropriate developmenc plans, simple
consistent processes across the business and a One Mitie approach,
could negatively impact our operational and financial performance.

Impacts on: i:ha.nge in year:

O v

It is impartant for the success of our business that we continue to recruit.
develop, motivate and retain talented individuals, If we are unable to do so
there would be an adverse impact on the profitable and success(ul delivery
of our contracts, and we would be Emited in our abflity to win future
oppartunities and grow the business,

We need to have the right level of experience and expertise available and be
able to develop a culture of high standards of achievement, compliance to the
Mitie values and good governance and control, In order to achieve this, we also
need to provide development opportunities for our employees to enable them
10 reach their full potential,

In addition, it is important that we maintain a stability and consistency in our
senior leadership team to provide high-quality direction for the business and
deliver our stratepy.

An important element of the cutture is ensuring that we have a One Mitie
way of operating and collaborate efflectively across the business. This will
give greater consistency in processes and controks and allow for seamless
mavement of s1aff across the Group.

*» Deployment of new HR resourcing

systern across the Group
¢ Launch of online training and
development hub, People Hub

* Simplified approach and consistent

process 10 both temporary and
permanent recruitment

* Further enhance online HR
and training systerms

* Laurich of new induction
programme, mandatory for
new starters

* Salary benchmarking

* New competency frrmework

* Regular communications from
leadership team — inchuding ELT
courntry-wide roadshow

+ Specific plans developed 10 address
resutts of employes survey

* Competitive remuneration,
terms and conditions

* Training and development
programmes for senior leadership

* Regular empioyee offers

+ Developed talent
identification, management
and development. plans

* Succession plans are in place
for critical roles, especially for
the senior leadership team

* Clear performance
management framework

te be developed
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Principal risks and uncertainties continued

Principal risks and uncertainties

@ Market sentiment

Negative sentiment towards the cutsoureing sector could lead to fewer
opportunities, including reduced IFM volumes, and challenges to our
business model and profit growth.

Impacts on: Change in year:

CISICHONEE

In the past two years. the activities and resutts of a number of companies
operating in our sector have generated significant negative publicity. which
potentially affects Mitie’s reputation and raises concerns with current and
future clients. This has included the fiquidation of Carillion and the
administration of Interserve. The viability of outsourced facilities managemenit
companies to deliver operational performance to sufficiently high standards,
whilst also managing costs appropriately, has been the subject of much scrutiny.

In particular, the opportunities for integrated facilities management contracts
may decrease in both the public and private sector. as organisations look to
spread the risk of these services amongst a greater number of providers.

In order 10 address these concerns, it is important that we are able to
consistently deliver a high-quality and valued service on our existing contracts
and dernonstrate this 10 potential new dients. We need to ensure that we
develop and maintain a business model and offering which can successfully
deliver profitable growth and exploit new opportunities as they arise, whifst
adapting to the needs of the market.

Controls and mitigating actions Future plans

* Further improverent and
transformation opportunities
to be explored

* Indusion and maimenance
on Crown Commercial
Service Framework

* Dedicated management
of strategic accounts

* Regular financal
performance reviews

* Focus on improving Net
Promoter Score

* Strong refationships with
financial institutions

* Process and IT systerns
improvernent programmes

* Long-term contract portfolia
and spread of dient base

@ Contract losses

i we do not ensure that we produce bids for contraces which are
competitive, financially viable and have a balanced approach to risk,
and/or fail to deliver on our contract oblig; we may damage our
tlient relationships, which may lead to cancellation of contraces resulting
In financial losses.

Impacts on: Change in year:

QOB <« »

In order to deliver consistent and profitable growth. it is important that
we continue to bid for and secure contracts ai acceptable margins. It is also
essential that we successfully mobilise and deliver our contracts. In order
10 achieve this, we must monitor and control costs. defiver on the contract
obligations and meet client expectations.

We need to develop competitive bids, which provide a fair balance of risk and
reward that is properly reflected within the contract terms and conditions.
Our offering needs to be compelling and innovative and provide a balance
between cost and margin pressure, which is a key feature of the sector in -
which we operate. It is also important to make sure we have the skills and
resources available to execute on cur contracts successfully.

Chrice we have mobilised the contracts, we need to monitor a relevant set

of Key Performance Indicatars (KPl$) to ensure that we are delivering on

the obligations to which we have agreed and communicating with clients to
understand if they are satisfied with our performance. & is also important to
assess and agree any variations to the contract services and terms and amend
the KPls accordingly.

¥ we are unable to deliver the services as agreed in our contracts, it could
negatively impact our custamer relationships and repitation and lead to

legal disputes and termination of contracts. This could then lead to potentially
failing to retain existing cients and secure new contracts, with a detrimental
eflect on our finangal performance.

* Bid Committee appraoval » Post sales review of kvss-making

for complex bids comtracts to ensure we identify
* Detailed contracting guidelines and apply lessons learned for
developed and rolled out our future bids '

* Clear delegated autharities register

* New Sales and CRM teams in place

* Use of spedalist mobilisation teams
for complex contracts

* Strategic account managemert

+ Risk registers in place for
large-scale contracts

> KPVSLA formal reviews
with customers

* Improved CRM capabilities with
active relationship management

* Focus on Net Promoter Score

* Launch of Sales Acaderry to
train sales teams -

* Appointment of Chief
Government & Strategy Officer
to coordinate all interfaces with
the Cabinet Office
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Viability statement
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The Group's strategic report {pages | to 48) contains information on the Group's strategy {pages 11 to 13),
business model (pages B and 9) and market review (page 10). as well as principal risks and uncertainties
(pages 38 to 46). The key factors affecting the Group's prospects are:
* Mitie is the leading UK FM business with 4% of the market;
+ The outsourcing market is relatively insensitive o economic cycles;
+ The Group has a diverse portfolio of blue-chip and public sector dients, the largest of which
constitutes <I0% of revenue;
+ We have a clear vision for our technology centric growth strategy; and
* We are making good progress in our transformation programme.

Governance

The Directors believe that a three-year period is appropriate for their viability assessment as it is
supparted by the Group's strategic, budgeting and business planning cycles and is relevant to the duration
of existing contracts with customers which is around three years on average. it therefore represents

a timeframe over which the Directors believe they can reasonably forecast the Group's performance.,

In making this statement, the Directors have carried out a robust assessment of the principal risks facing . .
the Group. including those that would threaten its business model, future performance, solvency or

liquidity. This includes the availability and eflectiveness of mitigating actions that could realistically be taken

to avoid or reduce the impact or occurrence of the undertying risks. In considering the likely effectiveness

of such actions, the conclusions of the Board's regular monitoring and review of risk management and

internal control systemns, as described on pages 59 to 61, are considered.

In undertaking its viability assessment, as a base case, the Board has used the agreed budget for FY 19/20,
which includes analysis of the forecast performance of the Group's existing contract base, expectation
for future growth including salas targets and expected win rates. and overhead cost base. Based on this
budget, further projections for viabiiity purposes have been made using prudent assumptions for;

* Modest revenue and margin growth beyond FY19/20;

= Mo major changes in working capial;

= Irvoice discounting continuing to decrease over time;

Future dividends in line with current palicy:

Settlement of existing provisions according to best estimates together with funding costs for ongoing
transformation activities:

No changes to group structure; and

No additional capital beyond current committed debt facilities.

Financial statements

+

The resulting financial model assesses the ability of the Group to remain within the finandal covenants and
liquidity headroom of the existing committed debt facilities, During the forecast period, £40m of the US -
Private Placement notes mature and the model assumes these are not refinanced. The £275m revolving

eredit facility also matures in the forecast period and the Directors consider it reasonable to assume this S
will be refinanced an materizily similar terms. The Group also utilised £73m of invoice discounting.at 3} I
March 2019, which the Group is not dependent upon for liquidity, covenant complance or \g'abil'rty‘! €T e ¥

purposes in the base case scenario.
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Viability statement continued

A range of scenarios that encompass the principal risks were applied to the base case and are set out
in the table below. The analysis also considered a reverse stress-test scenario to illustrate the working
capital outflow required to cause a breach of leverage covenant. in combination with the reduced

revenue sCenario.
Scemario Principal risks
| Loss of major contract - lost revenue and operating profit in all 1,23, 12
future periods
2 Major client insolvency - lost revenue, operating profit and cash flow, i
plus one-off costs aquivalent to three momhs’ revenue
3 Major working capital outflow - £100m 4
4 10% revenue reduction 1.23,5679%11.12
5 Margin erosion . 1,27.810.12
6 Reverse stress test — revenue oss and working capital outflow in N/A
combination 10 covenant breach

In each of scenarios 1-5, the Group would be able to continue operating within debt covenants and
liquidity headroom, and maintain dividends in line with current policy. Scenario 6 required such an
extreme set of factors in unison that it is considered to be a very remote likefihood and therefore
does not represent a realistic threat to the viability of the Group.

The Directors considered mitigating factors that could be employed to counter the negative effects
of the crystaliisation of each of these risks. The main actions included the short-term scaling down
of capital expenditure, asset disposals, reductions in cash distributions or raising equity.

Based an this assessment, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group will be able
to continue in operation and meet its Kabilities as they fall due over the three-year pericd considered.

The strategic report on pages | to 48 of Mitie Group pic. company registration number SC019230
was approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on S June 2019,

It was signed on its behalf

Phil Bentley %‘&c\
Chief Executive Officer

Paul Woolf

Chief Financial Officer }
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Financial statements

In FY 1819 Mitie signed the Clean Van
Commitment which builds on our promise to
ensure 20% of our small van and car fleet is
electric within the next two years. We also
ordered 400 electric vehides to support the
fight against climate change and air poliution.
Mitie, which has a fleet of 3,500 compact vans
and cars, will run more than 700 electric
vehicles by the end of 2020.

Mitie has also been accredited as a Go Ultra
Low company, under a scheme jointly run
by Government and vehicle manufacturers,
which has 160 signatories. Mitie joins

other companies that have cormmitted to
increase the number of electric vehicles

in their fleets.

(® Read more on PG 31-32

;2% .;»-7%

reduction in energy reduction in
consumMption across emissions intensity
Mitie estate since FY 09/10
since FY 09/10
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Board of Directors

An experienced
Board of Directors

Derek Mapp
Non-Executive Chairman

Board Committees
Chairman of the Nomination Commitiee

Dats of appointment to the Board
9 May 2017

Other current appointments

Derek is Chair of Informa plec and private
companies: imagesound Limited and Salmon
Developrments Limited, Derek also has several
ather private business interests,

Past rales

Derek was Chair of Huntsworth pic from

Decemnber 2014 to March 2019. He was also

previously Chiel Executive Officer of Tom

Caobleigh pic and Chair of Leapfrog Day

Nurseries Limited, East Midlands Development

Agency, Sport England and British Amateur

Baoxing Assadiation Limited.

Skills and experience

* Experienced chairman and entrepreneur;

* Extensive career in awnership, managerial,
operational and commercial rokes in
service industries;

* Wealth of commercial and governance
experience within various sectors; and

* Promotes robust debate and an open and
engaged culure

Phil Bentley
Chief Executive Officer

Board Committees
None

Date of appointment to the Board
| November 2016

Other current appeointments
None

Past roles

Phil was Group Chiefl Executive Officer of Cabie
& Wireiess Communications phc from January
2014 untit its safe to Liberty Global plc in May
2016. Prior to this he was a member of the
board of Centrica plc from 2000 to 2013 whilst
also Managing Director of British Gas from 2007
o 2013, Managing Director, Europe from 2004
10 2007 and Group Finance Director from 2000
10 2004. Phil's prior non-executive directorships
include IMI plc from 2012 to 2014 and Kinglisher
plc from 2002 0 2010.

Skills and experience

* Executive and non-exscutive experience with
FTSE 100 companies for over |8 years;

= Significant strategic and commercial experience
at both national and global level;

* Extensive executive and leadership experience
from across industry,

* Extensive financial, audit and risk management
systems experience: and

+ Accountant by profession, with 2 master's
degree from Oxford University and an MBA
from INSEAD, Fontainebleau.
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Paul Woolf
Chief Financial Officer

Board Committees
Narne

Date of appointment to the Board
13 November 2017

Other current appointments
None

Past roles

Paul was Chief Executive Officer of Virgin Active
Heatth Clubs from September 2013 to March
2017 and Chief Financiat Officer from January
2013 to September 2013. Prior 1o that he was
Chief Finandial Officer of Jack Wills, Group Chief
Financial Officer of Birds Eye Iglo Group and
Chiel Finandial Officer of the Automabile
Assodation.

Skills and experience

* A highly-regarded leader with experience
across 3 broad range of industry sectors;

¢+ A proven track record in operational, finandal
and strategic oversight and execution;

* Extensive turnaround experience; and

* Qualified as a chartered accountant, with a
degree from Oxford University in Philosophy,
Politics and Economics.



Nivedita
Krishnamurthy Bhagat
Independent
Non-Exetutive Director

Board Committees
Member of the Audit Committee
Member of the Nomination Committee

Date of appointment to the Board
I June 2007

Other current appointments

Nivedita is Chief Executive, Infrastructure
Services & Cloud Services UK, Europe at
Capgemini SA, a French publicly listed
multinational carperation, She is also a member
of its UK management board.

Past roles

Nivedita was Head of Enterprise Solutions,
EMEA and Head of London Development
Centre at Infosys Technologies Ltd from 1998 to
2010, Prior to this she was a consultant in the
corporate finance division at KPMG India.

Skills and experience

* Significant internat:onal management
experience having worked across the UK,
Europe, US and India;

» Vast experience in advising dients on .
technology sohutions with a view to enabling
tham to increase shareholkder vaive:

* Several years of [T consulting and IT
outsourdng experience managing large
comnplex contracts:

* Strong sales orientation having sold global
technology and digital solutions to global
clients;

* Deep P/L management with focus on top and
bottom fine; and

* Qualified as a chartered accountant, with a
degree in Economics.

Jennifer Duvalier
Independent
Non-Executive Director

Board Committees
Chair of the Remuneration Committee
Member of the Nomination Committee

Date of appointment to the Board
26 July 2017

Other current appointments

Jennifer is Non-Executive Director and Chair of
the Remuneration Committee of Guardian
Media Group ple, and Non-Executive Director
of NCC Group plc. She is also Director of The
Cranemere Group Limited and a member of the
Council of the Royal College of Art, where she is
also Chair of the Remuneration Committee.

Past roles

Jennifer was Executive Vice President, Pecple, for
ARM Heldings ple. a global technology business,
from September 2013 16 March 2017, She was
alo an executive committee member with
responsibility for people and internal
communicaticns activity. Prior to this. Jennifer
was Group People and Culture Director at UBM
ple from 2007 to 2013 and Group HR Director at
Emap plc from 2003 to 2007,

Skills and experience

* Leadership development, talent acquisition and
management and succession planning:

* Mentoring and coaching;

* People strategy, organisation development and
change management;

* Employee engagement and internal
communications;

 Corporate sodial responsibility and
partnerships;

* Executive remuneration and performance
management;

* Executive team and Board effectiveness; and

* MA {Hons) from the University of Oxford in
English and French.

Philippa Couttie
Independent
Non-Executive Director

Board Committees
Member of the Audit Committee
Member of the Nomination Committee

Date of appointment to the Board
IS Navemnber 2017

Other current appointments
Philippa is a member of the House of Lords and

party whip.

Past rales

Philippa led Westminster Gty Coundil from 2012
to 2017, She joined the Cound! in 2006 and has
previously served as Cabinet Member for
Finance, Cabinet Member for Housing and
Deputy Cabinet Member for Children's Services.
Philippa was also a member of the Polling and
Digital Media Select Committee from 2017 to
2018,

Pricr to progressing her career in public service,
Philippa was a director at Citigroup following its
takeover of Schroders, where she headed up its
principal finance business. She was ako previously
Chief Exeautive of Cornerstone
Communications.

Philippa has served as a non-executive director
on several boards since 2006, induding Royal
Parks and the London Local Enterprise
Partnership, She was also previously Chair of the
West End Partnership and Council Member of
Imperial College, where she was also Chair of
the Audit Committee.

Skills and experience

* Extensive experience in both public and
private sector at the most senior level;

* Ennobled and joined the House of Lords
in 2016; and

« A degree from the University of St Andrews
in Psychology.
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Board of Directors continued

An experienced
Board of Directors continued

Mary Reilly
independent
Non-Executive Director

Board Committees

Chair of the Audit Committee

Member of the Remuneration Committee
Member of the Nomination Committee

‘Date of appointment to the Board
| September 2017

Other current appointments

Mary is Non-Executive Director and Chair of
the Audit Committee of Essentra pk, an
international supplier of specialist plastic, fibre,
foam and packaging products. She is also
Non-Exeauive Director and Chair of the Audit
Commintee of Travelzoo. Her current
trusteeships include the Invicius Games
Foundation and PDSA,

Past roles

Mary was Non-Executive Director and Chair of
the Audit Committee of Ferrexpo plc, an iron
ore mining company, from 2085 1o 2019. She was
atso Non-Executive Director and Chair of the
Audit & Risk Committee of the UK Department
of Transport and of Crown Agemts Limited, an
international development company, from 2013
to 2017, Prior to this Mary was Non-Executive
Director of Cape plc, a global industrial services
company, from 2046 10 2017. She has served asa
non-executive director on several other boards
since 2000,

Mary was a partner in Deloftte LLP (and

predecessor firms) for over 25 years. Mary was

an Audit Partner in the UK speciafising in

rmanufacturing, iuxury retail and business

services. She alo headed 2 unit offering

outsourcing capability.

Skills and experience

* Accounting, linance and international
management experience; and

* Chartered accountant. with a degree from
University College London in History.

Roger Yates
Senior Independent
Director

Board Committees

Member of the Audit Committes
Member of the Remuneration Committee
Member of the Nomination Committee

Date of appointment to the Board
| March 2018

Other current appointments

Roger is Non-Exeastive Director of jupiter Fund
Management plc and Senior Independent
Director of St James's Place pk, where he is atso
Chair of the Remuneration Committee.

Past roles

Roger started his career in asset management at
GT Management in 1981 and held positions of
increasing seniority at Morgan Grenfell, LGT and
Invesco. He served as Chief Executive of
Henderson Group pi from 1999 to 2008 and as
Chief Executive of Unicredit's asset management
arm, Pioneer fnvestments,

Roger's non-executive roles have included F&C
Investments, IG Group pic, Electra Private Equity
pic and JPMorgan Elect pie.

Skills and experience

* Substantial board experience;

* Strong business track record; and

* Extensive knowledge of the finance and
investment community.
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Peter Dickinson
General Counsel &
Company Secretary

Board Committees
Neore

Date of appointment
6 March 2017

Other current appointments
None

Past roles

Peter was a partner at global law firm Mayer
Brown International LLP {and its predecessor
firm) from 1995 to 2017. During his time at
Mayer Brown, Peter was also Co-Head of the
Globat Technology Transactions practice from
2015 10 2017, Co-Head of the Global Corporate
practice {with specific responsibility for strategy}
from 2008 to 2015, and Head of Corporate
practice in London from 2005 to 2013,

Skills and experience

* Substardial experignce in corporate advisory,
mergers and acquisitions, joint ventures and
other significant commercial transaciions
including large scale mutti-jurisdictional
OUTSOUrting projects: and

* Qualified sofidtor. with a degree from
Southampton University in Law.



Corporate governance

Chairman’s introduction
to Corporate Governance

The Board is continually seeking to adapt and respond to mest
its responsibilities to shareholders and wider stakehoiders for the
Group's activities and its long-term success.

The Board is kept up to date on al matters of key governance by way of
comprehensive reports prepared by the Company Secretary for each
Board meeting, Between meetings, the Company Secretary and wider
teamn are available if required, and the Board has access to an electronic
board portal which is kept up 10 date with the latest governance-related
information and guidance.

Statement of compliance with the Code

For the year ended 31 March 2019, we are reporting agairst the

April 2016 edition of the UK Corporate Governance Code (the

Code) and | can confirm on behalfl of the Board that the Company

has complied throughout the year with all the principles and the relevant
provisions. The Code can be found on the Financial Reporting Coundil’s
website at www.frc.org.uk.

Details of how we have applied the principles and complied with
the provisions of the Code are explained throughout the Annual
Report and Accounts. in the following sections. we explain how the
Code is implemertted via Mitie's govirnance framework.

The Financial Reporting Council published an updated Code in Juty
2018, which applies to the Company from | April 2019. As a Board,
we have spent time reviewing the Company's governance protesses
in preparation for reporting under the updated Code and we are
_confident we will be able to confirm full compliance for FY 19720,

Stakeholder engagement

The Board acknowledges the importance of forming and retaining
sound relationships with alf stakeholder groups. Effective engagement
enables the Board to ensure stakeholder interests are considered
when making strategic decisions,

Accordingly, the Board has reviewed and discussed the Group's

key stakeholders along with the engagement mechanisms in

place 10 ensure they support effective, two-way communication.

This information has been collated into a stakeholder engagement
‘map'which will be considered regularly by the Board to ensure it
remains fit for purpose. The map will also be used to support the
Board's reparting requirements under Section 172 of the Companies
Act 2006, More derails on stakehokler engagernent can be found

on pages 26 and 27.

GG

As a Board, we are committed
to delivering and maintaining the
highest levels of governance.

Derek Mapp
Chairman

To further enhance our extensive employee engagement activities,
jennifer Duvalier has been appointed as the Group's designated
Non-Executive Director to oversee Board engagement with our
workforce. Jennifer is committed to understanding the views of
our workforce and will ensure those views are incorperated into
the Board's decision making processes.

Board composition

in july 2018, Larry Hirst retired from the Board with Roger Yates
succeeding Larry as Senior Independent Director. Mark Reckitt also
stood down from the Board in July 2018, with Mary Reilly assuming
the role of Chair of the Audit Committee.

As announced in August 2018, Jack Boyer stood down from the Board
with effect from 31 August 2018, Jennifer Duvalier succeeded Jack as
Chair of the Remuneration Commitiee.

Diversity and inclusion

During the year, the Board adopted a Board Inclusion Policy which sets
objectives for the Board in terms of diversity and inclusion. See page 69
for further information.

Board effectiveness

The performarnce of the Board, its Committees and its individual
Directors is an essential component of the Company's success. During
2019, | led an internal Board evahation. which invohved one-to-one
meetings with each of the Directors facilitated by a questionnaire
completed by each Director in advance. As Senior Independent
Director, Roger Yates led the review of my performance as Chairman,

Regulatory update

©On 26 June 2018, the Company was advised by the Financial Conduct
Authority (the FCA) that the investigation into the Company in
connection with the timeliness of a profit warning announced by the
Company on 19 September 2016 and the manner and preparation
and content of the Comnpany’s financial information, position and
results for the period ending 31 March 2016, which was inftiated on
25 Awgust 2017, had been discontinued.

In conclusion

The Board remains dedicated to achieving the highest levels of
corporate governance to underpin the delivery of shareholder
value in the years ahead.

Derek Mapp
Chairi
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Governance at a glance

Overview
of our governance

G Ove rnance Shareholders

The Board is collectively responsible and accountable

fram ewo rk o shareholders for the sustainable long-term

success of the Company.

The Board

The Board provides leadership and direction to managerent within
a framewark of controls enabling risk to be adequately assessed
and managed.

(P Read more on PG 56-61

The Audit The Nomination The Remuneration
Committee Committee Committee
The Audit Committee provides effective The Nomination Commitiee evaluates The Remuneration Committee
governance of the appropriateness of the composition, diversity, experience, determines the framework or
the Group's financial reporting and the knowledge, skills and indepandence of the broad policy for remuneration and sets
performance of both the Internal Audit Board and its Committees. the remuneration for the Chairman,
function and the external auditor. the Chief Executive Officer, the Executive

Directors and senfor management.

(@ Read more on PG 62-67 (® Read more on PG 68-69 (® Readmore on PG 70-81

The Executive Leadership Team

The Executive Leadership Team includes members from each
business unit and central group function ensuring accountability
across the business.

Our range of services

Engineering Security Professional Cleaning & Catering Care &
Services Services Environmental Custody
Services

Board activities

Members of the Board attended April 2018 August
a number of stakeholder .
related events during the year. Monthly Cabinet Annual General
Office attendance Meeting (offsite)
Iterns discussed at Board inthe capadity of
meetings during the year are strategic supplier
included on pages 56 and 57. 1o Government
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Gender diversity Roles Director age range
o
c
i
@ Female 4 @ Chairman | @ 41-50 years
@ Male 4 @ Exeautive Directors 2 @ 51-60years
@ Non-Executive Directors 5 @ 61-70 years 3
8
Table of meetings 3
Nomination Audit Remuneration g
Position MName Board Committes® Committes Committee tE
Chairman Derek Mapp u? 22 - -
Board members Phil Bentley L 12 - -
(Executives) Paul Woolf 77 7] - -
Nivedita Krishnamurthy Bhagat ~ 7/7 22 67 -
Jack Boyer' 212 00 - 313
Phifippa Couttie? e 212 66 -
Board mernbers Jennifer Duvalier 7 22 - 545
(Non-Executives)  { arry Hirst? p7y) on - 33
Mark Reckitt* 2 00 4/4 -
Mary Reilly® . "7 P17 w7 22
Roger Yates! 77 12 i3 pigs

I. Jack Boyer resigned on 31 August 2018,

2. Philippa Couttie joined the Audit Committee on 22 May 2018,

3. Larry Hirst retired on 31 July 2018.

4. Mark Reckitt resigned on 31 july 2018,

5. Mary Reilly joined the Remuneration Committee on 3) August 2018,

6. Roger Yates joined the Audit Committee and Remuneration Cammittee on 3 july 2018,

* Phit Bentley and Paul Wooll staod down from the Nomination Committes on 31 March 2019,

October November December January 2019 February
The Gathered Table | Employee roadshow | Imestor Investor Finance leadership | Supplier conference | Major shareholder
- Launch event {five locations across | roadshow (UK) roadshow (US) team forum {The Shard) dinner {offsite)
the UK attended (The Shard) Ciient dinner
by over 2,000 .
employees) (The Shard)
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The Board

Board report

Chairman  Derek Mapp
Executive  Phj Bentley
Directors . woolf
Non- Nivedita Krishnamurthy Bhagat
Executive |0\ pover until 31 August 2018
Directors  priippa Couttie
Jennifer Duvalier
Larry Hirst until 31 July 2018
Mark Reckitt uritil 31 july 2018
Mary Reilly
Roger Yates

(P Full biographical detaits can be found on PG 50.52,

Purpose of the Board

The Board is responsible and accountable to sharehelders for the
sustainable hong-term success of the Company. The Board leads and
directs management within a framework of controls enabling risk to
be adequately assessed and managed.

The Board reviews and agrees the strategy for the Group on an
annual basis and reviews aspects of strategy at Board meetings during
the year, When setting Group strategy. the Board considers a wide
range of matters including, but not limited to:

Finance;

Shareholder returns;

* Corporate structure;

Market trends;

* Competitive environment;

Private/public sactor approach;

* International aspects of the business and opportunities; and
* People and talert.
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Board Committees
The Board has four formal Committees:

= Audit Committee;

* Nomination Committee:

* Remuneration Committee; and
* Disdosure Committee (ad-hoc).

Details of the purpose and activities of each Committee are set out
on pages 62 to 8l.

The Board also has an informal Bid Committee comprised of the
Chief Executive Officer, Chief Fimancial Officer, General Counsel
& Cornpany Secretary. Chief Government & Strategy Officer and
members of the sales team. The Bid Committee meets weekly tc
consider any material bids being submitted.

Board activities

The Board held seven scheduled meetings during the year. Individual
Director attendance at each meeting and a timeline setting out
stakeholder related events attended by members of the Board can
be found on pages 54 and 55. Other Board activities during the year
include those set out below. In undertaking their duties, the Directors
act in a way they consider, in good faith, will be most likely to promote
the success of the Company for its shareholders as a whole, having
regard also to other stakeholders,

Activities

Strategy

All Directors attended the Board's offsite
strategy day in September. On the day,

the Board discussed the Group's strategic
methodology and recommendations, target
operating mode! and execution risks,

Offsite strategy day

Chief Executive
Officar's update

At every Board meeting the Chief Executive
Officer presented to the Board on topics
such as: :

= Financial highlights:

= Business development;
+ Sector congsiderations;
* Customers;

* Sales;and

+ Divisional updates.

Corporate transactions  The Board debated and appeoved the:
* Acquisition of Vision Security Group Limited:
+ Sale of Mitie's Social Housing business; and
* Sale of Mitie Pest Control Limited.

Finance
Chief Financial At every Board meeting the Chief Finandial
Officer’s update Officer presented a paper 1o the Beard
covering topics such as:
* Financial performance of the Group:
* Finance structuring review; and
~ * Finance modernisation.
Budget The Board reviewed and approved the Group's

annual budget.

Results and dividends The Board reviewed and approved the
half-yearly financial report and Annual Report

and Accounts, and assodiated dividends,




Governance and risk

Share dealing procedures An external review of Mitie’s Market Abuse
Regime compliance policy was undertaken
during the year. The Board subsequertly
adopted updated docurnentation.

Company secretarial

and legal updates

At every Board meeting the General Counsel
& Company Secretary presented a paper
covering tapics such as:

Whistieblowing

Material fitigation;

Modern Slavery Act Statement:

GDPR;

Juty 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code;
Companies Act 2006 Section 72
considerations; and

+ Other governance and regulatory highlights.

People and culture

The Board received and discussed the results
of the annual employee engagement survey.
Upload, and agreed actions to be taken. Actions
included the creation of the "You Said, We Did'
campaign which was launched during the year,

Employee engagement

Culture The Board received regular updates on:
* The roll-out of Mitie's vision and values;
* Mitie Exceptionals, an employee champions

network to embed new compary behaviours;

and

* LiveSafe, the safety culture development
prograrmme aligned to Mitie's vision and
values, launched in December 2018.

Stakeholders and society

Seakeholder The Board discussed the resutts of a formal
engagement ‘map’ review which was undertaken during the

year to identily;

* Key stakeholders;

* Their ‘'owners within the business;

* Reasons for engagement;

+ Engagement mechanisms; and

* |mportant issues for each stakeholder:

Media coverage; and
Internal communications.

Investor relations, At Board meeting a report from the
carporate affairs Head of Investor Relations was presented
and knternal covering topics such as:
communications * Share price performance;

* Shareholder engagement;

* Share register analysis;

* Sector news;

* investor feedback;

Net Promoter Score The results of a Net Promoter Score survey
were presented to the Board in March 2019
along with an action plan to embed more of
the right behaviours going forward. The survey
invohved 250 dients being asked how fikely
they were to recommend Mitie to a friend

or colleague. Mitie's Net Promoter Score

improved 22 points from the prior year:

Director induction process and training

On joining the Board. all Directors receive a personally tailored induction

which includes:

« Meetings with Executive Directors, the General Counsel & Company
Secretary, and other members of senior managernent:

+ An overview of the Group's governance policies, corporate structure
and business functions; :

= Details of risks and operating issues facing the Group;

* Visits to divisional offices ardd key dient sies; and

« A briefing on key contracts.

Mitie is committed to the continual professional development of its
Directors. In 2018, all Directors attended an externally faciktated training
session on director duties, stakeholder engagement and the july 2018 UK
Corporate Governance Code.

All Directors have access to Mibe's Board Handbook which includes:

» Board and Committee terms of reference;

* The Compary's Articles of Association;

* Guidance on directors’ statutory duties;

* An overview of the Group's directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
arrangemernts

+ Delegated authorities register:

+ Share dealing procedures;

+ Corporate governarce and regulatory guidelines; and

* Key corporate documents and policies.

The Board Handbook is subject to regular review and was last updated
in earty 2015.

Briefing notes on changes in the regulatory and governance environment
are circulated 1o Directors on an ad hoc basis.

Oniline training is also available to all Directors on topics such as the
Bribery Act. GOPR. Criminal Finarce Act 2017 and anti-siavery.

Visits to different business sites and offices are arranged for Directors
to facilitate a deeper understanding of the business.

Re-elaction of Directors

In accerdance with the Code and the Company's Articles of Association,
all Directors are subject to election or re-election by shareholders.

Al the 2018 AGM each Director in post at the time (except for Larry
Hirst and Mark Reckitt) stood for election or re-election and was
appointed or re-appointed by shareholders, Larry Hirst and Mark
Reckitt departed the Board following the 2018 AGM. All Directors

will stand for re-election at the 2019 AGM.

Terms of appointment for Non-Executive Directors and service
contracts for Executive Directors are available for inspection at the
Company's registered office and head office, and will be available at
the 2019 AGM.
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The Board continued

Responsiblilities of the Board

Mitie maintains a formal schedule of matters reserved for the

Board which can be viewed at www.mitie.com/investors/
corporate-governance. The schedule was last reviewed and
updated in March 2012 following the introduction of the july 2018
UK Corporate Governance Code. The schedule details key matters
and responsibilities that are to be dealt with exclusively by the Board.

These include 10;

* Approve the Group's long-term cbjectives and commercial strategy:
Establish the Group's purpose and values and be satisfied that these,
its strategy and culture are aligned;
* Review performance in light of the Group's strategy, objectives,
buginess plans and budgets;
¢ Approve the half-yearty financial report and the Annual Report
and Accounts;,
* Review the effectiveness of the Group's risk and control processes:
Approve all material acquisitions, material disposals, materiai
contractual and other operational matters,
Ensure adequate succession planning for the Board and
senior management;
* Undertake a formal and rigorous review annually of its own
performance and that of its Committees and individual Directors; and
Make arrangements for dialogue with shareholders, canvassing
shareholder opinion and engagement with shareholders in relation
10 any shareholder resolution which is opposed by more than 20%
of the votes cast.

Division of responsibilities
Directors have certain responsibilities in line with their rofe, including
those set out below.

The Board tontinues to support separation of the roles of the

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. A more detailed document
setting out their responsibilites is available at www.mitie.com/investors/
corporate-governance.

Chairman
* Chair the Board, Nomination Committee and shareholder
general meetings; ’
Ensure effectiveness of the Board in all aspects of its role, including
the regularity and frequency of meetings;
Set Board agendas. taking into account the issues and concerns of
all Board members;
Ensure appropriate delegation of authority from the Board 10
executive managernent;
Manage the Board to ensure sufficient time is allocated to promote
healthy discussion and open debate, supported by the right level and
quality of information to assist the Board in reaching its decisions.
Facilitate the effective contribution of Non-Executive Directors
and encourage active engagement by all members of the Board;
Ersure constructive relations between the Executive Directors
and Non-Executive Directors:
Hold meetings with the Non-Executive Directors without the
Executive Directors present;
Ensure that new Directors participate in a full. formal and taikored
induction programme;
Ensure that the performance of the Board, its Committees and
individual Diractors is evaluated at least once a year and act on
the results of such evaluation;
Maintain sufficient contact with major shareholders to
understand their issues and concerns: and
+ Ensure that the views of shareholders are communicated to

the Board.
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Senior Independent Director .

« Art as a sounding board for the Chairman;

» Serve as an intermediary to other Directors when necessary;

+ Conduct the Chairman's anrual performance evaluation and
lead the appoirtment process for any new Chairman;

* Acl as chairman of the Board in the absence of the Chairman; and

* Be available as an alternative point of contact for shareholders if they
have concerns which have not been resoived through the normal
channels, or for which such cortact is inappropriate in the
circumstances.

Non-Executive Directors

* Exercise independant skill and judgement;

= Constructively challenge proposals based on relevant

individual experience, knowledge and skills;

Contribute to the formulation and development of strategy:

Monitor corporate reporting to ensure integrity of

financial information;

Oversee the Group's principal risks and assurance in place relating

to those risks, induding internal audit programmes:

* Play a key role in determining the remuneration potcy for the
Chairman, Executive Directors, General Counsel & Company
Secretary and members of senior management: and

* Held a primary role in Board succession planning.

Chief Executive Officer

* Allaspects of the operation and management of the Group within
the authorities delegated by the Board;

* Develop Group objectives and strategy. having regard to the

Group's responsibilities to its shareholders, customers, employees

and other stakeholders;

Sueeessiul achievement of objectives and execution of strategy

following presentation to, and approval by, the Board:

* Recommend to the Board an annual budget and long-term business

plan and ensure their achievernent following Board approval;

Optimise the use and adequacy of the Group's resources;

* Recommend to the Board acquisitions and disposals. and ensure

their execution following Board approval;

Manage the Group's risk profile. induding the health and safety

performance of the business; and

* Make recommendations to the Remuneration Commitiee on
remuneration policy, executive remuneration and terms of
employment of the senior executive team.

Chief Financial Officer

* Lead. direct and oversee all aspects of the finance and accounting
functions of the Group;

* Evaluate, approve and advise on the financial and commercial impact

of material contracts and transactions (including mergers and

acquisitions), technology investments, long-range planning assumptions,

investment return metrics, risks and opportunities and the impact of

changes in accounting standards;

Oversee and direct the Group's Risk. Insurarce, Pensions and Internal

Audit functions; :

Manage relationships with the external auditor and key financial

institutions and advisors:

Ensure effective internal controls are in place and compliance with

appropriate accounting regulations for financial, regulatory and tax

reporing and

Provide an underpin to all aspects of the Group's governance

framawork, the application of its delegated authorities and its

investment activities.

.



Board effectiveness

In accordance with the Code, the Board carries out annual performance
evaluations. These are externally led every three years and internally

led in other years. In FY 18/19, the Board evaluation was internally led by

the Chairman for the Non-Exacutive Directors and Executive Directors,

and facilitzted by the Senior Independent Director for the Chairman.
The Board's evaluation of its own performance provides an opportunity
1o enhance its effectiveness and identify any areas for improvement.
The Board evaluation process followed in FY 18/19 is set out below.

Identify areas of focus

Circulate questionnaire

One-to-one meetings

Anonymise meeting notes

Produce findings and actions

Board discussion

The Chairman discussed the outcomes of the evaluation with the
Board at its meeting in June 2019, Details will be set out in the next
annual report.

Board accountabifity and assurance

Risk management approach

During the year, the Board has continued to oversee the improvements
being implemented by the management team to reflect the more
structured epproach to governance, risk management and internal
control first 2dopted following the FY 16/17 comprehensive review of
the Group’s balance sheet. These have incfuded simplification of the
organisational structure, darity of reporting lines for the central .
functions, notably HR, Legal and Finance, cessation of the *Mitie Model'
arrangements, outsourcing of the back-office finance transactional
processes to Genpact, the outsourcing of application maintenance T
processes 1o Wipro and continued standardisation and simplification
of processes and procedures in the Group. In FY 17718, a Group-wide
delegated authority register (DAR) was deployed which darifies the
accountabilities and authority to take decisions on specific matters
within defined financial fimits, at levels from the Board to divisional
leadership. This helps to disserninate the Board's risk appetite, At the
same time, authority registers were also implemented in each division,
which lollow the same principles as the DAR. This structure shauld
ensure a consistent approach to acceptance and management of risk
across the business. ’

The whistleblowing line. provided by an external party, was launched
in FY 17/18, with 2!l reports being reviewed and investigated. This also
enhances the identification of risks. Improvements in T systems

have continued to bring the business onto consistent platforms, with -
improving management information and visibility of common risks and
effectiveness of controls. The Internal Audit function has targeted its
work at areas of the business where risk management and internal
controls ara suspected of requiring improvement, which has helped
to impraove the risk and contret frameworks.

in addition, a new Bid Committee has been established, the key
members of which comprise the Chief Executive Officer, Chief
Finangial Officer, General Counsel & Cornpany Secretary and

Chief Government & Strategy Officer. The role of the Committee

is to consider all bids the aggregate value of which exceeds £3m pa.,

1o determine whether such bids meet the Group's financial, commercial
and legal objactives.

The Group's approach to risk is set out in more detail below. The
approach to risk management is regularly reviewed by the Board and
Executive Leadership Team and continues 10 evolve in line with the
business structure and risk profile. The Board understands that effective
risk management and a sound system of internal control are essential

to the achievement of the Group's strategy and supporting objectives.
The Audit Committee has continued to focus on its review of the risk
management framework to increase its understanding of the nature

of the risks faced by the Group and how they are addressed.

Risk culture

H is recognised that the risk management culture within the business
is equally as important as an effective risk management framework.

In support of this, the ‘One Mitie' Vision and Values have an important
role to play. As well as helping to achieve common ways of working
and darity of approach for customers and employees, they also

help set out, together with the cede of conduct {One Code), the
framework upon which Mitie's risk cufture is built. Emphasis is placed
on the imporiance of embedding risk management into all key
decisions, such that opportunities to grow the Group are effectively
balanced with effective risk management decision making. This means
that opportunities may continue to be exploited, provided risks have
been properly identified and the right controls established or, in some
cases, potential opportunities are declined if they sit outside the
Group's risk appetite.
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The Board continued

Cne Code sets out the expected behaviours for all employees and
supply chain partners and establishes zero tolerance in specific areas as
part of an established ethical business framewoark. The Group continues
to review and reaffirm its code of conduct with employees and supply
chain partners 10 ensure awareness of the vision, values and expected
behaviours is maintained.

Risk management processes

The Group's risk management framework provides a flexible and
adaptable approach to the identification of risk across all areas of

the business, to meet the demands of the dynamic and fast evolving
emvironment in which the Group continues to operate, Uttimate
responsibility for risk managermnent lies with the Board, delegated to
the Chief Exacutive Officer, who further delegates it to the Executive
Leadership Tearn, with accountability and responsibility assigned to
specific risk owners, The Group risk profile is reviewed by the Chief
Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and General Counse! &
Company Secretary in advance of formal review and approval by the
Board. This information is captured in risk registers at business and
functional fevel, as well as for farge contracts, which are subsegquenitiy
tonsalidated into strategic. operational, financial and regutatory risk
categories within the overall Group risk register maintained by the
Group Risk function.

Risk identification and assessment

When considering the risks that pose a threat to the achievernent

of the Group’s strategy. the Board takes both internal and external
perspectives into account to ensure a thorough identification process
occurs. The internal view takes into accournt factors such as the changing
and developing business profile, operational processes. technology and
people, while the external view includes the economic environment,
political factors and sector and geographical risks. A top-down and
bottom-up approach ensures the systematic rdentification of significant
risks to the business, Once identified, risks are assessed using standard
impact and likelihood ratings 10 quantify the risk to the achievernent of
business objectives. The Group employs risk management software 10
help deliver its enterprise risk management agenda as well as enharxing
risk reporting and oversight. Risk registers are formally reviewed twice a
year and approved by business unit Managing Directors.

Risk assessments are based on a5 x % scale ranging from minimal to
catastrophic, with any risks falling into the Group's upper imits having
mandatory mitigation plans with the expectation that these risks are
managed down to acceptable levels.

Risk mitigation

Each idenitified risk has a defined control owner wha is responsible for
developing and implemanting a risk mitigation plan. As part of the risk
review process, each contro! is required to be reviewed and formally
assessed for its effectiveness in mitigating risk. In order1o strengthen
the oversight of risk management and internal control, audit and risk
governance meetings occur at a business unit level.

The terms of reference for the operation of these meetings are

akigned with the Audit Committee’s objectives. The agenda requires
business units to review their top-level risks and the progress of
assaciated mitigation plans as well as assess any changes o the external
environment and their cansequent impact on business units’ risk profile.
In addition, reports from the Irmernal Audtt function and other interral
or external assurance providers are discussed, with the cbiectives ta
share best practice and identify common or emerging risk themes.

Assessment of the effectiveness of the control environment is
undertaken at both business and Group level, with the Audit Committee
formally reviewing performance throughout the year and advising on the
eflectiveness of the risk managerment system in place.
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Risk monitoring and review

Principal risks io the business and associated mitigation plans
are presented to the Audit Committee and are monitored on
an ongoing basis.

The risk management framework is designed to manage, rather than
eliminate, the risk of failing to achieve the objectives and strategies

of the Group and can therefore only provide reasonable, and not
absolute, assurance against material risk and koss. The Board. through
the Audit Committee, considers the nature and extent of significant
risks in setting the Group's strategy. Details of the principal risks of
the Group are set out on pages 38 to 46. kt should be noted that other
risks are identified as part of the risk management process, but these
do not have a material impact on the Group's overall abifity to achieve
business cbjectives. These risks are managed via the existing risk
management process.

The Audit Committee confirms that this risk management process has
been in place throughout the reporting year and remains in place up to
the date of approval of the Annual Report and Accounts. However, as
described, the process is continuing to evolve and will be subject to
review and improvement.

Whistieblowing

Since September 2017, Mitie has operated an independent
whistleblowing service to enable employees, suppliers and third parties
to repart any concems or wrongdoing anonymously without any fear of
retaliation. The service, which is managed by an independent service
provider, can be accessed via a freephone number. a free online app or
through the service provider's website.

Details of the service are made available to employees via Mitie's Code
of Conduct and are displayed on Mitie’s intranet and workplace posters.
Details of the service are akso communicated to suppliers via Mitie's
sourcing portal and to other third parties via www.mitie.com.

The service and related internal procedures are structured to ensure
that all reports are reviewed and investigated independently from the
area of the business to which they relate, thereby minimising the risk of
conflicts arising.

All reports are copied to the Group Legal function, which is intended 1o
ensure transparency and enable any trends across different divisions and
functions to be identified and addressed. An update on whistieblowing
activity is provided to the Executive Leadership Team as appropriate
and to the Board at each Board meeting.

Internal controls

The Board is responsible for maintaining an effective internal control
framework. Mitie's system of internal controt consists of financial,
operationa! and compliance controks.

The system covers both entity level and monitoring and oversight
controls, comprising business leadership review and direction, and
detailed process controls and control activities, which are embedded
in business processes. During FY 18/1%. a comprehensive exercise was
cormmenced 1o review, improve and document internal controls across
the Group.

Mitie's policies and procedures are documanted in the Business
Management System (BMS) and are available to management and
employees through an intranet portal. Divisional and functional
leadership teams ensure that controls are operating within the processes
and procedures, and that risks are being appropriately managed.



The Audit Committee conducts a review of the eflectiveness of the
system of internal control annually. This review is supported by a report
from the Head of Imernal Audit and indudes a controt assessment
exercise undertaken by Internal Audit in conjunction with the business
leadership teams. The review focuses on the key imemal controls which
manage the risks faced by the business. The Committee also considers
the results of the work completed by Internal Audit. which are reported
to it in regular updates. There has continued to be a significant number
of internal control weaknesses reported to the Audit Committee in
reports produced by the Internal Audit team. This is because the internal
audit work plan is targeted at areas known, or suspected to have, weak
or ineffective internal controls. Remedial action plans developed by
management to address any contro! weaknesses found are monitored
by the Audit Committee to ensure timely closure of the actions.

Further detail on this can be found in the Audit Committee Report

on page 66.

Internal Audit

The Internal Audit function's authority and responsibilities are defined

in its charter, which is reviewed regularly by the Audit Committee.

The Internal Audit function operates independently and reports directly
to the Audit Committee (administratively to the Chief Finandial Officer).
This reporting line offers independence from audited activities ang allows
the Internal Audit function to achieve objectivity.

The work of the Internal Audit function helps to provide assurance

over the effectiveness of the Group's governance, risk and control
frameworks. The Chair of the Audit Committee oversees the
appointment and removal of the Head of internal Audit and assesses

the function’s performance against internal audit objectives. The annual
internal audit plan is approved by the Audit Committee. All amendrnents
1o the approved annual internal audit plan are communicated to the
Audit Committee through periodic update reports. The results of

each internal audit are documented in an audit report for internal
distribution and action.

The Chair of the Audit Committee and the Company's external auditor,
BDO LLP. have access to all internal audit reports issued during the year.
The Audit Commitiee also receives a quarterly report on internal audits
completed in the period, and reports from BDO LLP arising from its
audit work. These provide an independent perspective on the Group's
internal financial control systems.
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Audit Commiittee report

Report from the

Audit Committee Chair

Audit Committee members

Mark Reckitt was the Chairman of the Audit Committee from

July 2015 until july 2018, Mary Reilty succeeded Mark as Chair of

the Audit Committee on 31 [uly 2018, having been a member of the
Committee since | September 2017, Mary has a wealth of experience
as a non-executive director and chairing audit ang risk committees.

She has extensive relevant and recent accounting, finance and
management experience. Mary's full biography can be found on page 52.

At the date of this report the Audit Committee comprises independent
Non-Executive Directors who are ali considered appropriately
experienced to fulfil their duties,

Chair Mary Reilly from 31 July 2018
Mark Reckitt until 31 July 2018

Committee Nivedita Krishnamurthy Bhagat

members  Philippa Couttie from 22 May 2018
Roger Yates from 31 july 2018

Frequency of Audit Committee meetings

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Audit Committee met seven
times, For the Directors’ attendance. see table on page 55. Invitations to
attend meetings are narmally extended to the Group's external auditor.
the Chairman, the Senior Independent Director, the Chief Executive
Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, the Director of Group Finance, the
Group Financial Controller, and the Head of Internal Audit.

The Audit Committee also meets with the external auditor and the
Head of Internal Audit without the Executive Directors presert.
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The current financial year has
seen further improvement in the
internal control and financial
reporting environment.

Mary Reilly
Chair of the Audit Committee

As Chair of the Audit Committee | am pleased fo presert my first
report to shareholders. | was appointed Chair of the Audit Commitiee
in july 2018, having been a member of the Commititee since September
2017, | would like to thank my predecessor, Mark Reckitt, for his
feadership of the Committee and work with the Group during what
had been a difficult period with a number of complex and challenging
matters being presented for the Committee’s consideration.

It is gratifying to report that continued further improvements have been
made by the Group to strengthen the internal control ervironment,
improve the accuracy of tinancial reporting, and ensure consisiency of
application of accounting policy across the Group, including:

* An appropriate risk management and internal control culture is

being successfully embedded in each division through divisional audit
compmittees which are attended by the division's Managing Director
and Finance Director, the Head of Internal Audit. the Group Financial
Controller, and other representatives or specialists as required. Going
forward sach division will present its key risks and mitigations along
with the status of any follow-up actions 16 the Audit Committee for
review at Jeast onge each financial year and more frequently should
circumnstances require;

The strengthening of the Group finance function is now largely
complete; this has become 2 function which is capable of setting and
manitoring financial and accounting policy as well as supporting the
commerdal and financial objectives of each division and the Group

as a whole; and

The size of the Internal Audit team has been increased through
external recruitment bringing new external perspectives alongside
additional capacity. A comprehensive risk focused programme of
work has been successfully defivered in FY 18/19. and a similar
detailed plan for FY 19720 has been developed by the Head of Internai
Audit in consultation with management and the Audit Committee,
The cutsourcing of the finance back office to Genpact was completed
during 2018; a second phase of work is mow underway to rationalise,
simplify and standardise processes across the Group to promote
effliciency and improved financial control. A key enabler of this phase
wifl be to move the Engineering Services division from a legacy finance
systern onto the Group's SAP platform as well as more general
improvements 1o accounting and control processes.



Having joined the Board in September 2017, 1 saw the scope and innpact
of many of the issues identified during FY |16/17. ltis encouraging to see

the substantial progress that has been made since then and in particular
1o note that in the main the matters presented for consideration by the
Audit Committee, while often still complex and judgemental, are more
in the nature of those which would typically arise in a group of this scale
and with this mix of businesses and contracts.

Strategic report

In addition to fulfilling its normal programme of activities this year the
areas of focus for the Audit Committee have beer:

+ Ensuring the continued development of the Internal Audit function
by supporting recruitment and challenging the audit plan to ensure
maximumn impact through afignment of audits with the risks faced by
each division and the Group more generally;

Assessing the judgements made by management in respect of

the acquisition and disposals made by the Group. In particular the

Audit Committee has assessed management’s approach 10 and

assumptions made in respect of the valuation of intangible assets

associated with Vision Security Group as well as the associated gain
on purchase, the gains and losses on disposals included in the income
statement in respect of the disposal of Mitie Pest Control Limited
and the Social Housing business, and the provisions made for legacy
liabilities retained by the Group as part of the disposal of the Social

Housing business;

* Evaluating the appreach taken by management to support the
going concern and viability statements set out on pages 86, 87
and 47 respectively;

+ Considering whether the Annual Report and Accourts provide
sufficient information to understand the financial position and
prospects of the Group; and

* Following the successful earty adoption of IFRS IS ‘Revenue from
contracts with customers’, considering the process followed by
management 10 assess the impact of IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’
and 1o embed the accounting requiremenits of this standard and
IFRS 15 into the Group's monthly accounting processes,
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@ Further detai regarding the Audit Committee and its wark can be
found on PG 64-67.

Financial statements

In conclusion, the Audit Committee can provide positive assurance 1o
the Board. that the Annual Report and Accounts, when taken as a whole,
is fair, balanced and understandable. and provides shareholders with
sufficient and appropriate information 1o enable an assessment of the
Group's position and performance, business model and strategy.

As Chair of the Audit Committee, | will be available at the 2019 AGM
to answer any questions about the work of the Audit Committee.

Mary Reilly
Chair of the Audit Committee

oy 2185
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Audit Committee report continued

Key purpose of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee provides effective governance of the
appropriateness of the Group's financial reporting and the
performance of both the Internal Audit function and the external
auditor. The Audit Committee also supports the Board in meeting its
responsibilities in respect of overseeing the Group's internal control
systems, business risk management. and related compliance activities.

@ The Audit Committee’s Terms of Reference are available at
www.mitie.comfinvestors/corporate-governance.

The role of the Audit Committee in relation

to financial reporting

The primary role of the Audit Cammittee in refation to financial
reporting is to review with both management and the external auditor
the appropriateness of the half-yearly financial repert and Annval Report
and Accounts, concentrating on, amongst cther matters:

* The consistency of. and any changes to, significant accounting polices
and practices beth on a year-on-year basis and across the Group;

* The darity and completeness of disclosures and the context in which

statements are made:

The methods used to account for significant or umusual transactions

where different 2approaches are possible: and

= Whether the Annua! Report and Accounts, taken as a whole, is fair,
balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary
for shareholders to assess the Group's position and performance,
business model and strategy.

To aid the review, the Audit Committee considers reports from the
Chief Financial Officer and also reports from the external auditor on
the outcomes of the half-year review and year-end audit,

-

Significant issues considered by the

Aydit Committee during the year

The Audit Committee gives attention to matters it considers 1o be
important by virtue of their size, complexity, level of judgernent reguired.
or potential impact on the financial statements and wider business
model, and matters pertaining to governance, |dentification of the issues
deemed to be significant takes place following open, frank and challenging
discussion between the Audit Committee members, with input from the
Chief Financial Officer, the external auditor, the Head of Internal Audit,
the Group Financial Controller, and other relevant Mitie ermployees.

The Audit Committee considered the significant matters set out
below during the course of the financial year. In all cases, papers were
presented to the Audit Commitiee by managerent. setting out the
relevant facts, material accounting estimates, and the judgerments
associated with each item. The external auditor provided a paper
setting out its views on each area of judgement.

The Audit Committee discussed the papers with management and
sought the views of the external auditor on each matter. For each
area of judgemenit. the Audit Committee concurred with the
treatment adopted and any relevant disdosure presented in the
Annual Report and Accounts.
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Revenue recognition

The Group adopted IFRS 15 ‘Revenus from contracts with customers’
from | April 2017, While this standard has in general reduced the level
of judgernent required in respect of revenue and profit recognition,

the Audit Committee has considered papers prepared by management
setting out the ongoing activity to embed this standard into monthly
reporting and contract performance measurement processes as well as
the approach taken to judgemental areas such as contract modifications,
mobilisation costs, pre-contract costs, and the recognition of revenue as
performance obligations are achieved.

Provisioning for legacy contractual liabilities

Under the terms of the disposal of the Social Housing business the
Group retained Kability for certain contractual issues for completed
contracts. Management has made judgements to arrive at the provisions
recorded in the financial statements. The Audit Committee has
considered papers prepared by management setting out the basis

for these judgemenrts.

Fair value of assets and lisbilities acquired

During November 2018 the Group concluded the acquisition of Vision
Security Group Limfted and its subsidiary companies, As required by
IFRS 3 'Business Combinations’, the Group has carried out work 1o
assess the fair vaiue of the consideration paid, and the assets and liabilities
acquired. Such an assessment includes the evaluation of intangible assets
which were not previously recognised by the acquired entities,

The Audit Committee has considered papers prepared by management
detailing the process, assumptions, and methodology applied to assess
the fair value of those intangible assets, the value of the consideration
and the resulting income statement credit of £8.8m representing a gain
on bargain purchase.

The Audit Committee concurs with the assessment made by
managernent in respect of these matters,

Assessment of the outcome of completion settlements
During the vear the Group has completed the disposal of Mitie Pest
Control Limited and the Social Housing business and the acquisition

of Vision Security Group Limited. All these transactions indude a
completian accounts process for the final determination of the
consideration due,

These processes are ongoing and so the Audit Committee has
considered papers prepared by management detailing the current status
of each negotiation and managernent’s assessment of the likely outcome.



Adoption of IFRS 9 and the potential impact of IFRS 16
The Group adopted IFRS 9 ‘Financial instruments’ from | Aprit 2018
and will be required 1o adopt IFRS 16 'Leases’ for the year ending

31 March 2020.

The Audit Committee has considered papers preparad by management
m respect of the impact of the adoption of IFRS 9, the potential impact
of IFRS 16, and the disclosures made in Note | to the consolidated
financial statements,

The Audit Committee is satisfied that the disclosures made within the
financial statements in respect of:

* IFRS ¥ are sufficient to gain a proper understanding of the impact
on the Group of the changes in the measurement and disclosure
of financial instryments brought about by the adoption of this
standard; and

* |FRS 16 are sufficient 1o gain a proper understanding of the substantial
change in the presentation of the Group's income staternent and
balance sheet which will arise when this standard is adopted for the
year ending 3| March 2020,

Valuation of goodwill

The Group has made a number of acquisitions in previous periods
and carries goodwill as an intangible asset on its balance sheet in
respect of the businesses acquired {see Note 12) to the consolidated
financial staternerts.

The Group considers the carrying value of all goodwill on at least

an annual basis, or when an indicator of impairment has occurred.

The vatluation and impairment review of goodwill s assessed for each
individual cash-generating unit (CGU) and considers the balance sheet
vaiue of the goodwili compared to the net present vaiue of the post-tax
cash flows that are expected to be generated by that CGU. The
approach involves an estimation of the future cash flows expected to be
derived from each CGL! and the selection of appropriate discount rates,
which are then applied to the cash flows to calculate a net present value.

The assurnptions underpinning the review of the carrying value of
goodwill were considered by the Audit Committee. The cash flow
forecasts used in the review were derived from the most recent CGU
budgets which have been reviewed and approved by the Board and the
long-term business plans of the Group.

The Audit Committee has considered papers prepared by management
detailing the assumptions and methodology apphied to assess the carrying
value of goodwill. The Audit Committee concurs with the assessment
made by management in respect of this matter.

Other material accounting judgements

Managerment has continued to operate the structured process, first
intreduced in September 2017, for the identification of material
accounting judgements made in arriving at the results. The judgements
with a significant actual or potential impact upon Group results are
presertted to the Audit Committee for consideration.

The Audit Committee has consilered papers prepared by management
in respect of the following matters:

+ The recoverability of trade receivables and accrued income;

» Disclosure of contingent kabilities related to the Group's participation
in mutti-employer pension schemes;

» Disclosures in respect of other contingent habifities;

= Provisioning for commercial settlements, disputes and other
contractual habilities;

* Provisions related to the indemnity provided as part of the disposal

of the Healthcare business during FY 16/17, and

The need for provisions in respect of potentially onerous contracts.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the information provided by
management as well as the views expressed by the external auditor
The Audit Committee concurs with the judgements made by
management in respect of the accounting for and disclosure of
these matters.

Use of Alternative Perforrnance Measures (APM3s)
The Company's performance measures continue to include some
measures which are not defined or specified under IFRS.

. The Audit Committee has considered presentation of these additional

measures in the context of the guidance issued by the FRC in relation
1o the use of APMs, challenge from the external auditor, and the
reguirement that such measures provide meaningful insight for
shareholders into the results and financial position of the Group.

The Audit Committee concurs with the judgements made by
management in respect of the presentation of the APMs, Furthermore,
the Audit Committee concludes that clear and meaningful descriptions
have been provided for the APMs used, that the relationship between
these measures and the IFRS measures is clearty explained, that the
IFRS measures are afforded equal prominence to the APMs, and that
the APMs support understanding of the financial staterments.

A recondiliation of the APMs to the [FRS measures i provided in the
Appendix — Alternative Performance Measures on pages 163 to 165.

Review of the Group's going concern and

viability statements

The Audit Committee has considered the evidence that supports the

Directors’ conclusion that the Group has adequate financiat resources

to continue in operation for the foreseeable future and can therefore

prepare its financiat statements on a going concern basis.

The Audit Committee considered papers detailing managernent's

assessment of the prospects and performance of the Group induding:

* The future business plans of the Group;

* The potential impact of acquisition or disposal activity and possible
changes to the composition of the Group;

» The projected future cash flows of the Group;

The availability of core and ancillary financing facilities and compliance

with the related covenants:

The projected drawn positions and headroom avaitable on the core

committed financing facilities; and

+ Those matters reviewed in connection with the Viability Statement.

The Audit Committee also reviewed and considered the disclosures

related to going concern and viability in the Annual Report and Accounts
and considered them to be appropriate.

Details of the conclusions arrived at by the Directors in relation to
preparing the financial statements on a going concem basis can be found
in the Directors’ report; other disclosures on pages 86 to 87, as can the
details of the conclusions arrived at by the Directors in assessing the
viability of the Group.

The more detailed assessment of the Group's long-term viability is set
out in the Viability Statement on page 47.
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Audit Committee report continued

Internal audit development and review of findings

During FY 17/18. the Audit Commitiee requested that Internal Audit
expand its scope of work to indude greater coverage of the commercial
risks and issues faced by the Group and the associated mitigating
processes and controls. Additionally, a focus on the effectiveness and
consistency of controts contained within Group -wide processes was
agreed. Following this request the size of the Internal Audit team was
increased. The Group continued to make use of Grant Thorrton to
support the delivery of the fmernal Audit plan, utilising specialist
resource to assist in certan areas, notably IT audits.

The Internal Audit programme during FY 18/19 has included;

+ A review of the programme by the IS and Legal functions to ensurs
that the Company is compliant with the new data privacy (GDPR)
regulations, and how this has been embedded into the ongoing
activities and business units; ’

= A comprehensive audit of the processes ang procedures 1o bring

new employees into the Company, induding the relevant security

and vetting assessments and induction processes; ’

An audit of the effectiveness of the controls and risk management

processes in the mobilisation of the new Detention & Escorting

Services Home Office contract within the Care & Custody

divisien; and

A review of the projects business within the Engineering Services

division, which has undergone significant change during the year,

having absorbed the roofing and painting businesses from the former

Property Managerent division,

The Head of Internal Audit reviews the content and focus of the Internal
Audit plan throughout the year to ensure it reflects the risk profile of
the business, resulting in a number of amendments to the plan originally
presented to the Audit Cornmittee in March 2018. This has, in part. been
due 1o the sale of the Social Housing and Pest Control businesses and
acquisition of VSG, as well as the significant amount of process and
organisational transformation affecting both the risk and control
processes. All of the changes o the Irternal Audit plan were
communicated 1o and approved by the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committes reviewed the updates provided by the Head
of Internal Audit at meetings throughout the year, which included
developments in the internal control environment, highlighting
improvements and areas requiring greater focus. During the year,
there continued to be a number of audits rated as unsatisfactory or
requiring improvement, which is reflective of the targeting of internal
audit activity to processes and areas where internal controks are
suspected to require improvermnent.

The Audit Committee also monitored the status of the actions
undertaken by management to address the findings from internal audit
reports. Whilst the number of actions completed after the original
planned closure dates has not increased, there is still more work to

be done to ensure that sufficient time and rescurce is assigned to
completing actions. The Audit Committee continues to monitor the
closure of actions closely and challenge management to ensure they
are addressed on a timely basis.
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Tax strate

The Chief Financial Officer presented a paper to the Audit Committee
detailing the Group's tax strategy and associated governance, planning
and attitude to risk. The Audit Committee considered this paper and
was satisfied with the approach being taken by the Group.

External audit

Each year the Audit Committee reviews the performance of the
external auditor in respect of audit related services and non-audit
services and is committed to ensuring the independence, effectiveness
and objectivity of the external auditor.

External auditor effectiveness
The Audit Cammittee monitored the conduct and effectiveness of
the external auditor through its assessment of!

* The experience, expertise and perceptiveness of the auditor;

» The planning and execution of the agreed audit plan and quality
of audit reports; and

* The conduct of the auditor induding the Audit Committee’s
experierke of interaction with the auditor.

In addition 10 receiving written reports from the auditor and

from management, the Audit Committee also conducted private
meetings with the external auditor and separately with management.
These meetings provide the opportunity for open discussion and
feedback on the audit process, the responsiveness of management,
and the effectiveness of both internal and external audit teams.

Non-audit services provided by the external auditor
The Audit Committee has approved a non-audit services policy that
ensures the external auditor remains independent and objective
throughout the provision of its independent audrt services and
when formulating its audit opinion. [n order to retain the flexibility
of utilising the external auditor to provide non-audit services, the
following criteria must akso be met.

These are such that the external auditor does not:
= Audit its own work:
+ Make management decisions for the Group;

+ Create a conflict of interest; or
* Find itself in the role of advocate for the Group.

The non-audit services policy identifies the various types of

ron-audit services which might be required and determines the
analysis to be undertaken along with the leve! of authority requiced
before the external auditor can be considered for such work. Further,
the policy is consistent with the Financial Reporting Council's ethical
standards policy.

When considering the appointment of the external auditor for
non-audit services. the following fartors are taken into account:

« The quality of work provided by the external auditor:

Representations provided by the external auditor regarding

independence and objectivity, along with internal controls

implemented when providing non-audit services;

The level of the external auditor’s understanding of the Group;

* The nature of the work being performed: and

* The commercial and practical circumstances of particular types of
work required.



A summary of the fees paid to the external auditor is given in Note 6o
the financial statemnents. The only other service provided 1o the Group
for the year ended 31 March 2019 was the review of the interim financial
staternents. The Audit Committee considered reports from both
managernertt and the external auditor, none of which raised concerns
about auditor independence. The Audit Committee confirms that the
requirements of the non-audit services policy have been met throughout
the year.

Appointment and reappointment of the external auditor
The Group undertock a competitive external audit tendering process in
2017 and BDO LLP was selected as the Group's auditor with effect from
19 September 2017, replacing Deloitte LLP,

Scott McMNaughton is the lead partner on the audit for the year ended
3} March 2019 and was the lead partner in the previous year.

" The Audit Committee considers annually the need to tender the audit
for audit quality or independence reasons. There are no contractual
obkigations in place that restrict the Group's choice of statutory auditor.

The Audit Committee confirms that the Group is in comphance with
the Statutory Audit Services for Large Companies Market lnvestigation
{Mandatory Use of Competitive Tender Processes and Audit Committee
Responsibilitiesy Order 2014

Assurance

In accordance with Internat Control: Guidance for Directors and section
C.2.3 of the Code, the Board performs a formal annual assessment

of the operation and effectiveness of the system of internal contral,
covering all material controls including financial. operational and
compliance controls, and updates this assessment prior to the signing

of the Annual Report and Accounts.

These activities are monitored at executive level to ensure that control
changes are implemented appropriatety and that they are effective.
The Head of internal Audit oversees the application of control
erwironment improvernents and attends Audit Committee meetings
to provide regular updates on the effectiveness of the Group's internal
controls and the results of the internal audit process.

Features of the interna! control and risk management systems that
ensure accuracy and refiability of financial reporting include:

+ A culture of good governance, imtegrity, competence, fairness
and responsibifity:

= Group policies and procedures to support the business by
providing an operationat internal control framework; and

» Clearly defined responsibilities, delegated in accordance with the
Group's delegated authorities and authorisation registers.

Accountability for internal control and risk management systems is
devolved into each division and any control weaknesses within divisions
are investigated and resolved. Management and the Committee seek to
ensure that their cause is understood, and mitigating actions are taken
to limit the potential for recurrence. In view of the work of the Internal
Audit function, management and the external auditor, it is considered
unbikely that a weakness within a particular division would have a
significant impact on the Group.

Review of whistleblowing processes

Part of the Audit Committee’s role is 1o ensure that appropriate
pracedures are in place in relation to whistleblowing and 1o review
on an annual basis the Group's whistleblowing policy. The Group

has continued 1o operate its ‘Speak up’ service via an independent
third-party provider. Reporting of matters raised through this service
is to the Board of Directors.
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Nomination Committee report

Report from the Nomination

Committee Chairman

Nomination Committee members
At the date of this report the Nomination Committee comprises:

Chairman  Derek Mapp
Committee Phil Bentley until 31 March 2019
members Py Woolf until 31 March 2019
Nivedita Krishnamurthy Bhagat
Jack Boyer urttil 31 August 2018
Philippa Couttie
jennifer Duvalier
Larry Hirst until 31 July 2018
Mark Reckitt uritil 31 July 2018
Mary Reilly
Roger Yates

Frequency of Nomination Committee meetings
During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Nomination Committee
met twice, For the Directors’ attendance, see table on page 55.

In accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code {the Code).
membership of the Committee comprises a majority of independent
Non-Executive Directors, all of whom are considered to be
appropriately experienced to fulfil their duties. Phil Bertley and Paul
Wooll stood down from the Cornmittee on 31 March 2015,

Key purpose of the Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee evaluates the composition, diversity,
experience, knowledge, skills and independence of the Board and its
Committees. This allows appropriate balance 10 be maintained and
ensures the continued effectiveness of the Board.

The Committee considers the length of service of the Board as a whole
so that the membership of the Board is regularty refreshed, taking into
account the challenges and opportunities facing the Group. and the skills,
expertise and diversity required for the future.

68 Mitie Group plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2019

Key responsibilities of the Nomination Commiittee
The key responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include:

* To identify and nominate candidates to fill board vacancies as and
when they arise;

» To ensure plans are in place for an orderly succession to Board and

senior management positions and oversee the development of a
diverse pipeline for succession;

* To keep under review the number of external directorships beld by
each Non-Executive Director;

 To review the results of the Board performance evaluation process
that relate to the composition of the Board; and

* To keep the Board Indusion Policy under review o ensure its
effectiveness and alignment with best practice.

@ The Nomination Committee’'s Terms of Reference are available at
www.mitie.comfinvestorsicorporate-governance.

Key activities during the year

Compeosition

As indicated in last year's report, Mark Reckitt and Larry Hirst stood
deswn from the Board on 31 July 2018. As announced in August 2018,
Jack Boyer stood down from the Board with effect from 31 August 2018.

As it does annually, and in light of the above changes, the Nomination
Committee reviewed the composition and leadership of the Board and
each of its Committees. The Nomination Committee is satisfied that the
Board's composition and diversity has been appropriate throughout the
year, having regard in particular to the integrity, skills, knowledge and
experience of its Directors and the size and nature of the business.

A skills matrix can be found on page 62.

In accordance with the Code, all Directors will stand for re-slection at
the 2019 AGM.

Succession planning and talent development

The Board recognises the importance of planning for the future and
the succession planning process. During the year, the Nomination
Committee considered the ongoing succession planning and refreshing
of the Board.

The Committee also reviewed the work undertaken within the business
during the year to identify, develop, engage and nurture talent across the
Group and in particular at the level immediately below the Executive
Leadership Team, the Group Leadership Team.

During the year. a full talent review was conducted, and work continues
10 identify personalised development plans for those recognisedas
having the highest potential. The Committee also considered the work
underway to increase the performance and capability of the Group's
senior leaders. Firm foundations are now established within Mitie to
build a more visible talent and succession process.



Director time commitments

During the year, the Committee reviewed the time commitments for
each Non-Executive Director ta ensure there are no concerns regarding
overcommitment. The review considered the number and scope of
appaintments, as well as the size arx] type of company in which roles are
held, the views of major shareholders and current published guidelines:
and recommendations.

The Committee noted the significant vote against the re-election of
Mary Reily at the 2018 AGM and the Company’s update statement
published on 31 January 2019 which can be found at
www.mitie.com/investors/corporate-governance.

The majority of the votes received against Mary's re-election were
attributable 1o one of the Company's major shareholders whose poticy
is not to support non-executives with more than two other equivalent
pesitions with other companies or organisations. Non-executive
directors holding a position of chair of an audit committee are also

not expected to hok! more than one other position. '

Members of the Board have met with the major shareholder and have
sought 1o provide reassurance that Mary has sufficient time to dedicate
to her duties. Director time commitments also formed part of the
discussion held with major shareholders at a shareholder dinner held
in March 2019

The Board remains confident that all Board members have sufficient
time 1o dedicate to their duties.

Board diversity and inclusion

Mitie has a Group-wide Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Policy that
dlearly states its commitment 1o the inchusion and diversity of all
employees at afl levels,

As an extension to the Group-wide policy, during the year the Board
adopted a Board Inclusion Policy, which recognises the importance of
Board membership reflecting diversity in its broadest sense and sets
objectives for diversity at Board level.

The Board, through the Nomination Committee, is committed to:

Ensuring its membership reflects a combination of demographics,
skills, experience, race, age, gender, educational and professional
backgrounds which provides a range of perspectives, insights and
challenges needed to support good decision making and reflects the
diverse workforce at Mitie;

With regard to gender diversity, the Board maintains a balance so that,
as a minimum, 30% of the Directors are women provided that this
rernains consistent wath the skills and diversity requirements when
seeking a new appointment to the Board; and

* Supporting and monitoring activities to increase the percentage of
senior management roles held by women and other
under-represented groups across Mitie.

The Committee is pleased to report that as at 31 March 2019,

50% of the Board is female. it is the Board's intention that female
representation on the Board will be maintained at a level higher than
that recommended by the Hampton-Alexander review, although it is
recognised that there may be periods of time when the balance falls
below during the search and recruitment process.

Across the Group female employees account for €32% of the
workforce. 11% of the Executive Leadership Team, and 24% of the
Group Leadership Team are fernale.

During the year, Phil Bentley set a strategic objective to increase the
number of women in science, technology. engineering and mathematics
(STEM) roles across the Group. To support this objective, the Group
has joined the WISE campaign which enables and energises people in
business to increase the participation, contribution and success of
wornen in STEM. The partnership will help us to generate and share
fresh insight and knowiedge about the causes of and solutions to gender
imbalance in STEM — from dassroom 1o boardroom. It akko cements
our comimitment to making Mitie a great place to work, demonstrating
our value of 'our diversity makes us stronger’.

Further details of the Group's commitment to diversity and the diversity
of Mitie's people can be found in the sustainability section of our website
at www.mitie.com.

Derek Mapp

Chairman of the Nominatign Committee

Disclosure Committee

Overview and purpose

The Disclosure Committee assists and informs the decisions of
the Board concerning the identification of inside information and
rakes recommendations about how and when the Company
should disclose that information in accordance with the
Company’s disclosure policy.

The Chairman of the Discdlosure Committee is the Chief
Executive Officer and the other members of the Committee
are the Chairman of the Board, the Chief Financial Officer,
the General Counsel & Company Secretary and the Group
Legal Director.

The Committee met once during the year to approve the
announcement relating to the sale of Mitie Pest Control Limited.

s Rieep  Budey Wk Kigm  Cobe G hey
Leadership and business operations & & & & <1 & & &
Strategy development @ & “ & “ <]
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Directors’ remuneration report

Statement from the

Remuneration Committee Chair

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the Directors’
remuneration report for the year ended 31 March 2015,

| was pleased to be appointed as Chair of the Rermuneration Committee
from 3| August 2018, My thanks go to Jack Boyer, who served as Chair of
the Committee from October 2014, for his support when | took over
the role.

The report is split into three main parts:

* Executive remuneration at a glance. This sets out a summary of
our approach, including how we intend to operate under our policy
and remuneration Qutcomes during the year;

* The Annual Report on Remuneration. This provides more detail
on the above, as well as setting out other remuneration-refated
disclosures;

» Summary of our policy. Our existing policy was approved by 99.7% of
shareholders at the 2018 AGM and | would like to thank shareholders
for their continued support. No changes are proposed to our policy
this year and a summary of the policy has been included on pages 71
to 73. The full Policy approved at the 2018 AGM is available on our
website (www.mitie.com/investors/corporate-governance} and in
the Annual Report and Accounts 2018.

The Remuneration Committee has addressed a number of issues during
the year. | have described below the approach the Committee has taken,
together with the context in which key decisions were made,
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G

We are committed to
providing remuneration that
is both fair and reflective
of Company performance.

Jennifer Duvalier
Chair of the Rermuneration Committee

Remuneration decisions and outcomes

Salary

With regard to fixed pay. it has been agreed that salaries for the
Executive Directors will not be increased for FY 1920 and so will remain
£900,000 for Phil Bentley (since appointrment in November 2016) and
£430,000 for Paul Woolf (since appointment in November 20i7).

FY 18/19 bonus

The Committee assessed cutcomes over the period with respect to
operating profi, organic revenue, Net Promoter 5core (NPS), employee
engagement and individual performance and determined that bonses
of 79.4% and 78.4% of the maximum were appropriate for Phil Bentley
and Paul Woolf respectively. Achievement against these measures is
described in more detail in the Annual Report on Remuneration.
Furthermare, the Committee challenged ftselfl to ensure that these
bonus outcomes were appropriate in the round and was comfortable
that these bonus levels are commensurate with strong organisational
and individual performance.

2016 LTIP awards

Following his appointment, Phil Bentley received a Long Term Incentive
Plan (LTIP) award in November 2016. This award vests subject to the
extent to which the annual bonus targets that apply for FY 17/18, FY
18719 and FY 19/20 are met and a bonus paid. In the event Phil earns a
bonus in one of these years, 25% of the award vests, with 67% vesting if
a bonus is earned in two of the years and full vesting if a benus is earned
in all three years. In any event, no vesting will actually occur until 2020.
The bonus targets that applied for FY 17/18 and FY 18/19 are deemed to
have been met and therefore a bonus in two of the three years has been
achieved to date.

Incentives approach for FY 19/20

For FY 19/20. incentive opportunities will remain the same for Phil
Bentley and Paul Wooll, For bonus, this will be |60% and 120% of salary
respectively. For LTIF, this will be 200% and 150% of salary respectively.
For the FY 12/20 bonus, we will have the same split of financial and
strategic targets. The mix of measures will be as follows: 35% organic
reverue growth; 35% operating profit: 10% on receivables; 10% on
individual objectives; and (0% on other strategi targets. For the LTIP, we
will continue to use 50% adjusted EPS and 50% cash conversion targets.



The Remuneration Committee

The members of the Remuneration Committee are all Non-Executive
Directors. During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Committee met
five times. For the Directors’ attendance, see table on page 55.

The Committee has responsibility for determining the remuneration

of Mitie's Executive Directors and the Chairman, taking into account the
need to ensure Executive Directors are properly incentivised tc perform
in the interests of the Company and its shareholders. The Committee is
also responsible for setting the remuneration for other senior executives,
induding at least, the Executive Leadership Team.

@ The Committee’s terms of reference are available at
www.mitie.com/investors/corporate-governance.

The Committee regularty consults with the Chief Executive Officer
and the Group HR Director on various matters relating to the
appropriateness of rewards for the Executive Directors.

However, the Chief Executive Officer and other Executive Directors are
not present when matters relating directly to their own remuneration
are discussed. This is ako the case for other executives attending
Committee meetings.

The Company Secretary attended the meetings as Secretary to the
Committee. The Chief Executive Officer and Group HR Director
attended the meetings by invitation only.

Corporate governance developments

The Committee noted with interest corporate governance
developments during the year. In particular, the updated Juty 2018 UK
Corporate Governance Code introduced a number of requirements
which apply to the Company from | Apri! 2019, We are very mindfu! of
these developments and will report 1o shareholders in our 2020 Anrwal
Report on Remuneration on our approach and policies {e.g. pension
provision and post-cessation shareholding requirements).

Conclusion

We will be seeking approval for the Directors’ remuneration report
(advisory vote) at the 2019 AGM. | welcome your views and feedback
on the report.

Jennifer Duvalier

Chair of the Remuneration Committee
jenniferduvalier@mitie.com

Uore vt

Key features of our remuneration policy

G

Our philosophy — The Committee believes in an approach to executive pay
which is commensurate with value creation for shareholders

The table below highlights the key features of our policy and our approach which aligns the Executive Directors’ remuneration
arrangements with the shareholder experience. The full policy can be found on our website at www.mitie.com.

@ Track record @ Shareholding
in taking a guideline of
responsible 200% of salary

and appropriate
approach to pay

in conjunction
with enhanced

{e.g. exercise malus and
of negative clawback
discretion) provisions

@ Bonus deferral @ LTIP holding
— 50% of the period of two
bonus deferred years after
into shares vesting —
for at least five-year
two years time horizon
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Executive remuneration

at

a glance

key principles of the policy

Mitie's remuneration policy is based on a aumber of principles:

®

Reward should be
aligned with the
shareholder experience

The performance-Tetaied incentive
arrangements are designed to align the
interests of Executive Directors with
those of sharehoiders and to promote
the Group's long-term success.

. @ The majority of the

package should be
performance-related

The majority of reward opportunity
for Executive Directors is provided
through performance-related
incentives linked to the Group's
strategic goals and taking account

@ The policy should

be comprehensive
and simple

The overall remuneration policy

is designed to be comprehensive
without becoming overcomplicated
and to encourage Executive Directors
to concentrate on profitable growth.

of the Group's attitude to risk: reward
under these incentives is linked to both
individual and Group performance.

Summary of remuneration policy
Executive Directors' remuneration i made up of the following elements:

Variable

00 S0

Fixed

AN

= Total
Executive incentives and link to strategy
The following table sets out how the intended measures across the incentive plans for FY 19720 support the Group's strategy and KPls:
Sustained and Scrong cash-
renewed profit growth Quality clienc base generative business Individual objectives Other strategic targers
& 35% operating & 35% organic & 10% reduction in & 10% individual & 10% other strategic
Annual bonus o > hod % in
[_T"D & 50% adjusted EPS & S0% cash conversion
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All employee incentive arrangements
The Company also operates SAYE share option and Share Incentive Plan arrangements allowing employees 1o participate in share ownership and
to share in corporate success over the medium term,

Summary of how we intend to operate our policy for FY 19/20
This table summarises the approach for remuneration arrangements for Executive Directors (Phil Bentiey as CEO and Paul Woolf as CFO) for
FY 18/19 under the policy approved by shareholders at the 2018 AGM, alongside how we intend to apply our policy in FY 19/20.

At a glance FY 18f1Y FY 19720
Bas CEC: £500000 CEC £900:000
€ Salary CFO: £430,000 CFO: £430,000

Maximum bonus
opportunity

CEQ: |60% of salary
CFO: 120% of salary

CEO. 160% of salary
CFO: 120% of salary

Bonus deferral

50% of bonus defesred into shares which
vest after at least two years

SO% of banus deferred into shares which
vesl after at least two years

Bonus performance
mMeasures — Mix

70% financial, 30% strategic

70% financial, 30% strategic

Bonus performance
measures — metrics

Financial: organic revenue growth, operating profit
Strategic: Net Promoter Score (NPS). employee
engagement, individual

Mix: 35% organic revenue growth, 35% operating
profit. and 10% each on customer NPS, employee
engagement and individual strategic objectives

Financial: organic revenue growth, operating profit
Strategic: reduction in receivables, indidual, other
strategic

Mix: 35% organic revenue growth, 35% operating

profit. 10% reduction in receivables and 10% each
on individual objectives and other strategic targets

1 CEQO: 200% of salary CEO: 2000 of salary
24;;cl>r:tli.lrr?it;TIP CFO: 150% of salary CFO: 150% of salary
LTIP perform adce S0% agjusted EPS and 50% cash conversion 50% adjusted EPS and S0% cash conversion
measures
LTIP holdlng period of Shart_:s released after at least five years Shares released after at least five years
i frer vest (vesting aftgr three years plus two-year {vesting after three years plus two-year
0 YEars a holding period) holding period)

requirements

Malus and clawback
provisions

As per policy approved by shareholders at 2018 AGM  As per policy approved by shareholders at 2018 AGM
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Executive remuneration
at a glance continued

Summary of remuneration outcomes for the year ended 31 March 2019
The following provides a summary of incentive outcomes and the single total figure of remuneration for Executive Directors. Full details can be found
later in our Annual Report on Remuneration.

Annual bonus in respect of FY 18/1%

The Committee assessed outcomes over the period with respect to operating profit, organic revenue, Net Promoter Score (NPS), employee
engagement and individual performance and determined that bonuses of 794% and 78.4% of the maximum were appropriate for Phil Bertley and Paul
Woolf respectively. Achievenent against these measures is described in more detail in the Annual Report on Remuneration. Furthermore, the
Committee challenged itself to ensure that these bonys cutcomes were appropriate in Lhe round and was comfortable that these bonus levels are
camiTiensurate with strong organisational and individual performance. Please see table on page 76 for further detail.

2016 LTIP awards

Following his appointment, Phil Bentley received an LTIP award in November 2016. This award vests subject to the extent to which the annual bonus
targets that apply for FY 17/18, FY 18/19 and FY 19/20 are met and a bonus paid. Inthe event Phil earns a bonus in one of these years, 25% of the award
vests, with 67% vesting if a bonus is earned in two of the years and full vesting if a bonus is earned in all three years. in any event, nc vesting will actually
occur until 2020. Paul Woolf does not ho'd arny 2016 LTIP awards. The bonus targets that applied for FY |7/18 and FY 18/19 are deemed to have been
met and therefore a bonus in two of the three years has been achieved to date.

Single figure for FY 18/19
The table below reports a singte figure of total remuneration for each of the Executive Directors for the financial year ended 31 March 2019 and their
" corparative figures for the financial year ended 31 March 2048.

Phil Bentley
4 019 £ 2018
® Solary 300,000 @ Saary 900000
@ Benefits 25,406 @ Benefits 2549
@ Persion 180,000 @ Pension 180,000
@ Boaus 1,143,542 @ Bonus -
Total 1,248,948 Total 1102549

Paul Woolf
£ 2019 £ 018
@ Salary 430,000 & Salary 166,136
@ Benefits LIS @ Berefits 686
@ Pension 43,000 @ Pension 16614
@ Borus 404,609 @ Bonus -
Total 879,325 Total 183436

Note: Paul Woolf joined the C and Board as Chief Financial Officer on |3 November 2007 and the information above for 2018 camprises his earnings from that date to

3 March 2018. Both Phil Bantley and Paul Wooll wakved their FY 1718 benus and there were no LTIP pay-outs for them in 2018 and 2015,
Further information on the above is provided in the Annyal Report on Remuneration.
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Annual Report
on Remuneration

Strategic report

Executive Director remuneration (subject to audit)
The table below reports a single figure of total remuneration for each of the Executive Directors for the financial year ended 31 March 2019 and their
comparative figures for the financial year ended 31 March 2018,

Year Sajary Benefits Pension Annual bonus LTIP Total
Phil Bertley 009 £900,000 £25,406  C1B0,000  £1,143542 - £2,248,948 o
2018 £900,000 £22.549 £180000 - - £1,002549 g
Paut Woolf 019 £430,000 £1,716 43,000 (404,609 - 879,325 g
2018 £166,136 £686 £16614 - - £183436 $
Total 2019 3,128,273
2018 (1533216

Notes, :

Paul Woolf joined the Board as Chief Financial Officer on 13 Novernber 2017, The information in the table for 2018 above confirms his earnings as an Executive Director from that date.
The d’nﬁerenfe ;\ the totals for 2018 is attributable to earnings for former Executive Director, Sandip Mahajan, between | April 2017 and his resignation froen the Board en 13
November 201

Benefits refate to the cost to the Group of private medical cover, car aliowance and financialftax plarning advice.
The pension banefit disclosed above comprises cash allowances in liew of pension contributions for Phil Benttey of 20% of salary and for Paul Woolf at 10% of salary:

Bonuws payable in respect of the fnandial year inchudes any deferred element at face value at the date of award. Further information about haw the leved of the award for the year
ended 3t March 2019 was determined is provided on pages 76 and 77,

<]

For any new Executive Director appointments, the Remuneration Committee will consider the alignment of pension arrangemnents with the g

wider workforce. B

]

Non-Executive Director remuneration (subject to audit) 5

The fees for the Non-Exeautive Directors for the financial year ended 3| March 2019 and their comparative figures for the financial year ended 31 March 2018 are set §

out below: ic
2019 2018
L'000 £000
Derek Mapp* 228 201
Nivedita Krishnamurthy Bhagat ~ ~ 52 43
Jack Boyer? 25 60
Philippa Couttie 52 20
Jennifer Duvalier? 57 35
Larry Hirst' 20 59
Mark Reckitt® 20 0
Mary Reilly* 57 30
Roger Yates’ 59 5
Total' 587 575

Nates:

*  Allamounts were paid in cash al noomerbenefrtswererecemdmhemrThe:ﬁﬁerencenmemlforzow|smrhnab|=mteesforformerNon-ExeqnweD¢rector
Roger Matthews, between | Apri 2017 and his stepping down from the Board on 26 iy 20

Derek Mapp joned the Board on ? May 2017 as Chairman-elect and took over as Chairman and Chairrnan of the Nomination Commictes a1 the AGHM on 26 July 2017,
Jack Bayer resigned from the Board on 31 August 2018,

Jenniler Duvaber assumed the role of Chair of the Remuneration Committee upon Jack Boyer's ressgnation

Larry Hirst retired from the Board on 31 July 2018,

Mark Reckity resigned from the Board on 31 July 2018

Mary Reilly assumed the role of Chair of the Audit Committes upon Mark Reckitt's resignation.

. Roger Yates assumed the role of Senior Independent Director upon Larry Hirst's retirement.

NS DA WS
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Annual Report
on Remuneration continued

Base salary and benefits
Commencing | November 2016, and to be first reviewed in April 2020, the annual base salary for Phil Bentley is £900.000.

Commencing 13 November 2047, and reviewed in April 2018, the annua base salary for Paul Woolf was £430.000. The review of Paul Woolf's base
salary in April 2019 resulted in no change i base salary.

Benefits are as described in the notes to the Executive Directar remuneration table on page 75, No changes in benefits are planned for the year ending
31 March 2020,

A review of Non-Executive Director fees was undertaken by the Board in March 2019 which resuited in no change to fees.

2019 2018
£'000 £000
Chairman feest 215 225
Non-Executive Director core fees® 52 52
Additional fees:
Senior Independent Director ’ 7 7
Chair of a Committee 8 8
Notes:

1. The core fees of £52,000 per annum paid to each Non-Executive Director (inchuding the Chairman) will total £312,000 for the ending 31 March 2020. Total fees inchuding
additional duties are expected to amount to £508,000 for the year ending 3| March {£567.000 actual for the year ended 31 March 2019).

2. The Chairman’s fee i inclusive of the Non-Exacutive Director core fee and no additional fees are paid to the Chairman where he is chairman or a member of other Committaes

3. For Non-Executive Directory, individual fees comprise the core fee and additional supplemental fees for the Senior Independent Director and for chairing Committees to reflect
the greater responsibility and time commitment reguired.

Annuatl Bonus Plan
Annual Bonus Plan awards were made in respect of the year ended 3| March 2019. Phil Bentley was eligible for 2 maximum bonus opportunity of 160%
of base satary and Paul Woolf was eligible for a maximum bonus opportunity of 120% of base salary.

The awards were structured by reference to performance against a blend of financial (70% of the bonus opportunity) and strategic targets

(the remaining 30%). At the threshold level of performance for financial targets, 25% of the maximum bonus opportunity is due, 50% of the maximum
bonus opportunity is due at the target level and 100% at the maximum level. Between these points the out-turn is determined on a linear shiding scale
basis.

As the financial performance ranges excluded the impact of IFRS |5 and acquisitions and disposals during the year, the performance ranges have been
adjusted for these impacts and the out-turn has been assessed by comparing the reported FY 18/19 results after the mpact of IFRS 15, acquisttions and
disposals with the adjusted performance ranges:

Performance Adjusted
measure Welghting performance range Qut-turn
Operating profit' 35% of the award £7%.5m threshold The out-turn was £88.2m resulting in an outcome of 100% of the maximum
£83.7m target for this element, being 35% of the maximum bonus opportunity,
£879m maximum '
Revenue? 35% of the award £2.15bn thresheld The out-turn was £2.22bn resufting in an outcome of 41.2% of the maximum
£2.26bn target for this element, being 14.4% of the maximum bonus opportunity.
£2.37bn maximum
Customer Net 10% of the award + Ipts threshold The out-turn was +22pts resutting in an cutcome of 100% of the maximum
Promaoter Score + Ipts target for this element, being [0% of the maximum bonus opportunity.
+ Spts maximum
Employee engagermnent 10% of the award + Ippts threshold The out-turn was +|2ppts resulting in an outcome of |00% of the maximum
+ 3ppts target for this element, being 10% of the maximum bonus opportunity.
+ Sppts maximum
Individual strategic 10% of the award na The Committee considered performance against the strategic objectives set
objectives out below and determined that the out-turn was 100% and 90% of the
maximum for the CEQ and CFO respectively, being 10% and 9% of the
maximum bonus oppertunity.
Notes:

|. Qperating profit before other items from continuing operations,
2. Revenue from continuing operations.
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The individual strategic objectives set for the CEO and CFO were as follows:

CEO

Strategic objectives

Strategy Drive business develapment agenda, with a focus on exiting non-core businesses and adding technology capability;
Strengthen balance sheet to reduce average net debt; and
Head external messaging for Connected Workspace demonstrating its value to dlients.

Customers Champion the embedding of unitary account management; and
Retention of top accounts.

People Ensure leadership team stability and upgrade talent; and

Ircrease women recruited into Science, Technology. Engineering and Maths (STEM) roles.

Shareholder relations Maintain core shareholder support.

CFO

Strategic objectives

Costs Increase cash from the ‘order to cash’ working capital cyde and reduce finance costs from the organisation as part of Finance
transformation.

People Upgrade finance talent measured by an increase in the number of GLT/high-potential employees,

Customer/Technology Implement standard chart of accounts and unitary account management for Mitie's top 50 integrated accounts.

The borws structure and assessment was as follows:

Financial performance Non-financial performance Total bonus payshie
% of % al % of Kol % of %of
salary salary salary % of satary salary salary % of Total Deferred
e it miRE o gl eBE w0 w8 e
Phil Bentiey 28% 56% 2% 79% 0% 4% 48% 48% 1,143,542 50771 571771
Paul Woolf 21% 2% B4% 59% % 16% 36% 35% 404605 02305 202304

The Annual Bonus Plan will be operated on similar terms for the year ending 31 March 2020, Phil Bentley's maximum bonus opportunity for FY 19720 will
remain at 160% of base salary and Paul Woolf's at 120% of base salary. Awards will be payable by reference to performance against a blend of financial
(70% of the bonus opportunity) and strategic targets {the remaining 30%). Mowever. if none of the financial targets have been achieved. no bonus will be
payable by reference only to the strategic targets. 50% of any bonus entitlement will be deferred. The targets are at present commercially sensitive and
50 are not disclosed in this report. However, as above, details of the targets will be disclosed in next year's report.

LTIP awards granted in 2018 (subject ta audit)
On 2 August 2018, the following conditional LTIP awards were grarted 1o the Executive Direttors:

Number  Face vatue Performance Performance % vesting
Award Type of shares! (€'000) X of salary conditions period at threshoid
Phil Bentl Performance Ni-cost 1,180,327 1,800 200%
i ey 13 B Performance Thee fnancial
LTP Aug 18 options conditions are years ending 25%
Paul Wocl Performance Ni-cost 422950 645 150% setoutinthe 3| March 2021
LTIP Aug 18 options table below

Notes:
|. Number of shares was cakculated based on the averape dosing share price for up to five business days preceding the date of grant giving a share price of 152.50p.

LTIP awards granted in 2018 were simplified 10 two performance measures, adjusted EPS and cash conversion. These awards will vest in 2021
conditional on performance against the following measures:

Performance Westing of portion of the award

meas,re Weighting Performance range (perfermance period theee years ending 3| March 2021)

Earnings Per 50% of 5% - 12% pa Zero vesting if EPS growth, as adjusted by the Committee as appropriate, i less than 5%
Share (EPS) the award pa. if EP5 growth is equal to 5% pa, 25% of the award will vest. if Mitie achieves EPS
growth growth of 8.5% pa, 70% of the award will vest. If EPS growth of 12% pa or more is

achieved, all the awards will vest. Between 5% and 8.5% and B.5% and 12%, the proportion
of awards vesting will be determined on a linear skiding scale basis.

Cash conversion  50% of 75% — B5% pa Zero vesting if cash conversion is less than 75% pa. At 75% pa cash conversion, 25% of the
the award award will vest. 709 of the award will vest if Mitie achieves B0% pa cash conversion. Full
vesting for this portion will occur if B5% pa cash conversion is achieved. Between 75% and
80% and 80% and B5%, the proportion of awards vesting will be determined on a linear
sliding scaje basis.

To reflect the impact of any changes in or adoption of new IFRS accounting standards, the Committee will consider adjusting financial targets
appropriately for subsisting LTIP awards, ensuring that they are not materially easier or harder 10 satisfy than the original targets. Any amended targets
determined by the Committee will be disclosed to shareholders in the next Directors’ Remuneration Report.
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Annual Report
on Remuneration continued

The grant of 2019 LTIP awards to the Executive Directors will be made in due course. The performance conditions that apply to the awards follow
the same construct as in 2018 with two measures: ({) EPS: and (ji} cash conversion, each accounting for 50% of the award with the following
performance conditions:

Performance Vestng of portion of the award

measure Weighting Performance range {performance period three years ending 31 March 2021)

Earnings Per 50% of 5% — 10% pa 2Zero vesting if EPS growth, as adjusted by the Committee as appropriate. is ess than 5%
Share (EPS) the award pa. If EPS growth is equal to 5% pa, 25% of the award will vest. f Mitie achieves EPS
growth growth of 7.5% pa, 70% of the award wili vest. If EPS growth of 10% pa or more is

achieved, all the awards will vest. Between 5% and 7.5% and 7.5% and (0%, the proportion
of awards vesting will be determined on a linear sliding scale basis.

Cash conversion  50% of 80% — 90% pa Zero vesting if cash conversion is less than B0% pa. At B0% pa cash conversion, 25% of the
the award award will vest. 70% of the award will vest if Mitie achieves 85% pa cash conversion, Fuil
vesting for this portion will occur if 90% pa cash conversion is achieved. Beiween 80% and
85% and 85% and 90%, the proportion of awards vesting will be determined on a linear
shiding scale basis.

Details of July 2016 LTIP awards vesting in July 2019
The Committee assessed the outcome of the July 2016 LTIP awards (based on FY 18/19 results before the impact of IFRS 15) granted under the plan
against a basket of performance rmeasures:

Performance Vesting of portion of the award

measure Weighting Performance range {performance periad three years ending 31 March 2019)
Earnings Per 25% of 3% -~ 8% pa Zero vesting if EPS growth, as adjusted by the Committee as appropriate, is less than 3%
Share {EPS) the award pa. f performance is equal to 3% pa, 25% of the award will vest. If Mitie achieves EPS
growth growth of B% pa, all the awards will vest. Between these two points the proportion of
awards vesting will be determined on a finear sliding scale basis,
Relative Total 20% of Outperformance Zero vesting if Mitie's TSR growth is less than the median of the index. If Mitie’s TSR
Shareholder the award against the Business growth is equal 1o the median of the index, 25% of the award will vest and if it exceeds
Return (TSR) Support Services subsector  the index median TSR by (0% pa or more, all the awards will vest. Between these two
of the FTSE 350 points the proporticn of awards vesting will be determined on a dinear sliding scale basis.
Support Services index An ynderpin condition for underlying financial performance also applies.
Strategic 25% of Zero vesting if the strategic objectives are not met. Straight line vesting between zero
objectives the award and maxirum based on Remuneration Committee assessmen of performance against
objectives.
Cash corwersion  30% of 75% - 85% pa Zero vesting if cash comversion is less than 75% pa. At cash conversion of 75% pa, 25% of
the award the award will vest, 70% of the award will vest if Mitie achieves cash conversion of 80% pa.

Full vesting for this portion will occur if cash conversion of 85% pa is achieved. Between
75% and B0 and 80% and 85%, the proportion of awards vesnng will be determined on a
linear skiding scale basis.

Following a review of actual performance, under a formulaic outcome, there would have been no vesting under the EPS, TSR and strategic elements, and
some vesting under the cash conversion element. However, the Committee exercised negative discration and determined that these awards granted to
senior management should [apse in their entirety. No current Executive Director has July 2016 LTIP awards.

Details of November 2016 LTIP award vesting in 2020

Following his appointment, Phil Bentley received an LTIP award in Novernber 2016. This award vests subject 1o the extent to which the annual bonus
targets that apply for FY 17/18, FY 18/19 and FY 19/20 are met and a bonus paid. In the event Phil earns 2 bonus in one of these years, 25% of the award
vests, with 67% vesting if a bonus i earned in two of the years and full vesting if a bonus is earned in all three years. In any event, no vesting will actually
occur until 2020. The bonus targets that applied for FY 17718 and £Y 18/19 are deemed 10 have been met and therefore a bonus in two of the three
years has been achieved 1o date.

Loss of office payments (subject to audit)

As set out in the Annual Report and Accounts 2018, Sandip Mahajan ceasedto be a Dlrector of Mitie Group pk and took up the role of Chief Financial
Transformation Officer on |3 November 2017, Full details of Sandip’s departure terms were disclosed in the 2018 Annual Report and Accounts and a
sumnary made available on the Company's website in the relevant Section 430(2B) Companies Act 2006 statement.

Sandip left the employment of the Company on 12 Novermnber 2018 as indicated.
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Payments to past Directors (subject to audit)
There have been no payments to past Directors during FY 18/19 that relate 1o their period of employment as a Director.

Change in CEO pay for the year compared to UK salaried employees
The table below sets out the change in remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer and Mitie's LK salaried non-tontract population, which is considered
the most appropriate group for comparison purposes.

X Salary Beneflts Banus
Chief Beautve Officer 00% 425% nm?
Average pay based on Mities UK salaried hon-contract empioyees' 783% 1787% 19426%
Notes:

I. Reflects the change in average annual pay for safaried non-contract LK employees employed throughout the twe financial years ended 31 March 2019, Salaried non-contract
ermployees are those who are employed divectly by Mitie Group and whose roles are not dedicated to the provision of dient services.

2. Inchudes caricar altlowance, private medical benefit and private fuel.
3. Phil Betley voluntarity waived the bonus payable in FY 17/18.

Relative spend on pay
The tabie below shows the totat cost of remuneration in the Group, compared with dividends distributed.

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
im im

Charge
Aggregate employee remuneration 1,244 L1g 182%
Equity dividends 14 5 180.0%

Assessing pay and performance

The table below provides a summary of the Chief Executive Officer's single figure reruneration over the past ten years, as well as the pay-out and
vesting levels of variable pay plans in relation to the maximum opportunity. The chart below shows the historical TSR performance over the same period.
These indices {FTSE 250, FTSE 350 Support Services and FTSE 350} have been chosen as they are widely recognised and Mitie has been a member of
these indices during the period:

l‘SR{Rdmadw 100}
400

350

300

March 09 March 10 March (1 March 12 March 12 March |4 March 15 March 16 March 17 March 1B March 19

o Mite —— FTSE250 = = FTSE 35058 === FTSE 350

S
. - ol
2010 on 2012 2003 2014 W15 2016 Smith! Bertley! il ] 1019

Single figure

remuneration £1,703031 £2324443 431773 £210513) £1447266 £1525824 £2448,161 (530628 (479073 £1,102549 42,248,948
Annual bonus

element (actual

as a % of max) 100% 100% 10086 85% 90% 50% T3% % waved waived %

LTIP element

(actual vesting
asa % of max) 1005 10056 87.2% 572% 0% 25% 695% 0% na na nia

Note:

L. Ruby McGregor-Smith stepped down as Chief Executive Officer on I2Decemher 2016. Phil Bentley foined the Baard on | November 2016 and assumed the position of
Chief Executive Officer on 12 Decernber 2016. The figures above include Phil Bentley's remuneration fram | November 2016
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Directors’ remuneration report continued

Annual Report
on Remuneration continued

Share ownership (subject to audit)

Number of Percentage Percentage
shares Value of 5 of target
cwned as at of target MB:;:\ heldasat  achievedasat Compiliance with share
31 March 2019 hokding shai g 31 March 2019 31 March 2019 ownership guidefines
Phil Bentley? 1999749 £1,.800000 926328 BB 216% Achreved
Paul Woolf* 48967 £860.000 55284t 18% 9%  Notachieved but compliant

Nates:
I. Inchsdes shares owned by connected persons.

2. Value of target hokding is 200% of base salary for Phil Bentley. In accordance with Phit Bentay's service contract, he acquired shares worth 400% of satary on 21 November 2016,
His target shareholding is the value of his target halding divided by the share price of 194.3p on 21 November 20t6.

3. In accordance with the Company's share ownership policy, Paul Woolf is required to build and maintain, through the retention of vested share options, a shamhold'n%or 200% of
base salary. His target shareholding is calculated using the average closing share price of 155.6p for the five busivess days prior Lo the start of the financiat year ended 31 March 2019,

Directors' outstanding share interests (subject to audit)
The following tables provide the outstanding share interests for the Executive Directors:

Directors’ interests granted under the LTIP

Options Options
outstanding Exercised outstandin,

Year of as at 3| March Granted in Lapsed inyear asat3lMa Exercise  Eartiest normal
grant 2018 year® in year 2019 price  exercise date?

Phil Bentley Nov 2016 879077 - - - 879,077 Nil-cost May 2020
2007 669393 - - - 669,393 Nikcost il 2020

Aug 2018 - 1180327 - - 1,180,327 Nil-cost Aug 2021

Paut Woolf Nov 20172 143269 - - - 143,269 Nil-cost Nov 2020
Aug 2018 - 422950 - -. 422,950 Nil-cost Aug 2021

Notes:

1. The performance criteria applicable to the November 2016 award run are linked to the achisvement of a bonus payment in the three financial years ending 31 Mareh 2020.
Il’Phllurnsabmusinoneofthese;earslS%dﬁtemrdvesu.é?%vcﬂsifnm is earned in two of the years and 1% vests if a bonus is earned in all three years.
The bonus targets that applied for FY17/18 and FY18/1% are detmed 16 have been met and therefore a bonus in two of the thres years has been achieved to date.

2. The performance criteria applicable to the 2017 awards were disdosed in the previous Directors' Remuneration Report.

3. The performance criteria applicable to the 2018 awards are provided on page 77,

4. The market price of the Company’s shares as at 31 March 2019 was 1492p. The highest and lowest prices dunng the year were 196.8p and 105.8p respectively.
5. Awards are subject to an additional two-year holding period.

Directors’ share ownership

Number of ordinary shares bemﬁcldl* owned Number of ordinary shares beneficially owned

as at 31 March 2019 {or date of cessation If earlier) as at 31 March 2018 (or date of appaintment il later)
Executive Directors
Phil Bentley 1,999,749 1,852,656
Paul Woolf 48,987 48967
Non-Executive Directors
Derek Mapp 140,000 140,000
Nivedita Krishnamurthy Bhagat 0 0
Jack Boyer! 5,000 5000
Philippa Couttie ] 0
Jennifer Duvalier 18,469 18469
Larry Hirst? 15,000 25,000
Mark Reckitt? 4,000 4000
Mary Reilly 11,708 4]
Roger Yates 50,000 o]
MNotes:

t. jack Boyer resigned from the Board on 31 August 2018.
2. Larry Hirst retived (rom the Board on 31 july 2018,
3. Mark Reckitt resigned from the Board on 31 July 2018
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Share dilution

The Compary manages dilution rates within the standard guidelines of 10% of issued ordinary share capital in respect of all employee schemes and 5% in
respect of discretionary schemes. In calculating compliance with these guidelines the Company allocates available headroom on a ten-year flat-line basis,
making adjustments for projected lapse rates and projected increases in issued share capital.

LTIP and deferred bonus awards are satisfied through the market purchase of shares held by the Mitie Group pk Employee Benefit Trust. The potential
dilution of the Company's issued share capital is set out below in respect of all awards granted in the last ten years under the Compary's equity-based
incentive schemes which are being satisfied through the allotrnent of new shares or treasury shares.

Share dilution at 3| March 2019

. Dilution
All share plans {maximum 10%) . 5.7%
Discretionary share plans {masximum 5%) 23%

Shareholder voting

Mitie remains committed to ongoing shareholder dialogue and takes an active interest in voting cutcomes, Where there are substantial votes against
resolutions in relation to Executive Directors’ remuneration, the Group seeks 1o understand the reasons for any such vote, and will detail here any
actions in response to it

A resolution to apbrove the Directors' re'rnuneration. policy as set out in the Annual Report and Accounts 2018 was passed at the Company's 2018 AGM.
At the Compary's 2018 AGM, a resolution was passed 1o approve the 2018 Directors’ remuneration report (excluding the summary of the Directors’
remuneraticn policy). The results of the votes on these resolutions were as foliows:

Voresin Votes
HNumber of vates favour against Withheld'
2018 Directors’ remuneration pokicy — 2018 AGM 2768m 08m O.lm
99.7% 0.3% -
2018 Directors’ remunaration report — 2018 AGM } 2458m 310m 09m
888% 11.2% -

Note:
I. Votes withheld are not counted in the caleutation of the proportion of vates for or against a resolution.

Remuneration Committee and its advisors
The Remuneration Committee seeks and considers advice from independent remuneration advisors where appropriate.

In September 2017, following a retender process and the resignation of Deloitte LLP as Mitie's auditor, the Committee appointed Deloitte LLP as
independent remuneration advisors. The advisors attended Commitiee meetings and provided advice and analysis of executive remuneration. During
their tenure, the advisors pravide no other services to the Company {save in relation to services connected to executive remuneration and share plans)
and also comply with the Code of Conduct for Remuneration Consuftants, The advisors' total cost of advice to the Committee for the year was {57950
{such fees being charged in accordance with their standard terms of business).

The Committee specifically considered the position of the advisors and was satisfied that the advice the Committee received from them was objective
and independent, given that they provided no other services 1o the Company.
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Directors’ report: other disclosures

Directors’
report

The Directors present their Annual Report, together with the audited
financial statements of the Company and the Group, for the year ended
3t March 2019,

The Directors’ report required under the Companies Act 2006
comprises the corporate governance statement on pages 53 1o 69,
with both the Directors’ remuneration report on pages 7010 81
and Strategic report on pages | 1o 48 incorporated by reference,
The corporate governance statement on pages 53 to 69 fulfils the
requirement under Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules of
the Financial Conduct Authority (DTR) 7.2.1,

For the purposes of DTR 4.1.BR, the management report for the year
ended 31 March 2019 compnses the Strategic report and this Directors’
report.

Listing Rule (LR) 9.8.4
The information required to be disclosed by LR 9.8.4 can be found in the
following locations;

Page reference

Directors' remuneration report an
pages 70 to Bl and Note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements
Directors' report: other disdosures
on page B6

Details of any long-term
incentive schemes

Shareholder waiver
of dividends and
future dividends

No sharehelder is considered a controlling shareholder as defined in
the Financial Conduct Authority Handbook.

The remaining disclosures required by LR 9.84 are not applicable to
the Company.

Principal Group activities

The Company is the holding company of the Group and its principal
activity is to provide management services 1o the Group. The Group's
activities are focused on the provision of strategic outsourcing
services, further details of which can be found on pages 4 and 5 of
the Strategic report.

The Company does not have any branches registered overseas, but

the Company's subsidiaries have registrations/branches across the United
Kingdom, Republic of lreland, Guernsey., Jersey, Belgium, Finland!, France,
Germany, Ghana, Kenya, the Netherlands, Nigeria, Norway, Poland,
Singapore, Spain, Sweden, Switzerland and the United Arab Emirates.
Detaits of the Company's subsidiaries are set out in Note 35 to the
consofidated financial staterents.

Given the nature of its activities, no material research and development
work is carried out by the Group,

The Board's view on the likely future development of the Group is set
out in the Strategic report on pages | 10 48. '
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Board of Directors
The names of all persons who served as Directors of the Company at
any time during the year are set cut on page 56.

Full biographical details, inchuding Cornmittee membership and external
appointments, are set out on pages 50 to 52.

. The Board considered the independence of all Non-Executive

Directors during the year and deterrmined that. as at 31 March 2019,

all Non-Executive Directors continued {0 be independent in mind and
judgement, and free from any material refationship that could interfere
with their ability to discharge their duties eflectively.

Director appointments

The rules governing the appointment and replacement of Directors are
set out in the Company's Articles of Association {the Articles), the Code,
the Companies Act 2006 and other related legistation.

Directors’ conflicts of interest

In accordance with the Articles. the Board has a policy on the declaration
and management of Directors' conflicts of interests. Any potential
situation or transactional conflict must be reported as soon as possible
to the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and General Counsel &
Company Secretary. Where a potential conflict is avthorised under
statutory powers and powers granted under the Articles, such conflict

is kept under ongeing review.

Executive Directors are permitted to accept appointments outside

the Group provided that parmission is sought from the Chairman

ard Chiiel Execulive Officer aud Wil Ure aduilional respor sitikities

do not interfere with the Director's ability to discharge histher duties
effectively. Executive Directors are entitled to retain fees earned from
any external appaintments. Neither Phil Bentley nor Paul Wooll held
any external positions during £ 18/19. External positions held by the
Chairman and Non-Executive Directors are detailed in their biographies
on pages 5010 52.

Indemnification of Directors and insurance

The Directors and the Company Secretary benefit from an indemnity
provision under the Artictes. In addition. all Directors and the General
Counsel & Company Secretary have been granted a qualifying
third-party indernnity prowvision as defined by Section 234 of the
Companies Act 2006, which has been in force throughout the year
and remains in force as at the date of this report.

Certain subsidiary directors have also been granted a qualifying
third-party indemnity prowsion which has been in force throughout
the year and remains in force as at the date of this report.

The Group maintains directors’ and officers’ liability insurance which
provides appropriate cover for any legal action brought against the
Group's directors and/or officers.



Avrticles of Association

The Artides were adopted at the 2017 AGM. Ary future amendment
to the Articdes must be made in accordance with their provisions. the
Companies Act 2006 and related legistation. The Articles are available
at www.mitie.com/finvestorsicorporate-governance.

Share capital

The Group is financed through equity share capital and debt instruments.
Details of the Company’s share capital are given in Note 28 to the
consolidated finandal statements. Details of the Group's debt instruments
are set out in Note 22 1o the consolidated financial staterments.

The Company has a single dass of shares divided into ordinary shares
of 1.5 pence each (Ordinary Shares). The Ordinary Shares are entitled
to one vote each per share at general meetings and have no right to any
fixed income.

In accordance with the Articles, holders of Ordinary Shares are entitled
1o participate in any dividends pro-rata 1o their holding. The Board may
propose and pay interim dividends and recommend a final dividend to
shareholders for approval at an AGM. A finat dividend may be declared
by the shareholders at an AGM by ordinary resolution, but such dividend
cannot exceed the amount recommended by the Board.

Powers of the Company to issue or buy back

its own shares

The Company did not allct any Ordinary Shares during the year,
undertake any market purchases of s own shares or distribute any
shares from treasury, Exercisable awards under the Mitie Group plc 2011
Save As You Earn Scheme and Mitie Group plc 2001 and 2011 Executive
Share Option Schemes were underwater during the year, and no awards
were exercised. The total number of Ordinary Shares held by the
Company in treasury as at 31 March 2019 remained unchanged at
7,748,108 (representing 2.1% of the issued share capital of the Company).

At the 2018 AGM, shareholders authorised:

The Directors to allot Ordinary Shares up to an aggregate nominal

" amount of £914,842.64, represerting 10% of the issued share capital
{excluding treasury shares) as at 12 june 2018;
The dis-application of pre-emption rights over allotted shares up to an
aggregate nominal value equal to £457421.32, equating to 5% of Mitie's
issued share capital {excluding treasury shares) and 4.90% of the issued
share capital including treasury shares, each as at 12 june 2018;
The dis-application of pre-emption rights over allotted shares up to
an aggregate nominal value of £457421.32, equating to 5% of Mitie's
issued share capital {excluding treasury shares) and 4.90% of the issued
share capital including treasury shares. each as at 12 June 2018, in
connection with the financing (or refinancing, if the authority is to be
used within six months of the original transaction) of an acquisition or
specified capital investment; and
The Company to make market purchases of its own shares up to
a total of 36,593,706 Ordinary Shares (representing 10% of the issued
share capital as at 12 June 2018 (excluding treasury shares)).

These authorities will expire on the earlier of 30 September 2019 or
the conclusion of the 2019 AGM. A renewal of these authorities will
be put to shareholders at the 2019 AGM. Further details can be found
in the notes to the relevant meeting notice which can be found on
Mitie’s website.

Restrictions on the transfer of shares

The Compary is not aware of any agreements between holders of its
securities which may result in restrictions on the transfer of securtties
or voting rights. No person has any special rights of control over the
Comparny's share capital.

There are no specific restrictions on the size of ary shareholding or
on the transfer of shares, which are both governed by the provisions
of the Articles.

Certain Ordinary Shares previously issued in consideration for the
acquisition by the Company of shares haid by minority sharehoiders
in subsidiaries of the Group under the Mitie Model have contractual
restrictions placed upon them. These restrictions prevent recipients
from selling those Ordinary Shares andfor attach clawback provisions,

which typicaily apply for a maximum period of two years from allotment.

Under Mitie’s Rules on Share Dealing, persons with access to certain
confidential company information or inside information are required

to follow a dearance to deal procedure and may be restricted from
dealing in the Company's shares. Persons subject to these requirements
are notified individually and appropriately informed of the rules.

Significant interests in the Company's share capital
As at 3| March 2019 the Company had been notified of significant
holdings of voting rights m its Ordinary Shares under the Disclosure
Guidance and Transparency Rules as set out below.

% of share

capital st the

MNumber of date of

Ordinary Shares notification

Silchester international Investors LLP 62210238 (700%
Aggregate of Standard Life Aberdeen pic 53532509 14.63%
FMRLLC 19717936 5.38%
Harris Associates LP. 18.393,003 5.12%
Brandes investment Partners LP 18,117,242 505%
Heronbridge 18366728 500%

Changes that occurred between the end of the period under review and

5 June 2019, the latest practicable date prior to the date of this report,
are set out below.

% of share

capital at the

Number of date of

Ordinary Shares noufication

Aggregate of Standard Life Aberdeen pk 56,214,197 1536%

Directors interests in the Company's share capital are set out in the
Directors’ remuneration report on page 80.
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Directors’ report: other disclosures continued

Dialogue with shareholders

The Board is committed to ongoing and proactive dialogue with
shareholders. A full programme of formal and informal events,
institutional investor meetings and presentations is held throughout the
year. This programme of shareholder engagement aims to ensure that
the performance, strategies and objectives of the Group are clearty
communicated to the investment community and provide a forum for
institutional shareholders to address any corporate governance issues.
The programme is led by the Executive Directors with support from the
Irwestor Relations team. The Chairman is responsible for ensuring that
the Board is made aware of any issues and concerns of major shareholders.

The Company acknowledges that there was 3 significant minority vote
against one resolution at the 2018 AGM which related to the slection

of Mary Reilly as a Non-Executive Director, 76.26% of votes cast were in
favour of this resolution. The majority of the votes received against were
attributable to one of the Company's major shareholders whose policy
is not to support non-executives with more than two other equivalent
positions with other companies or organisations. Nen-executive
directors holding a position of dhair of an audit committee are also not
expected to hold more than one other position. Mary Reilly currently
holds external appointments as set out in her biography on page 52,
Members of the Board met with the major shareholder and have sought
to provide reassurance that Mary has sufficient time to dedicate to her
duties. The Board, through the Nomination Committee, regularty
reviews and considers the time commitments for each Director to
ensure there are no concerns regarding overcommitment. The Board
remains confident that Mary has sufficient time to dedicate to her duties.

The Board is regularly kept informed of any investor feedback,
stockbroker updates and detailed analyst reports. The Head of investor
Relations also updates the Board at every Board meeting as set out
under Board activities on page 57.

The Chairman and Senior independent Director are available to meet
with sharehciders upon request. All Directors were present at the 2018
AGM and will attend the 2019 AGM.

Mitie has a specific area dedicated to investor relations on its
website (www.mitie.com)} where the items below are made available
to shareholders:

* Latest Group information;

+ Financial reports;

* Corporate governance and sustainability matters;
* Half-year and full-year results presentations;

* Major shareholder information; and

* Al regulatory announcements,

Annual General Meecting

Shareholders are invited 1o attend Mitie’s 2019 AGM, which will be held
on 30 July 2019 at 11.30 arn at Linklaters LLP, One Silk Street, London
EC2Y 8HQ.

Employee involvement
Details of how Mitie encourages employee involvement can be found in
the Strategic report on pages 34 to 37
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Diversity and inclusion

The Board is responsible for driving the diversity agenda throughout

the Group. During the year the Board adopted the Board inclusion Policy
as an extension to its existing Group-wide Inclusion Policy. The Board
Inclusion Policy inchudes a commitment to maintaining 2 minimum of

30% female representation on the Board as recommended by the
Hampton-Alexander review, provided that this remains consistent with
the skills and diversity requirements when seeking a new appointment to
the Board. Female representation on the Board increased lrom 36% at
the start of the year to 50% as at 3t March 2019,

The Group's approach to business is underpinned by a belief that

all individuals should be treated fairly and have access to equal
opportunities, To attract, recruit, devekop and retain the very best
people at all levels, Mitie is committed to respecting and embracing talent
and working to support a culture that is indusive and reflective of Mitie's
visions and values. Objectives of Mitie's Group-wide Inclusion Policy
nclude that:

* Naojob applicant or amployee will receive less favourable treatment
on the grounds of sex, race, age, ethnic arigin, marital status,
pregnancy and maternity, civil partnership status, any gender
re-assignment, religion or belief, sexual orientation, disability or
part-timeffixed-term work; ]

Inclusion, equality and diversity will be promoted within the
workplace: and

An environment will be created where anyone believing they have
been subjecied to discrimination, victimisation, bullying or harassment
in the workplace, is entitled and feels safe to raise such concerns.

Inimplementing the policy, Mitie:

« Ensures that all policies, processes, procedures and practices underpin
delivery of the Inclusion Policy;

* Cascades lessons learned and shares best practice throughout the
business; and

* Identifies key issues and recommends any changes,

During FY 1B/19 five diversity networks were established. The netwarks

host a variety of face-to-face and virtual events and contribute to online
platforms designed to interact and share ideas.

Diversity networks

Enable Raises awareness of disability-related topics across
the business, while offering support and guidance to
colleagues and line managers

Engender ‘Works to engender equality for men and women
at Mitie

Generations Supports Mitie's age-diverse workforce

Kaleidoscope Ensures an indusive working environment for pecple of
all ethnicities, and above all, encouraging Mitie’s BAME
(Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic) talent across the
business 16 succeed

Is all about educating, informing and inspiring Mitie
employees to be themselves by promating an inclusive
culture in the workplace, particularty around LGBTQ

Proud To Be

In connection with the Group’s wider diversity initiatives and Inclusion
Policy, Mitie is committed to:

* Giving full and fair consideration to applications for employment
by disabled persons, having regard to their particular aptitudes
and abilities;
= Continuing the employment of, and arranging appropriate training for,
empioyees who have become disabled during their employment; and
« The training of, career development and promotion of
disabled employees.

In recognition of Mitie's diversity-related initiatives, Mitie was narmed
17th in the Excellence in Diversity Awards Inclusive Top 50 UK
Employers in November 2018,



Culture

The 'Mitie Way' of doing business and 'One Mitie’ unitary approach of
working with clients continues to be advanced. The Mitie Way has many
elements to it inchuding purpose, vision, cutture, values and branding, and
covers all aspects of the business, from ‘who we are’ to ‘'what we do’ and
‘how we do it

Greenhouse gas emissions

Mitie is committed to reducing fts carbon emissions and emvironmerital
impact and has been actively recording and managing greenhouse gas
emissions (GHG) since 2010, when an ambitious target to reduce

Scope | and Scope 2 carbon footprint intensity by 35% was set.

Absolute emissions

The Group continues to report total GHG emissions annually using the
finandial cortrol approach. The methodology used aligns with Defras
Environmental reporting guidelines and uses the Government’s GHG
reporting conversion factors to quantify emissions.

For the year ended 3| March 2019, Mitie had reduced its emissions
intensity by 374% against its FY 09/10 baseline and 4.1% against FY 17/18.

Absolute emissions have also decreased by 19.5% against the FY 09/10
baseline and 3.8% against FY 17/18.

Charge Change
FY 08n0 nst st
Emissions {basefine) FY 172118 FY 1819 b:s:ﬂ% FY 1718 %
Total Scope | (tCO,e)* 41,343 35,974 35,130 -14.8% L%
Ernissions from fuel combustion across fleet 40,277 35272 " 34688 -139% -1 7%
Emissions from gas combustion at occupied buildings (excluding landlord sites) 1,066 702 542 -49.2% -228%
Total Scope 2 (tCO.e) ) 3,490 1,524 857 ~75.4% -43.8%
Emissions from the purchase of electricity across occupied buildings
{excluding lanciord sites) 3,490 1,524 857 -75:4% “438%
Total Scope | & 2 (tCO.e) 44,811 37,498 34,087 19.5% -3.8%
Intensity
Change Change
FY 08H0
Emissions ratio (baseline) FY 1718 FrIge bam FY 1718 %
tCO,e/fm revenue (Scope | & 2) 26.07 17.02 16,32 . =37.4% -4.1%

® Refrigerant data has been excluded due to dificutties obtaining acourate data on kindiord managed sites” however, this data is not considered material

Mitie’s efforts to reduce its carbon emissions focus on reducing the impact of its fleet, which contributes $6% of its totai Scope | and Scope 2 footprint.
Mitie has pledged to run at least 20% of its company small van and car fleet using efectric vehicles by 2020. A fleet transformation project is underway to
standardise current vehicles with newer, more efficient vehicles. Part of this project has been to ensure that all commergial vehicles are installed with

telematics 1o improve driver behaviour.

Further information on these calculations can be found in the GHG methodology staterment available on our website www.mitie.com.

Environmental data

Further details on the Group's environmental performance can be found in the table below:

Change Change
2009/10 ;Eamst . against
{basefine) 2017118 201819 baseline % previous year %
Energy
Electricity consumed across occupied buildings (kwh) 9.091,141 5540091 3417254 £21% -383%
Gas consumed across occupied buildings (kWh) 75980537 4943461 3.261,106 -59.1% -34.1%
Fuel used by fleet for business travel (kKWh) 184,088,382 154,681,158 148,488,776 -19.3% A40%
Total organisational energy consumption (kWh) 200,160,060 165,170,710 155,167,134 -21.9% B.0%
Water
Water consurmed across occupied buildings (m%) 22306 40012 28,106 -4.1% -298%
Waste
Total waste to landfill {tonnes) 589 336 pil] -76.6% 31.2%
Total waste recycled (tonnes) 447 541 371 -17.0% -31.4%
Total waste generated across occupied buildings (tonnes) 1,436 877 402 -58.1% -314%
Recycling rate 31% 62% 62% +31 ppts -
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Directors’ report: other disclosures continued

Political donations

Mitie has a long-standing policy of not making any political donations.
However, it is possible that certain routine activities (including charitable
donations) undertaken by Mitie might unintentionally fall within the wide
definition of payments constituting political donations and expenditure
as set out in the Cormpanies Act 2006. At the 2018 AGM shareholders
granted the Company and its subsidiaries authority to make political
donations up 10 a total aggregate cap of £30.000 until the 2019 AGM.

A renewal of this authority will be put to shareholders at the 2019 AGM.

Significant agreements — change of contral

Thera are a number of agreements with provisions that take effect. alter
or terminate upon a change of control of the Company, such as bank
facility agreements and other financial arrangements and employee share
scheme rules, None of these are considered ta be significant in terms of
their likely impact on the normal course of business of the Group. The
Directors are not aware of any agreements batween the Company and
its Directors or employees that provide for compensation for loss of
office or employment that occurs solely because of a change of control.

Financial results

A detailed commentary on the operational and financial resuits of the
Group for the year is contained within the Strategic report, including
the Finance review on pages 22 to 25.

The Group's profit before tax from continuing operations for the
financial year was £364m (2018: £154m loss).

Dividends

An interim dividend of £.33p per Ordinary Share (2018: 1.33p) with
atotal value of £4.8m (2018: £4.8m) was paid to shareholders on
12 February 2019.

The Directors recommend a final dividend of 2.67p per Ordinary Share
(2018: 2.67p) with a total value of £9.6m (2018: £9.6m) based upon the
rumber of shares in issue as at 5 June 2019. Subject to approval at the
2019 AGM, the final dividend will be paid on ? August 2019 to
shareholders on the register as at close of business on 28 June 2019.

The final dividend of 2.67p per share recommended by the Directors for
the year ended 31 March 2018 was replaced by an interim dividend of
2.67p declared by the Directors on 31 July 2018 as the Netice of 2018
AGM omitted a resolistion seeking shareholder approval of the final
dividend.

The total dividerd per Ordinary Share for the year ended 31 March 2019
will be 4.0p (2018: 4.0p).

As at 31 March 2019, the Company had distributable reserves of £564.6m
(2018: £117.5m).

Mitie operates a Dividend Re-Investment Pian (DRIP) which allows
shareholders to use their cash dividend to purchase additicral Ordinary
Shares. Further detail on the operation of the DRIP and how to apply
can be found on page 166 and are available from Mitie's Registrar, Link
Asset Services.

The trustees of the Cornpany's Employee Benefit Trust waived dividends
payable during the year and have agreed to waive future dividends.

In accordance with Section 726 of the Companies Act 2006. no
dividends are paid on shares held in treasury.
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Financial instruments

The Group's financial instruments include bank borrowing facilities,
finance leases, overdrafts, US private placement lean notes and
derivatives which are used to manage interest, currency and other
risks when necessary or material.

The principal objective of these instruments i to raise funds for generaf
corporate purposes and to manage finandial risk. Further details of these
ingtruments are given in Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

Statement of the Directors in respect of the

Annual Report and Accounts

In accordance with the Code, the Directors confirm that they consider
the Annual Report and Accounts, taken as a whole, to be fair, balanced
and understandable and that it provides the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Group's position and performance, business
model and strategy. When arriving at this position the Board was assisted
by various processes including the following:

+ The Annual Report and Accounts is drafted by senior managerment
with overall coordination by the Genera! Counsel & Company
Secretary to ensure consistency across the relevant sections;

+ A review is undertaken to assess whether the Annual Report and

Accounts is fair, balanced and understandable using a set of
pre-defined indicators (such as consistency with internally reported
information, investor communications and refative performance in the
industry).

Comprehensive reviews of drafts of the Annual Report and Accounts
are undertaken by the Executive Directors and other senior
management; .. o

An advanced draft is reviewed by the General Counsel & Company
Secretary and external advisoss; and

The final draft is reviewed by the Audit Committee prior to
consideration by the Board.

Details of the basis on which the Company generates and preserves
value over the longer term and the strategy for delivering the Company's
objectives are set out in the Strategic report.

Going concern

The Directors acknowledge the Financial Reporting Council's 'Guidance
on Risk Management, Internal Control and Related Financial and Business
Reporting issued in September 2014, The Directors have considered
principal risks and uncertainties affecting the Group which are described
on pages 3810 46,

The Directors have considered the Group's finandal position which
incorporates the Parent Company with reference to latest forecasts and
the actual performance for the period. The Group benefits from a
well-diversified portfolic of service offerings and has a broad, diverse
customer base.

The Group currently operates well within the financial covenants
associated with its committed funding lines. These inchude £191.5m of
US Private Placernent debt maturing in December 2019, December
2022 and December 2024. The Group also benefits from a committed
multi-currency revolving credit facility of £275.0m. which will mature in
July 2021. Together with the US Private Placements, this gives the Group
total committed funding of £466.5m, of which £221 9m was undrawn at
31 March 2(19.



The Group's US Private Placement and bank debt contain certain
financial covenants. The primary ratios are net dett to EBITDA and
EBITDA to net finance costs. These covenants are tested on a rolling
|2-month basis as at the March and September reporting dates.

At 31 March 2019, both covenant tests were passed. The Group is
forecasting to remain within its banking covenarits over the next
twelve months and has stress-tested these calculations for reasonable
possible adverse variances in trading and cash performance.

After making enquiries, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that
the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for a period of at least twelve months from the date of approval of the
financial statements. Accordingly. the Group and Parent Company
continues to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing
the consolidated financial statements.

Viability statement
This statement s detaited in full on pages 47 and 48.

In accordance with the Code, the Directors have assessed the viability
of the Group over a three-year period to 31 March 2022 taking into
account the Group's current position and the potential impact of the
principal risks set out in the Strategic report. Based on this assessment
the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group is and will
continue to be viable,

Disclosure of inforrnation to the auditor
Each Director in office as at the date of this Directors’ report
confirms that:

* Sofar as hefshe is aware, there is no relevant audit information
of which the Company's auditor is unaware: and L0

* Helshe has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have.taken asa;
Director to make himselffherself aware ofarfy rélevant. <-4
audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditor is aware
of that information.

This statement is given, and should be interpreted in accordance with,
Section 418 of the Companies Act 2006.

By order of the Board

Peter Dickinson
General Counsel & Company Secretary
5 June 2019

s It
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Directors’ report: statement of Directors’ responsibilities

Statement of Directors’ responsihilities in respect

of the Annual Report, the remuneration report and

the financial statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial staternents for
each financial year. Under that law the Directors are required to prepare
the Group financial statements in accordance with International Finandial
Reporting Standards (iFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and
applicable law and have elected to prepare the Company financial
statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and
applicable law) including FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework,

Under company law, the Directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that these give a true and fair view
of the state of afairs of the Group and Company and of their profit or
loss for the period.

In preparing these financial statemnents, the Directors are required to:

+ Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

* Make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable,
relevant, reliable and prudent;

+ For the Group financial statements, state whether they have been
prepared in accordance with [FRSs as adopted by the European Union.
subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the
financial statements; '

= For the Company financial statements, state whether applicable

© United Kingdom Accounting Standards have been followed,
subject to any material departures disdosed and explained in the
financial statements;

« Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless
it is inappropriate to presume that the Group or Comparny will
continue in business; '

= Prepare a Directors’ report, a Strategic report and Directors'
remuneration report which comply with the requirements of the
Comparies Act 2006.

The Lirectors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records
that are sufficient to show and explain the Company’s transactions and
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Compary and enable them to ensure that its financial staternents comply
with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Annual Report and
Accounts, taken as a whole, are fair, balanced and understandable and
provide the information necessary for shareholders 1o assess the Group’s
position and performance, business model and strategy.
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Website publication

The Directors are responsible for ensuring the Annual Report and
the financial statements are made available on a website. Financial
statements are published on the Company’s website in accordance
with legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial staternents, which may vary from legislation
in other jurisdictions. The maintenance and integrity of the Company's
website is the responsibility of the Directors, The Directors’
responsibility also extends to the ongoing integrity of the financiat
statements contained therein,

Directors’ responsibilities pursuant to DTR4.1
The Directors confirm that to the best of their knowiedge:

* The Group financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by
the European Union and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation and give a
true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, finandal position and profit
and loss of the Group; and

The management report includes a fair review of the development
and performance of the business and the financial position of the
Group and the Company, together with a description of the principal
risks and uncertainties that they face.

By order of the Board

Phit Bentley Paul Woolf

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
5 June 2019 S June 2019
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Improving our employment offer 10 cur
colleagues has been a key focus of the
past year as we look to consolidate our
position as one of the UK's most dynarmic,
forward-thinking and sustainable facilities
management companies, In FY 1819 we
launched People Hub - a single sowrce for
all people-related matters — and Learning
Hub to further our colleagues’ careers.

() Read more on PG 34-37

Nol7 5

top 50 UK core values that
employers drive our business
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Iindependent auditor’s report

Independent auditor’s report
to the members of Mitie Group plc

Opinion

We have audited the financal staternents of Mitre Group pic (the Parert Company) and its subsidiaries (the Group) for the year ended 3| March 2019
which comprise the Consolidated Income Statement, the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive income, the Consalidated and Parent Company
Balance Sheets, the Consolidated and Parert Company Statements of Changes in Equaty, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flowsand the Notes

to the finandial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the
preparation of the Group financial statements is applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European
Union. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Parent Company financial statements is applicable law and
United Kingdom Generally Accepted Practice, inchuding Financial Reporting Standard 101 "Reduced Disclosure Framework’ (Unitad ingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion the. financial siatements:

* give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the Parent Company’s affairs as at 31 March 2019 and of the Group's profit for the
year then ended;

« the Group financial statementts have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union;

= the Parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdormn Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

= the financial staternents have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and. as regards the Group financial
staternents, Artide 4 of the IAS Regulation,

Basis for opinion

‘We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (LK) (15As (LK) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audt of the finandal statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group and the Parent Comparnty in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financdial statements in the UK,
induding the FRC's Ethical Standard as applied to listed public interest entities, and we have futfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements. We bedfieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to principal risks, going concern and viability statement
WWe have nothing to report in respect of the following information in the annual report, in relation to which the 15As (LK) require us to report to you
whether we have anything material to add or draw attertion to:

» the disdosures in the annual report set out on pages 38 to 46 that describe the principal risks and explain how they are being managed or mitigated;

* the Directors’ conﬁm‘etnonsetoutonpage47lnﬂ1emnualrepm1thatﬁeyhavearredmnambmtmmafﬂ\epnmpalrtsksfanngthe
Group, including those that would threaten its business model, future performance, solvency or liquidity;

¢ the Directors’ statement set out on page 88 in the financial statements about whether the Directors corsidered it appropriate to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements and the Directors’ identification of any material uncertairties to the Group and
the Parert Campary’s ability 10 continue 10 4o so over a period of at least twelve maonths from the date of approval of the financial staternents;

» whether the Directors’ statement refating to going concern required under the Listing Rules in accordance with Usting Rule 9.8.6R(3) is materialty
inconsistent with our knowiedge obtained in the audit; or

» the Directors’ explanation set out on pages 47 and 48 in the annual report as to how they have assessed the prospects of the Group, over what
period they have done so and why they consider that period to be appropriate, and their statement as to whether they have a reasonable
expectation that the Group will be able to continue in operation and meet its liabiities as they fall due over the period of their assessment, induding
any related disdosures drawing attention to any necessary qualifications or assurmptions.

Key audit matters
A summary of our key audtt matters and the assessment against prior year is as follows:

Appropriateness of revenue recognition Yes — incorporates compliance with IFRS 15 in current year
Contractual rmatters and provisions Yes — with spedfic contractual matters being considered in each year
Racoverability of trade receivables and accrued income Yes

Acquisition of Vision Security Group New risk following aurvent year acquisition
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The prior year key audit matters also induded the transition to IFRS 15, presentation of other items in the consokdated financial staternents and
impairment of goodwil in the Property Managemert division.

Whilst compliance with [FRS |S remains a risk in respect of revenue recognition, following adoption in the prior year the key audit matter in respect
of transition is no longer applicable. In addition, the Social Housing business within the Property Managernent division has been disposed of in the year
and therefore impaimment of goodwill refating to the division is no longer considered 1o be a key audit matter-.

With the exception of a £20.0m provision being required in respect of a Section 75 pension liability (see Notes 4 and 32), the quantum of amounts
recorded as other items and the level of judgement reduced, this is therefore no longer considered to be a key audit matter.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current
period and include the most significant assessed risks of matenial misstaternent (whether or not due to fraud) that we identified induding those which
had the greatest effect orr the overall audit strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the finandial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide

a separate opinion on these matters.

Appropriateness of revenue recognition
Key Audit Mattar

How we addressed the Key Audit Matter in the Audit’

Following the adoption of IFRS 15 in the prior year, the level of
judgemerrtapdledbynﬂnagelmnmrapectofrevenuealﬁprofn
recogrition has significantly reduced

There remains however an assessment of new and modified contracts to
ensure compliance with IFRS 15 as well as the aut-off risk in respect of
recognition of accrued income. Unbilled accrued income at the year-erd
totalled £132.6m (see Note 15).

The accounting polices and critical judgements applied are disdosed in
Notes | and 2

judgements indude:

* Interpretation of contract terms;

* Assessment of revenue recognised in respect of projects with an
over time revenue recognition requirement;

* Mobilisation and pre-contract costs capable of being capitalised; and

* Assessment of revenue recognition based on performance obligations
being achieved.

We completed the following audit procedures:

+ Reviewed the basis of revenue recognised against the
requirernents of IFRS |5 and dhallenged and where necessary
corroborated to undertying audit evidence the key judgements
made by management;

¢ Tested a sample of new and modified contracts in the year to
confirm revenue recognition in accordance wath IFRS 15;

* Chbtained a sample of contracts to confirm that fixed revenue
had been appropriately recognised induding recalcutating the
expected revenue for the year;

+ Tested a sample of contract related assets to supporting
docurmerntation to ensure revenue had been recognised in line
with IFRS 15;

* For specific dvisional revenue streams we tested the operating
effectiveness of controls inchuding the testing of [T controls over
key operating systems; and

» Tested a sample of accrued income balances to supporting
documentation, which included procedures such as: assessing
procf of works; confirming custormer acceptance, reviewing
customer corresponderice; and ensuring cut-off had been
appropriately applied.

Recoverability of trade receivables and accrued income
Key Audi Matter

Heror we addressed the Key Audit Matter i the Audit

Material amounts of the billed and unbilled work remain outstanding for
more than three months as resolution of open issues remains ongoing on
various contracts.

The aged nature of these balances increases the risk of recoverability,
particularly where there is disagreement or dispute.

Trade receivables and accrued income are disclosed in Note |5 to the
financial staternents. Credit risk associated with trade receivables is disckosed
in Note 23 1o the financial statements.

In addition. in the current year, the Group has adopted IFRS 9 ‘Finandal
Instruments’, which includes the requirernents 1o determine the provision
for expected credit losses. This has resulted in a pre-tax adjustment to
opening reserves and receivables of £25m.

There is significant management judgement involved in assessing the
recoverability of these batances, taking into consideration the Group's
contractual rights, available evidence of work performed, as well as the
status of ongoing commerdal negatiations

This judgemert is compounded by system limitations within the Engineering
division which require a manual apeing of unbilled accrued income balances,
inareasing the risk of error.

For a sample of these balances we have challenged the validity
of the recorded debtors and accrued income as well as the
completeness of provisions and expected oredit losses by a
number methods induding:

& Where possible, conﬁn'ning aged balances to
post year-end cash receipts;

* Bxamining client approval of works orders or
contractual commitments,

» Reviewing evidence of work performed and status
of negotiations;

*» Testing the accuracy of ageing of trade receivable and
accrued income (induding the manual ageing requirement
inthe Engineering division),

* Reviewing in-house legal counsel reports for any
material disputes;

« Scntinising the methodology and assumptions used in
calculating the expected credit loss provision; and

* Analytical procedures to consider corsistency in the
provisioning methodology to the prior year.
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independent auditor’s report continued

Contractual matters and provisions
Key Audi Mattar

How we: addressad the Kay Audit Matter in the Audic

Under the terms for the disposal of the Sacial Housing business the
Group retained specific contractuel liabilities and provided certain
indemnities to the buyers relating to closed contracts.

‘Whilst certain liabilities have now been settied in full there remain
cortractual matters that require significant judgernent in estimating the
quantum of provisions required.

There is a risk that the provisions incuded as cantract specific costs and
disposal indemnities in Nate |9 and also disclosed within other items in
Note 4 are not complete.

We examined the Sodial Housing disposal documentation and held
discussions with in-house legal coursel ta confirm the contractual
fiabilities retained and indemnities given

We have read internal and externa! documentation to evaluate the
provisions recorded to ensure they are materially complete and
correctly calculated.

For all matters we have reviewed the disclosures inchuded in the
financial statements to ensure that they are cormplete and also fair,
balanced and understandable.

Acquisition of Yision Security Group
Key Audt Matter

How we addressad the Key Audit Matter iny the Audit

During the year, the Group acquired Visicn Secqurity Group Limited for net
consideration of £8.2m,

There are several judgemenital areas in the accounting for the acquisition
induding

* Fair value of consideration, specifically related to an adjustrnent of
£5.28m being recorded prior 1o reaching a final agreerment of the
completion accounts with the sellers;

* Fair value of the opening acquisition balance sheet assets and habilities;

¢ Adoption of IFRS 9 and 15 into the opening acquisition balance
sheet; and

* Valuation and the usefu! economic ife of the separately identifiable
customer relationship intangible asset.

In determining the completion accounts adjustments and arriving at

their best estimate, managerent have obtained thind-party accounting

and legal suppart.

The transaction resulted in a gain in bargain purchase of £8.8m which has

been recorded as a credit within the income statement.

The Group's accourting policy for business combinations is disclosed in
Note |, the judgements made in Note 2 and further detail concerning the
transaction within Note 30.

Our audit procedures included:

* With the support of our internal specialists we assessed
the fair value of consideration, specifically in respect of the
completion accounts adjustments made by management.
This included reviewing management papers and judgements,
the sale and purchase agreements, comespondence with the
vendors and third-party reports obtained by management to
support their assessment;

» Substantively audited acquisition net book values of assets
and liabilities and resulting fair value adjustments including the
adoption of IFRS 9 and |5; and

= With the support of our iternal valuation specialists we
challenged the key inputs, assumptions and methodology
used by managerment in determining the fair values of
intangible assets acquired.

In light of the assessed gain on bargain purchase we challenged

managernert on its recognition.

We have also reviewed the relevant disclosure in the financial

statements to assess compliance with the requirements of IFRS 3

and also the disciosure in Note 2 of the significant estimates and

judgements made.

Our application of materiality

We apply the concept of materiality both in planning and performing our audit and in evahsating the effect of misstatements. We consider materiality

tc be the

magnitude by which misstatemertts, induding omissions, could influence the economic dedisions of reasonable users that are taken on the

basis of the finandial statements. Importantly, misstatements below these levels will not necessarily be evaluated as immaterial as we also take accourt
of the nature of identified misstatements and the particular circumstances of their occurrence, when evaluating their effect on the financial staterments

as a whole.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined mateniality for the Group financial statermerts to be £3.8m and for the Farent Company to
be £29m. Performance materiality, based on our assessment of past misstaternents and the cortrol environment was calculated based on 708 of

our materiality.

The materiality we appiied in respect of the Group financial statements equates to 5% of continuing profit before other items and tax. Parert Compary
materiality was set at 1% of net assets, and capped at 75% of Group materiality.

We consider the use of 5% of continuing profit before other items to be the most iate performance measure for the basis as it removes the
impact of certain one-off or exceptional items impacting the underlying profit of the Group and is also a key measure for stakeholders. Other iterns are
detaiied in Note 4 to the Group financial statemenits.

We set component rmateriality between £09m and £2.6m based on the overall sze and respective visk of sacth componert.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to the Committes all audit differences in excess of £190,000 & well as differences below
that threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds. We also reported to the Audit Committee on disclosure matters that we
identified when assessing the overall presentation of the finandal statements.
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An overview of the scope of our audit

The Group operates through a number of legal entities, which form reporting components — the reporting components are consistent with the
segmental analysis as disclosed in Note 3 to the finandal statements with the exception of Vision Security Group which is treated as a separate
component for audit purposes but forms part of the Security division within the segmenttal analysis. Alt components were subject to full scope
audits with the exception of certain overseas entities which were disaggregated from the division and were subject to desktop review procedures.
All audits and desktop review procedures were completed by BDO LLP, :

The audit procedures were carried out over 95% of Group revenue, profit before other iterms and total assets.

® Fullaudit
@ Deskiop reviews

019 2019 2019

Total revenue Profit before Total assets
other items

The Group audit team set component mateniality levels as detailed above with work on all componerts being performed by the Group auditors under
the direction and supervision of the Group engagemernt partner, With the exception of the non-significant components, the Group engagement partner
visited all component locations and attended various telephone conference meetings through the planning, fieldwork and completion stages of the audit.

We also gained an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework applicable to the Group and the industry in which it operates. and considered
the risk of acts by the Group that were contrary to applicable laws and regulations, including fraud. We designed audit procedures at Group and
significart componertt level to respond to the risk, recognising that the risk of not detecting a matenalmlsstatmmduetofraud'shnghermanﬂ\end(
of nat detecting cne resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate conceaiment by, for example, forgery or intentional

or through collusion. We foaused on laws and regulations that could give rise to a material misstaternent in the financial statemerts, including, butnot
limited to, the Companies Act 2006, the UK Listing Rules and tax legislation.

Our tests included agreeing the financial statement disdosures to underlying supporting documentation, enquiries with managernent and enguiries of in-
house legal counsel. There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above and, the further removed non-compliance with laws and
regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial staterments, the less likely we would become aware of it. We did not identify any
key audit matters relating to irmegularities, induding fraud. As in all of our audits, we also addressed the risk of management override of internal controls,
inchuding testing journals and evaluating whether there was evidence of bias by the Directors that represented a risk of material misstaternertt due

to fraud,

Other information

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, cther than the
financial statemerts and cur auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the finandial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the
extent otherwise explictly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance condusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. if we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required 1o determine whether there is a material misstaternentt in the financial statements
or a material misstaternent of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstaterment of the
other information, we are required 10 report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

In this context, we akso have nothing to report in regard to our responsibility 1o specifically address the following iterrs in the other information and to
report as uncorrected material misstatemnents of the other information where we conclude that those items meet the following conditions:

* Fair, balanced and understandable set out on page B6 — the statement by the Directors that they consider the annual report and financial statements
taken as a whole are fair, balanced and understandable and provide the information necessary for sharehoiders to assess the Group's performance,
business mode! and strategy, 5 materially inconsistent with our knowledge obtained in the audit; or

* Audit Committee reporting set out on pages 62 to 67 —the section describing the work of the Audit Committee does not appropriately address
matters communicated by us to the Audit Committee; or
* Directors’ statement of compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code set out on page 53 — the parts of the Directors’ statement required
under the Listing Rules relating to the Company’s compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code cortaining provisions specified for review by
the auditor in accordance with Listing Rule 9.8.10R({2) do not properly disclose a departure from a relevant prowvision of the UK Corporate
Governance Code
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Independent auditor’s report continued

Opinions on octher matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, the part of the Directors’ remuneration report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006,

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit: .

¢ the information given in the strategic repart and the Directors’ repart for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is
consistent with the finandial statements; and

* the strategic repart and the Directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and Parert Comparnty and its ervironment obtained in the course of the audit, we

have nat iderttified material misstaternersts in the strategic report or the Directors’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in

OUr OpiNIoN;

*» adequate acoourting necords have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches
not visited by us; or )

» the Parert Cornpany fimancial statements and the part of the Directors’ remuneration report to be audited are not in agreement with the accounting
records and retumns; or

= certain discosures of Directors’ remuneration spedfied by law are not made; or

» we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audiit.

Responsibilities of Directors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ responsibilities staternent set out on page 88, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
staternents and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such intarnal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of finandial staternents that are free from matenial misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error.

in preparing the financial statemertts, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group's and the Parent Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting urless the Directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or the Parent Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to cbtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with [SAs (UK) will aways detect a material misstaternent when it exists. Misstatements can anise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic dedsions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the: finandial staternertts is located on the Finandal Reporting Counil's website at:
www.frcorgUkfauditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Other matters which we are required to address B

Following the recommendation of the Audit Cornmitiee, we were appointed by the Audit Committee on 19 Septemnber 2017 to audit the financial
statemenits for the year ending 31 March 2018 and subsequent financial periods. The period of total unimterrupted engagement is two years, covering
the years ended 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2019

The non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were not provided to the Group or the Parent Company and we rermain independent
of the Group and the Parert Company in conducting our audit.

Our audit opinion is consistent with the additional report to the Audit Committee.

Use of our report

This report is made solefy to the Parent Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006.
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Parent Company’s members those matters we are required to state to them
in an auditer's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitied by taw, we do not accept or assume responsibifity to anyone other
than the Parent Company and the Parent pany’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed,

72).

Scott McNpughton (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of BDO LLP, Statutory Auditor

London
5 une 2019

BDO LLP s a limited iability partnership registered in England and Wales (with registered number OC305127).
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Consolidated income statement
For the year ended 31 March 2019

018 018"

£
Before Other Before Other %
other items ltems' Total ot itarrs iterns’? Tow!
Notes tm £m tm fm om €m 2
Continuing operations E
Revenve . 3 22204 - 1,211.4 20306 - 20306 L]
Cost of sales (1.923.%) - (1,923.9) (1.7628) - (1.762.8)
Gross profit 2978 - 297.5 2678 - 2678
Ackinistrative expenses (209.3) {38.0) Q413 . (1848) (621 (2667)
Operating profit/(loss) 36 88.2 {38.0) 50.2 82 (821) [N
Finance income 0.2 - 0.2 0.l - 0.1 o
Finance costs 8 (14.0) - (14.9) (166) - (166) é
Net finance costs (13.8) - (13.8) (165} - {165) §
Profiti(loss) before tax 3 744 (38.0) 36.4 &7 g1y (154)
Tax 9 (13.8) 74 (6.4) (I 100 {1y
Profit/{loss) from continuing operations aRer tax 60,6 (30.6) 300 556 72.1) (165)
Discontinued operations ]
L=
Profit/(koss) from discontinued operatiors S 3.1 (2.2) 0.9 56 (15.1) (9.5) g
Profiti(ioss) for the year 3.7 (32.8) 30.9 812 (872) (260) &
Attribuiable to: §
Ecuity holders of the parent 63.7 @2.8) 209 &0.1 (872) Q7 w
Non-controlling interests - - - 1 - Ll
6317 (32.8) 30.9 612 872) Q60)
Earnings/(loss) per share (EPS) attributable to
equity holders of the parent
From continuing operations:
Bask 1 16.8p 8.3p 152 “9p
Diuted _ u t6.7p 8.3p I5.bp 49
From continuing and discontinued operations:
Basic 1 17.7p 8.6p 168p . Fep
Diutad 1 17.5p 8.5p 167p &P
Notes

|. The Group has FRS 9 starting | 2018 using the transition option svailsble in the standard by discosing the impact as an adustmeant 10 opening retained camings at the date of mitial
appliation. Under mhmﬁw‘mdaﬂ%smmr o

1 Rgpresented to dassiy the Pest Control and SociaF Housing businesses as dscontinued operations. See Now |

3. Other ibems are s described n Note 4.
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 3| March 209

0109 218"
Notes fm n
Profit/(loss) for the year 309 (260)
lkems that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Re-measurement of net defined benefit pension kabiity 2 (13.9) 19.7
Income tax credit/(charge) relating to tems not reclassified g 24 34
(s 163
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange dfferences on translation of foreign operations ©3) 0.
Gairs on hedge of a net investment taken to equity o1 04
Net gains on cash flow hedges arising during the year 7 22 ol
Income tax (charge)/credit relating to items that may be redlssified 9 {0.3) Ql
17 07
Other comprehensive (exp )income for the financial year {9.8) 170
Total comprehensive income/{expense) for the financial year 2.1 (9.0
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 211 (0.
Nor-controfing interests - Il
Nee: :
|. The Group has FRS 9 g | 2018 using the transition opticn Jvaiible in the standard ing the 7 T 10 openng earrings at the date of inftial
¢ ;doﬂpt;:d 1 mseurtrg Apri 2018 using e U option n by disclosing the impact as an g
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Consolidated balance sheet
Asat 3| March 2019

2019 018 ¢
Notes im £m g
Mon-current assets E
Goodwill 12 2938 3096 ¥
Ofther intanghle assets (3 507 383 §
Property, plant and equipment 14 290 336
Interest in joint ventures and assocates - 08
Derivative finandial instrurnerts 23 164 6.l
Contract assets 16 4.5 1B
Deferred tax assets ' 2 387 367
‘Total non-current assets 433.1 4269
Current assets g
Irwentories 54 69 §
Trade and other recetvables 15 4352 3860 K
Contract assets 16 1.6 ... 94
Current tax assets . - b3 63
. - r-f-j— 2\\( ﬁ*
Cash and cash equivalents : k21 g M 1084, 598
Total current assets 7 i 550.8 4594
Total assets 983.9 8863
Current liabilities g
 Trade and other payables _ i7 (531.9) (496.8) ;
Deferred income 8 (54.9) (46.2) =
Current tax fiabiities (0.3) - b
Financing liabilities 22 (40.7) 08} £
Prowisions 19 (50.6) (25.2)
Total current liabllities . (680.4) {569.0)
Net current liabilities {129.6) {(1096)
Non-current liabifities
Deferred income 18 (18.4) (188)
Financing abilities 2 (224.8) (2586)
Provisions 19 (6.0) 63)
Reticementt beneft labilities 3 (63.8) (568)
Deferred tax liabilities ’ 20 (2.9) 08)
Total non-current liabilities ’ (3159) (3413)
Total liabilities (996.3) 9103)
Net liablities (12.4) (240)

Note: .
|, The Group has adopted IFRS 9 starting | Aprd 2018 using the transition option 2vaiksble in the standard by disclosing the impact 25 an adustment 1o opening retained eamings at the date of initia)
appiication. Under this option, the comparative information is nat restated,
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Consolidated balance sheet continued
Asat 31 March 2019

2019 2018

Notes £m m
Equity
Share capital 28 9.3 93
Share prerium account 29 130.6 1306
Merger reserve 29 104.2 104.2
Own shares reserve 23 (38.1) (434
Other reserves 29 103 13
Hedging and translation reserve 3 {5.6) 73)
Retained losses (223.1) (287
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent {12.4) 240y

Nore:

1. The Group has IFRS 9 ing 2018 using the transition eption available in the standard by distosing the & *®an L ing retaned rygs at the date of iniaal
: adned starting | Apri 2 LISH_!'EM eptian bry dsclesing the rrgact adiustment to opening eamngs

option, the

The consolidated finandial statemertts of Mitie Group pi, company registration number SC019230 were approved by the Board of Directars and

authorised for fssue on 5 June 2019. They were signed on its behalf by

Chief Executive Officer
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 March 2019

apial aount reserve reserwe resaryes reserve earnings Fotal interests

€m fm m {m £m €m m m fm tm E
Adjusted balance at | Aprl 2017 92 1306 918 (42.2) 103 80 Q14 e 13 (18.4) 3"
Loss for the year - - - - - - @y @ry Ll (26.0) g
Other comprehensive incorme - - - - - 07 163 17.0 - 17.0
Total comprehensive expense - - - - - 07 (108) (ro.1) I 9.0)
Divicrerds paid - - - - - - (4.8) 4.8) - (4.9)
Share-based payments - - - 65 10 - 03 8.2 - 8.2
in nan-controling interests ol - 124 @1} - - (L0 34 34 -
At 31 March 2018 93 1306 1042 (43.4) n3 73y (287 (24.0) - (24.9)

: -3

At | Apri 2018 93 1205 1042 (434) 13 73 (2287  (24.0) - (24.9) E
Impact, of change in accounting poficy’ - - - - - - () @) - 2.1) g
Adiusted balance at | Apri 2018 93 1306 1042 (434) 1.3 (X)) (2308) (26.1) - (26.1) ©
Profit for the year - - - - - - 309 309 - 30.9
Other comprehensive (expense)income - - - - - 1.7 (115) 9.5) - 99)
Total comprehensive income .= - - - - 1.7 194 21.0 - 1.1
Dividends paid - - - - - - (144)  (14.4) - (14.4)
Share-based payments - - - 53 ) - 09 5.4 - 5.4
Other movernents - - - - - - 18 1.8 - 1.8
At 31 March 2019 23 1306 1042 @E8.1) 103 66  (22) (12.4) - (124)
Notes

I, Other reserves indude the share-based payments reserve. the revalbuation reserve and the capital redempition reserve. See Note 29,
2 The Group has adopted [FRS 9 starting 1 April 201 8 using the transition option avalible in the standhrd by disriesing the impacts as an adustment 1o opering retained eamings at the date of initial
application, Under this option, the comprative information & not restated.
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Consolidated statement of cash flows
For the year ended 3| March 2019

0l¢ 2018

Notes &m £m
Cortinuing operations - operating profit before other tems’ 88.2 832
Cortirusing operations — other ftems* . 4 {38.0) B2
Discontinued operations — operating hoss after other ftems' (2.0) ©4)
Adjustments for:
Share-based payments expense 3 5.0 46
Defined benefit pension costs 2 1.8 al
Past service costs and cyrtalments 32 1.6 19
Defined benefit pension contributions 32 (11.8) “n
Depredation of property. plant and equipment 14 1.6 128
Amortisation of intzngible assets 3 9.0 135
Amortisation of contract assets 16 0.8 [+
Share of profit of joint vertures and assocdates. 5 (0.5) (08)
Irpairment of goodwdl ' 12 - 346
Impairment of intangible assets 13 LI 104
Gain on bargain purchase 30 (8.8) -
Gain on disposal of property. plant and equipment (0.8) ©.0)
(Gain)foss on disposal of subsidiaries 5 (7.9) 02
Other : - (.1
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 395 672
Decreasef{increase) in inventories 0.4 {0.n
Increase in recehvables 51.7) IS
Increase in contract assets {4.7) 3)
Increase/{decrease) in deferred income 5.t (128}
Increase/{decrease) in payables 3.4 vy
Increase in provisions 5.5 45
Cash generated from/(used in) operations 27 4718 79
Incorme taxes received 47 1.6
Interest paid (124 (135)
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities 308 %8)
Investing activities
Acquisition of subsiciaries, net of cash acquired? 30 *.1) -
Disposal of subsidiarjes, net of cash disposed” 5 528 ©n
Dividends recetved from joint vertures and assocates - 06
Interest received 0.2 0z
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 4 (1) {158)
Purchase of gther intangible assets 13 Ly ©0)
Disposal of property, plant and equipment 4.7 16
Net cash generated fromi{used in) investing activities 25.1 {32.1)

Notex

I. Re-presented to classify the Pest Control and Social Housing businesses as dsoortinued operations. See Note |,
2 Disposal of subsiciaries, et of cash disposed of (52.8m for the year ended 31 March 2019 is stated net of £5.3m of transaction costs (see Note 5). The net cash inflow from acquisition and disposal
of subsidiaries was £40.5m (2018: £2.7m outflow) induding costs of £2.6m retated to the VSG acquisition (see Nate 4).
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Consolidated statement of cash flows continued
For the year ended 3| March 2019

2019 018
e A

Financing activities s

Increase/{repayments) of obligations under finance leases 27 0.2 (S 3

Private placement notes repaid and associated hedges settled - (602) 5

{Repayments of)/proceeds from bank loans 7 @n 83

Proceeds from re-issue of treasury shares Iil - 34

Purchase of non-controlling interests 30 - GO

Equity dividends paid 10 (14.4) (48)

Net cash ured in financing activithes ' (16.3) (278)

Net increzsef(decrease) in cash and cash equivalertts Y3 (69.7)

Net cash and cash equivalerts &t beginning of the year 59.8 1294 Y

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes - 04 8

Nat cash and cash squivalents at end of the year 21 108.4 598 E

The above statement of consolidated cash flows indudes cash flows from both continuing and discontinued operations. Further details of the cash flows
relaﬁngtodiscorrtjnuedcperatiasares%mminNoteS.

Reconcillation of net cash low to movements in net debt Nates 1019 2018

m m
Cash drivers
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 106 (697)
Decrease/(increase) in bank loans 7 2.1 @83)
Private placement notes repaid and associted hedges settled - 602 g
(Increase}irepayments of obligations under finance leases 7 ©.2) 5 5
Non-cash drivers 3
Non-cash movernent in bank loans 27 (0.2) 7 g
Non-cash movement in private placement notes and assodiatad hedges 27 22 o3 Z
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 7 03 04
Decrease/(increase} in net debt during the year 2.8 {463)
Opening net debt (193.5) (147.2)
Closing net debt 2 (140.7) (1935)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 3| March 2019

I. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies

(a) Basis of preparation
The Group's financial staternents for the year ended 31 March 2019 have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) adopted for use in the European Union and therefore the Group's financial staterents comply with Article 4 of the EU IAS Regulation.

The Group's finandial statemerts have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial instrumertts which are required to be
measured at fair value.

Going concern

The Directors admowledge the Finandal Reporting Council's ‘Guidance on Risk Management, Internal Control and Related Finandial and Business
Repoerting' issued in September 2014. The Directors have considered principal risks and uncertainties affecting the Group which are descnbed on
pages 38 1o 46.

The Group currently operates well within the finandial covenants associated with its committed funding lines. These indude £191.5m (being the
repayment amount based on the original dollar exchange rates when issued) of US Private Placement debt maturing in Decermnber 2019, December
2022 and December 2024 and a committed multi-currency revolving credit fadility of £275.0m which will exire in july 2021, These facilities give the
Group total committed funding of £466.5m, of which £221.9m was undrawn at 31 March 2019.

The key ratios in these financial covenants are net debt to covenant EBITDA and covenant EBITDA to net finance costs. These covenants are tested on
aroling 12-month basis as at the September and March reporting dates. At 31 March 2019, both covenant tests were passed. The Group is forceasting
to remain within its banking covenanls over the next twelve months and has stress-tested thesa calculations for reasonable possible adverse variances
intrading and cash performance.

Supported by the liquidity provided by committed banking facilities, notwithstanding the Group is in a net current fiability position, the Cirectors

have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly,
the Group continues to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the condersed consolidated finandial statements.

Discontinued operations

On 30 September 2018, the Group completed the sale of Mitie Pest Control bimited (Pest Cortrol) which previcusly formed a separate major line
of business of the Group as part of the Cleaning & Ervironmenttal Services division. As a result of the disposal, the results of the Pest Control business
have been dassified as discontinued operations and comparative information has been restated.

On 19 Novemnber 2018, the Group entered into an agreement to sell Mitie Property Management Limited and MPS Housing Limited, together

the Sodial Housing business, which previously formed a separate mgjor line of business of the Group as part of the Property Management division.

As a result of the disposal, which was completed on 30 November 2018, the results of the Social Housing business have been dassified as discontinued
operations and comparative information has been restated. The remaining roofing and painting activities of the former Property Managernent division
have been integrated into the Engineering Services division.

Accounting standards that are newly effective in the current year

With the exception of the adoption of IFRS 9 which is discussed below, none of the new standards and amendments that are effective for the first ime
this year have had a material effect on the Group.

IFRS 9 ‘Financial instrumertts’ became effective for the Group starting | April 2018 and replaces the requirementts of IAS 39 Financial instruments:
recognition and measurement’. The main changes introduced by the new standard are new classification and measurement reguirements for certain
financial assets, a new Bxpected Credit Loss (ECL) model for the impairmert of finandal assets, revisions to the hedge accourting model, and
amendments to disclosures. The Group elected, from | April 2018, to continue to apply the hedge accounting guidance in 1AS 39 ‘Financial instruments:
recognition and measurement’.

With respect to loss allowances for trade recenables, IFRS 9 replaces the ‘incurred loss’ model in 1AS 39 with an ECL model. The Group, from | April
2018, measures kxs allowances for trade recevables and accrued income at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses using bath quantitative
and qualitative information and analysis based on the Group's historical experience and forward-looking information. The Group has determined that
the transition 1o IFRS 9 resulted in an additional loss allowance for trade receivables and accrued income as &t | April 2018 of £25m and gave rise to a
tax credit of £0.4m. The additional loss allowance has been applied as an adjustment to opening retained earnings at | April 2018 and therefore, the
prior year comparative information is not restated.

Other than as stated above, the accounting palicies and methods of cakulation adopted in the preparation of these Group consolidated financial
staternents are consistent with those followed in the preparation of the Group's consolidated financial staterents for the year ended 31 March 2018,
which were prepared in actordance with IFRS as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and as adopted by the EUL
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Accounting standards that are not yet mandatory and have not been applied by the Group
With the exception of IFRS 16 which is discussed below, none of the new standards and amendments that are not yet effective are expected to have
a material effect on the Group.

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ becarne effective for the Group from | April 2019 and replaces the requirements of IAS |7 'Leases’. An asset representing the Group's
right as a lessee 10 use a leased item, and a liability for future lease payments, will be recognised for all leases, subject to limited exemptions for short-
term leases and low-value lease assets. The costs of leases will be recognised in the consolidated income statement spiit between depreciation of the
lease asset and a finance charge on the lease liability. This is simifar to the accounting for finance leases under LAS 17, but substantively different to the
accounting for operating leases (under which no lease asset or lease labdity was recognised and reqntak payable were charged 1o the consolidated
income statement on a straight-line basis).

During the year, management set up a project team to review the Group's leasing arrangements in light of the new lease accounting rules in IFRS 16,
At 31 March 2019, the Group has non-cancellable operating fease commitments of £72.0m (see Note 25). Of these commitments, £1.4m relates to
short-term leases and £0.1m to low-vaiue leases which will be recognised on a straight-ine basis as an expense in the consolidated income statement.
For the remaining lease commitments, the Group expects to recognise, at | April 2019, right-of-use assets in the range of £82.0m to £87.0m, and lease
hiabilities in the range of £81 Om to £86.0m (after adustments for prepayments and accrued iease payments recognised as at 31 March 2019). Overall
net assets will be in the range of £4.0m lower to £60m higher and net current liabifities will be higher by between £21 0m and £26.0m due to the
presentation of a portion of lease liabilities as a current Babdity.

As a result of adopting the new rules, for the year ending 31 March 2020. the Group expects net profit before tax to inarease by between £nil and
£3.0m. Operating profit is expected to increase by between £24.0m and £29.0m as the operating lease rentals payable which were previously induded
in operating profit are exduded, with this increase being offset by additional depredation of between £22.0m and £240m as the right-of-use assets are
depreciated. [n addition, operating cash flows are expected to increase by between £24.0m and £2%.0m as repayment of the lease liabilities is redlassified
as cash used in financing activities.

The Group's activities as a lessor are not material and therefore, there is no significant impact from these activities on the consolidated financial
staternents as a result of adopting IFRS 16. However, certain additional disclosure may be required in the notes to the consolidated finandal statements.

(b) Significant accounting policies
The significant accounting polices adopted in the preparation of the Group's IFRS financial information are set out below,

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated finandal statements comprise the financial statements of Mitie Group pic and all its subsidiaries. The Parert Company has applied
FRS 101 "Reduced disdosure framework’ in the preparation of its individual finandal staternerits. FRS 101 applies IFRS as adopted by the European
Union with certain disdosure exernptions.

Subsidiaries are corsofidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group and cease to be consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred out of the Group. The resutts, assets and liabilities of joint ventures and associates are accounted for under the equity method of
accounting. Where necessary, adjustments are made 16 the financial statemerts of subsidiaries, joint ventures and assodiates to bring the accourting
policies used into line with those used by the Group.

All inter-company balances and transactions, induding unrealised profits arising from inter-group transactions, have been eliminated in full.

Interests of non~controlfing interest shareholders are measured at the non-controlting interest’s proportion of the net fair value of the assets and
liabilities recogrised. Changes in a parent's ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not resutt in a loss of control are accounted for within shareholders'
equity. No gain or loss is recognised on such transactions and goodwill is not re-measured. Any difference between the change in the non-cortrolling
inerest and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to the equity holders of the parent.

Statutory and non-statutory measures of performance
The financial staterments contain all the information and disclosures required by the relevant accounting standards and regulatory obligations that apply
to the Group.

lnthefnancnalﬂmmmeGmuphasdededtopmvdemfur&Udsdosursmdpa{ommeawru reported as ‘pefore cther fterms’,
in orderto present its financial results in 2 way that demonstrates the performance of contirwing operations.

Oﬂ'erﬂmarenmoffnancalpafonnanceuhwhﬂ\eGmpbele\esslmid be separately dertified on the face of the income staterent to assist
in understanding the underlying financial performance achieved by the Group. The Group separatety reports the impairment of goodwill, the cost of
restructuring programmes, acquisition and disposal costs induding the wrrite-off and amortisation of acquisition related intangible assets, the resulis of
and costs assodiated with disposals, and other excepticnal items and their related tax effect as other itemns. Should these items be reversed, disclosure of
this would also be as other items.

Separate presentation of these items is intended 1o enhance understanding of the financial performance of the Group in the period and the extent

1o which results are influenced by material unusual andfor non-recurring iterns. Further detail of other iterns is set out in Note 4.

In addition, following the guidelines on Alternative Performance Measures (APM) issued by the European Securities and Markets Authorities (ESMA),
the Group has induded an APM appendix to the financaf staterments on pages 163 to 165.

Revenue recognition policy

The Group operates contracts with a varying degree of complexity across its service lines, so a range of methods is used for the recognition of revenue
based on the principles set out in IFRS | 5. Revenue represents income recognised in respect of services provided during the period based on the
delivery of performance ohligations and an assessmentt of when control is transferred to the custormer.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2019

I. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies continued

IFRS 15 provides a single, principles based five-step model to be applied to all sales contracts as outlined below. It is based on the transfer of control
of goods and services to customers and replaces the separate modeks for goods, services and construction contracts

Step | — identify the contraci(s} with a customer

For all contracts with customers, the Group determines if the arrangement creates enforceable nghts and obligations. This assessment results in
certain Framework arrangements or Master Service Agreements (MSAs) not meeting the definition of contracts under IFRS 15 unless they specify
the minimurn quartities to be ordered. Usually the work order and any change orders together with the Framework or MSA will constitute the
IFRS 15 contract.

Duration of controct

The Group frequently enters into contracts with customers which contain extension periods at the end of the initial term, automatic annual renewals,
and/or termination for convenience and break clauses that could impact the actual duration of the contract. As the term of the contract impacts the
period over which amortisation of contract assets and revenue from performance obligations may be recognised, the Group applies judgement to
assess the impact that such clauses have in determining the relevant contract term. In forming this judgement, managernent considers certain influencing
factors induding the amount of discount provided, the presence of significant termination penalties in the contract, and the relationship, experience
and performance of contract delivery with the custormer and/or the wider industry, in understanding the likelihood of extersion or termination of the
contract.

Contract modifications

The Group's contracts are frequently amendled for changes to austomer requirements such as change orders and variations. A contract modification
takes place when the amendment creates new enforceable rights and obligations or changes the exdsting price or scope {or both) of the contract, and
the modification has been approved. Contract modifications can be approved in writing, by oral agreement, or implied by customary business practices.
if the parties to the contract have not approved a contract modification, revenue is recognised in accordance with the exdsting contractual terme.

if a change in scope has been approved but the corresponding change in price is still being negotiated, the Group estimates the change to the total
transaction price.

Contract modifications are accounted for as a separate contract if the contract scope changes due to the addition of distinct goods or services and
the change in contract price reflects the standalone selling price of the distinct goods or services. The facts and cincumstances of any modification are
considered in isolation 25 these are specific to each contract and may result in different accourting outcomes.

Step 2 — Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Performance obligations are the contractual promises by the Group to transfer distinct goods or services to a customer. For arrangements with muktiple

componertts to be defivered to customers such as in the Group's integrated facilities management contracts, the Group applies judgerment to consider

whether those promised goods or services are:

i.  dstinct and accounted for as separate performance obligations;

ii. combined with other promised goods or services until a bundle is identified that s distinet; or

iil. partof aseries of distinct goods or services that are substartially the same and have the same pattern of transfer over time ie. where the customer
is deemed to have simultaneously received and consumed the benefits of the goods or services over the e of the contract, the Group treats the
seres as a single performance obligation.

Step 3 — Determine the tronsaction price

At contract inception, the total transaction price is determined, being the amount to which the Group expects 1o be entitled and has rights under the

contract. This includes the fixed price stated in the contract and an assessment of any variable consideration, up or down, resutting from e g, discournts,

rebates, service penalties. Variable consideration is typically estimated based on the expected value method and is only recognised to the extent it is

highly probable that a subsequent change in its estimate woukd not result in a significartt revenue reversal.

Step 4 - Aliocate the transaction price 1o the performance obligations in the contract

The Group allocates the total transaction price to the iderified performance obligations based on their refative: stand-alone sefiing prices. This is
predominantly based on an observable price or a cost phus margin arrangement.

Step 5 — Recognise revenue when or as the entity satisfies its performance obligations

For each performance obligation, the Group deterrmines if revenue will be recognised over time or at a point in time. Where revenue is recognised
over time, the Group applies the relevant output or input revenue recognition method for measuring progress that depicts the Group's performarce
in transferring control of the goods or services to the customer.

Certain long-term contracts use output methods based upon surveys of performance completed, appraisals of results achieved, or milestones reached
which allow the Group to recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurementts of the value to the customer of the goods or services transferred
0 date relative to the remaining goods or services under the contract.

Under the input method, measured progress and revenue are recognised in direct proportion to costs incurred where the transfer of control is most
dosely aligned to the Group's efforts in delivering the senvice.

Where deemed appropriate, the Group will utilise the practical expediert within IFRS 15, allowing revenue to be recogrised at the amount which

the Group has the right to invoice, where that amount cormesponds directly with the value to the customer of the Group's performance obligations
completed to date.

If performance obligations do nct meet the criteria to recognise revenue over time, nevenue is recognised at the point in time when control of the
goods or services passes to the custorner. This may be at the point of physical delivery of goods and acceptance by a customer or when the customer
obtains contral of an asset or service in a contract with custorner-specified acceptance eriteria Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered
and control has passed to the austomer.
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Long-term complex contracts

The Group has a number of long-term complex contracts which are predominantly imtegrated faclities management arrangements. Typically, these
contracts involve the provision of multiple service lines, with 2 single management team providing an integrated senvice. Such contradis tend to be
transformational in nature where the business works with the custormer to identify and implement cost saving initiatives across the Iife of the contract
The Group considars the majority of services provided within integrated fachities management contracts meet the definition of a series of distinct goods
or services that are substartially the same and have the same pattern of transfer over time. The series constitutes services provided in distinct time
increments (e.g. monthly or quarterty) and therefore the Group treats the series of such services as one performance cbligation.

The Group alsc defivers major project-based services under long-term complex contracts that indude performance obligations under which revenue
is recognised over time as value from the service is transferred to the customer. This may be where the Group has a legally enforceable rightto
remuneration for the work compieted to date, and therefore revenue will be recognised in line with the associated transfer of control

Repeat service-based contracts (single and bundled contracts)
The Group operates a number of single or joint-service line arrangements where repeat services meet the definition of a series of distinct services that
are substantialy the same {e.g. the provision of deaning, secunity, catering, waste, and landscaping services). They have the same pattern of transfer of

value to the customer as the series constitites core services provided in distinct time increments (e.g. monthly or quarterly). The Group therefore treats -

the series of such services as one performance obligation

Short-term: service-based arrangements

The Group deltvers a range of other short-term service based performance obligations and professional services work across certain reporting
segments for which revenue is recognised at the point in time when control of the service has transfermed 1o the customer, This may be at the point
when the customer obtains control of the service in a contract with customer-spedified acceptance writeria eg the defivery of a strategic operating
model or report.

Other revenue
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principa! outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts estirnated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.

Contract costs

The Group incurs pre-contract expenses (e.g. legal costs) when it is expected to enter into a new contract. The incremental costs to obtain a contract
with a customer are recognised within contract assets if it is expected that those costs will be recoverable. Costs to obtain a contract that would have
been inqurred regardless of whether the contract was obtained are recognised as an expense in the period.

Contract fulfilment costs

Costs incurred to ensure that the project or programme has appropriate organisational, opemtlonalmdtedwcalmfrashutures.andmedramm

place to enable the delivery of full servicas under the contract target operating model, are defined as contract fulfilment costs. Only costs which meet
all three of the criteria bekow are induded within contract assets on the balance sheet:

i.  the costs directly relate to the contract (eg. direct labour, materials, subcontractors);
ii.  the Group is building an asset that will subsequently be used to deliver contract autcomes; and
iii. the costs are expected to be recoverable ie. the contract is expected to be profitable after amortising the capitalised costs.

Contract fulfilment costs covered within the scope of ancther accounting standard, such as inventonies, intangible assets, or property, plart and
equipment are not capitalised as contract fulfitment assets but are treated in accordance with the other standard.

Amortisation and impairment of contract assets
The Group amortises contract assets (pre-contract costs and contract fulfilment costs) on a systematic basis that is consistent with the entity's transfer
of the related goods or services to the customer. The expense is recognised in the income staterment in the period.

A capitalised pre-contract cost or contract fuffilment cost is derecognised either when it is disposed of or when no further economic benefits are
expected to flow from its use.

The Group is required to determine the recoverability of cortract related assets at each reporting date. An impairmernt exists if the carrying amount
of any asset exreeds the amount of consideration the entity expects to receive in exchange for providing the associated goods and services, less the:
remaining costs that relate directly to providing those goods and services under the relevant contract. In determining the estimated amount of
consideration, the Group uses the same principles as it does 1o determmine the contract transaction price which includes estimates around variable
consideration. An impairment s recognised immediately where such kosses are forecast.

Accrued income and deferred income

The Group's customer contracts include a diverse range of payment schedules which are often agreed at the inception of long-term contracts
under which it receives payments throughout the term of the arrangement. Payments for goods and services transferred at a point in time may

be at the delivery date, in arrears or part payment in advance.

Where revenue recognised at the period end date is more than amounts invoiced, the Group reconds accrued income for the difference.
Where revenue recognised at the period end date is less than amounts invoiced, the Group recogrises deferred income for the difference.

Certain arrangements with customers indude a contractual obligation to make redundandes for which the Group is reimbursed for the costs
incurmed. Revenue is not recognised on these transactions. Instead, the Group expenses all redundancy costs in the period they are incurred and
ary reimbursement credit is matched against the assodated cost induded in the income statement up to the value of the redundancy cost incurred.
Anymshpaymensrecervedfromﬂ\emslomermawesofﬁweassocntedcostofredw\dancyaedefenedoverﬁmcmtemandunwound
in fine with the other services being delivered,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 3| March 2019

I. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies continued

Where price step-downs are required in a contract and output is not decreasing, revenue is deferred from initial periods to subsequent periods
in order for revenue to be recognised on a consistent basis,

Providing the option for a customer to obtain extersion periods or other services at a signfficant discount may lead to a separate performance obligation
where a material right exists. VWhere this is the case, the Group allocates part of the transaction price from the original contract to deferred income
which is then amortised over the discourted extension period or recognised immediataly whan the extansion right expires.

Foreign currency

The financial statermerits of each of the Group's businesses are prepared in the functional currency applicable to that business. Transactions in currendes
other than the functional currency are recorded at the rate of exchange at the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currendes at the balance sheet date are reported at the rates of exchange prevalling at that date,

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currendes are transiated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary itemns that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary iterns, and on the retranslation of monetary itemns, are induded in the income statemert
for the period. Exchange differences arssing on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are induded in profit or loss for the

period except for differences arking on the retranstation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly in equity.
For such non-monetary iterms, any exchange component of that gain or foss is recognised directly in equity.

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations, induding goodwill and fair value adjustrents arising on their acquisition, are
transiated into sterling at exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Income and expenses are translated into sterling at average exchange rates
for the period. Exchange differences arising are recogrised directly in equity in the Group's hedging and translation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the deferred cumulative amount recognised in equity relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the income statement.
Finance costs

Finance costs consist of interest and pther costs that are incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Finance costs are recognised in the income
slatmntmﬂwepencdmwhchﬂweyaremmn'ed with the finance charges relating to the direct cost of debt issue spreadoverthepenodto
redemption using the effective interest method.

Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

ﬂ\etaxcunenﬂypayabheisbasedontamﬂe profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the income statement because
it exdudes items of incomné or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further exdudes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group's liability for current tax is calculated Using tax rates that have been enacted or substartively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amourts of assets and habilities in the financal
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liabifity method.
Deferred tax liabifities are generally recognised for afl taable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extert that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are nat recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition {other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities

in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit

ﬂ\ecarmngarmuﬁofdefewedtaxasseislsrewewedateadmbalancesheetdateandreducedtotheextentt}mrtlsnolongerprobableﬁ'\atmﬂ'mn‘t
taxable profits will be available to atiow all or part of the asset 1o be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settied or the asset is realised, based upon tax
rates and legislation that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income
statement, except when it relates to iterns charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilties are offset when there is a legally enforeeable nght 1o set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities; or when
they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Business combinations

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of the acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at
the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition costs incurred are expensed. The acquiree identifiable assets, liabilities and conttingent liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition are
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date, except for non-current assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for resale in accordance
with [FRS 5 ‘Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations’, which are recognised and measured at fair value less costs to sell.

Goodwillarisingonacq:isiﬁonisfecognisedasanassetandinitiallymeamredatcosLbemﬂweaxtessdmecostofﬂwebusinessconhnauonoverme
Group's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent Kabilities recogrised. Nemvegoodmltrepresemngagamfm
a bargain purchase, is recognised directly in the income statement,

Where applicable, the consideration for an acquisition inchudes any assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, measured
at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsaquent changes in such fair values are adjusted against the cost of acquisition where they result from additional
information, obtained within one year from the acquisition date, about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date. Afl other subsequent
changes in the fair value of contingent consideration dassfied as an asset or liability are recognised in the income staternent, in accordance with IFRS 9.
Changes in the fair value of contingent consideration classified as equity are not recognised.
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Any business combinations prior to | Aprit 2010 were accourted for using the standards in place prior to the adoption of IFRS 3 (revised 2008) which
differ in the following respects: transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition formed part of the acquisition costs; contingent consideration was
recognised if, and only if, the Group had a presentt obligation, the economic outflow was more likely than not and a reliable estimate was determinable;
and subsequernt adjustments to the contingent consideration were recognised as part of goodwill

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted for

as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's interests and the non-contraliing interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
redative interests in the subsidianes. Any difference between the amount by which the non-contrdlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recogrised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Compary.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is cakulated as the difference between: (i) the ageregate
of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest; and (ii) the previous carrying amourt of the assets (including
goodwill) and liabikties of the subsidiary and any non-controliing interests. All amourtts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation
to that subsidiary are accourtted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or fiabilities of the subsidiary ie. redassified to profit or
loss or transferred to another category of equity as spedfied/permitted by applicable IFRSs. The fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsichary at the date when contrdl is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under IFRS 9, when applicable,
of an investment in an assodiate or a joint venture.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on consolidation represerts the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilittes of a subsidiary at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill is initially recognised as an asset at cost and is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated impainmert losses. It is reviewed for impairment
at least annually. Any impainment i recognised immediately in the income statement for the period and is not subsequently reversed.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units (CGUS) expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination. CGUs ta which goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that
the unit may be impaired. if the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the cther assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount

of each asset in the unit. On dispesal of a subsidiary the attributable amount of goodwill is induded in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets identified in a business acquisition are capitalised at fair value as at the date of acquisition.

Customer relatiorships are amortised over their useful lives based on the period of time over which they are anticipated to generate benefits.
Other acquisition related intangibles indude acquired software and technology which are amortised over their useful kves.

Software and development expenditure is capitalised as an intangible asset if the asset created can be identified, if 1t is probable that the asset created
will generate future economic benefits and if the development cost of the asset can be measured refiably. Software and developrment expenditure
includes internally generated intangible assets and is amortised over its useful life once it has been brought into use.

Following initial recognition, the tarrying amount of an intangible asset is its cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Intangible assets are reviewed for impairmert annually, or more frequertly when there is an indication that they may be impaired.
Amortisation expense is charged o administrative expenses in the income staterment on a straight-line basis over its useful life.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated deprediation and any impairment in value. Depreciation is charged 5o as to write off
the cost less expected residual value of the assets over their estimated useful lives and is caloulated on a straight-line basis as follows:

Freehold buikdings and long leasehold property ) 50 years
Leasehold improvernents period of the lease
Plant and vehidies 3-10years

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset i estimated in order to determine the extent of any impairment loss.
Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independert from other assets, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to
which the asset belongs.

fecoverable amount i the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discourtted
10 their present vakue using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

if the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGLU) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is reduced
1o its recoverable amount. An impairmnent loss &5 recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset {or CGU) is inareased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairmert loss
been recognised for the asset (or CGL) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recogrised as income immediatety.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 3| March 2019

I. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policies continued

Joint ventures and associates
The Group has an interest in joint ventures which are entities in which the Group has joint controt. The Group also has an interest in associates which
are ertities in which the Group has significant influence.

The Group accounts for its interest in joint vertures and associates using the equity method, Under the equity method the Group's share of the post-tax
result of joint ventures and associates i reported as a single line item in the consolidated income staternert.

The Group's interest in joint ventures and associates is carried in the consclidated balance sheet at cost plus post-acquisition changes in the Group's
share of net assets,

Inventories
Invertories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs represent materiaks, direct labour and overheads incurred in bringing the inveritories to their presant condition and lecation.
Net reafisable value is based on estimated selling price less further costs expected to be incurred to completion and estimated selling costs. Provision
is made for obsolete, slow moving or defective itermns where appropriate.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and finandial fiabilities are recognised on the Group's balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. The Group derecognises financial assets and liabilities only when the contractual rights and obligations are transferred, discharped or expire.

Financial assets comprise trade and other receivables and cash and aash equivalerts. The dassification of financial assets under IFRS 9 s generally based
on the business model in which a financial asset is managed and its contractual cash flow characteristics. All of the Group's cash flows from customers are
solely payments of principal and interest, and do not contain a significant financing component. Financial assets generated from all of the Group's revenue
streams are therefore initially measured at their transaction price (as defined in IFRS 15) and are subsequently remeasured at amortised cost. Cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, demand deposits and other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily corvertible to a known amourt
of cash and are subject to an insignificant risi of changes in value.

The assessment of impainment of trade receivables and accrued income from | April 2018 s in accordance with IFRS 9. The Group recognises a loss
allowance for expected credit losses (ECL) on all receivable batances from customers subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the ‘simplified
approach’ permitted under IFRS 9, In the prior year under IAS 39, appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amourts were recognised
including where there was objective evidence that the asset was impaired.

The Group uses a non-recourse customer invoice discounting faciity (CID facility) under which certain trade receivable balances are sold to the Group's

refationship banks. The arrangement with the banks is such that the customers remit cash directly to the Group and the Group transfers the collected
amouints to the banks. The trade receivables are sold without recourse to the Group, and therefore the trade receivable balance is derecognised,
Finanrcial fiabilities comprise trade payables, financing liabilities, bank and ather borrowings, deferred consideration and contingertt consideration. These
are measured at initial recognition at fair value and subsequertly at amortised cost with the exception of contingent consideration which is measured at
fair value through profit or loss. Bank and other borrowings are stated at the amount of the net proceeds after deduction of transaction costs. Finance
charges, induding premiurms payabie on settiement or redemption and direct issue costs, are accounted for on an accruals basis in the income statermentt.

Included within the Group's trade creditors balance are amourts relating to payments due to UK suppliers which make use of bank provided supply
chain finance arrangements to allow supplier early payment by the bank. Amounts are settled by the Group in accordance with each supplier’s normal
payment terms and payments continue to be classified within cash generated by operations. The Group does not receive any additional guarantees and
does not pay any interest in relation to these amounts.

Equity instruments issued by the Group are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, including cross-curmency interest rate swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts, to manage the
Group's exposure to financial risks associated with interest rates and foreign exchange. Derivative finandial instruments are initially recognised at fair
value at the date the derivative contract is emered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value, determined by reference to market rates,
at each balance sheet date and included as finandial assets or fabiities as appropriate. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in the income statement
immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in the income
staternent deperds on the nature of the hedge refationship.

The Group may designate certain hedging instruments including dervatives as either fair value hedges, cash flow hedges, or hedges of net investments
in foreign operations. Hedges of foreign exchange risk on firm commitments are accounted for as cash fiow hedges.

At the inception of the hedge relatiorship, the Group documents the relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged item, along with its
risk managerment objectives and its strategy for undertalang vanous hedge transactions. Furthermoare, at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing
basts, the Group documents whether the hedging instrumernt that s used in a hedging relationship is highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values
or cash flows of the hedged item.

Foir vahue hedges

Hedges are classified as fair value hedpes when they hadge the exposure 1o changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability. Changes in the fair
value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the income statement immediately, together with any changes
in the fair value of the hedged item that are attributable to the hedged risic The change in the fair value of the hedging instrument and the change in
the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk are recognised in the line of the income statement relating to the hedged item. Hedge accounting is
discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging refationship, the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, exerdsed, or no longer qualifies
for hedge accounting The fair value adjustment to the carrying amount of the hedged item arising from the hedged risk is amortised to the incorme
statement from that date.

Cash flow hedges

Hedges are classified as cash flow hedges when they hedge the exposure to changes in cash flows that are attributable to a particular risk associated

with either a recognised asset or liablity or a forecast transaction. The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated

and qualify as cash flow hedges are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity within the Group’s translation and hedging

reserve. The gain or loss relating to any ineffective portion is recogrised immediately in the income statement.

Amounts previously recogrised in other comprehensive income and accurmulated in equity are reclassified to the income statement in the periods when
the hedged item is recogrised in the income staterment, in the same fine as the recognised hedged item. However, when the forecast transaction that is
hedged results in the recognition of a non-finandal asset or a non-financial liability, the gains and losses previously accumulated in equity are transferred
from equity and induded in the initial measurement of the cost of the non-finandial asset or non-financial liability. Hedge accourting is discontinued when
the Group revokes the hedging relationship, the hedging instrument expires or is sokd, terminated, exerdsed, or no longer quaiifies for hedge accounting,
Asty gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income at that time is accumulated in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction &

ultimately recogrisad in the income statement. When a forecast transaction is no Jonger expected to occur, the gain or loss accumulated in equity is

recognised immediately in the income statement.

Strategic report

Govermance

n
Z
<
<
<
o
=
=
e
=
")
=
=
w

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations

Hedges are dlassified as net investment hedges when they hedge the foreign currency exposure to changes in the Group's share in the net assets of

a foreign operation. Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accournted for simarly to cash flow hedges. Any gain or koss on the hedging
instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge is recogrised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the Group's transtation and
hedging reserve. The gain or loss relating to any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the income staternent. Gains or losses on the hedging
instrurent relating to the effective portion of the hedge accumulated in equity are redlassified to the income staternent in the same way as exchange
differences relating to the foreign operation as described above.

Leasing

Firance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits incidertal to ownership of the leased item, are capitalised at the
inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased item or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease paymenits. Lease payments are
apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease tiability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability. Finance charges are charged directly to the incormne staterment.

Capitalised keased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated life of the asset or the lease term.

Leases where the lessor retains substartially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Operating
lease paymerntts are recognised as an expense in the income staterment on a straight-fine basis over the lease term. Any lease incentives are amortised
on a straight-line basis over the non-cancellable period for which the Group has contracted to lease the asset, together with any further terrms for which
the Group has the option to continue to lease the asset if, at the inception of the lease, it is judged to be reasonably certain that the Group will exerdse
the option,

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow
of rescurces embodying economic benefits will be required to settte the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the cbligation.
Where the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recogrised

as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the income staternent
net of any reimbursement If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the Bability.
Where discounting is used, the inrease in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a borrowing cost.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2019

I. Basis of preparation and significant accounting policles continued

Onerous contract provisions (OCPs) arise when the unavoidable costs of meeting contractual obligations exceed the remuneration expected to

be received. Unavoidable costs include total contract costs together with a rational allocation of shared costs that can be directly linked to fulfilling
contractual obligations which have been systematically allocated to OCPs on the basis of key cost drivers, except where this is impracticable and contract
revenue is used as a proxy for activity. The provision is calculated as the lower of the termination costs payable for an early exit and the expected net
cost to fulfil the Group's unavoidable contract obligations. Where a customer has an option 1o extend a contract and it is Ikely that such an extension
will be made, the expected net cost arising during the extension period is included within the calaulation, However, where a profit can be reasonably
expected in the extension peried, no aredit is taken on the basis that such profits are uncertain given the potential for the customer to either not extend
or offer an extension under lower pricing tenms.

Share-based payments

The Group operates a number of executive and employee share option schemes, Equity-settled share-based payrentts to employees are measured at
the fair vale of the equity instruments at the grant date. The fair value excludes the effect of non-rarket based vesting conditions. For grants of share
options and awards, the fair value as at the date of grant is calculated using the Black-Scholes model, Monte Carlo model or the share price at grant date,
and the corresponding expense is recognised on a straight-iine basis over the vesting period based on the Group's estimate of shares that will evertually
vest. At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimate: of the number of equity instruments expected to vest as a result of the effect of non-
market based vesting conditions. Save As You Eamn (SAYE) options are treated as cancelled when employees cease to contribute to the schemne,
resutting in an acceleration of the remainder of the related expense.

Restricted shares are issued as part of the ronsideration for acquisitions made by the Cumnpany attached with a condition that the relevant recipient
continues their employrnent with the Group for a fixed vesting period of time. Restrictions will remain attached to the shares if the recipient leaves
employmernt with the Group prior to completion of the vesting period of the shares. The fair value of the restricted shares is the share price at the
date the acquisition agreement was signed.

The credits in respect of the amounts charged are induded within the share-based payment reserve in equity urtil such time as the vesting periods
or share restrictions expire,

The own shares reserve in equity indudes the shares owned by the Employee Trust, treasury shares and restricted shares issued as part of the
consideration for acquisitions. When shares are transferred to employees upon exerdse of options and awards or when restricted shares held
by employees are released from their restrictions, the own shares reserve is reduced by the relevant cost or value.

Retirement benefit costs
The Group operates a number of defined contribution retirement benefit schemes for all qualifying employees. Payments to the defined contribution
and stakeholder pension schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due.

In addition, the Group operates and participates in a number of defined benefit schemes. In respect of the schemes in which the Group makes
contributions under Admitted Body status to dients’ defined benefit schemes in respect of certain employees who transferred to the Group under
TUPE, the Group accounts for its legal and constructive obligations over the period of its participation which is for a fixed period only.

For the defined benefit pension schemes, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations
being carried out at each balance sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses on obligations, the return on scherme assets (excduding interest) and the effect
of the asset ceiling (if applicable) are recognised in full in the period in which they ocour. They are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

Defined benefit pension costs (including curtaiments) are recognsed in the income statement, in either administrative expenses or cther items,
whilst the net interest cost is recognised in finance costs.

The retiremert benefit liability recognised in the balance sheet represants the present value of the defined benefit obligation, as reduced by the fair
value of scheme assets. Any asset resulting from this cakulation is limited to the present value of avalable refunds and reductions in future contributions
to the plan.

Theerppannpatesmfcurrm.dtl-employerdeﬁnedbmefupmsmnxlwne&FwﬂwreeofthsesdwnestheGrmpssfmdﬁeassesw
liabilities is minimal. The fourth scheme is the: Plumbing & Mechanical Services {UK) industry Pension Scheme (the Plurnbing Scheme), a funded mutti-
employer defined benefit scherme. The Plumbing Scheme was founded in 1975 and to date has had over 4,000 employers, with dirca 400 remaining,
Historically, the size and complexity of the Plumbing Scherne: has meartt the trustee is unable at this time to identify the assets and liabilities of the scheme
which are attributable to the Group. The Group has recently received & Section 75 emplayer debt natice in respect of the partidpation of Robert
Prettie & Co Limited in the Plumbing Scheme (refer to Note 15 and Note 32). One Group company, Mitie Property Services (UK) Limited, continues
to participate in the Plumbing Scheme, however no apportionmert of the assets and liabilities attributabile to this company is available and consequently,
the Group accounts for its contributions as if they were paid to a defined contribution scheme.

For schemes where sufficient information is not available to use defined benefit accounting, no liability is recognised on the balance sheet, however,
the obligations are disdiosed as contingent liabilities in Note 33.
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2. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies

The preparation of consolidated financial staternents under IFRS requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
amounts recognised for assets and liabiliies at the reporting date and the amounts of revenue and expenses incurred during the reporting period.
Actual results may differ from these judgements, estimates and assumptions.

The judgements and estimates which have the most significant effect on the reported resutt for the year ended 31 March 2019 and upon the carrying
value of assets and liabilities of the Group as at 3| March 2019 are described below.

Revenue recognition
The Group's revenue recognition policies, which are set out under Revenue recognition in Note |, are central to how the Group measures the work
it has performed in each financial year.

For certain contracts, key judgements were made conceming contract extensions and amendrments which, for example. directly impact the timing

of revenue recognition in addition 10 the phasing of upfiront payrments to, or from customers which are deferred to the balance sheet and urwound

over the expected contract term. The Group has deferred pre~contract costs of £2.2m to the balance sheet within cortract assets following its

assessment of contract modifications during the year (refer to Note 16). Management considers this to be an area of judgement due to the

determination of whether a modification represents a separate contract based on its assessment of the stand-alone selling price, rather than a

Emna}bnofﬁ\eex'sﬁrgcommandembikmmdanewcaﬂradformhﬂﬁerevisedcuﬁactpttewwidberew@bedfmt}edate
wcation.

Profit before other items

‘Other items’ are items of financial performance which the Group believes should be separately identified on the face of the income staterment to assist
in understanding the underlying financial performance achieved by the Group. Determining whether an item should be dassified within ather iterns
requires judgement as to whether an item is or & not part of the undertying performance of the Group.

Other items after tax of £32.8m (2018; £87.2m) were charged to the income statement for the year ended 31 March 2019. An analysis of the amounts
induded in other iterms is detailed in Note 4.

Recoverabilty of aged debtors and accrued income

‘The Group has material amounts of billed and unbifled work outstanding at year end as outiined in Note 23. Where balances become subject to dispute,
the risk of recoverabiiity increases. As a consequence, there & significart management judgernent involved in assessing whether these balances have been
earned and in assessing the recoverability of these balances which involves consideration of the Group's contractual rights and work performed as well
as the status of ongoing commercial negatiations. The judgement as to whether an amount has become inrecoverable & an assessment made by the
Directors in the: determiration of the total expected credit loss recognised by the Group under IFRS 9. The Group has recognised a total loss allowance
of £192m (2018: £17.3m) in respect of both aged and disputed trade and other receivable balances at 21 March 2019.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Revenue recognition, contract assets and contract labilives

Due to the size and complexity of the Group's contracts, managerment is required to form a number of key judgements and estimates in the
determination of the amount of revenue and profits to record, and related balance sheet iterms such as contract assets, accrued incorne and deferred
income to recognise (refer to Note |}, This includes an assessment of the costs the Group inaurs to deliver the contractual commitrments and whether
such costs should be expensed as incurred or apitalised. These judgements are inherently subjective and may cover future events such as the
achievernent of contractual performance targets and planned cost savings or discounts. The Directors do not consider that any reasonably foreseeable
change in this source of estimation would have a material impact on the Group's finandial statements.

Provisions and contingent assets ond liobilities

The Company and various of its subsidiaries are, from time to tirme. party to kegal proceedings and claims that are in the ordinary course of business.
Judgements are required in order to assess whether these legal proceedings and claims are probable and the liability can be reasonably estimated,
resulting in a provision or, alternatively, whether the items meet the definition of contingent liabilities.

Provisions are Eabilities of uncertain timing or amount and therefore in rmaking a refiable estimate of the quantum and timing of liabilities judgement
Eapﬁhaﬁzd mwmmWirgdmamerpmogbedMOmﬂBI March 2019 of £56.6m (2018: £31.5m). Further detais
arei in .

The Directors are working to ensure that, through a combination of insurance claims and recoursz to suppliers a proportion of the £16.1m costs
(refer to Note 4) incurred in respect of rectification works for the Sodal Housing property maintenance contracts, incuding the £12 I m recorded
in provisions (refer to Note 19), are recovered. The amount and tinning of any recoveries is yet to be determined.

Measurement of defined benefit pension obligations
The net pension liability at 3f March 2019 was £63.8m (2018: £568m).

The measuremernt of defined benefit obligations requires judgement. it is dependent on material key assumptions induding discount rates,
life expectancy rates, and future contribution rates. See Nate 32 for further details and a sensitivity analysis for the key assumptions.

The Group ako participates in four multi-employer defined benefit pension schemes, including the Plumbing & Mechanical Services {UK) Industry
Pension Scheme (the Plumbing Scheme). A prowvision of £200m has been made for Section 75 employer debts in respect of the participation of
Robert Prettie & Co. Limited in the Plumbing Scheme. The Group has a further potential exposure to Section 75 emplayer debts in respect of the
participation of Mitie Property Services (LK) Limited in the Plumbing Scheme, which has been disdosed as a contingent lability due to the inherent
uncertainty regarding the armount of any liability.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 3| March 2019

2. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty continued

Gain on bargain purchase

The Group has recognised an £8.8m gain on the purchase of Vision Security Group Limited. The vakue of this gain is subject to the assessment of the fair
value of the acquired assets and liabilities and the finalisation of the consideration to be paid through agreement of the corpletion accounts with the
sefler of the business. See Note 30 for further detalks.

The fair value of the acquired assets includes £14.9m representing the value of intangible assets assodiated with custorner relationships acquired.
This valuation is based upon forecast cash flows which are subject to significart management judgementt and estimation.

Alfocation of goodwill to discontinued operations

The Directors have made a judgement 1o determine the allocation of goodwill to the discontinued operations to arrive at the gain/loss on disposal.
This allocation was carried out with reference to the forecast performance of those activities compared to the forecast performance of the cash-
generating units the activities were previously part of. ‘

Gaini{loss) on disposal of discontinued operations
The Group has recognised a gain of £26.7m on the disposal of Mitie Pest Control Linited and a loss of £11.7m on the disposal of the Social Housing
business. refer to Note 5.

The value of these gains and losses is subject 1o finalisation of the consideration 1o be paid through agreement of the completion accounts with
the purchasers of these businesses. The Directors have made a judgement as to the lkely outcome of each completion accounts settiement.

Deferred tax asscts
The Group has recognised deferred tax assets of £387m (2018: £36,7m), refer to Note 20. The Directors have assessed recovery of these assets
with reference to the Group's medium-term forecasts, Recovery of these assets is subject to the Group generating taxable profits in future years.

Impoirment of goodwil!

In assessing the key sources of estimation uncertainty, the Directors no longer consider impairment of goodwill as a key source of estimation.
The Directors do not consider that any reasonably foreseeable change in this source of estimation would have a matenial impact on the Group's
financial staternents.
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3. Business segment information

The Group manages its business on a service division basis. At 31 March 2019, the Group has six strategic divisions which are its reportable segments
and the information; as reported, is consistent with information presented to the Board. Revenue. operating profit before other iterrs and operating
profit margin before other items are the primary measures of perforrance that are reported to and reviewed by the Board, which is the Group's
chief operating decision maker.

The information presented for the year ended 3| March 2018 has been restated to reflect the changes in management reporting, implemented in the
year ended 31 March 2019, of certain business unit activities transferring between Engineering Services, Professional Services and Corporate certre,
the integration into Engineering Services of the roofing and painting activities which previously formed part of Property Management, and the
dassification of Pest Cortrol and Sodial Housing as discontinued operations.

0I1e 2018
m Operating m Operating
before  margin before before other  margin before
ey ey e ey ey
Engineering Services 905.7 58.7 65 B8&3 4.1 6.1
Security '536.5 30.7 57 4320 275 64
Professional Services 1314, 58 4.3 13)0.2 56 43
Cleaning & Emvironmental Services 404.4 1.5 43 384.1 196 S
Care & Custody 107.3 LK 348 599 19 32
Catering 136.1 5.2 38 137.1 56 4.
Corporate centre - (33.4) - - [e1R)] -
Total from continuing operations 2,221.4 88.2 4.0 20306 832 4.
Pest Control : 1.9 z4 102 23 26 (1
Social Housing 9.1 1.6 1.8 1508 38 25
Total from discontinued operations 1000 40 4.0 173.1 6.4 37
Total 23224 L2 4.0 22037 896 4.1

Notes:

1. The Group has adogted IFRS 9 starurg | Aped 2018 using the transition option avalable in the standard by disclosing the impact as an adustment 1o opening retained eamings at the date of initial
apphcation. Under this option. the comparative ifformation i not restated. ’

1 Other fterra are as destribed in Note 1,

3. Mo single customer accouried for more than |09 of external revenue in 2019 or 2018,

A recorifiation of segment operating profit/(foss) before other iterns to total profit/{loss) before tax is provided below:

201y 2018
i £m
Operating profit before cther items 88.2 832
Other hems? ) (38.0) (82.1).
Net finance costs . ’ {13.8) (165)
Total from continuing operations 6.4 (15.4)
Operating profit before other items 40 64
Other items? (6.0) (158)
Net finance income . 0.4 Q.
Total from discontinued operations (1.9) (%.3)
Profit/(loss) before tax . 345 Q47

Notes:

1. The Group has adopted [FRS 9 starting | April 201 8 using the transition option available in the standard by disclasing the impact < an adjustment to opening retained samings at the date of inftia! -
applaation. Under this option, the comparstive information & not restated.

1 Other terms are as descrbed in Note 4.

IFRS 8 requires that a measure of segment assets should be disclosed only if that amount is regularly provided to the chief operating decision maker and
consequently no segment assets are disclosed.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2019

3. Business segment information continued

Geographical segments
201¢ 2018
Operating ¥ Operating
i N
: before before before. before
Revenue other iterns?  other items® Reverue other tmms? other items®
im (2] % im im %
United Kingdom 2,122.2 85.6 4.0 19206 829 43 .
Other countries 9.2 2.6 2.6 1100 03 03
Continuing operations 2,221.4 88.2 4.0 20306 832 4|
United Kingdom 101.0 4.0 4.0 173.1 64 37
Other countries - - - - - -
Di inued operati 1010 4.0 4.0 173.1 64 37
Total 23124 22 4.0 22037 896 4.
Notes

1. The Group has adopted RS 9 starting | Apeil 3018 using the trarsitin aption avaiable in the standard by disciosing the impact as an adstment 1o opening retained eamings at the date of inkial

apphication. Linder thés option, the gomparative information is not restated.

2 Other rervs ore 28 desarbed iniNete 4.

Supplementary information
2019 2018
plantand  of intangib of contract Other plant and imangble of contract Other
e tm tm em m wm m T
Engineering Services 0.9 0.5 - 8.2 1.2 5 - 37
Security . 1.5 0.2 - Lé 18 09 - 04
Professional Services 0.2 0.) 0.2 08 €3 07 - 08
Cleaning & Environmental 4.1 1.0 - 20 40 03 - 1.4
Services
Care 8 Custody 0.4 - 0.6 0.l 03 - Ql ol
Catering 1.0 0.1 - 0.1 15 02 - -
Corporate centre 3.2 7.0 - 112 32 86 - 762
Continuing operations 11.3 8.9 0.8 38.0 123 132 0.1 g2.!
Healthcare - - - @.0) - _ - _
Pest Contro) 0.1 - - 1.6) 02 o - -
Social Housing 0.2 | R - 5.6 a3 02 - 158
Discontinued operations 0.3 0.1 - 6.0 Q3 03 - 15.8
Total 1n.s 20 08 44.0 128 135 ol 979
Note:
1. Orher iterns 2re as described in Note 4,
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Disaggregated revenue
The Growp disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers by sector {government and non-government) and by contract duration (contracts g
with a duration from inception of less than two years, and contracts with a duration from inception of more than two years). The Group believes this
best depicts how the nature, timing and amount of revenue and cash flows are affected by economic factors. The following table includes a £
recondiation of disaggregated revenue with the Group's reportable segments. g
01 ‘g
Caontract duration for timing of revenue
Sector' recognition
Non- Lass than Hore than
Gwnmmzﬂlt ;wemm:'mu Tu:nl , 2 yez'n" 2 nz: Tﬂ
Engineering Services 368.3 $37.4 905.7 1224 7833 908.7
Security 88.3 448.2 538.5 80.1 456.4 5365
Professional Services 1.5 109.9 134 54 1260 131.4
Cleaning & Ervironmental Services 109.2 1952 404.4 - 404.4 404.4 g
Care & Custody 107.3 - 107.3 - 107.3 197.3 E
Catering 5.7 1304 136.1 174 He.r 136.1 §
Continuing operations 700.3 1,521.1 12,2214 225.3 1,996.1 13,1214
Pest Control - 1.9 1.y - 1.9 1.9
Social Housing 9.0 - [ A 541 5.0 a9.1
Discontinued operations 9.1 119 101.0 54.1 449 1010
Yotal 789.4 1L533.0 23124 2794 2,043.0 13114

Note:
1. Sector is defined by the end oustomer on ary ocontract eg, i the Group 8 2 subcontractor to a construdtion compary for the buliding of a public hospital, then the contract woukd be dassified
as government.

018 o

Sector’ Contract duration {or timing of revenue recognition —Eﬁ

T T

Engineering Services 3684 5179 8863 1374 7489 8863 &
Security 8919 348.1 4320 557 3763 4320
Professiona! Services 138 1174 1312 89 1223 1312
Cleaning & Erwironmental Services 898 2943 384.1 - 384.1 3841
Care & Custody 599 - 599 - 599 599
Catering 46 1325 137.4 1.6 1355 137.1
Continuing operations 6204 14102 20306 036 18270 20306
Pest Control - 223 223 - 23 223
Social Housing 1508 - 1508 916 592 1508
Discontinued operations 1508 223 173.1 916 Bl5S 1731
Total 72 14325 22037 952 19085 22037

Note:
}. Sectoris defined by the end customer cn any contract eg, f the Group i a subcontractor to a construction compay for the bullding of 2 public hospital then the contract would be dassified
a5 govesTert.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

For the year ended 31 March 2019

3. Business segment information cantinued

Transaction price allocated to the remalning performance obligations
The table below shows the forward order book for each segiment it the reporting date with the time bands of when the Group expexts to recognise
secured revenue on its contracts with customers. Secured revenue corresponds to fixed work contracted with customers and exdudes the impact of
any antidipated contract extensions, and new contracts with customers.

2019 018

Total Total

Less than More than secured Less than Maire than secured

| year | year revenue | ymar ! year revenue

im &m im im im £m

Ergineering Services 360.4 1,443 §,802.7 3%07 16485 20392
Security 4783 491.2 9715 300.1 3407 6408
Professional Services 9.7 57.2 26.9 458 99.1 1449
Cleaning & Erwironmental Services 275.5 337.8 863.1 2760 3803 6563
Care & Cusiody 100.8 495.8 594.6 1008 5693 670.1
Catering 1.2 9.3 6.5 82 265 347
Continuing operations 1,251.% 2.895.4 4,147.3 LE21.6 30644 14,1860
Pest Corttrey - - - 30 20 - 50
Soxcial Housing - - - 763 2280 3043
Discontinued operations - - - 793 2300 3093
Total 1,251.9 28954 4,147.3 1.2009 32944 44953

4. Otheritems

Other items are items of finandial performance which the Group believes should besepa:atelyidértiﬂedontheface of the income statement to assist
in understanding the underlying financial performance achieved by the Group.

The Group separately reports the impairmentt of goodwill, the cost of restructuring
and amortisation of acquisition related imtangible assets, the results of and costs associated with dispasals, and other exceptional items and their related

acquisition and disposal costs including the write-off

tax effect as other iterns:

my
impairment  Restructure Aq";:-“ Gainon  Gainl(lass) gmpﬂonalm

of gooawill costs  related costs bargsin  on dispazal ltems Total
Continuing operations m tm tm purchase tm m &m
Administrative expenses - (5.1 ®n B8 - (23.0) (38.0)
Other items before tax - (15.1) [(X)] 8.8 - {21.0) (38.0)
Tax - 8 0.6 - - 4.0 7.4
Other items after tax - (123) {(8.1) 8.8 - (19.0) (30.6)
Other items before tax - (0.8) - - 17.9 3.1y (6.0)
Tax - 0.2 - - {0.9) 45 38
Other ltems after tax - (0.6) - - 17.0 (18.6) 2.2)
Total - {129) &1} a8 17.0 (31.8) (312.8)
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2018 §_
Py Ty Other E
g it St L. o proihet S G v Tota 4
Conttinuing operations £m im £m &m £m m E
Administrative experses @=n (47.0) (84) - 40 (821) v
Other items before tax 29 (a70) D) - 0 ®2.1)
Tax - 87 04 - 09 100
Other items after tax @2 (83 (80) - an 720)
Oicortraed operat _
Other items before tax (19 ©3) - - G#) (158)
™ - 01 - - 06 07 g
Other items after tax , (19 ) - - ao (15.1) E
Total G46) (385) (80) - .1 (87) G
Impairment of goodwill

No charges in respect of the impairment of goodwill have been made in the year ended 31 March 2019,

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Directors assessed the recoverability of the goodwill allocated to the former Property Management CGU
and recorded an impairment charge of £34.6m. Following the dispasal of the Social Housing business, the remaining goodwill of the roofing and painting
activities previously reported in Property Management, has been integrated into the Engineering Services CGL. See Note 12

Restructure costs
ﬂereﬂmaurecmtrdaetomofmgnmmngemtedmmmmmﬁqeaHellxu'ansformauonprogammemdudlngﬂn

transition costs associated with the outsourting of certain badk-office transactional processes. E
These costs are analysed below: é
2019 2018 c
£m m m im £m £
Redundancy payments? (42) (0.5) (an @5) (03} (4.8)
Cost of change team’ (0.7) - (%] ©7 - ©7
Expenditure and provisions in respect of property closure* (0.2) - ®©.2) 48) - (4.8)
Expenditure in respect of Project Helix transformation activites® (10.0) - {10.0) {266) - (26.6)
Expenciiture in respect of other transformation projects - {0.3) (0.3) - - -
Impairment of intangible assets® . - - - (104) - (104}
Restructuring costs as.n (0.8) (15.9) @79 (X)) (47.3}
Taxation .8 02 .0 87 Q4 88
Restructuring costs net of taxation (2.3 {0.6) (129} (383) ©2) (385)
Nates

I. tnchades £135m (2016 £348m) in respect of the Project Refoc transformation activies

2 Cots in respect of roles made redurdant as a result of the Project Helix rarsfosmation and other prosects to restructure the Group's activities. '

3. Incremental aosts of tearrs involved in the maragement of Project Helix transformation activities.

4 C":n;hmdmwmmﬂmerMﬁ:mmmdqu'sMxmdhmmrﬁx

S Bwﬂ:enmtdﬁm%uﬂmm%@mmlﬂ £0.6m) of recruitment costs in nespect of achicving the new operating model, £1.6m (2018: £8.2m)

rebited to dual running and lnowledge trangfer costs ¥ part of the transfer of the trangactional dfmmmaﬂuu-puwprvaderium 18: £4.6m) of transformation project

Mmﬂﬂhnmd&mmmlaﬂi):\d(ri(ml&illﬂ-n)ufprofmfeesnrupmof and consultancy activities associated with the desgn and
Project Helx transformiation activities.

& w&mmrehmmsmamwmm“wumhmwnwsmmumdmmmmm
provessEs, .
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 3| March 2019

4. Other items continued

Gain/(loss) on disposal
During the year ended 3| March 2019, the Group completed the sale of the Pest Control and Social Housing businesses. See Note 5 for further details.

Acquisition and disposal related costs

Acquisition and disposal related costs from continuing operations indude the impairment and amortisation charge for acquisition related intangibles
£1.5m (2018: £2.6m), the charge for restricted shares issued per Note 3} of £3.9m (2018: £3.4m), costs of £2.6m (2018: £nil) related to the VG
acquisition, costs of £0.4m (2018: £nil) related to the settlement of daims associated with previous acquisitions, costs of £0.3m (2018: £2.2m) relating
to the aborted disposal of the former Property Management division, and £nil (2018: £0.2m) related to the disposal of the Healthcare division.

Gain on bargain purchase

A credit of £88m (2018; £nil) representing a gain on bargain purchase in respect of the acquisition of Vision Security Group Limited (VSG) has been
recogrised from continuing operations. See Note 30.

Other exceptional items
Other exceptional iterns are analysed below:
2019 2018
FEEE O R w
Regulatory investigation' (.n - .n 23) - @3)
IFRS 941 5/ 6 adoption project? (%)) - ©.7n ©8) - 08)
Costs incurred and provision for settiement of contractual disputes? - (20.5) {20.5) - 23) (3
Prowvision for indemified costs* - (2.6) (2.6) - - -
Contract termination receipr® - - - 20 - 20
Pension scheme past service costs {induding curtaiments)® - - - (19) - (19)
Cost of equalising Guaranteed Minirmum Pensions’ {1.6) - (1.8) - - -
Persion scheme Section 75 debt! ' (20.0) - (20.9) - - -
Gain on diosure of Mitie Reinsurance” 0.4 - 0.4 - - -
Property diapidations'® - - = (10} 03) (13
Other exceptional items (23.0) (23.1) (46.1) (40) (36) {78
Tasation 40 45 85 09 06 s
Other exceptional items net of taxation (19.0) {18.6) (37.6) 3.0 (10)] ')
Notes:
e L e b T P e
19 Septernber 2016, the manner of preparation and corter of the Company's finencial information, position and results for the period ended 31 2016, and regarding the Company's own

investigation ino the sarme matters, facts and drumstances which wene subject 10 FCA and FRC investigation.

1 Prolesional fees and interim stafl costs of £0.7m (201 & £0.8m) have been incurmed in respect of the projects 10 adopt IFRS 9 Financial instruments, IFRS 15 Revenue lrom comtracts with
austamery. and FRS 14 Leases’

3. The £205m for the year ended 3| March 2019 (201 8: £33m) refates to the Socal Housing business and indudes £3.4m n respect of the settiement of a contract dispute. £ 6| m for the:
estimated costs of rectification works and legal advice assccaed with certain of the Group's property maintenance contracts, of which £1 2. Im ik inchuded in provisors at 3| March 2019, and
€1.0m for ather contractual deputes. This anount is disckosed separately due to the size of the potertial oost and the fact that they arise from dosed contrads.

4. The £26micharge for the year ended 3| March 2019 represents the estimated costs arising from ceriain indemnities provided in relation to the disposal of the Socl Housing business.

This amount is included in provisions at 3| March 249,

5. The lost of two major contracts in the year ended 31 March 2018 resuted in 3 one-ofT termingtion receipt amounting to £2.0m. These amounts are disclosed separately due to the size of the
payments recenved and the (act that the koss of contracts of this s2e is an unusual event for the Group,

6. Asaresult of the dosure of the Mitie Group plc Pension Scherre 1o future acorual from Oxtober 2017, 2 past service cost (induding curtaliments) of £1.9m was incumed i the year ended
31 March 2018. See Note 32 for further details.

7. Following BSued by the Hi Ounmzsoad:a-ZDIShthecase'nddg‘ tlopds Banking Group relating to the equalisation of Guaranteed Minimum Pensions (GMP) the Group has
mwmwgmwﬂﬁmfammmrmmu s rUling on the Group scheme. The effect of GMP equalisation has been hu\eP)m
staternent as a plan amendment; the charge has been included within other iterms due to the size and non-recurming nature of the amount See Note 32 for further detais.

8, [Estirmatad Saction 75 debt in relation 1o the partiopation of Robert Prettie & Co Umited in the Plumbing & Mechanical Servicas (LK) Industry Pension Scheme. See MNote 32 for further detads.

9. During the year ended 31 March 2019 the Group Tiguidated its cptive insurance company Mitie Relnsurance Company Limited resulting in & net income of £0.4m afer setding al

0. As part of the rationalissuon of the Group's property portfolio a review of the potenitial liabdites for leasehold property ditapidation costs wis Grried out and resulted in 8 one-off L1 3m dharge
inthe year enced 31 March 2018,
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5. Discontinued operations and disposal of subsidiaries

On 30 September 2018, the Group completed the sale of Mitie Pest Control Limited (Pest Controf) for cash consideration of £400m before tax
and transaction costs, The results of the Pest Control business have been dassified as discontinued operations and comparative information has been
restated. The Group recognised a net gain on disposal of £26.7m, reported in profit from discontinued operations and recognised in other items
(see Note 4).

On |9 thHTberZOIB.ﬂ{eCmpanyﬁgmdanagmeremforthesaleofMiﬁerpeny Managerment Limited and MPS Housing Limited (together
the Social Housing business) and this transaction was subsequently completed on 30 Novernber 2018, The resudts of the Social Housing business have
been classified as discontinued operations and cormparative information has been restated. The Group has retained liability, and rade provisions where
appropriate, for certain legacy coritracts of the Social Housing business so these are not induded within liabilities held for sale. The Group recognised

a net loss on disposal of £11.7m, reported in profit from discontinued operations and recognised in other items (see Note 4).

The Group has determined that the Healthcare Indemnity provision should be partly released by £2.0m. This has been recorded as a gain on disposal.
The results of these discortinued operations are detailed betow.

There were no disposals in the financial year ended 31 March 2018.

g
:
g
3

Income statemant of discontinued operations E
2019
Pest Control  Sodlal Housing Total §
im £m €m Q
Reverue ne 89.1 1010
Cost of sales n L9 (19.8)
Gross profit 52 6.2 2.4
Administrative expenses @8) (15.1) (17.9)
Share of profit of joint ventures and assodates ' - 05 05
Operating profit before other items' 24 1.6 4.0
Other tems’ - (13.9) (21.9) £
Net finance income . [X] - 0. E
Profit/{loss) before tax 25 @y (19.8) ¥
Tax (©.3) 40 3.7 =
Profic(loss) from discontinued operations 212 (18.3) {16.1) E
018
Pest Control Social Housing Tow
im m im
Reverue n3 1508 1731
Cost of sales (162} £115.8) (132.0)
Gross profit &l 350 1.1
Adminstrative expenses 35 ¢L0 @55)
Share of profit of joint vertures and associates - 08 08
Operating profit before other items® 25 k] 64
Other itemns® . (1)) L)) (158)
Net finance incomne 0.l - [+
Profit/(loss) bafore tax pY3 (19) 93)
Tax (0S) 03 02
Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations e {116) (95)

Notes

I The £1.6m operating prafit before other items in Social Housing for the year ended 31 March 2019 indudes a £1.4m koss in respect of a contract which has been terminated and £2.6m
of recharges in respect of Group cemral services.

2 The 3.8m opersting profit before cther iterns in Sodial Housing for the year ended 31 March 2018 includes an increased debt provision of £1.2m in addition 10 £23m of rechanges in respect
of Group central services,

3. Other iterns are as described in Note 4.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2019

5. Discontinued operations and disposal of subsidiaries continued
Galin/(loss) on disposal of discontinued operations

019 2018
Healthcare  Pest Control' Social Housing Total Heakhare?
£m £m [ [ im
Tonal consideration ' ) - 38.4 28 ° 0.9 ©2)
Net assets disposed . . - @8 Gl @D -
Release of indemnity provision 2.0 - - 2.0 -
Transaction costs - (2.2) {3.1) (53) -
Total gain(loss) on disposal before tax _ 20 7.6 Ly 179 ©2)
Taxation - (0.9} : - .9 -
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of di: inued operations 0 26.7 an 17.0 {2
MNeste:
1. Total consideration of £352m has been received in cash, but £0.8m is expected to be returmed through agraemant of the completion accounts with the purchaser of the business.
2 Deferred contribution of £02m in the year w 31 March 2018 was payable to the punchaser.
3. Inchudes goodwill of £33m nelating to Pes Control and £12.5m rolating t ol Muusing and cash balances of 3 6m.
Profit for the year from discontinued operations
2019 018
£m {m
Loss for the year from discontinued operations {16.1) 35
Gain on disposal of discontinued operations 17.0 -
Profiti(loss) for the year from discontinued operations 0.y ©5)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) for the year from discontinued operations
01 ma
m £&m
Equity holders income/(expense) 0.9 35)
Cash flows from discontinued operations
01e 2018
im m
Net cash used in operating activities (9.4) (3.0)
Nev cash penerated from investing activities 5.6 02
Net cash penerated from financing activities - 13
Increase/(decrease) In cash and cash equivalents 43.2 @5}
Earnings/(loss) per share from discontinued operations
019 2018
P p
Basic eamings before other items per share! 0.9 16
Basic earnings/(oss) per share . 0.2 27N
Diluted eamings before other items per share' 0.9 16
Diuted earnings/(loss) per share 0.2 @n
Note:
I, Gther items are as described in Note 4.
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Joint ventures and associates of discontinued operations

The Social Housing disposal group induded a 30% interest in an assodate, Pyramid Plus South LLP, a krnited liabifity partnership registered in the E_
United Kingdom. The Group's interest in the assodate was accourted for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method. g
The surmmarised finandal information set out below for the year ended 3| March 2019 has been taken from unaudited management accounts E"
of the associate. g
w
w9 2018
Lm m
Revenue 73 122
Operating profit 1.8 26
Group'’s share of profit of associate in discontinued operations 0.5 [11:)
2019 2018
£m im 8
£
Current assets - 38 £
Current kabities - 12 z
Net assets - 26 v
Group's share of interest In assoclate - 08

During the 2019 financial year the Group received dividends from Pyramid Plus South LLP of £nil (2018: £0.6m).

w
=
<
~
o
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=
o

c
=
=

w

Mitie Group plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2019 121



Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2019

6. Operating profit/(loss)
Operating profit/(loss) has been arrived at after charging:

009 2018
Continuing and discontinued operations £m m
Depredation of property, plant and equipment (Note 14) 1.4 128
Amortisation of other intangible assets (Ncne 13} .0 135
Amortisation of contract assets 0.8 1]
Impairmert of goodwall (Note [2) - 3446
Impairment of other intangible assets (Note 13} LI 104
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (0.8) -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 5) (7. -
Impairment kosses recognised on trade receivables (Nate 23) L1 23
Impairment (gains)losses recognised on acarued income (Note 23} {1.6) 20
Operating lease remals 265 2.1
Nate:

1. TheGru.prmadophaleP.ngtIAprimlamummmnhwwmumnmmwmmmnhmﬂdm

Under this option. the comparative information is not restated,

A detailed analysis of auditor’s remuneration is provided below.

2019 2018
£000 £000
Fees payable to the Compary's auditor for the audit of the Company's annual accounts - BDO LLP 40 40
Fees payable 1o the Company’'s auditor and its associates for the audit of the Company's
subsidiaries pursuant to legislation - BDO LLP 1,520 1.161
Fees payable to the Compary's auditor and its associates for the audit of the Company's
subsidiaries pursuant to legislation ~ Deloitte LLP - 87
Total audit fees 1560 1.288
Other audht related senvces to the Group — BDO LLP 127 93
Tax services — BDO LLP - 3
Total non-audit fees 127 9
Total 1,687 1387
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7. Staff costs
The average number of people employed during the finandal year was

Number of people 019 208
Engineering Services 8,711 B900
Security 15,000 14,804

Professional Services 1,059 1029
Cleaning & Environmental Services 10,30t 21,706
Care & Custody 1976 1054

Catering 1,384 2505
Corporate centre Kt ] 37
Continuing operations 49,480 50,032
Pest Control 190 198
Social Housing 737 831

Discontinved aperations 927 1,029
Total Group 50,407 51,061

MNote:

|. The informration presented for the year ended 31 March 2018 has been resttad 10 reflect the integration i
transfer of certain business unit activities between Engineering Serwces

part of Property Management and the
The number of people employed at 31 March was:

E’ﬁﬂg’ Services of the roofing and painting activities which previously formed
and Professional Services.

201¢ 018

Continuing aperations 52,492 47.3%4

Discontinued oparations - 1632

Total Group 51,492 49026

2009 2018

Wages and salaries 1,125.4 10207

Social security costs "898 77

Other persion costs 236 170

Share-based payments (Note 31) [N 1.2

Share-based payments acquisition related costs (Notes 4 and 31) s 34

Total 1,243.8 11194
Details of Directors' remuneration is provided below:

2019 2018

m fm

Directors”emoluments 7 2)

Share-based paymemnts 0.8 06

Total 45 27

None of the Directors accrued benefits under the defined benefit scheme, or were members of the defined contribution schemes for the years ended
31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018, Details of kss of office payments (subject to audit) are disdosed in the remuneration report on page 78.

The tota! amount payable 1o the highest paid Director in respect of emoluments was £2.2m (2017: £1.1m).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 3| March 2019

8. Finance costs

2019 2018
Contiuing operations tm m
Interest on bank faciities : 4.2 32
Interest on private placement ioan notes 78 9.4
Bank fees 05 0
Interest on obligations under finance leases 0.1 -
Unwinding of discountts on provisions 0.1 02
Loss arising on fair value hedges - ol
Net interest on defined benefit persion scheme assets and abities 13 20
Total 14.0 166
9. Tax

2019 018
Continuing and discorntinued aperations tre m
Current tax' 34 (5.6}
Deferred tax (Note 20} 0.2 69
Tax charge lor the year 3.6 13
Continuing operations &4 1t
Discontinued operations . (2.8) 02
Tax charge lor the year 3.8 13
Naoter

1. The Group has adopted IFRS 9 starting | April 2018 the transition option available in the standand mmmammwmemﬂmmdm
Whm‘t-mmmhmﬂfaﬁw&smmﬂM@pmamztmmd&4mmmwlms9

Corporation tax is calculated at 19% (2018: 19%) of the estimated taxable profit for the year. A reconciliation of the tax charge to the elements of profit
before tax per the consolidated income staternent elements is a5 foliows:

2009 08
Before Other Before Cther

Profit/{loss) before tax 78.5 (44.0) 345 732 ©979) (24.7)
Tax at UK rate of 19% (2018: 19%) 14.9 (b.4) &5 139 (iB.6) 4.7
Reconciling tax charges for: )
Non-tax deductible charges 0.y - 0.9 05 1.1 1.6
Share-based payments 03 0.7 .0 ©nH - ©.0
Gain on disposal of businesses - (4.9) (4.0) - - -
Impairment of goodwill - - - - 66 66
Overseas tax rates - 0.2) - 0.2) 03) - ©3).
Impact of change in statutory tax rates (0.4) 0.5 0.1 0.1 02 03
Prior year adiustments o.n - (0.7) @n - @)
Tax charge/{credit) for the year 14.8 (1.3 36 120 (107 13
Effective tax rate for the year 18.9% 5.5% 10.4% 164% 10.9% (5%
Notes
\ Vheerphs D&H;S\mamsIAprifmﬂ:wWnumwmummmumqmmmmmawmdm

Z 0theritarnrea;&wbedn~om4

In addition to the ameunts charged to the consolidated income statemenrt, tax relating to retirerment benefit costs amounting to a £2.4m credit
(2018: £3.4m charge) has been taken directly to the statement of comprehensive income together with a £0.3m charge relating to share-based
payments and hedged ftems (2018: £0.Im cred).

The UK corporation tax rate will reduce from 19% to 17% from | April 2020. This will reduce the Group's future current tax charge accordingly.
The UK deferred tax assets and liabilities at 31 March 2019 reflect this change. A current tax provision is recognised when the Group has a presert
obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation.
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10. Dividends

£
1019 08
&m &m %
" Amounts recognised as distributions in the year: §
Secondmmmdmdmdfor‘duyurendedllMard120l80f?.67p(20|7fmlcfmden¢ni)pershare' 9.6 - g
“
Interim dvidend for the year ended 31 March 2019 of | 33p (201 8: | 33p) per share 4.8 18
Amounts paid in 2019 and 2018 144 48
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 3| March 2019 of 267p (201 8: 2.67p) per share 7.8 96

Nete

I. On 7 june 2018, the Company announced its final results for the year ended 31 March 2018, The ennouncement induded a recormmendation by the Board of 3 fimal dividend of L67p per share
memmmmmmmlamwmmmdmawwmmmymmm a resokstion shereholder
‘the final dividend. In order for the dividend to be pax to sharehoiders on 6 August 201 B in accordance with the previously published timetable, on 31 kdy 2018 the dedlared a second
interim dividend of 267p per share in place of the proposed fina) dividend.

Governance
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 3| March 2019
Il. Earnings per share

Basic and difuted earmings per share have been calculated in accordance with |AS 33 'Earnings per share’.
The calculation of the basic and diluted EPS is based on the following data:

2019 2018
Fram contiruing operations tm £m
Net profit before other itemns atinbutable to equity hokders of the parent 0.6 545
Other iterns net of tx? - (30.6) @21
Net prolit/{ioss) attributable to equity holders of the parent 30.0 (17.6)
2049 2018
From cortiruing and dscontinued operations. &m im
Net profit before ather items attributable to equity holders of the parent 63.7 60.1
Cther items net of tax? (32.8) 87.2)
Net profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders of the parent - 30.9 @2
2017 018
MNumber of shares mitlion milfion
‘Weighted average number of ondinary shares for the purpose of besic EPS 350.8 3579
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: share aptions 22 19
Weighted average number of ordinary shares foe the purpose of diuted EPS 3830 3558
01y 2018
[ P
From continuing operations:
Basic earnings before other tems per share? 16.8 152
Basic eamings/(10ss) per share 8.3 49)
Diluted earnings before ather items per share? 16.7 15.1
Dilted earnings/(loss) per share 83 (4.9)
From continuing and discontinued operations:
Basic earnings before other iterns per share? 171.7 168
Basic earnings/(Joss) per share 8.6 {7.6)
Diluted earmnings before other items per share? 175 167
Diuted earnings/{loss) per share 85 76)
Notes:

1. The Group has adopted IFRS 9 starting | April 2018 wsing the transition option 2vastible in the standard by disclosing the impact as an adustment to opening retained earmings 3t the date of inftial
apphcation. Under this option, the comparative information & not restated,
2 Other itemns are as deseribed in Note o,

The weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year exdudes those accourted for in the own shares reserve (see Note 29).

The dilutive potential ordinary shares relate to instruments that could poterttially dilute basic eamnings per share in the future, such as share options.
The loss for the year ended 31 March 2018 means that the identified poterttialty dilutive shares are anti-dilutive for the purposes of calulating dituted
earmings per share.
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12 Goodwill

£

£m 2
Cont b
At | April 2017 3589 ?
Impact of foreign exchange . 03 §
At 31 March 2018 3592
Disposal of subsiciaries (B29)
At 31 March 2019 3263
Accumulated impairment losses
AL Aprl 2017 150
Impaiment of property goodwil 3446 -
At 31 March 2018 4556 £
Disposal of subsiiaries ' arn §
At 31 March 2019 32.5 4]
Carrying amount
Ac 31 March 2019 193.8
At 31 March 2018 3096
At | Apri 2017 ' 3439

Acquisition of Vision Security Group
On 26 October 2018, the Group acquired Vision Security Group Limited (VSG). There & no goodwill recogrised on acquisition as the corsideration
paid was less than VSG's net assets at the acquisition date, giving rise to a gain on bargain purchase, see Note 30,

Dispasal of Social Housing

On 19 Novemnber 2018, the Company signed an agreement for the sale of Mitie Property Management Limited and MPS Housing Lirnited {together,
the Social Housing business). This transaction completed on 30 Novermber 2018 and the associated carrying amount of goodwilt of £12.5m has been
inchuded in net assets disposed, See Note 5.

Disposal of Pest Control

On 30 Seprember 2018, the Group completed the sale of Mitie Pest Control Limited (PstControl)andﬂweasocztedgoodwnllofB3mhasbeen
induded in net assets disposed. See Note 5.

Goodwill impairment testing
Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at acquisition, to the cash-generating units (CGls) that are expected to benefit from that
business combination.

Goodwill has been allocated to CGLIK, which align with the business segmertts, as this is how goodwill is monitored by the Group internally. The £23.1m

net carrying vahse of goodwill associated with the roofing and painting activities which previously forrmed part of Property Management has been
transferred into the Engineering Services CGUL

v
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The Group tests goodwill at least annually for impairment or more frequently if there are indicators that goodwill may be impaired.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
for the year ended 31 March 2019

12. Goodwill continued
A summary of the goodwill balances and the discount rates used to assess the forecast cash flows from each CGU are as follows:

Pre-tax Postax Goodwill Goodwall

discount rate  discount rate 2009 xie

% x £m m

Engineering Services' 10.1 93 130.9 1309
Security 10.1 2.3 101.7 1017
Professional Services 133 10.3 15.7 157
Cleaning & Environmental Services 1.y 93 9.8 33.1
Catering 121 9.2 15.7 157
Social Housing - 125
Total 274 3096

Nota:
1. The information presented for the year ended 31 March 2018 has been restated o reflect the integration into Engineening Services of the roofing and panting activities previously reported
i Property Management.

Key assumptions

The recoverable amounts for each CGU are determined by the value in use which is derived from discounted cash flow caleulations. The key
assumptions for the value in use calculations are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates and expected changes to revenue and direct costs
during the forecast period, Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks spedific to the CGLs. The long-term growth rates are based on forecast inflation. Changes in revenue and direct ¢osts are based on past
performance and expectations of future changes in the market, operating model, and cost base.

Growth rates and terminal values

For all CGlUs the Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent budgets for the year ending 31 March 2020 and the Group
mediurnterm plan to 31 March 2024 which have been approved by the Board, and a terminal value using along-term growth assumption of |.5%.

Discount rates

The pre-tax discount rates used to assess the forecast cash flows from CGlUs are derived from the Company's post-tax Weighted Average Cost of
Capital, which was 8.8% at 31 March 2019 (2018: 7.7%), and is adjusted for the risks specific to the business being assessed and the market in which
the CGU operates. All CGUs have the same access to the Group's treasury functions and borrowing lines to fund their cperations.

Sensitivity anatysis

A sensitivity analysis has been performed and the Directors have concluded that no reasonably foreseeable change in the key assumptions woutd result
in an impairment of the goodwill of any of the Group’s CGUs.
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I13. Other intangible assets

Total  Software and £

MCWF Over  “Treied oo Toe ¥

& ém &m €m £m 5

Cost

At | Aprd 2017 884 109 99.3 973 196.6
Additions - - - 90 2.0
AL3| March 2018 88.4 109 99.3 1063 205.6
" - _ - 2 n.2
Acquisition of subsidiaries 149 - 149 - 149
Disporsals - - - G13) 3Ly

Disposal of subsidiaries - - - (60} (6.9) g

At 31 March 2019 1033 109 1142 802 194.4 E

Amortisation §
At ) Aprl 2017 B34 96 93.0 504 143.4
Charge for the year 22 04 14 109 13.5
Impairment of software and development expenditure - - - 104 10.4
At 31 March 2018 856 100 95.6 717 167.3
Charge for the year (2 03 15 75 2.0
Impairment of software and development expenditure - - - 11 1.1

Disposals - - - @13) o1 g

Disposal of subsiciaries - - - 24 (2.4) £

At 31 March 2019 868 103 971 466 1417 g

g:;

Carrying amount c

At 31 March 2019 ST 08 174 336 50.7 -
At 31 Manch 2018 28 09 37 346 383
At ) Apr 2017 50 13 63 469 5.2

Customer refatiorships are amortised over their useful lives based on the period of time over which they are anticipated to generate benefits.

These currently range from four to eight years. Other acquisiion related intangibles indude acquired software and technology which are amortised
gver their useful lives which currently range from three to ten years. Software and development costs are amortised over their useful lives of between
five and ten years, once they have been brought into use.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group impaired £10.4m of software and developrment expenditure related to intangible assets with the
impairment recognised within restructuring costs in other items (see Note 4).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 3| March 2019

i4. Property, plant and equipment

S e IR w
m &m im m

Cost
At | April 2017 13 168 715 89.6
Additions ' 02 49 107 158
Redassifications within property, plant and equipment - 02 ©.2) -
Disposals (-2} 0.8) (24} {449
At31 March 2018 03 21.1 94 10t.0
Additions - 4.1 B0 124
Redassifications within property. plant and equipment - 03) 03 -
Disposals - (65) (173 (23.8)
Acquisition of subsidiaries - - 02 0.2
Disposal of subsidiaries ©3) ©n 24 Q.4
At 31 March 2019 - - 17.7 684 8é.1
Accurnulated depreciation and impairment
At | April 2017 04 106 463 573
Charge for the year - 17 i 12.8
Redassifications within property. plant and equipment - 02 {0.2) -
Disposals (3) ©3) Qn an
At31 March 2018 0l 122 55.1 674
Charge for the year - 08 108 (K%
Redlassifications within property. plartt and equipment - ©.1) 0. -
Disposas ' - @n (172) (199
Disposal of subsidiaries ©n ©2 un (2.0
Ar 11 Marrh Hil® . 100 17.1 [+A]
Carrying amount
At‘ 3§ March 2019 - 7.7 213 29.0 .
At 31 March 2018 02 89 245 336
Axl April 2017 09 62 pL¥ 323

The net book value of plant and vehicles held under finance leases included above was £0.7m (2018: £0.7m).
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15. Trade and other receivables

2019 me

im [
Trade receivables 233.6 2050
Accrued income 1324 1314
Prepayments ' 271 213
Other receivables? 419 283
Total 952 3850
Induded in current assets 43152 3840
Included in non-current assets - -
Total 4352 3860
Naotes

1. The Group has adopted IFRS.9 starting | Apré 2018 Lsing the transition option avaiable in the standard by disdosing the impact as an adistrent to opening retained earmings 2t the date of nitial
application. Under this opiion, the comparetive infarmation & not restaed,

1 Within other receivables for the year ended 31 Manch 2019 is £4.5m relating to the aoquisition of VSG (see Note 30). This belance represents amounts expected to be recovered following
flahhdhmﬁ@zﬁmwupﬁwkabmwwmdhmmmuwﬂm

The Group makes use of a non-recourse customer invoice discounting fadlity under which certain trade receivable balances are sold to the Group's
refationship banks. As these trade receivables are sold without recourse, the Group has derecognised them, and so they are not included within trade
receivables. The Group has reduced the amount of invoice discounting from £76.3m as at 31 March 2018 to £73.2m as at 3| March 2019,

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other recevables approximates their fair value.

Information about the Group's exposure to credit risk and its loss allowance against the balance of trade receivables and acarued income, is provided
in Note 23,

16. Contract assets

Contract
Pre-contract fulfiiment
costs costs Total
fm &m &m
At Apri 2017 - - -
Additions - 23 23
Amortised in the period - (©.n ©.n
At 31 March 2018 - 22 1.2
Additions 22 25 4.7
Armortised in the period - {©8) (0.8)
At 3| March 2019 22 39 [N}
induded in current assets 07 s 1.6
Induded in ron-current assets 15 30 4.5
Total 2 39 6l

Contract assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the contract life which is consistertt with the transfer of services to the customer to which
the asset relates. Management has determined that no impairment of contract assets is required as at 31 March 2019.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2019

17. Trade and other payables

2019 2018

im &m

Payments received on account : 0.6 02
Trade creditors 160.3 1913
Cther taxes and social security B A | 9
Crther creditors 45.0 D2
Accruak 1309 1962
Total 5339 4968
Induded in current kabiities 533.9 4968
Included in non-current fiabilites - -
Total 5339 4968

Trade creditors at 31 March 2019 represents 50 days credit on trade purchases (2018 restated: 58 days).

Included within the Group's trade creditors balance is £200m (2018: £45.1m) relating to paymextts due to UK suppliers which make use of bank

provided supply chain finance arrangements. During the year ended 3| March 2019 these arrangements were used by <200 suppliers, with a maximum

faclity available of £500m. The Group settles these amounts in accordance with each supplier's agreed payment terms.
The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and ather payables approximates their fair value.

18. Deferred income from contracts with customers
The significant changes in deferred income are as follows:

2019 218

im fm

At 1 April 5.0 301
Reverwe recognised that was induded in the deferred income balance at the beginning of the year {(44.9) (159)
Increase due to cash received, excluding amounts recognised as revenue during the year 50.0 508
Acquesition of subsidiaries 4.9 -
Cisposal o) subsicares .n -
At 31 March 733 650
e 2018

&m m

Induded within current abiites 54.9 462
Inctuded within non-current liabiites 18.4 188
Total 733 650

Deferred income relating to customer cortracts mobilising in the year amounted to £5.8m (2018: £2.6m). For any amounts which do not relate

to spexific contractual performance obligations, the income is deferred to the balance sheet and amortised over the period to which the contracted

services are delivered to the customer,
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19. Provisions

£
2
t
R
o Deferred Contract 2
pn ol Restrumrrg  conederstion  reserve osts PenSOn  Dipcidmions Total g
£m £m £m fm m im m m m v
At Apd 2017 20 60 - 03 125 58 - - 26.6
Amounts recognised in the balance sheet - - - - - - - 34 3.4
Amourts recognised in the ncome staternent 32 - 1.2 - 40 {13) - - T.1
Utilisaed within captive insurance subsidiary - - - - [(11)) - - - (0.1}
Unwinding of discount - - - - - - - 02 0.2
Uttsed in the year (.1 (. - ©3) (n @h - - N
At 31 March 2018 4.1 49 12 - 153 24 - 36 315 o
Amounts recognisad in the income statemant 02 06 - - 5 15 200 - 348 E
Utilised within captive insurance subsickary - - - - [(0X)) - - - {0.1) g
Unwinding of discourt - - - - - - - 0.1 0.1 [G]
Utiised in the year (40 © oD - ek)) {08) - (04) ®.n
Redassification - - - - 06 8 - - -
At 31 March 1019 03 53 - - 150 1227 200 33 - 566
200
Induded in current kabiities 03 53 - - 9.0 127 33 50.6
Induded in non-current liabifities - - - - (4] - - - 60
Total 03 53 - - 150 127 200 33 546

The provisions balance indudes the following ttems:

The legal costs provision relates to professional fees payable and the potential cost of settlement of cutstanding daims against the Group.

The utifisation of the provision represents the setlernent of a contractual claim related to a contract of the now discontinued Social Housing business
The disposal indemnities provision relates to indemnities provided following the disposal by the Group of the Healthcare and Sodial Housing
businesses. The amount recognised in the income staterment represents a £2.6m charge in respect of Social Housing net of a £2.0m release in
respect of Healthcare.

The restructuring provision relates to costs of organisational change associated with the Group's Project Helix transformation programime induding
the transition costs associated with the outsourding of certain back-office transartional processes.

The insurance reserve provides for the seff-insured element of fleet and liability daims that will typically settie over three to five years. This indudes

a prowvision for claims that are expected but have not yet been reported.

The contract specific cost provisions relate to various obligations arising in the ordinary course of providing services in line with commercial contracts.
The £11.5m charge for the year ended 31 March 2019 indudes the £12.1m estimated costs of rectification works associated with certain property
mairtenance cortracts of the now discortinued Sodal Housing business, all of which are induded within other items. Refer 1o Note 4 for further details

The pension ptwsuonrelatstotheSectlon75employerdebtllabdmsofRobenPretue&CoUmmedasarsultofﬂﬂtcompanfspa:mpabmmﬂ\e
Plumbing Scheme. This liability is expected to be settled during the year ended 31 March 2020. See Notes 32 and 33,

The provision for dilapidations relates to the [egal obligation for leased properties to be returned to the landlord in the contracted condition at the end
of the lease period. This cost would include repairs of any damage and wear and tear.

Contingent asset

The Directors are working to ensure that, through a combination of insurance claims and recourse to suppliers a proportion of the £16.1m costs
incurred in respect of rectification works for the Sodal Rousing property maintenance contracts, including the £12 1m recorded in prowasions above,
are recovered. The amount and timing of any recoveries i yet 1o be determined.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2019

20, Deferred tax

The following are the major deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised by the Group and movemertts thereon during the current and prior reporting
period:

Reticernent Intangile Short-term

s eprenaion e e o e Tows

m £m £m m im in m

A Apel 2017 58 65 126 [{R)} 07 16 46.1
(Charge)/eredit to income 70 (©3) 03 03 © ©n (6.9)
{Charge)aredit to equity and the
statement of comprehensive income - - 349 - [A] - (3.3)
At 31 March 2018 188 62 95 {08) 07 15 I59
Acquisition of subsidiaries - 03 - Qs - 02 {20)
Disposal of subsidaries - ©3) - 05 - {02) -
(Charge)icred to income {15) (2 23 1) 04 o.n {0.2)
Credit/{charpe) to equity and the
statement of comprehensive income - = 24 - (03) - 2.1
At 31 March 2019 173 50 142 %) 81} 1.4 358

Certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The foliowing is the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset) for financial reporting
pUPOsEs

2019 018

m im

Deferred tax assets 387 367
Deferred tax liabifities 1.9 {08)
MNet deferred tax asset 358 359

The Group has unutiwed income tax losses of £102.3m (2018: £112.8m) that are available for offset aganst future profits. In addition, the Group has
£0.8m (2018: £0.8m) of capital losses. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of £92.8m (2018: £102.7m) of losses to the extent that

it is probable that taxable profits will be generated in the future and be available for utitisation. Deferred tax has been calculated using the corporation
tax rate disclosed in Note 9.

21. Cash and cash equivalents
19 2018
tm m

Cash and cash equivalents 108.4 59.8

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by the Group and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.
The carrying amount of the assets approximates their fair value.

Inchsded in cash and cash equivalents are deposits totaliing £nil (2018: £0.4m) held by the Group's insurance subsidiary, which are not readily available
for the general purposes of the Group. The Group's insurance subsidiary was kquidated during the year.
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22. Financing Kabilities

a1y K18

im &m
Bar loars ~ under committed facites 521 543
Private placement notes 2119 2038
Obligations under finance leases (Note 24) 1.5 13
Total 248.8 2594
included in current kabties 0.7 08
Inchuded in nor-current fabifities 2248 25856
Totat 265.5° 2594

The £275.0m bank faility and the private placement notes are unsecured but have financial and non-finandial covenants and obligations commonly
associated with these The final maturity dates of all fadlities remained unchanged. The Group was in compliance with these covenants
as at 31 March 2019 and hence all amounts are dassified in line with repayrment dates.

Included in current financing liabilities are £0.7m (2018: £0.8m) of obligations under finance leases (see Note 24).

With the exception of derivative finandial instruments, all financing liabilities are held at amortised cost. Dervative finandial instruments are initially
recognised at fair value at the date the contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value through profit or loss unless they
are designated as hedges for which hedge accounting can be applied (see Note 23),

At 3| March 2019, the Group had available £221.9m (2018: £219.3m) of undrawn committed borrowing fadilities in respect of which all conditions
had been met. The faciities have an expiry date of July 2021. The loars carry interest rates which are currently determined at 1.0% over
the applicable LIBOR,

Details of the Group’s contingent liabilities are provided in Note 33
The weighted average interest rates paid during the year on overdrafts and loars outstanding were as follows:

019 X138
% %
CQwverdrafts 1.7 20
Bank loans [ ] 15
Private placement notes 4.1 39
Private placement notes
Following the issue on | 6 December 2010 of US$26.0m and £40.0m of private (PP} notes in the United States Private Placement market,
the Group issued a further US$153.0m and £55.0m of PP notes on 13 December 2012. The PP notes are unsecured and rank pari passu with
other senior unsecured indebtedness of the Group. In order to manage the risk of fareign curmency fluctuations and to manage the Group's finance
costs through a mix of fixed and variable rate debt, the Group has entered into cross-curmency interest rate swaps. The swap contracts have the
same duration and other critical terms as the borrowings and are considered to be highly effective. US$96.0m of these PP notes were settied in
Decermber 2017 upon maturity, along with the associated swaps which had been designated as fair value hedges. The amount. maturity and interest
terrrs of the rermaining PP notes are shown below.
Tranche Maturity date Amount Imterest terms Swap interest
9 year 16 December 2019 £400m £ fixed at 438% na
[0 year 16 December 2022 LUS$760m LSS fixed at 3.85% £ fixed 3t 402%
10 year 16 December 2022 USE770m LS$ fixed at 3.85% £ fixed # 4.02%
10 year 16 December 2022 £250m £ fixed at 3.87% nfa
§2 year 16 December 2024 £300m £ fixed at 400% nfa
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2019

23. Financial instruments

Classification

The Group's principal financial assets are cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and derivative financial instrumentts. With the exception
of derivative financial instruments, all finandal assets are held and measured at amortised cost.

The Group's principal financial liabilities are trade and other payables and financing liabilities. All financial iabilities are held and measured

at amortised cost.

Derivative finandial instruments are measured initially at fair value at the date the contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
to their fair value through the income staterment unless they are designated as hedges for which hedge accounting can be applied.

Dedails of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted (including the criteria for recognition, the basts of measurement and the bases
for recognition of income and expense) for each class of financial asset. financial liability and equity instrument are disdosed in Note |.

Risk management objectives

The Group's treasury department monitors and manages the financdial risks relating to the operations of the Group. These risks indude those arising
from interest rates, foreign currendies, liquidity, credit and capital management. The Group seeks to minimise the effects of these risks by using effective
contro! measures and, where appropriate, derivative finandial instruments to hedge certain risk exposures. The use of financial derivatives is gaverned
by Group policies and reviewed regutarty. Group policy is to not trade in financial instruments. The risk management policies remain unchanged from
the previous year.

Interest rate risk
The Group's activities expose ft to the financial risks of interest rates. The Group's treasury function reviews its risk management strategy on a regular
basis and will, as appropriate, enter into derivative financial instruments in order to manage interest rate risk.

Interest rate sensitivity

The interest rate sensitivity has been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for both derivative and non-derivative instruments at the
batance sheet date. All financial liabilities, other than financing liabilities, are interest free.

¥ underlying interest rates had been 0.5% higherflower and ali other variables were held constant, the Group's profit after tax for the year ended
31 March 2019 and reserves would decrease/increase by £0.8m (2018: £0.7m).

Foreign currency risk

The Group has limited exposure to transactional foreign currency risk from trading transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of
individual group erttities and some exposure to transkitional foreign currency risk from the translation of its foreign operations. The Group considers
the need to hedge its exposures as appropriate and wil enter into forwand foreign exchange contracts to mitigate any significant risks.

In addition, the Group has fully hedged the US dollar exposure on its private placement notes into sterfing using cross-currency interest rate swaps
(see Hedging activities below).

At 3| March 2019 £9.2m (2018; £93m) of cash and cash equivalents were held in foreign aurrendies. Included in bank loars were £13.0m

(2018: £15.7m) of loans denominated in foreign currency.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its liquidity risk using a cash flow projection rmodel which considers the maturity of the Group's assets and liabilities and the
projected cash flows from operations. Bank icans under committed facilities, which allow for appropriate headroom in the Group's daily cash
movements, are then arranged. Details of the Group's bank facilities can be found in Note 22,
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The tables below surnmarise the maturity profile (induding both undiscounted interest and principal cash flows) of the Group's finandal Rabilities:

T
Within  In the second Ater E’
oneyear  to ffth years Bve years Total
Financial lebities &t 31 March 2019 £m im im im %
Trade creditors 1404 - - 180.1 E
Other crednors 409 - - 409 n
Finarcing Rabilises 102.0 5626 30.9 2988
Financial kabiites' Jo3.0 162.6 30.9 496.5
Within In the second After
one year to fifth years five years Tow
Financial kabiities at 31 March 2018 &m m fm im
Trade creditors 1913 - - 1913
Other creditors 292 - - 22 g
Financing babilities 656 1989 315 2960 E
Finarxcial kabdities' 286} 1989 315 5165 z
: (U]

Note:
1. Fnarcil Ebies maturiy profle s exchsive of the £16.4m (2018: £6.1m) derhative aset which veoukd nituraly offst the setterent vake: of the maturig private plcemert notes

mancing abiities.
Credit risk
The Group's credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis and formally reported quarterly. The value of business placed with financil institutions
is revizwed on a daily basis.
The Group's credit risk on liquid funds and derivative financial instrumerts is imited because the external counterparties are banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies and are managed through regular review.
The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its receivable balances from asstomers. Before accepting a new austomer, the Group uses externd credit
scoring systems 1o assess the potential customer’s credit quality and define an appropriate credit limit which is reviewed regularly.
The maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to trade receivables and accrued income at the balance sheet date s the fair value of trade receivables
and zccrued income. The Group's customer base is farge and unrelated and, accordingly, the Group does nat have a significant concentration of credit
risk with any one counterparty or group of counterparties.
The amounts presented in the balance sheet in relation to the Group's trade receivables and accrued income balances are presented net of loss
alowances. The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses (ECLs) using both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis based on the Group’s historical experience, and forward-looking information.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 3| March 2019
23. Financial instruments continued

The following table provides information about the Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs against customer batances as at 31 March 2019
under FRS 9:

2019
&m
Gross Net
Trade receivables 11 31 March 2019 ‘ it allowanes P
Current {not overdue) 210.3 (1.9 198.4
1-30 days overdue 26.4 R 248
31-60 days overdue &5 (0.5) 5.0
61-90 days overdue . .7 ©.3) 1.4
More than 90 days overdue 79 (4.6) 33
Total 2528 (19.2) 233.6
Trade receivables at 31 March 2019 represents 29 days revenue (2018 restated: 26 days).
The following table provides information about the ageing of trade receivables as at 3| March 2018 under I1AS 3%:
2018'
im
Neither impaired nor past due 163.6
MNat impaired and less than three moniths overdue 374
Not impaired and more than three months overdue 213
Provision for doubtful debts (173)
Total 2050
Noxe
I ﬂuGru}pll’:cbr x oggz’:wq 1 Apri;msmq:mmnmmdwmumamwmmmmnmmdm
The following table provides the movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables and accrued income:
2019 w8
im €m
Trade Accrued Trade Aeorued
rec noome
At 1 April ) _ 173 65 162 45
tmpact of change in accounting policy 1.5 1.0 - -
Impairment losses/(gains) recognised 1l (1.6) 23 20
_Amounts written ofl as uncollectabte (1.5) - 0 -
Acaisition of subsidiaries 19 [ R] ) - -
Disposal of subsidiaries .n (0.4) - -
At 11 March 19.2 5.6 173 65
Mot
I MMLT& t om;::niulAg-i_20l8@gﬂ:mmhmmwmmmmamﬁwwwmmdmh@nhdmefinh‘nl
Capital management risk

The Group manages fts capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to cortinue as going concerns while maximising the return
to stakehoiders through the optimisation of debt and equity. The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt per Note 26 and equity
per the consolidated staternent of changes in equity.

The Group is not subject to externally imposed regulatory capital requirements.
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Hedging activities §
Cash flow hedges g
The Group hokds a number of cross-currency interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges on US$153.0m of PP notes. Biannuai fixed interest »
cash flows denominated in US dollars arising over the periods to Decernber 2022 from the US Private Placement market are exchanged for fsed ¥
interest cash flows denominated in sterfing. All cash flow hedges were assessed as being highly effective as at 31 March 2019. §
Hedge of net investment in foreign operations
Included in bank loans at 31 March 2015 was a borrowing of €9.5m (2018: €9.5m) which has been designated as a hedge of the net investment in the
Republic of lreland business of Dalkia FM, and is being used to hedge the Group's exposure to foreign exchange risk on this investrent. Gains or losses
on the transtation of the borrowing are transferred to equity to offset gains or losses on the trarslation of the net investment.
Derivative financial instruments
The Garrying values of derivative financial instruments at the balance sheet date were as follows:
2000 018
m im '
[
Derivative financial instruments heciging private placement notes’' 16.4 6.1 §
Total 164 6.1 §
(&)
Inchuded in current assets - -
Indluded in non-current assets 16.4 6.1
Total 164 (]
Note:

|, Derbative financial instruments hediging private placement NOtes comprigs Cross-numency irterest rile swaps designated as cash fiow hedges.

Derivative financial instrumenits are measured at fair value,
Fair value measurements are dassified into three levels, depending on the degree to which the fair value is observable:

* Level | fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabikties;
= Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from other observable inputs for the asset or liability; and
* Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques using inputs that are not based on observable market data

w
)
c
£
[
o=
I
-
2

TIN3ANCIA

The Directors consider that the Group's derivative finangial instruments fall into Level 2 There were no transfers between levels during the year. Fair
values of these instruments are calculated based on a discounted cash flow analysis using appropriate market information for the duration of the
instruments. All contracts are gross settied.

24. Obligations under finance leases

Minimum lease payments
2009 018
& m

Amouns payable under finance leases: )
‘Within one year 0.7 08
In the second to fifth years indusive 0.8 05
1.5 1.3
Present value of lease obigations I.§ 13
Less: amount due for setement within 12 months (0.7) ©8
Amount due for setlement after 12 months . 0.8 : 05

The average remaining lease term is |8 months (2018 20 months). For the year ended 3| March 2019, the average effective borrowing rate was 3.8%
(2018: 1.4%). Interest rates are fixed at the contract date. All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and ne arrangements have been entered into for
contingent rertal payments. All lease obligations are denominated in sterling,

The fair value of the Group's lease obligations approximates their carrying amount. The Group's obligations under finance leases are protected by the
lessors” rights over the leased assets.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 3| March 2G19
25. Operating lease commitments

At the balance sheet date, the Group had total outstanding aggregate commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases, which fall due as follows:

201y 2018

£m £m

Within one year 25.) 37
In the second to fifth years indusive 41.4 392
After froe years 5.3 13.2
Total . 7.0 761

Operating lease payments represerit rentals payable by the Group for certain of its office properties and hire of vehicles and other equiprment.
These leases have average durations ranging from three to ten years. No arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental payments.

26. Analysis of net debt

20109 2018
tm {m
Cash and cash equivalertts (Note 21) 108.4 598
Bank loars (Note 22) (52.1) (543)
Private placement notes (Note 22) @y (2038)
Derivative financial instruments hedging private placement notes (Note 23) 164 61
Net debt before obligations under fl ! (139.2) (1922)
Obigations under finance leases (Note 24) 5 un
Net debt (140.7) (1935)

Net debt excludes amounts in respect of custorer invoice discounting referred to in Note 15 and amourts in respect of supply chain financing
referred to in Note 17,
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27. Notes to the consolidated statement of cash flows

w0 2018 g_
Cash conversion -g
Operating profit/(loss) . 50.2 (2.0) 4.2 Ll (9:4) ®3)
Depregation .3 0.3 14.4 123 [+13 128
Amortisation .7 ol 9.8 132 o3 135
Impairment of goodwil and intangble assets LI - (N 33 e 450
Earnings before interest, tax, deprediation and amortisation 723 (1.8) 70.7 597 313 630
(EBTDA)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations 56.9 (%.4) 415 1. 99 7.9} b
Free cash flow g
Cash generated from{used in) operations a8 o9 £
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (z (15.8) ©
Purchase of other intangible assets Ly o0
Disposal of property, plant and equipment 4.7 : 16
Income taxes received ) 4.7 1.6
Interest received 0.2 02
interest paid (12.4) (135)
Free cash flow 244 (328) .
2019 G
Other non- §
Opening Total cash Rechassifieation Fair value Other FX cash Ciosing =
balance  movements  of sanfor debt changes mMovements  movemants balance o
m im &m im tm tm £m =
Cash flows Non-cash changes LE
Long-term borrowings — bank loans (54.3) X - - 03 ©.2) (52.1)
Lorglerm borrowings — private placerent {103.5) - 40.0 &0 - - (171.9)
loan notes
Short-term borrowings — private placement - - {40.0) - - - (40.9)
loan notes
Finance lease cbligaticns () ©.2) - - - - (1.5}
Finaning liabilities {159.4) Ly - .1} 0.3 (0.2) (265.5)
Derivative financial instruments a. - - 103 - - 16.4
Net financing Rabilities (2%3.3) 19 - 22 0.3 (0.2) (249.1)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2019

28. Share capital

Number

Ordinary shares of 25p million £m
Allatted and fully paid

At | April 2017 369.1 92
lssued for acquisitions 46 eA]
At 31 March 2018 3737 33
Issued for acquisitions . - -
Ax 3] March 2019 mna 9.3

During the year ended 31 March 2018, 4.6m ordinary shares of 25p were allotted in respect of the acquisition of non-controlling interests at an issue
price between 266.3p and 278.8p giving rise to share premium of £nil and merger reserve of £124m

29. Reserves

Share premium account
The share premium account represents the premium arsing on the issue of equity shares.

Merger reserve
The merger reserve represerts amounts releting 1o premims arising on shares issued subject 1o the provisions of Section 612 of the Comparnies Act
2006.

The merger reserve increased by £124m in the year ended 31 March 2018 as a result of the issue of 4.6m ordinary shares of 2.5p for the acquistion
of non-cortroliing interests.
Own shares reserve
The Group uses shares held in the Employee Benefit Trust to satisfy conditional awards under the Group's LTIP, C5P and DBP share schemes and

shares held in the SIP Trust to provide matching shares under the SIP schere. During the year the trust distributed 0.3m (2018: 07m) shares at a cost
of £0:8m (2018: £].6m) to satisfy awards under those scheres.

The Cornparty uses Treasury shares to satisfy share options under the Groug’s ESOS and SAYE share schemes, No Treasury shares have been issued
1o satisfy options under the Group's share schemes in the year. During the year ended 3| March 2018, proceeds from the issue of |.5m Treasury
shares to satisfy options under these share schemes were £3.4m at a cost of £43m, with the loss of £09m being recogmised in retained garmings.

The own shares reserve at 31 March 2019 represents the cost of 17 7m (7018: | 3.0m) ordinary shares in Mitie Group plc held for the purposes of
the share schemes, with a weighted average of 13.8m (2018: |3.8m) shares during the year, as well as the £2.6m (201 8: £7.1m) value of the remaining
restricted shares issued as consideration to acquire non-controlling interests that is required to be treated as remuneration.

Inthe year ended 31 March 2019, the £5.3m (201 8: £69m) movement indudes £4.5m (2018: £1.0m) which has been released aginst the share-based
payrments reserve following the expiration of the required continuing employment period in relation to restricted shares and £0.8m (2018: £5.9m) for
the cost of shares distributed to satisfy awards under the Group's share schemes. The £8.1m credit to own shares reserve in the year ended 3| March
2018 represented the restricted shares issued s part of the acquisition of non-controlling interests.

Other reserves

Cther reserves are comprised of the share-based payments reserve of £9.4m (2018: £104m), the revaluation reserve of £{0.2)m (2018; £(0.2)m),
the capital redemption reserve of £0.9m (2018: £0.9m) and other reserves of £02m (2018: £0.2m).

The share-based paymerts reserve represents credits in respect of the vesting peridd of equity-settled share-based payment transactions (see Note 31)
and credits in respect of the vesting period of restricted shares issued as part of the acquisition of non-controlling interests.

Hedging and translation reserve

The hedging and translation reserve of £(5.6)m (2018: £(7.3m) indudes balances in respect of the Group's cash flow hedges (see Note 23). A net cash
flow hedge credit during the year of £2.2m (2018: £0.Im credit) is induded within other comprehensive income. The hedging and transtation reserve
also inchudes balarces arising on transtation of the Group's foreign operations and in respect of niet investment hedges of which the combined
moverent was a charge of £0.2m during the year (2018: £0.5m credit). An income tax charge of £0.3m (2018: £0.1m credit) has been recogniced
on these movernents.

Other movements in reserves

A movement of £).8m (2018; £nif) has been reflected in retained earnings representing the recovery of consideration for the purchase of certain
nen-controlling interests in the year ended 31 March 2017,
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30. Acquisitions

Current year acquisitions = purchase of Vision Security Group

On 26 October 2018, the Group acquired a 100% shareholding in Vision Security Group Limited (VSG). VSG is a leading security services provider
offering integrated security systems, manned guarding and key holding services, with a team of approxdmately 6,000 employees servicing more than
1,400 guarding jocations and aver 5,000 systerns locations across the LUK and Irelandl

The acquisition of VSG further strengthens the position of Mitie’s Total Security Management business (Mitie TSM) as one of the leading providers of
integrated and risk-based security services in the UK In particular, the combination will offer opportunities 1o accelerate the growth of Mitie’s premium

technology-enabled and imteliigence-led security solutions,

Consideration of £12.7m (on a debt free, cash free basis) was paid in cash at completion, and funded through Mitie’s own cash resources. £4.5m of the
cash consideration paid is expected to be to be returned through agreément of the completion accounts with the sefler of the business,

The Group's provisional assessment of the fair values of the assets and liabilities recognised as a result of the acquisition has been based on total
consideration of £8.2m folkowing expected adjustments 1o the completion accounts. The purchase price allocation is s follows:

Provvisional fir

Bookvae  vakue adusiment Fair value

ém m tm

Software and development expenditure 0l Q.1 -
Property, plant and equipment 05 Q3) 0.2
Customer refationships - 149 14.9
Current tax assets 05 - 0s
Inventories 07 02) 0s
Trade and other receivabiles 415 (42) 373
Cash and cash equivalenits K3 - 1.6
Trade and cther payables (298) (12 (31.0)
Deferred income from contracts with austomers (0 L) (4.9)
Current tax liabifities ©.1) - (0.h)
Deferred tax kabities - @29 (2.0)
Net identifiable assets acquired Ho 80 17.0
Less bargain purchase in other items {8.8)
Consideration 8.2

The Group condudad that the value of the order baddog and the customer relationships to drive renewal of the contracts held by VSG was
an intangible asset which has been valued at £14.9m at acquisition and has been recorded as a non-current intangible asset under the caption
‘Customner relationships’. The asset will amortise to the income staterment in line with the forecast expiry of the undertying custorner relationships

over a |Q-year period.

The Group has recorded a bargain purchase gain of £8.8m in the consolidated income statement within other iterns, This represents the excess of net

identifiable assets acquired of £17.0m over the consideration of £82m,
Acquired receivables

The fair value of acquired trade and other receivables was ¢37.3m. The gross contractual amount for trade and other receivables due was £39.3m,

against which £2.0m is the expected cradit loss.
Revenue and profit contribution

The acquired business contributed revenues of £79.6m and net profit of £1.4m to the Group for the period from 26 October 2018 to 31 March 2019,

If the acquisition had ocasred on |

April 2018, consolidated pro-forma revenue and profit before tax for continuing operations for the year ended

31 March 2019 would have been £2,332.|m and £3|.9m respectively. These amounts have been calculated using the subsidiary’s results and adjusting

them for:

« Differences in the accounting policies between the Group and the subsidiary; and

* The additional

depredation and amortisation that would have been charged assuming the fair value adjustrments to property, plart and equipment

and irtangible assets had applied from | Aprit 2018, together with the consequential tax effects,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 3| March 2019

30. Acquisitions continued

Purchase consideration — cash cutflow
Qutflow of cash 1o acquire subsidiaries, net of cash acquired:

1019

tm
Cash consideration 127
Less: cash balance acquired (1.6)
Less: recovery of consideration’ (1.8)
Net autflow of cash - investing activities 9.3
Nexe:
1 Rmmyofmidazﬁonimﬂi’gtotlsmwhrupendhmmo‘m@mbmhﬂ:p—adqn March 2017. See Not= 28
Acquisition related costs

Acquisition related costs of £2.6m are induded in administrative expenses and recognised in ather items (see Note 4) in the income statement and
in operating cash flows in the statemert of cash flows.

Prior year acquisitions - purchase of non-controlling interests

On 19 July 2017, the Company purchased the minority 49% shareholding in Source Eight Limited. The consideration paid was £4.0m, satisfied with
£30m in cash and £1.0m in unrestricted shares. A further £5.1m of shares were issued which were subject to sale restrictions related to continuing
employment. Regarding shares issued, 2,196,708 ordinary shares were issued, with a nominal value of 25p per share in Mitie Group plc (Mitie shares)
at a fair value of 278.8p, of which 1.838,028 Mitie shares were subject to sale restrictions related to cortinuing employment.

in addition, on 20 October 2017 the Company purchased the rernaining minority shareholdings in five Mitie Model companies. The considerstion paid
was £3.4m, satisfied through the issue of unrestricted shares. A further £3.0m of shares were issued which were subject to sale restrictions related to
corttinuing employment. Regarding shares issued, 2.396,38( Mitie shares were issued at a fair vakie of 266.3p, of which 1,139,697 Mitie shares were
subject to sale restrictions related to comtinuing employment. The sharenolidings purchased, primarily held by certain of the employees and senior
management of the relevant subsidiary companies, are detailed below:

* Mtie Care and Custody Limited (MCCL} - 6.85% of the issved share capital, comprising 42,505 B ordinary shares of £0.01 each, for a consideration
of £0.4m satisfied by the issue of 169,328 Mitie shares;

« Mitie Evertts & Leksure Services Limited (MELSL) - 24.08% of the issued share capital, comprising 205,000 B ordinary shares of £0.01 each,
for a consideration of £0.4m satisfied by the issue of 144,555 Mitie shares;
* Mitie Facilities Managerent Limnited (trefand) (MFML) - 5.63% of the issued share capital, comprising 146000 B ordinary shares of €001 each,
for a consideration of £0.2m satisfied by the issue of 72,228 Mitie shares;

* Mitie Catering Services Limited (MCSL) — 1B.55% of the issued share capital, comprising 333.677 D ordinary shares of £0.01 each, for a consideration
of £2.9m satisfied by the issue of 1,072,416 Mitie shares: and

+ Mitie Waste & Ervironmental Services Limited (MWESL) — 27.71% of the issued share capital, comprising 332.500 B ordinary shares of ¢Q.01 each,
for a consideration of £25m satisfied by the issue of 937,854 Mitie shares;

The above acquisitions have been campleted based on transfer of consideration of the fair value of the shareholdings of the respective entities. As part
of the above transactions Mitie Group issued unrestricted and restricted shares. The restricted shares are attached with a condition that the relevant
recipient continues in employment with the Group for a fixed vesting period of time. Restrictions will remain attached to the shares if the recipient
leaves employmernt with the Group prior to completion of the vesting period of the shares.

As a result of the acquisitions outkned above Mitie Group owns 100% of the issued share capital of all of the above entities.

144 Mitie Group pic. | Annual Report and Accounts 2019



31. Share-based payments

The Company has six equity-setiled share schemes. The Group has also awarded performance-related bonuses for Executive Directors which are
deferred in conditional shares under the Mitie Group pic 2010 Deferred Bonus Plan (DBF) and are accounted for as a share-based payment charge.

Discretionary share plans:

The Mitie Group pic Long Term Incentive Plan {LTIP)

The LTIP was introduced in 2007 and renewed in 2015. The conditional awards of shares or rights to acquire shares (the awards) are offered to a
small number of key senior managernent. Where offered as options the exercise price is £nil. The vesting period is three years, although for awerds
grarted in 2015 and subsequently some are subject to a holding period of up to a further two years. If the awards remain unexercised after a period
of twelve months from the date of vesting the awards expire. The awards may be forfeited if the employee leaves the Group. Before the awards
an be exerdsed, performance conditions must be satisfied which are based on movements in a range of market and non-market measures over
athree-year period.

The Mitie Group plc 2001 Executive Share Option scheme (ESOS)
WBOSmmceiseqﬂmmewagenwkﬁmdﬂEMWﬂwfwdaypabd immediately preceding the date of grant.

vesting period is three years. If the options remain unexerdsed after a period of ten years from the date of grant the options expire.
Optmnsmaybefa‘femed if the employee leaves the Group.
The Mitie Group pic 201 | Executive Share Option scheme {(ESOS)
The ESOS exercise price is equal to the average market value of the shares on the business day preceding grant or, if the Remuneration Committee
dedides, the average market value of shares over a number of preceding business days (not 1o exceed 20). The vesting pericd is three years. If the
options remain unexercised after a period of ten years from the date of grant the options expire. Options may be forfeited if the employee leaves
the Group. Before options can be exerdsed, a performance condition must be satisfied; the performance condition is linked to the percentage growth
in eamnings per share over a three-year period.
The Conditional Share Plan (CSP)
The CSP was introduced in 20 4. The conditional awards of shares or the rights to acquire shares (the award) are offered to a small number of key
senior management Where offered as optiors the exerdise price i £nil. The vesting period is determined at the discretion of the Remuneration
Committee and is generally two or three years. If the awards remain unexercised after a period of ten years from the date of grant the awards expire.
The awards may be forfeited if the empioyee leaves the Group.

Non-discretionary share plans:

The Mitie Group pic 2011 SAYE scheme

The SAYE scheme is open to eligible UK resident employees. The exercise price is not less than 80% of the market value of the shares determined using
either: the share price preceding the date on which imvitations to participate in the scherne are issued or an average share price over five days preceding
the imvitation date. The vesting period s three years. if the options remain unexercised after a period of six months from the date of vesting, the options
wreOpbonsnuybeforferledlfﬂuem‘pbyeeleavesﬂweGroup

The Share Incentive Plan (SIP)

The SIP was introduced in 2011 and is open to all eligible UK resident employees. Under the scheme, elfigible employees are invited to invest in
partnership shares which are purchased in the market on their behalf and held in a separate UK trust. One conditional matching share s awarded

for every ten partnership shares purchased and has a holding period of three years, Matching shares are funded by way of market purchases.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 3| March 2019

31. Share-based payments continued

Restricted Shares .

In addition, in certain cases restricted shares are issued to indivduals. The restricted shares are attached with a condition that the: relevart recipient
continues their employment with the Group for a fixed vesting period of time. Restrictions will remain attached to the shares if the recipient leaves
employment with the Group prior to completion of the vesting period of the shares,

Details of the awards and share options outstanding are as follows:

019 208 2019 2018

Number of Number of Weighted Weighted

conditional concitional Number of average Nurber of amerage

share awards thare awards  share optians  exerdise price share options #xprose prce

(miEion) (rrilion) {miliion) )] (mifion) ®

Outstanding at | April L A 9.0 . a.2 247 112 258
Grarted during the year 18 43 4.3 137 7 229
Lapsed during the year 2.9) {43) (4.0) 243 {49) 267
Exendsed during the year {0.3) on - - (1.5) 239
Outstanding at 31 March 128 2] 85 150 82 247
Exercisable at the end of the year 10 249 32 240

The Group recognised the following expenses related to share-based payments:

Wy 8

£m €m

Discretionary share plans 0.2 02
Non-discretionary share plans 0.9 10
Share-based payments acquisition related costs 39 34
50 446

The movement on the share-based payments reserve, which is part of other reserves, relates to the charge to the income statement for the year of
£50m (2018: £4.6m). This comprises: 1) £3.9m in respect of the vesting periad of restrirter shares issued as part of the acquisition of minority interests;
and ii} £1.1m of equity-settled share-based payment transactions. The share-based payments charge for the year is net of income staternent credits of
£2.1m relatirg to changes in assumptions relating to the likelihood of options vesting,

In addition, there has been: i) a release of £4.5m against the own shares reserve on the expiry of restrictions attached to restricted shares issued; and ii}
a release of £0.8m o retained earmings regarding share options that were previously exerdsed, lapsed, forfeited or cancelled.

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for awards and share aptions exercised during the year was 139p (2018:252p).

The conditional share awards and share options outstanding at 31 March 2019 had exerdise prices (other than nilin the case of the LTIP, CSP, DBP
and the matching shares under the SIP) ranging from [37p — 256p (2018: 212p - 256p) and a weighted average remaining contractual life of 3.6 years
(2018: 3.6 years). In the year ended 31 March 2019, options were grarted in respect of the SAYE, LTIP, CSP and matching shares under the SIP,

The apgregate of the estimated fair values of thase options grarted was £14.0m (2018: £106m).
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The fair value of options is measured by use of the Black-Scholes and Monte Carlo modek.
The inpuits into the Bladk-Scholes mode! are as follows:
019 2018

Share price (p) ' 258-1318 258318
Excerdise price () 0-150 0-260
Expected volatlity (%) 23-29 3-2
Expected ife (years) ) 3i-4 3-4
Risk-free rate (%) ©3)=1.1 (©3)—1.1
Expected dividends (%) 16=42 16—47

The inputs into the Monte Carlo model are as follows:

2019 218
Share price (p) 180 - 267 180 - 267
Average correlation with TSR benchmark (%) 23-27 3-27
Expected voltilty (%) : ' 34-17 34-37
Expected e (years) 3 3
Risk-free rate (%) 022-048  022-068

Expected volatility was based upon the historical volatility over the expected Iife of the schemes. The expected life is based upon historical data and has
been adiusted based on management’s best estimates for the effects of non-transferability, exerdise restrictions and behavioural considerations.

32. Retirement benefit schemes

The Group has a number of pension arrangements for employees:

¢ Defined contribution schemes for the majortty of its employees; and
* Defined beneftt schemes which include a group scheme and other smaller schermes.

The Group operates a number of defined contribution persion schemes for qualifying employees. The Group has a defined benefit pension scheme
called the Mitie Group plc Pension Scheme (Group scheme) where Mitie Group ple 15 the principal employer. The Group participates in a number

of other defined benefit schemes (Other schemes) in respect of certain emnployees who joined the Group under the Transfer of Uindertakings
(Protection of Employment) Regulations 2006 (TUPE) or through the acquisition of subsidiary companies.

Defined contribution schemes

A defined contribution scheme is a pension scheme under which the Group pays contributions to an independently administered fund; such
contributions are based upon a fixed percentage of employees’ pay. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions
to the fund once these contributions have been paid. Members’ benefits are determined by the amount of contributions paid, together with investment
retums eamed on the contributions arising from the performance of each individual's chosen investmenits and the type of pension the member chooses
1o take at retirement. As a result, actuariat risk (that pension will be lower than expected) and investment risk (that the assets invested in do not perform
in line with expectations) are borne by the employee.

The Group's contributions are recognised as an employes benefit expense when they are due,

The Group operates three separate schemes: a stakeholder defined contribution plan, which is closed to new members; 3 self-invested personal
pension plan, which is closed to new members; and a group personal pension (GPP) plan. Employer contributions are payabie to each on a matched
basis requiring employee contritutions to be paid. Employees have the option to pay their share via a salary sacrifice arrangement. The scherme used
10 satisfy auto-enrolment compliance is a master trust, The People’s Pension,

During the year, the Group made a total contribution to the defined contribution schemes of £8:0m (2018: £9.0m) and contributions to the auto-

enrolment scheme of £8.6m (2018: £4.3m), which are induded in the income statement charge. The Group expects to make contributions of a similar
amount in the year ending 3| March 2020,

Defined benefit schemes

Group scheme
The Group scheme provides berefits 1o members in the form of a guaranteed level of pension payable for life. The level of benefits provided depends
on members’ length of service and their final pensicnable pay.

'TheGoupsdmclosedtonmmembersin2006.Mﬂmewanpbye&saﬁeb}oinoneofﬂedefwedcon&buﬁbnschmﬂhemdn&mp
scheme was dosed with effect from October 2017,

Pensions in payment are generally increased in line with RPY inflation, subject to certain caps and fioors. Benefits are payable on death and other events
such as withdrawal from active service.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2019

31. Share-based payments continued

The Group scheme is operated under the UK regulatory framework Benefits are paid 1o mermbers from the trust-administered fund, where the
Trustee is responsible for ensuring that the scheme s suffidiently funded to meet current and future benefit payments. Plan assets are held in trust and
are governed by pension legislation. If investrment experience is worse than expected or the actuarial assessment of the scheme's liabilities increases,
the Group’s financial obligations to the scheme rise.

The nature of the relationship between the Group and the Trustee s also governed by regulations and practice. The Trustee must agree a funding plan
with the sponsoring company such that any funding shortfall is expected to be met by additional contributions and investment outperformance. In order
to assess the level of contributions required, triennial valuations are carried out with the scheme's obligations measured using prudent assumptions
(which are determined by the Trustee with advice from the scheme actuary). The most recent triennial valuation was carried cut as at 3| March 2017
and was concluded in March 2019,

The Trustee's ather duties indude managing the investmert of the scherme’s assets, administration of plan benefits and exerdsing of discretionary
powers. The Group works dosely with the Trustee to manage the scheme.

Other defined benefit schemes

Grouped together under Other schemes are a number of schemes to which the Group makes contributions under Admitted Body status to dients’
(generally local government or government entities) defined benefit schemes in respect of certain employees who transferred to Mitie under TUPE.
The valuations of the Other schemes are updated by an actuary at each balance sheet date,

For the Admitted Body schemes, which are largely sections of the Local Governmentt Pension Scheme, the Group will only partidpate for a finite period
up to the end of the relevant contract. The Group is required to pay regular contributions, as decided by the relevant scheme actuaries and detailed

in each scheme's Contributions Certificate, which are calculated every three years as part of a triennial valuation. In a number of cases contributions
payable by the employer are capped and any excess is recovered from the entity that the employees transferred from. In addition, in certain cases,

at the end of the contract the Group will be required to pay any deficit (as determined by the scheme actuary) that is assessed for its notional section
of the scheme.

Multi-employer schemes

As a result of historic acquisition activity and staff transfers following contract wins, the Group participates in four mutti-employer pension schemes.
The total contributions to these scheres for the financial year ending 3| March 2020 are anticipated to be £0.!m. For three of these schemes,
the Group's share of the assets and liabilities is minimal.

The fourth scheme is the Plumbing & Mechanical Services (LK) Industry Pension Scheme (the Plumbing Scheme) a funded mutti-employer defined
benefit scheme. The Plumbing Scheme was founded in 1975 and to date has had aver 4,000 employers, with dirca 400 remaining. Historically, the size
and complexdty of the Plumibing Scherne has meant the trustee is unable at this time to identify the assets and liabilities of the scheme which are
attributable to the Group. The Group has recently received a Section 75 employer debt notice in respect of the participation of Robert Prettie & Co
Limited in the Plurnbing Scheme (refer to INote {9 and Note 33). One Group company, Mitie Property Services (UK) Limited, continues to partidipate
in the Plumbing Scheme, however no apportionment of the assets and tiabilities attributable to this company is avaitable and consequertly, the Group
accounts for its contributions as if they were paid to a defined contribution scheme.

The April 2014 valuation of the Plumbing Scheme indicated a surplus on technical provisions basis of £19.0m, on liabilities of £1.47bn. The Arnual Member
update ssued by the Plumbing Scheme in October 2018 stated that the draft triennial valuation as at 5 April 2017 showed a surplus on a techrical
prowvisions basis.

As set out in Note 19, a provision of £20.0m has been made for Section 75 employer debtts in respect of the participation of Robert Prettie & Co.
Limited in the Plumbing Scheme.

As set out in Note 33 the Group has a further potential exposure to Section 75 employer debts in respect of the participation of Mitie Property
Services (LK) Limited in the Plumbing Scheme, which has been disdosed as a cortingent ability.

Further information in respect of the Group scheme and Other schemes

The table below sets out the details of the latest funding valuation of the Group scherme as at 31 March 2017,

Following the £3.0m paid in Novermber 2017, the Group paid additional contributions of £10.5m to the Group scherme during the year ended 31 March
2019, induding amounts of £3.8m and £1.8m in respect of the disposals of the Pest Control business and Social Housing business.

Under the concluded schedule for payments, a further £64.8m is payable in instalments by 31 March 2025, which, if the assumptions above are borne
out in practice, should eliminate the defict by 3| March 2025,
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The Group made contributions 1o the Other schemes of £03m in the year (2018: £0.3m). The Group expects to make contributions of around £0.3m
to the Other schemes in the year ending 31 March 2020,

Details of latest funding valuation

Group schermne
Date of Latest funding valuation : 31 March 2017
Assets at valuation date £1787m
Funding kabilties at vahiation date ' £2527m
Deficit at vahuation date: £740m

The total contribution rate was set at between 40. 1% and 45.0% of annual pay for the remaining active members. The employer contribution rate is the
balance of the total cost after the deducting the employee rate, which ranges depending on status and earnings. The total contribution exdudes any
allowances for expenses met by the scheme.

The following table sets out details of the membership of the Group scheme at 31 March 2017;

Group scheme
Active members — by number 182
Active members ~ by proportion of funding Sabllity ] 19.8%
Total pensionable salary rolipa. - £84m
Deferred members — by number 853
Deferred members ~ by proportion of funding liability 539%
Total deferred pensions pa (2t date of leaving scheme) £4.6m
Persioner members — by number 640
Persioner members — by proportion of funding Kability 263%
Total pensions in payment pa. £2.7m

Accounting assumptions

The assumptions used in calculating the accounting costs and obligations of the Group's defined benefit pension schemes, as detalled below, are set after
consuttation with independent, professionally qualified actuaries.

The discount rate used to determine the present value of the obligations is set by reference to market yields on high-quality corporate bonds.

The assumptions for price inflation are set by reference to the difference between yiekds on longer-term conventional government bonds and index-

linked bonds. The assumption for increases in pensionable pay takes into account expected salary inflation, the cap at CH, and how often the cap is likely
to be exceeded.

A UK High Court judgment was issued on 26 October 2018 relating to Guaranteed Minimum Persions (GMF), Although the ruling relates to

Uoyds Banking Group pension schemes, #t is expected to create a precedent for ather UK defined benefit pension schemes. The ruling requires the:
of member benefits eamed between 1990 and 1997 to address gender inequality in instances where GMP benefits are currently unequal.

Whilst there remains sorme uncertainty, the Group has made a provision for the estimated financial impact of this ruling on the Group scheme, based

on a comparison of the cumulative value of members’ benefits with the benefits of a notional member of the opposite gender (method C2 under the

terminology of the High Court Judgment). A past service cost of £1.6m based on the broad profile of the fund (1e. age profile, service profile and

GMP proportion) has been recogrised within other iterns in the year ended 3| March 2019.

The assumptions for life expectancy have been set with refererce 10 the actuarial tables used in the latest funding valuations, with a lower ‘best-estimate’
allowance for future improvements to mortality.

Principal accounting assumptions at balance sheet dates

Group scheme Caher schernes
2019 2018 01y 2018
% % % %

Key assumgtions used for LAS |9 valuation:
Discount rate 2.40 260 2.40 260
Expected rate of pensionable pay increases 3.20 310 3.20 310
Retail price inflation 320 310 1.20 310
Comsumer price inflation 1.20 210 220 210
Future pension increases 3.50 340 3.50 340
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2019

32. Retirement benefit schemes continued

Group scheme
2019 018
Years Years
Post retirernent fife expectancy:
Current pensioners at 65 « male a8.0 830
Current pensioners at 85 - fernale . . B8%0 890
Future pensioners at 65 —male . LX) 890
Future persioners at 65 — female . © 900 900
Life expectancy for the other schermes s that uscdbrtherebvarftsqheme actuary.
The sensitivity of defined benefit obligations to changes in principal aciuarial assumptions is shown below.
Sensitivity of defined benefit obligations to key assumptions
Impact on defined benefi obfigtions
Increase/(decrease) Increase/(detrease)
Chage in in obligations in obligations
assumption % an
Increase in discount rate 0.1% 200% (49)
Incresse in RPlinflation® 0.1% 0.8% 20
Increase in CPl inflation {exduding pay) 0.1% 07% 17
Increase in satary growth 0I% 0.0% .-
Increase in life expectancy | year 40% 104

The sensitivity information shown above has been prepared using the same method as adopted when adjusting the: results of the latest funding valuation
to the balance sheet date.

Some of the above changes in assumprbions may have an impact on the value of the scheme's investrent holdings. For example, the Group scheme holds
apropornonofnsassetsmUKcorpaalebondsAfaInthedscoxmmeasaresdtofb\nﬂUKcorpomteba’dyneidsmmldleadtoanmeasemﬂE
value of these assets, thus mitigating the increase in the defined benefit obligation to some extent.

The duration, or average term to payment for the benefits due, weighted by lability, is around 22 years for the Group scheme.

Amounts recognised in financial statements
The table below outlines where the Group's post-employment amounts are induded in the finangial statements,

2019 218
Group Other Group Cther

scheme schames Total scheme schemes Total

im &m £m £m £m im

Current service cost (0.4) (0.3) ©.n (7 ©03) 20}

Total administration experss ) .n - .9 wy - [0

Amounts recognised in operating profit (1.5) (0.3) {48 28 0.3} (k1))

Past service cost (including curtaiments) (1.8) - (1.6) (19) - (19}
INet interest cost ) (1.2) {0.1) an (9 ©I1 0 .

Armaunts recognised in profit/(loss) before tax (4.3) {0.4) (4.0 (66) (04) 70

The past service cost (including curtailments) in the year ended 31 March 2019 was the cost of equalising Guarariteed Minimum Pensions and in the year
ended 3| March 2018 was a resuilt of an increase in liabifities driven by the dosure of the main Group scheme.
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Amounts recognised in the consofidated staterment of comprehensive income are as foliows:

2019 pe1]
. T I
tm tm tm im £m &m
Actuarial (Josses)/gains arising due to changes in
finandial assyrptions (13.8) (0.9) (145) 86 08 94
Actuarial (losses)gains arising from bty experience 0.3) - (.3 (L.1) o8 (03)
Actuarial gains due to changes in demographi assumptions - o.l 0.) 59 02 6.l
Movement in asset ceding - - - - {05) (05)
Retum on scheme assets, excluding imterest income 1.3 0.5 8 46 04 50
(13.6) ©.3) 039) 180 17 19.7
The amounts induded in the consolidated balance sheet in respect of the Group's defined benefit retirernent benefit schemes are as follows:
201% ' 08
Group Other Group Other
e T P o
Fair value of scheme assets 190.5 13.1 203.6 1823 12.1 194.4
Present vake of defined benefit obligations (251.9) (15.5) (287.4) 37 (14.1) @512)
Net persion kablity {61.4) .4 (83.8) (548) 20 (56.8)
All figures above are shown before deferred tax.
antsinﬂwepmm of defined benefit obligations in the year in respect of both the Group and other schemes were
a :
2019 2018
m .d?.;':'.: Towl m sdg'v:: Towl
im £m tm im im Zm
At | April 1237.1 14.1 2512 2485 148 2633
Current service cost 04 0.3 07 V7 03 20
Interest cost 6.0 0.4 [ X ] 65 04 69
Contributions from scheme members - [ A ] 0.1 - a1 0.}
Adtvarial lossesf(gains) arising due to changes in financial
assumgtions 13.6 0y - 145 (8.6) ©8) 94
Actusrial bossesf(gairs) arising from experience 13 - 13 I ©8) 03
Actuarial gains due to changes in demographic assumptions - .1 0.1y (59) 02 &1}
Menerment in asset cefling . - - - - 05 05
Benefits paid (8.1) 0.2) (83) @1 ©2) {83)
Past service cost (induding curtaiments) 1.6 - 16 19 - 19
At 3} March 251.9 155 267.4 371 14.1 2512
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

For the year ended 31 March 2019

32. Retirement benefit schemes continued

The defined benefit obligations of the Group scheme are analysed by participant status as at 31 March 2017 below:

01y 2018
im n
Active 514 483
Deferred 1310 1233
Persioners 9.5 655
At 31 March 151.% 2371
Maovements in the fair value of scheme assets were as follows:
22019 2018
K- -
&m tm £&m m im im
At | Apel 1623 121 194.4 1778 13 189.1
interest ingome 48 2.3 5.4 46 03 43
Actuarial gains on assets 1.3 0.5 .8 46 04 50
Contributions from the sporsoning companies 1.3 0.3 11.6 44 03 47
Contributions from scheme mernbers - 0.1 0.1 - - -
Expenses paid .n - . (o) - (o)
Benefits paid (.1 ©.2) a3 @®. ©02) (63
At 31 March 190.5 1 203.6 1823 121 1944
The history of experience adjustments is as foliows:
Group scheme
2019 2018 017 016 205
Im im im im im
Fair value of scheme assets 190.5 1823 1778 1569 1622
Present value of defined benefit obligations s51.9) @71 (2485) (1913) {197.1)
Delicit in the scherne (61.4) (548) @07 (344) (3459)
Experience (Josses)/gains on scheme liabilities (1.3) (0. 08 3l 12
Percentage of scheme liabilities 05% 05% ©3)% (6% 8%
Experience gains/(losses) on scheme assets .3 15 187 62 130
Fercentage of scheme assets 0.7T% 25% 10.5% (4.0)% 80%
Onher schemes.
20t 2018 2017 /6 2015
tm €m im Lm £m
Fair value of scheme assets 13.1 12,1 t3 95 95
Present value of defined benefit obligations (155) (4.0 148y (106) (104)
Defiitin the scheme Qa4 0 Q@5 oy ©3)
Experience gains/(losses) on scheme fiabilities - 08 - - ©.h
Percentage of scheme kabilities - 5.6)% - - 05%
Experience gains/(losses) on scheme assets 05 04 13 (08} 08
Percentage of scheme assets 4.0% 33% 11.5% %% B:4%
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Fair vahses of the assets held by the schemes were as follows:

201% 208

S B e & 2E

im im im im fm m

Equities 517 15 $9.2 3 70 733
Governmet bonds 270 4.0 3 269 - 269
Corporate bonds 1y 0.4 520 no 18 258
Property 168 0 17.8 95 09 104
Diversified growth fund 37.0 - 3o 56 - 456
Cash 60 05 8.5 120 04 124
Total fair value of assets 1905 134 203.6 1823 124 1944

ﬂ\emvsmporrfolosaredwsrﬁed.lrwstmgmamderangeofassets.Inordertoprmldermsonableassurameﬂntnoswgleassetortype
of asset could have a materially adverse impact on the total portfolio. To reduce volatility, cenmnasse'lsareheldmanmdungpcnfoho.m»chhrgely
consists of government and corporate bonds, designed to mirror movements in corresponding liabilities.

Around 56% (2018: 67%) of the assets are held in equities, property and pooled investrnent vehides which seek a higher expected level of retum over
the long term.

ﬂmpmpettyassetsrepresemq.medpmpertymvsum

Risks and risk management
The Group scheme, in common with the majority of UK plans, has a number of risks. These areas of risk and the ways in which the Group has sought
to manage them, are set out in the table balow:

The risks are considered from both a funding perspective, which drives the cash commitments of the Group, and from an accourting perspective,
iz, the extent to which such risks affect the amounts recorded in the Group's financial statements:

Pisk Descriots

Asset The funding labilities are cakculated using a discount rate set with reference to government bond yields, with allowance for additional return to be generated

volatility from the investment portfolio. The defined benefit obligation Ffor accounting is calculated using a discount rate set with reference 1o corporate bond yiekds,
The Group scheme holds a large proportion of its assets (56%) in equities and other retum-seeking assets (principally diversified growth funds (DGFs) and
property). The retums on such assets tend to be volatile and are not cormelated to government bonds. This means that the funding leve! has the potential
to be volatile in the short term, potentially resulting in short-term cash requirements or alternative security offers, which are acceptable to the Trustee and
an increase in the net defined benefit kability recorded on the Group's balance shest. Equities and DGFs are considered to offer the best returns over the
long term with an acceptable level of risk and hence the scheme holds a significant proportion of these types of asset. However, the scheme’s assets are
well-diversified by investing in a range of asset dasses, including property, government bonds and corporate bonds. The Group scheme holds 19% of its
assets in DGFs which seek to mairtain high leveks of return whilst achieving fower volatility than direct equity funds. The allocation to returm seeking assets
is monitored to ensure it remains appropriate given the scheme’s long-term objectives. The investrment in bonds is discussed further below.

Changes in  Falfing bond yiekss tend to increase the lunding and accounting oblgations. However, the investment in corporate and government bonkds offers a degree of

bondylekls matching, ie. the movement in assets arising from changes in bond yields partialy matches the moverment in the funding or accounting obligations. In this way,
the exposure to movements in bond yekds is reduced.

trflation risk  The majority of the scheme's benefit obiigations are linkad to inflation. Higher inflation wall lead to higher kabiities (although caps on the level of inf
increases are in phce to protect the plan aganst extreme inflation}, The majority of the Group scheme's assets are either unaffected by inflation (fixed nterest
bonds) or loasely correlated with inflation (equities), meaning that an ingrease in inflation wil also increase the deficit

Life The majority of the scheme's obligations are 10 provide a pension for the life of the member, so increases in fe expecancy will resuft in an increase inthe

Areas of risk management
Although investrment decisions in the scheme are the responsibility of the Trustee, the Group takes an active imterest 10 ensure that pension plan
risks are managed efficiently. The Group and Trustee have agreed a long-term strategy for reducing investment risk where appropriate.

Certain benefits payable on death before retirement are insured.
. Contingent liabilities
Contractual disputes, guarantees and indemnities
The Company and various of its subsidiaries are, from time to time, party to contractual disputes that arise in the ordinary course of business.
The Directors do not anticipate that the cutcome of any of these disputes will have a material adverse effect on the Group's financial position,
other than as already provided for in the accourtts, In appropriate cases, a provision is recognised based on best estimates and management
judgement but there can be no guarantee that these provisions {which may be subject to potentially material revision from time to time} will result
in an accurate prediction, due to the uncertainty of the actual costs and liabilities that may be incurred. The Directors will continue to monitor events
as matters progress.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2019

33. Contingent liabilities continued

In addition, the Company and its subsidiaries have provided guarantees and indemnities in respect of performance. issued by financial instinutiors on
its behalf, amounting to £23.0m (2018: £21 7m) in the ordinary course of business. These are not expected 1o result in any material financial loss.

Multi-employer pension schemes

The Group participates in several industry multi-employer defined benefit schemes, induding the Plumbing & Mechanical Services (UK) Industry
Pension Scheme (Plurmbing Scheme). The total contributions to these schemes for the finandal year ending 31 Marth 2020 are anticipated to be
£0.1m. The size and complexity of the Plumbing Scheme has meant the trustee is unable at this time to identtify the assets and fiabilities of the scheme
which are attributable to the Group. Consequently, the Group accounts for its contributions as if they were paid ta a defined contribution scheme.

When the Group (or a subsidiary of the Group) exits such schemes (typically by ceasing to have any active employees in the scheme), pension legisiation
may require the Group 10 fund the Group's share of the total amount of net liabllities with a one-off cash payment (a Section 75 debt under the
Pergions Act 1995). .

On 27 March 2018, the trustee of the Plumbing Scheme provided participating employers with a summary of the draft actuarial valuation of the
Plumbing Scheme as at 5 April 2017, That summary detailed the results of the valuation on three measures:

+ technical provisions - the amount of money the Plumbing Scheme needs to meet all its obligations and pay benefits in respect of past service as they
fall due, based on the scheme assets and the economic position as at 5 April 2017, This measure showed a surphus of £45m on liabilities of £1.885bn;

« Pension Protection Fund (PPF} - the amount used to set the Plumbing Scheme's PPF levies. The benefits under this basis are lower than the scheme’s
own benefits and the assumptions are prescribed by the Pension Regulator. This measure showed a deficit of £412m on liabifities of £2.342bn; and

* solvency — this is an estimate of the cost of insuring all of the Plumbing Scheme's benefits as at 5 April 2017 with an insurer and is the basis required
for Section 75 debt calculations. This measure showed a deficit of £658m on liabilities of £2.588bn.

On 23 April 2019 the trustee of the Plumbing Scheme issued a Section 75 debt estimate to Robert Prettie & Co Limited. A provision for this debt has
been made. See Note 19.

The Group continues to have an exposure to Section 75 debts in respect of the participation of Mitie Property Services (UK) Limited in the Plumbing
Scheme, however no event has oocurmed to trigger this debt.

Employment claims

The Company and its subsidiaries are, from time to time, party to employment disputes, dlaims, and other potential liabilities which arise in the ordinary
course of business. The Cirectors do not anticipate that any of the current matters will give rise to settiements, either individually or in aggregate, which
will have a material adverse effect on the Group's finandial position.

34. Related party transactions

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consofidation and are not disclosed in
this Note,

Buring the year, the Group derived £05m (2018: £0.8m) of revenue from contracts with joint vertures and associated undertakings and received £nil
(2018: £0.6m) of dividends. At 31 March 2019 trade and other receivables from joint vertures and associates of £nil (2018: £02m) were outstanding
and loans to joint vertures and associates of £nil (2018; £nil) were induded in finanding assets.

Mitie Group pke has a related party relationship with the Mitie Foundation, a charitable company. During the year, the Group made donations and gifts
in kind of £0.4m (201(8: £03m} to the Foundation.

No material contract or amangement has been entered into during the year, nor exdsted at the end of the year, in which a Director had a material
interest

The Group's key management personnel include the Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and the Executive Leadership team, Details of the
Directors' remuneration i included in Note 7. The underlying remuneration for other key management personnel, including the share-based payments
charge is £40m (2018: £4.4m).

201% 2018

£m &m

Short-term employmert benefits EE 37
Pensign 0.2 03
Share-based payments 0.3 04
At 31 March 49 44

The Company's preferred supplier for delivering apprenticeships to its employees is Aspire Achieve Advance Limited (3aaa), a company whose
chairman is also Mitie Group plc's Non-Exeautive Chairman. The Company pays into a government mandated Apprerticeship Levy Fund, and 3aaa
withdraw from that fund to provide the apprerticeship training. On | | October 2018, the directors of Jaaa presented a petition to the Court for the
compulsory winding up of the company. This petition was accepted by the Court and the Cfficial Receiver was appointed as liquidater on 24 October
2018, During the year ended 3| March 2019, 3aaa withdrew £0.6m (2018: £0.2m) from the fund in respect of training provided or to be provided.
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35. Subsidiaries

The companies set out below are those which were part of the Group at 31 March 2019.

2017 wly
% voting rights and %X nominal
Cormpany Country of incorporation p value cwmned
Care & Custody {Health) Limited United Kingdam 100% 100%
Cole Motors Limitedt United Kingdom 100% 100%
Creativevents Limited? United Kingdom 100% 100%
Direct Enguinies Holdings Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Jabez Holdings Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Aviation Security Limited ™ United Kingdom 100% 100%
Miti Belgiurn BVRA Belgium 100% 100%
Mitie Beigiurn Security BVBA Belgium 100% 100%
Mitie Buit Ervironment Limitedt United Kingdomn 100% 100%
Mitie Business Services Limited United Kirgdom 100% 100%
Mitie Business Services UK Limited*™ United Kingdom 1oo% 100%
Mitie Care and Custody Limited™ United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Catering Services Limited™ United Kingdom 100% t00%
Mitie Cleaning & Ervironmental Services Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Cleaning Services Limited? United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Clientt Services Limited United Kingdorm 100% 100%
Mitie Company Secretarial Services Limited® United Kingdorm 100% 100%
Mitie Comphiance Ltd? United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Deutschland GmbH Germany 100% 100%
Mite Docurent Solrtiors Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Dormant {No. |} Limited? United Kingdom 160% 100%
Mitie Engineering Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Ergineering Services (Bristol) Limitedt United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Engineering Services (Guernsey) Limited Guernsey 100% 100%
Mitie Engineering Services (Jersey) Limited Jersey 100% 100%
Mitie Engineering Services (Morthern Region) Limited? United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Engineering Services (Wales) Limitec? United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Engineering Services Limited? United Kingdorn 100% 100%
Mitie Ervironmental Limited® United Kingdorn 100% 100%
Mitie Espafia, SL Spain 100% 100%
Mitie Events & Leisure Services Limitedt* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Facilities Management Limitad~ ireland 100% 100%
Mitie NI Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie France SAS France 100% 100%
Mitie Group Persion Scheme Trustee Company Lirmited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Hokdings Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie infrastructure Limited?~ United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie integrated Facilities Managernent Limitect United Kingdom T 100% 100%
Mitie Imternational Limited* United Kingdorm 100% 100%
Mitie Investments Limited? United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Justice Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Landscapes Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Local Services Limitedt* Urited Kingdom 100% 100%
Mite Maraged Services Limited? United Kingdom 100% 100%

Mittie Nedertand BY. Netherlands 100% 100%
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

For the year ended 3| March 2019

35. Subsidiaries continued

xm.mﬂ xmnmnm'
Company Courtry of incorporation ownership interest value gwned
Mitie Norge Aksieseiskap Norway 100% 100%
Mitie PFI Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Polska Sp. z 0.0, Poland ' 100X 100%
Mitse Property Services (UK) Limited” United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mite Resources Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Schweiz GmbiH Switzerland 100% 100%
Mitie Scotgate Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Security (London} Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Security Holdings Limited? United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Security Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Services (Retad) Limited? United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Shared Senvices Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Suomi Oy Finland 100% 100%
Mitie Sverige A8 Sweden 100% 100%
Mtitie T5 2 Limited®* United Kingdom 100X 100%
Mitie Technical Facilities Managernent Holdings Limited? United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Technical Facilities Management Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Tiley Roofing Limited” United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Transport Services Limnitect United Xingdom toex 100%
Mitie Treasury Managerment Limited' United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Trustee Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Waste & Environmental Services Limited* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Mitie Work Wise Limitec? United Kingdom 100% 100%
Parkersell Limited? United Kingdom 100% 100%
Procius Limitedt United Kingdom 100% 100%
Robert Prettie & Co Limied United Kingdom 100% 100%
Service Management International Asia Pacific PTE. Ltd. Singapore 1o0% 100%
Source Eight Limitedt* United Kingdom 100% 100%
Sourced Africa Limited* Urited Kingdom 100% 100%
Source8 Delivery (Nigeria) Limited Nigeria : 100% 100%
Source8 Services FZLLC United Arab Emirates 100% 100%
UK CRBS Limitedt United Kingdorm 100% 100%
Utityx Asset Management Limited® United Kingdom - 1o0% 100%
Utilyxc Asset Management Projects Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
Utityx Broking Limited® United Kingdom 100X 100%
Utilyx Healtheare Enengy Services Limited United Kingdorn 100% 100%
Utityx Holdings Limited® United Kingdom roox 100%
Utibys Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Lntityx Risk Managernent Limited United Kirgdom 100% 100%
Vision Security Group Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
Vision Security Group Systems Limited United Kingdom 100% 100%
VSG Payroll Services Limited® United Kingdom 100% 100%
VSG Staff Hire Limited® United Kingdom . 100% 100%
VSG Systems Direct Urmited® United Kingdar 1% 100%
Wealthy Thoughts Lirmited® United Kingdom 100% 100%

* These entities were dormant during the year anded 31 March 2019 and will take the exemption from preparing and fiing financial statements for the year ended 3| March 2019 {by virtue of

Section 4484, of the Comparies Aa 2006).

1 These subsiaries have taken advartage of the audit exempion under Section 479A of the Companies Act 2006 for the year ended 31 March 2019, As such, Mite Group plc his provided a

guraniee against all debty and labiities in these subsidiaries as at 31 March 2049,

+ Held daectly by the Comparny.
% The Companyy holds direct minority interest in these companies.

” The Company has voting control of these companies through direct interests in a gy of shares nepresenting fewer than S5T% of the total isued share capital of the comparses.
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The registered office of alfl subsidiaries is The Shard, Level i 2, 32 London Bridge Street, London, SEI 95G with the exception of

the following 'gl

Compary Registered office acdress B

Mitie Belguum BVEBA Regus Brussels South Station, Marze! Broodthaersplein B (box 5), 1060 Beussels (Sirt-Gilis), Belgure £

Mitie Belguim Security BVBA Regus Brussels South Station, Marcet Broodthaersplein B (box 5). 1060 Brussels (Sint-Gils). Belgium v

. Mitie Deutschiavd GrmbH MeDstetter Strafe B, 70567, Stuttgart, Germany

Mitie Engjneering Services (Guermsey) Limited Martelo Court, Admiral Park, St Peter Port, GY | 3HB, Guernsey

Mitie Engineering Services {Jersey) Limited 13 Castle Street, St Heler, JE4 SUT, jersey

Mitie Espafia, SL Osborne Clarke, Avenida Diagonal, 477, Planta 20, 08036, Barcetona, Spain

Mitie Faciities Managerent Limited 108 Q House, Furze Road, Sandyford, Dubiin 18, Ieland

Mitie France SAS " 259 rue 5t Honore, 75001, Paris, France _

Mitie NI Limited Clara House. Office BS. Dunmurry Office Park. 37A Upper Dunmurry Lane, Belfast, Northern ireland, -
BY17 0AA, United Kingdom ' g

Mitic Nedertand BV, ' Hoofdweg 524, 3067 GH Rattterdam, PO. Box 8540, 3009 AM Ratterdarn, 3009 AM Rotterdam, Netheriands E

Mite Norge Aksjeseiskap Kongensgate 9. 0153, Osio, Norway, Norway §

Mitie Pokska Sp. z 0.0. Solec 22, 00-410, Warsaw, Pokend

Mitie Schweiz GmbH Brandschenkestrasse 90, CH-8027, Zurich, Switzerland

_ Mitie Suomi Oy clo O Visma Services Infocon Ab, Pormestarinrine 8, 00160 Helsinki, Finiand
" - Mitie Sverige AB Kungsgatan 55 , | 11 22 Stockhoim, Sweden, Sweden

Service Management International 65 Chufa Swreet. #38-02/03, OCBC Centire, Singapore. 0495 13

Asia Padfic PTE. Lid.

Source8 Delivery (Nigeria) Limited 235 Ikorodu Road, lupeiu, Lagos, Nigeria

Sourca8 Services FZLLC 17 The Iridium Buikling Um Suqueim Road, Al Barsha, Dubai, PO BOX 391 186, United Arab Emirates

No subsidiaries have mlimmmﬂ\mare material to the Group.
36. Events after the reporting period
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There are no material post balance sheet evertts that require adjustment or disclosure in the annual report.
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Company balance sheet
As at 3| March 2019

019 2018
€m [,

Non-current assets
Investments in subsichary undertakings 528.3 5570
Deferred 1ax asset 2.6 08
Total non-current assets 530.9 5578
Current assets
Oebtors 884 98.2
Total current assets 88.4 582
Total assets 4193 £560
Creditors: amounts faling due within one year (88.3) (67.4)
Provisions 1.3 {148)
Total current liabilities (99.8) (82.2)
Net current liabilities (1.2) 160
Net assets 517 5738
Capital and reserves
Share capital 93 923
Share premium account 130.6 1306
Merger reserve 104.2 1042
Own shares reserve (38.1) {43.4)
Other reserves 133 229
Retained eamings 190.4 3502
Equity shareholders’ funds 5197 5738

The Compary reported a loss for the financial year ended 31 March 2018 of £45.4m (2018: £12.7m).

The financial statemertts of Mitie Group plc, company registration number SC019230, were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised
for issue on 5 June 2019. They were signed on its behalf by

Phil Bentley
Chief Executive Officer
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Company statement of changes in equity i
For the year ended 31 March 2019 S e

apial account reserve reserve reserves acoount Total
fm im £m m m im im
AL Aprid 2017 92 1306 518 (422) 253 3674 582.0 -
Loss for the year - - - - - (2n (2.n .E
Share-based payments - - - 69 24) 03 48
Acquisitions and other movernents ol - 12.4 @) - - 44
Dividends paid - - - - - (26) (4.8)
At 3| March 2018 93 1306 1042 (43.4) 139 3502 573.8
Loss for the year - - - - - {454) (45.4)
Share-based payments - - - 53 04 - 5.7
Dhvdends paid - - - - - (144) (14.4)
At 31 March 2019 93 1306 104.2 (38.1) 233 2904 519.7

Details of dividends paid to shareholders are given in Note 10 to the consolidated financial staternents.
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Notes to the Company financial statements
For the year ended 3| March 2019

I. Significant accounting policies

(a) Basis of accounting

The separate financial statements of the Company are presented as required by company law. They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention and in accordance with applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards and law, The financial staternents have also been prepared iri
accordance with FRS 101 ‘Reduced Disclosure Framework” as issued by the Financial Reporting Council

As permitted by FRS 101, the Company has taken advartage of the disclosure exermptions available under that standard in relation to share-based
payments, finandal instrurments, presertation of a cash flow staternent, impainment of assets, standards not yet effective, and related party transactions.

Where relevant, equivalent disclosures have been given in the Group accounts.

As more fully detailed in the Directors’ report, the Company's financial staternents have been prepared on a going concern basis

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of Company financial statements in accordance with FRS 101 requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions

that affect amounts recognised for assets and liabilities at the reporting date and the amounts of revenue and expenses incurred during the reporting
period. Actual results may differ from these judgements, estimates and assumptions.

The key area of judgernent that has the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is the review for impairment
of investment carrying values.

(b) Principal accounting policies
The principal accounting policies are summarised below. They have been applied consistertly throughout the year and the preceding year.

Investments

Fixex asset investrents in subsidiaries are shown at cost fess any prowision for impairment.

Investmers in subsidiaries are reviewed on an ongoing basis for any indication of impairment and, if any such indication exists, the investment's
recoverable amount is estimated. An impairmertt loss is recognised in the income statement whenever the carrying value of an asset exceeds s
recoverable amount.

Provisions

Prowisions are recognised when the Companty has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Where the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for exarnple under an irsurance contract, the reimbursernent is recognised
2s a separate asset but only when the reimbursernent is virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is charged to the profit and loss account,
net of any reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash

flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects currert market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a borrowing cost.

Taxation
Current tax is provided at amourits expected to be paid (or recovered) using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is provided in full on temporary differences that result in an obfigation at the balance sheet date to pay more tax, or a right to pay less tax,
at a future date, at rates expected to apply when they crystallise based upon tax rates and legislation that have been enacted or substantively enacted

at the balance sheet date. Temporary differences arise from the indusion of iterrs of income and expenditure in tax computations in periods different
from those in which they are induded in the financial statements. Deferred tax is not provided on temporary differences, or on unremitted earnings

of subsidiaries and associates where there is no commitment to remit these eamings. Deferred tax assets are recogrised to the extent that it is regarded
s more fikely than not that they will be recovered. Deferred tax assets and liabifities are not discourted.

Financial instruments

Intercompany koans are alt assessed as being repayabile on dermand. The assessment of impairment of receivables from | April 2018 is in accordance
with IFRS %. The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses (ECL) on receivable balances subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the ‘general approach’ permitted under IFR$ 9. Inthe prior year under IAS 39, appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are
recogrised in the profit and loss account where there is ohjective evidence that the asset is impaired.

Interest bearing bank loans and overdrafis are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Finance charges, including premiums payable on
settiement or redemption and direct issue: costs, are accounted for on an acoruaks basis in the profit and loss account and are added to the carmying amount
of the instrumertt to the extentt that they are not settled in the period in which they arise.

Trade payables are measured at amortised cost.
Eeity instruments issued by the Compary are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs,

Firandial assets and financial liabilities are recognised onmeCotﬂpan:)r’s batance sheet when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.
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Share-based payments .

Detais of the Group's share option schernes are provided in Note 31 to the consolidated financal staternents. The costs of options and conditional awards
over the Company's shares granted to employees of the Company’s subsidiaries are accourted for as a capital contribution within the carrying value of
investrments in subsidiary undertakings.

Pensions

The Company participates in the Mitie Group plc Pension Scheme. All group companies account for the contributions to the defined berefit scheme
in respect of their employees and as part of a group arrangement ane of the Company's subsidiaries accounts for the ather costs, income, assets and
liabdities of the scherme. Note 32 to the consolidated finandial statemerts sets out details of the IAS |9 'Employee benefits’ net pension liability of the
scheme amounting 10 £61 4m (2018: £54.8m).

2. Loss for the year

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the Comparty has elected not to present its own statemertt of comprehensive income
(induding the profit and loss account) for the year. Mitie Group pkc reported a loss after taxation for the finandal year ended 3| March 2019 of
£454m (2018: £127m).

The auditor's remuneration for audit services to the Compary was £40000 (2018: £40,000).
3. Investments in subsidiary undertakings

&m
Shares at cost
At | Apr 2018 4165
Capital contribution re share-based payments 57
Disposals (27.0)
At 3] March 2019 595.2
Provision for impairment
At | April 2018 595
Charged to income staternent 74
Disposaks -
At 31 March 2019 66.9
Net book value
At 31 March 2019 5£18.3
At 3| March 2018 5570
A listing of subsidiaries is given in Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.
4. Debtors
101% 218
im im
Amourits owed by subsidiary undertakings 78.0 963
Orther debtors : 0.l 18
Prepayments and accrued income: 0.1 0.
Carporation tax 10.0 -
884 982

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of debtors approsarnates their fair value.
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Notes to the Company financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2019

5. Deferred tax
Share-based
payment
Losses  diferencs Total
m m im
Deferred tax asset at | April 2018 - 08 08
Credt to income statement 17 03 14
Deferred tax asset at 31 March 2019 %) 05 22
6. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
2019 18
im £m
Overdrafts 8.4 248
Trade wreditors 4.0 44
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings ‘ 532 285
Corparation tax iiability - 0é
Other taxes and sodal security 04 ©2)
Acoruals and deferred income 123 93
833 64

Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings are repayable on demand. The Directors consider that the carrying armourtt of creditors approximates their
fair value.

The Company's bank overdrafts are part of the Group's banking arrangements and are offset against credit balances within the Group. The Company
has adequate fiquidity to dischange all current obligations.

For details of Group bormowings, see Note 22 to the consolidated financial staternents.

7. Provisions

2009 018
im m

Provisions 13 148

The movement in the prowvisions balance of £3.5m is due to amourts recognised in the income staternertt of £2.0m relating to the Healthcare
provision and £0.2m utilised from the provision, £1.2m utilised in the year relating to the restructuring provision and other movements of £0.fm,
Refer to Note |9 to the consclidated finandial statements,

8. Contingent liabllities
Per Note 33 to the consolidated financial staternents, Mitie Group pke has taken the audit exemption for a number of subsidiaries by virtue:
of Section 479A of the Companies Act.

A parent company guarantee has been provided for these entities under Section 479C of the Companies Act

9. Share-based payments

The Company has six equity-settied share schermes as described in Note 3| to the consolidated financial staternents.

The Company recognised an expense of £0.6m (2018: £0.4m) related to the share-based payment charge for discretionary share option schemes.

The fair value of options is measured by use of the Black-Scholes and Monte Carlo models. The inputs into the Black-Scholes and Monte Carlo modeis
are a5 described in Note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

10. Related parties :
The Company makes management charges to its subsidiaries, whether they are wholly-owned or otherwise, and receives dividends from its subsidiaries,
according to their ability to remit them. Other details of related party transactions have been given in Note 34 to the consolidated financial staterments.

The Directors are remunerated by the Company for their services 1o the Group as a whole. No remuneration was paid to them specifically
in respect of their services to Mitie Group pke for either year. Detalled disclosures of Directors’ remuneration and share interests are given in the
audited section of the Directors’ remuneration report on pages 70to 81. The Company had no (2018 two) employees throughout year.

Under FRS 101 the Compary & exempt from disclosing key managermnent personne! compensation and transactions with other companies wholly
owned by Mitie Group plc. There were no other related party transactions during the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: £nil).
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Appendix — Alternative Performance Measures (APMs)

The Group presents various APMs as the Directors believe that these are useful for users of the finandal statermertts in helping to provide a balanced
view of, and relevant information on, the Group's finandal performance.

In assessing its performance, the Group has adopted certain non-stah tory measures because, unlike its statutory measures, these cannot be derived
directly from its financial staternents. The Group commonly uses the follkowing measures 1o assess its perfortance:

Performance before other items

The Group adjusts the statutory income statement for certain other items which, in the Directors’ judgement, need to be disdosed separately by virtue
of their nature, size and inodence i order for users of the financial statements to obtain a proper understanding of the financial information and the
undertying performance of the business.

These other items indude the impairment of goodwdl, amortisation of acquisition related intangible assets, acquisition and disposal costs, the gain or loss
on business disposals, the cost of restructuring programmes and other exceptional fterrs.

Further details of these cther iterns are provided in Note 4,

Strategic report

1019 2018
Opersting profit/(ios) from operations &m £m
Operating profit from continuing operations Face of the consalidated income statement 50.2 1.1 §
Adjust for: inmpairment of goodwill Note 4 - n7 £
Adjust for: restructure costs Note 4 151 470 2
Adjust for: acquisiton and disposal related costs Note 4 8.7 84 v
Adust for: gain on bargain purchase Note 4 {08.8) -
Adjust for: other exceptional ftems Note 4 21.0 40
Operating profit before other items from continuing operations Performance measures 88.2 832
Operating loss from discontinued aperations' _ - 2.0) o4
Adust for: impairment of goodwil Note 4 - ne
Adjust for: restructure costs ) MNote 4 [ )] 03
Adjust for. gain on disposa) Note 4 79 - £
Adjust for: other exceptional tems Note 4 23.1 38 £
Cperating profit before other items from discontinued operations Performance measures 40 64 E
Operating proftt before other items - Group Performance measures 922 B4 S

Note:
|. Operating loss for discontinued operations comprises the loss before nance income and tax of £19.9m (2018: £9.4m) and the gain on disposal before tax of £17.9m (2018; {nd). See Note 5.

Recondiliations are provided below to show how the Group's segmental statutory results are adjusted to exdude other iterns.

c
~
c
L

1019 2018
£m m
Reported  Other koms  Parformance Reportad Other iters Performance
Operating profit/los) from operations . . results {Not= %) measures resss (Note 4) mesures.
Segment
Engineering Services 528 61 587 504 37 54,1
Security 291 1.6 30.7 7. 04 275
Professional Services 4.8 0.8 56 50 113 56
Clearing & Environmental Services 158 1.0 17.5 185 I 19.6
Care & Custody s 0.1 19 3] 0l 19
Catering 5.1 0.1 52 56 - 56
Corporate centre (60.8) 7.2 (33.4) (1073) 762 [€1R}]
Total irom continuing operations 50.2 3580 88.2 L g2l 832
Healthcare 2.0 (2.9) - - . - -
Pest Control 30.0 (27.6) 14 26 - 26
Sodial Housing (34.0) 354 14 (120) 158 38
Total from discontinued operations (2.0) [ %] 40 54) . 158 64
Total = Group 48.2 44.0 22 (83) 979 896
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Appendix - Alternative Performance Measures (APMs) continued

In line with the Group's measurement of profit/{loss) from operations before other ters, the Group also presents fts basic earnings per share before

ather iterns for continuing operations. The table below reconciles this to the statutory basic earnings per share:

N a01% 0i8
Eamings per share P P
Statutory basic earnings/(loss} per share Statutory measures 8.6 75}
Adjust lor: losses from discontinued operations {0.3) 27
Statutory basic earnings/(loss} per share from continuing operations 8.3 (45)
Adjust lor; other ftems per share 8.5 200
Basic earmings per share before other items from continuing operations Performance measures 16,8 152
Organic revenue and order book
The Group adjusts revenue and order bock from continuing operations for the impact of acquisitions to show organic measures in order for users
of the financial staternents to obtain a proper understanding of the underlying movements in these business measures,
2019 2018
£m £m
Adjust for: revenue
. - ) Reportad quisition of = Raparted
Organic revenue by segment for continuing operations i ) revenue
Segment
Ergineering Services Note 3 905.7 - 905.7 8863
Sequrity Nete 3 536.5 {79.6) 456.9 4320
Professional Services Note 3 131.4 - 1314 1312
Cleaning & Environmental Services Note3 404.4 - 404.4 384.
Care & Custody Note 3 107.3 - 1073 599
Catering Note 3 136.1 - 136.1 137.1
Total for continuing operations 2,221.4 (79.6) 2,i41.8 20306

The Group's disclosure of its order book is aimed to provide insight inta its future revenue and performance. The Group's order book represertts the
transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations on its contracts with customers. This secured revenue cormesponds to fixed work

contracted with customers and excludes the impact of any anticipated contract extensions, and new contracts with customers.

2019 2018
m im
Adjust for: m“ﬂ.‘.'é

Organic order book for coninuing cperations m el Mm'f m
Segment

Engineering Services Note 3 1,80L7 - 1,802.7 20392

Security Note 3 7S (209.0) 7625 6408

Professional Services Note 3 86.9 - 84.9 1449

Cheaning & Environmental Services Note 3 663.1 - 683.1 6563

Care & Custody Note 3 ‘ 596.6 - 596.6 6701

Catering Note 3 265 - 26.5 347

Total for corfiming operations 4,1473 09.0) 39383 4,1860
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Net debt

The Group indudes the carrying value of its derivative financial instruments in its balance sheet in its performance net debt measure as this carrying value E_

represents the fair value of cross-currency interest rate swaps on the US$ private placernent nates which form part of the Group's financing liabifities. S

The table beiow shows the recondiliation of statutory net debt to the performance net debt measure. §‘
200y 18 §

Nt debe im im

Cash and cash equivalents Note 21 108.4 598

Financing liabilties Nate 22 (285.5) (259.4)

Net debt Statutory measures ({EY X)) (199.6)

Derivative financial instruments hedging private placement notes Nete 23 16.4 6.

Net debt . Performance measures (140.7) (193.5)

The Group uses an average net debt measure as this reflects its financing requirernents throughout the period. The Group caloulates its average net

debt based on the daily dosing figures, inchuding its foreign cumrency bank loans trangated at the dosing exchange rate for the previous month end. g

In line with the performance net debt measure, the average net debt includes the fair value of aross-currency interest rate swaps on the US$ private 5

placernent notes. This performance measure shows average net debt of 302.0m for the year ended 31 March 2019, compared with £286.Im §

for the year ended 31 March 2018. S
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Shareholder information

Shareholder
information

Overview

HY 19/20 hall-yearly results

21 November 2019

Dividends
FY 18/19 interim dividend (1.33p paki)
FY 18/1% final dividend (2.67p proposed):
T TEx-dwdate
— Record date

— Last date for receipt/revocation of
DRIP mandate

- Payment date

12 February 2019

27 june 2019
2B june 2019

15 hdy 2019
9 August 2019

Annual Genaral Masting
2019 Annual General Meeting

30y 2019

Registered office
Mitie Group plc

35 Duchess Road
Rutherglen

Glasgow

G73 IAU

Telephone: 0117 970 8800
Email: info@mitie.com
Website: www.mitie.com

Registered in Scotland under company number: SCO19230

Registrars

Link Asset Services
The Registry

34 Beckenham Road
Beckenham

Kent BR3 4TU

Telephane: 0871 664 0300+

Website: www.mitie-shares.com

* calls cost |2p a minute plus network extras,
lines are open 900 am ~ 5.30 pm Mon ~ Fri,
exduding bank holidays.
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Dividend reinvestment plan (DRIP)

Mitie has a dividend reinvestment plan (DRIP) to enable you to build
your sharehaolding by using your cash dividends under a standing
election to buy additional shares in Mitie. If you would like to receive
further infarmation, incuding details of how to apply, please call Link
Asset Services on 020 B639 3402 or contact them by sending an
email to: enquiries@linkgroup.co.uk

Mitie online share portal

Mitie has a portal where shareholders can register and can then

loginto:

« Access information on shareholdings and movements;

» Update address details;

* View dividend payments received and register bank mandate
instructions;

« Sell Mitie shares;

= Complete an online proxy voting form; and

* Register for e-communications allowing Mitie to notify
shareholders by email that certain documents are available to view
on its website. This will further reduce Mitie's carbon footprint as
well as reduce costs.

If you wish to register, please sign up at
www.mitie-shares.com

Corporate website

This report can be downloaded in PDF from the Mitie website,
which also contains additionat general information about Mitie.
Please visit www.mitie.com
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Cautionary statement
Certain statements contained in this document constitute or may
constitute ‘ferward-fooking statements’.

In some cases, these forward-locking statements can be identified by
the use of forward-looking terminology, including the terms ‘believes,
‘estimates’, ‘projects’, ‘aims), 'plans) ‘predicts’, ‘prepares, ‘anticipates,
‘expects, ‘intends, ‘may’, ‘will' or ‘should’ or, in each case, their
negative or other variations or comparable terminalogy, or by
discussions of strategy, plans, objectives, goals, future events or
intentions. Such forward-ocking statements involve known and
unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors, which may cause

the actual results, performance or achievements of the Group to

be materially different from any future results, performance or
achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking
statements. Such forward-looking statements are based on
numerous assumptions regarding the Group’s present and future
business strategies and the environment in which the Group will
operate in the future. These forward-looking statements speak only
as at the date of this document. Except as required by appficable

law, rule or regulation, the Group expressly disclaims any obligation
or undertaking to release publicly any updates or revisions to any
forward- looking statements contained in this document to reflect
any change in its expectations with regard thereto or ary change

in events, conditions or circumstances on which any such statement
is based. By their nature, forward-looking statements involve risks
and uncertainties because they relate to events and depend on
circumstances that may or may not occur in the future or are beyond
the Group's control. Forward-looking statements are not guarantees
of future performance. Mitie's actual results of operations. financial
condition and the development of the business sector in which the
Group operates may differ materially from the expectations
disclosed or implied by the forward-looking statements contained

in this document. In addition, even if the Group's actual results

of operations, finandal condition and the development of

the business sector in which the Group operates are consistent

with the forward-ooking statements contained in this document,
those results or developments may not be indicative of results

or developments in subsequent periods. The forward-locking
statements contained in this documenit speak enly as at the date

of this document.

Designed and produced by MerchantCantos
www.inerchantcanos.com
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Registered Office 5
35 Duchess Road ’
Rutherglen

Glasgow

G73 AU

UK

Head Office

The Shard

Level 12

32 London Bridge Street
London

SEI 95G

UK

T: +44 (0) 330 678 0710
E: info@mitie.com
Registration number: 5C19230

More information

Visit our corporate website:

wiyw. mitie.com/invesiors

Follow us on twitter:
wearemitie

Visit ourLinkedin page:
il in.com al

Watch our fatest content:

sec/mil I

Front cover image

Anthony Smallwooed, Telecoms Climbing
Engineer. Anthony is completing planned
preventative maintenance at height,
checking the integrity of the structure,
antennas and equipment.
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